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Forward Looking Statement

This document contans certain forward looking statements within
the meaning of Section 21E of the US Secunties Exchange Act
of 1934 and Section 27A of the US Secunties Act of 1933 with
respect to certan of the Bank of Ireland Group’s {the Group)
plang and s current goals and expeciations refating to its future
financial condiion and performance and the markets in which it
operates These forward looking statements can be dentified by
the fact that they do not relate only to hustonical or current facts
Forward looking statements sometimes tise words such as ‘am’,
"anticipate’, ‘target’, 'expect’ estimate’, 'ntend’, plan’, ‘goal’
‘helave’, or other words of similar meaning Examples of forward
looking statements include among others, statements regarding
the Group's future financial postion, income growth, business
strategy, projected costs estmates of capital expenditures

and plans and objectives for futura operations Because such
staternents are inherently subject to nsks and uncertaintes, actual
results may differ matenally from those expressed or implied by
such forward locking statements Such nsks and uncertantias
nciude, but are not imited to, risks and uncertainties relating to
profitability targets, prevailing interest rates the performance of
1he Inish and UK economies and tha performance and volatiity

of the Intermational capital markets, the expected level of credit
defaults the Group's ahilty to expand certain of #s actwvities,
development and imgplementation of the Group's strategy
including the ability to achieve estimated cost reductions,
competition, the Group's ability to address information technology
1ssues and the avallabilty of funding sources Any forward locking
staternents speak only as at the date they are made The Group
does net undertake to release publicly any revision to these
forward locking statements to reflect events, crcumstances or
unanticipated events cceurmng after the date hereof The reader
should however, consult any addtional disclosures that the groug
has made or may make in documents filed or submitted or may
make in documents it has filed or submitted or may e or submit
to the US Securnties and Exchange Commussion




B

Group vie's Revaew
Operaﬂng and Fmanmal Hevaew
R|sk Mar;agemem SR

Sectlon 2 Governance

Court of Dlrectors

Report of the D rectars
F%emuneraﬁon Report
Oorporate G@vemance 8tat@mem
Corpsorate F%esp@nsmw

L [

Sectaon 3 Fmancral Statements
Statemerﬂ of .if”@CtOl’S F%esponsrbmtles
4nd@pendem Audftors Report ~
Comsnlxdated Fmanczal S‘tatememts

4
N Ce . -

Sectlon 4 Genera! lnformation
Average ba!amce sheei and mterest rates
Cansohda“[ed fricome staternent
Cansohdated ba\aﬂce sheet )

~Other duscfosures

Stockho!der lnformatton . Ce
Prmmpai Busmess Um’fs and Addresses -
lﬁdex LT
Glossary o‘f Terms




Performance Highlights

3 year financial summary
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Based on underfying performance, which exciudes the impact of non-core items {see page 10)
All ratios are after deducting proposed dividends at year end
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Financial Statements Governance

General Information

Governor’'s Statement

Bank of Ireland Group ended its financial year to 31 March
2008, with a strong capital base, good continuing access to
funding, and strong asset qualty

The Group has not escaped the effects of higher funding
costs, resulting from the global financlal cnsis, and economic
slowdown in its main markets — Ireland and the United
Kingdom  but management has operated prudently and
conservatively to ensure that the Group remains in robust
condition

Your directors are recommending a final dwvidend of 39 4 cant,
making a total of 63 6 coant for the year, an Increase of 5%

on last year Undertying profits befora tax increased by 6% to
€1,794 mithon n the ysar under review

A detaled operating review appears iater mn this report The
Group’s business m the United Kingdom and its Caprtal
Markets Divtsion grew strongly and, at home, the effects of the
slowdown in the proparty sector, togethsr with slowing growth
in the broader economy restncted growth

By 31 March 2008 key caprtal and balance sheet funding
rattos had improved resutting from careful managgment since
the start of the financial cnsis last summer The Equity Tier 1
ratio was 5 7% after deducting the proposed final dmdend

(0 3%} The lvan to depostt ratio was 157%, a significant, and
appropnate, reduction from 173% a year ago

Your directors regard these rattos as strong but, in these
unsettled times, we intend to further improve them dunrg
the remainder of this year by growing our tcan portfolios
conservatively and prioritising the use of capital strictly in ine
with our long term strategic objectives

Asset quality at 31 March 2008 remamns strong We have
minimal exposura to those asset classes most associated with
the dislecation of financlal markets and we hold appropnate
provisions aganst these exposures

Bank of Ireland &)

Economic and business outlook

Econormic growth In our main markets siowed in the second
half of 2007 and it s now expected that this trend will continue
In frefand and the United Kingdom through 2008

The medium term econamic outlook appears more positiva
in Ireland underpinned by strong fundarmentals Growth in
the UK and US economies 18 alsc expected to show signs of
impravement over the same time honzon

Bank of lrefand Group is well positioned to deal with current
market condibons Cur main businesses are strong, supported
by the efficiencies achieved in the last three years Customer
relationships, comprehensive product ranges and competitive
positioning mean that Bank of ireland Group will continus to
dnve its extensive franchise in the short term and 1s well placed
to avall of growth opportunities as cur man markets recover

Cur pnonties as we manage through this penod of slower
economic growih are fourfold

*+  We will manage our funding and capital posltions
sffectively, winning growth in customer deposits and
maintaining diversified wholesale funding

«  The Strategic Transformation Programme, which tackled
cost and capahility, has been completed ons year
earler than schaduled However, the need for
continuious improverment In our efficiency and In our
technical capability remains so that the Group can
compete effectively abroad and deferd 1its leading
positions at home And this has our continuing attention

*  We continue to focus on customer refationship
development as a key competitive differentiator for Bank
of ireland

*  We continue our strategy of sesking controlied growth
in our established businesses and markets and seeking
new opportunities for niche products in our Capital
Markets Diviston

Beport & Accounts



By following this plan we are confident that the Group will
emerge from present market difficulties n a stranger condition
to grow and generate shareholder valus as markets recover

The Court

There have been no changes to the membership of the
Court since the last Annual General Court David Dilger was
appointed Senior independent Director last September

Conclusion

2007 / 08 has been a difficult year in global financial markets
but our management  ably led by Chief Execttive, Brian
Goggin  rose to the challenges that we faced Bnan, his
management team, and all staff throughout the whole
organisation, have the gratitude and appreciaton of the Gourt
for their hard work in difficult circumstances

Report & Accounts

Governor's Statement

Bank of reland (&) |

o
<
2.
5
D
bt
o
Y
[]
=.
D
=

BOUBLLIBAOD)

SIUSWSIEIS fRIDuRU

LCHRLLLOM| [Bi8UsE)



Financial Statements Goverpance Business Review

General Information

4

Group Chief Executive’'s Review

"Bank of Ireland Group has delivered

a satisfactory performance in difficult
market conditions. Challenges and
uncertainties remain, but looking aheao
we are strongly positioned in our core
markets and confident of our abillity to
maximise business opportunities, In an
environment of moderating economic
growth in the year ahead.”

Brian J Goggin, Bank of Ireland Group Chief Executive, commented

Bank of Ireland ()
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Group Chief Executive's Review

Performance highhghts

w
-
B
=
4]
w
753
&
<,
B
z

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2008 31 March 2007 % Change
Group profitability (€ million}
Profit before tax (PBT) 1,833 1,958 (1)
Non-core items
Deduct
+ Investment ratumn on treasury stock held for policyholders (189) 68
» Profit on disposal of business assefs 33 (358)
Add
*» Gross-up for policyhoider tax In the Life business &0 (19)
+ Cost of restructunng progranime 17 49
» Hodga ineffectiveness on transition to IFRS ] 2
Underlying profit before tax 1,794 1,700 8
Per unit of €0 64 ordinary stock (€ cent}
Basic earnings per share 17486 1722 1
Underlying earnings per share 1503 144 8 4
Didend 636 60 4 =
Divisional PBT performance {underlying]* (€ million)
Reta) Republic of Ireland 718 698 3
Bank of freland Life 108 143 27
Caprtal Markets 651 5§72 14
UK Financial Services 495 441 12
Group Centre (176) (158) {10)
Underlying profit before tax 1,794 1,700 6
Group performance (undertying)*
Net interest margin 166% 169%
Cast / income ratio 51% 54%
Cost / income jaws 5% 7%
Impairment charge 17bps 9bps
Return on equity 21% 23%
Balance sheet
Stockholders’ equity (€ billlon) (see page 18) 65 87 3)
Total assets (€ bilfon) 187 189
Total loans and advances to cusiomers (€ billlon) 136 125
Totat customer deposits {customer accounts) (€ billion) 86 72 19
Wholesale funding (£ billlon) 75 80 )
Wholesale funding / total assets (excluding Bol Life pohicyholder assets) MN% 46%
Loans and advances to customers / customer deposits 157% 173%
Term funding > than 1 year and customer deposits / loans and
advances to customers 82% 84%
Term funding > than 1 year, subordinated deb? and ¢ustomer
deposits / loans and advances to customers 87% HY%
31 March 2008 31 March 2008 31 March 2007
Capital * Basel I} Basel [ Basei [
Equity Tier 1 ratio 57% 53% 49%
Tier 1 ratio 81% 786% 79%
Total capital ratio 111% 10 5% 115%

. LUnderiing perforrnance exciudes the impact of non-care dems above (see page 10}

With effect from July 2007 the lsh Finanelal Regulator rssued a requirement that a Prudential Fitter be appied to proposed dividends which resufts in these dividends being
deducted from capital when calculating eaprtal ratios, Caprtal ratios have been restated to reflect that recuarement  this results in each of the ratlos being reduced by 0 3% In
both years. The practice in the UK rs not te deduct such proposed dividends from half year or year end ratios.

Report & Accounts
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Business Review

Governance

Group Chief Executive's Review

Group performance highlights*

» Successfully managed challenges of volatle global markets and
delvered a satisfactory undertying performance EPS + 4% and
PBT + 8%

* jnvestrment sirategies continue to deliver good growth
particularty in Capital Markets and UK Financial Services

* Strong fending and deposit growth

« Cost/income ratio down 3 percentage points to 51%
cue to firm cost management

» Excellent undertying cost / income jaws of 5%

* Strategic Transformation Programme completed a year ahead
of schedule with annualised savings of €145 mulion

« Asset quality remalns strong — impawment charge 17bps
{14bps excluding provision for Structured Investment Vehicles)

+ Strengthened funding postion despite global market dislocation

s Strong capai ratos - Total capital, Tier 1 and Equity Tier 1
ratios at 11 1%, 8 1% and 5 7% respectively on a Basel Il basis
after deductng the proposed dividend (11 4%, 8 4% and 6 0%
before deducting the proposed dmdend}

Dmistonal performance highhights*

» In Ratad Republic of lkeland PBT + 3%
o Delivered PBT growth of 3% to €716 milon in an
ncreasingly challenging economic environment

¢ Strong cost containment has dnven significant efficiency

gains

o Higher mpairment loss charge reflacting the slowdown in

the economy
« In Bank of Irefand Ufe PBT 27% {Operating profit +12%)

0 PBT down 27% pnmartdy due to impact of a negative
mvestment vanance of €50 milion

o A strong performance in the sox months to September
2007 was followed by a significant slowdown in sales in
the second half of our financlal year due to the negatve
impact of weak and volatile equity markets on investor
sentiment

» In Capital Markets PBT +14% (+ 21% excluding the trading
impact of Davy disposal™)

o Corporate Banking increased PBT by 13% with
international growth delvering strong lending volumes
across portfolios and geographies, improved margns
and continuing excellent asset qualty

Based on underlying performance, which excludes the impact of nor cora items (see page 10}
* The Group disposed of its 50 444% stake in JSE Davy Holdings Limrted (Davy} on 31 October 2006
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o Global Markets delivered an axcellent performance
i volatile trading conditons
* InUKFinancial Services PBT +18% (Sterling)
o Business Banking a key drwver of performance with
PBT + 21%
Excellent growth in loans and deposits
Imparment loss charge remains low
o Mortgage Busmess PBT in hne with prior year, with
strong volume growth of 14% offset by tighter margins
© UK Post Office joint ventures performing strongly

Group Chief Cxecutive’s Review

Brian J Geggin

Group Chief Executve

John O'Donovan

Group Chief Financial Officer

Richie Boucher

Chief Executive, Retail Financal Services Irefand
Tony Wyatt

Director, Group Manufactunng

Denis Donovan

Chief Executive, Capital Markets

Des Crowley

Chief Executive, UK Financral Services
Chnstine Brennan

Head of Group HR

Ronan Murphy

Group Chief Risk Officer

MBIABY SSSLISNG
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Financial Staternents

General information

Group Chief Executive’s Review

Overview

Bank of Ireland Group delvered prefit before tax {PBT) of €1,933
million and earnngs per share (EPS) of 174 6 cent Excluding

non core tems {outined on page 10 of this document), Group
underlying PBT 15 up 6% to €1,794 midlion and underiying £PS 1
up 4% to 150 3 cent This performance was delivered as a result
of the strength of our customer brand and franchise n lreland
together with the continuing effective Implementation of our growth
strategies across the Group

Market disfocation

This result was also achieved against the backdrop of volatle
global financial markets and an environment of moderating
ecanomic growth n our main markets This volatity has had a
direct impact in a number of key areas including Mgher funding
costs (€45 milllon), a negatve investment vanance in our Lfe
business (€50 million) and the strength of the euro exchange rate
which has impacted the translation into euro of our Sterfing profits
(€30 milion)

Bark of Ireland 18 successfully managing through this penod of
volatiity

Our balance sheet 15 strong with minimal exposure to those asset
classes most negatively mpacted by the dislocation in financial
markets in the context of a balance sheet of €197 billlon, cur
exposure to Structured Investment Vehicles (SIVs), Collateralised
Debt Chligations (CDOs) and Monoline insurers (primanly through
wrapped products} is modest at €81 milion, €43 million and
€127 million respectively We hold a prudent provision of €47
rilkon against these portiokos (€45 millon in refation to the SV's)
which represents 3 bams pomnts of our impalrment charge for the
year Our avalable for sale financial assets of €29 billon, which
the Group expects ta retan uniil matunty, have suffered mmimal
waparment of €5 miion Our conservative business phiosophy,
prudent approach fo credit nsk and dwersified business portfclios
18 demonstrated by this comparatively modest impairment impact

Economic environment

Globally, credit concerns led to significant financial markets
volaiity and funding constrants As a result, higher interest rates
and reduced levels of confidence have impacted overall economic
actmty and the outlook for growth

In Iretand, the rate of economic growih has also been mpacted
by the lower lavels of activity in the residential property sector
Notwithstanding this stawdown, which is at a sharper pace than
previously anticipated, the outlook for the economy remams
posttive over the medium termn A recently published OECD report
underlined the factors for confidence n the Insh economy

“Economc fundamentals remain strong - a skiled workforce,
a flexible fabour market, moderate taxation, a busiriess fmenclly
regulatory envronment and a stil sound fiscal postion *

i Bankoflreland (D

The medium term ecanomic outiook appears more positve In
Iretand underpinned by these strong fundamentals Growth in
the UK and US economies 1s aiso expected to show signs of
improvement over the same time honzon

Asset quality

Qur asset quality remains strong  As expected, aganst a backdrop
of slowing economic actwity, our imparment loss charge for the
year has increased from an histoncally low lavel of 9bps in the
previous year to 17ops Going forward we expect our Impamment
charge to trend towards more nonmalised levels

Costs

Strong cost management has resulted in the achievement of
further efficiency gaing with our cost / ncome ratio down 3
percentage ponts 1o 51% and we have delivered a positve cost
/ ncome jaws of 5% We completed the Strategic Transformation
Programme & year ahead of schedule and ahead of target with
annualised cost savings of €145 million Over the ife of the
Prograrnme we delivered signficant efficiency improvements
reducing our cest / ncome ratio by 9 percentage ponts sincs
March 2005 We reiterate our commitrnent to rigarous cost
management and to our chiective of achieving further improvement
i our cost / ncome ratio n an environment where in the short
term income growth will be more challenging, our decision to
mvest in the longer term development of our business may delay
the achievernent of this objective

Funding and capital

We have managed our funding effectvely during this penod

of market dislocation Significant growth n customer deposits
has been achieved and we have successfully raised wholesale
funding across the matunty spectrum through both private and
public issuances Our deposit gathenng capabilty together with
the comprehensive range and geographic dvarsity of our funding
programmes have contnbuted to the success of our funding
strategy

Through our proactive capital management programme and

mere moderate nsk weighted asset (RWA) growth we have
strengthened our capital posiion with our Equity Tier 1 ratio on

a Basel | basis increasing from 4 9% o 5 3% after deducting the
proposed dividend {0 3%) The Insh Financial Regufator has given
the Group approval to use the Foundation Internal Ratings Based
Approach (IRBA) under the Capitel Ragqurements Drrective (Basel i
framework) On a Baset |l basiz our Equity Tier 1 ratio at 31 March
2008 was 5 7% after deduciing the proposed dwvidend (0 3%)
Going farward we remain committed to further strengthering our
caprtal base and are targeting an Equity Tier 1 ratio in the range
of 5 5% to 6 5% after deducting proposed dividends  This waill be
achreved through a combination of retained earnings and captal
management intiatives

Report’& Accounts



Wea coniinue to grow our loan poertfolios prudently and allocate our
funding and capital to maximise return on assets within approprate
nsk parameters

Divisional performance

Retaill Republic of Iretand delvered PBT growth of 3% to €716
million in an mcreasingly challenging econormic environment
Streng cost containment was a key contrbutor to signficant
efficiency gans Profits have been impacted by a higher
impairment foss charge reflecting the slowdown in the economy

Bank of Ireland Life delivered PBT of €108 million, 27% lower than
the pnor year, pamanly due to the mpact of a negative investment
vanance of €50 milion Weakness and centinued volatility in equity
markets impacted investor sentiment resulting In a slowdown in
new business volumes in the second half of the financial year

The medium term outlook for our Life business remains attractve
notwithstanding the current challenging market conditions

Our Caprital Markets Dmsion delivered a very strong performance
with PBT increasing by 21% to €651 mullion, excluding the trading
impact of the Davy disposal Corporate Banking increased PBT
by 13% delvenng strong lending volume growth across portfolios
and geographies, mproved margins and continuing excellent
asset qualty Global Markets delivered an excellent performance in
volatie trading condiions with a PBT increase of 54%

In UK Financial Services, our nvestment strategies continued

to deliver excellent growth with PBT up 18% to £353 milion
Business Banking remamns a key driver of Divisional performance
with strong lending and deposit growth together with strong asset
quality resuthing n PBT growth of 21% Profit in our Mortgage
business, against a slowing market backdrop, 1s 0 hne with the
pner year as strong volume growth and strong asset quality were
offset by tighter margins In the final quarier of our financial year,
residertial mortgage volumes and pnaing improved as a number
of institutions exited the markst due to funding constrants  given
its timng this will have a positive impact in our next financial year
Our joint ventures with the UK Post Office (including Post Office
Financial Senvices and First Rate Exchange Services) performed
strongly with PBT up 92%

Report & Accounts

Group Chief Exacutive’s Review

Qutiook

Looking forward, we expect the slower pace of economic growdh
n our mam markeis of Ireland, the UK and the US, and the current
market dislocation which charactensed the second half of our
financial year, to continue to impact our earnings potential in the
year ahead Management priorties remain focused on effactively
managing our funding and capital positions and mamntaning
ngorous cost management and nsk control

We are strongly postioned m our core markets and are confident
that our deep customer relationships, business fundarnentals and
competitive positioning will enable us to capitaiise on both current
and future business opportunihes particulary when economic
conditions imprave

We remain committed to our business strategy to be the

number ane bank in Ireland with dynamic businesses growing
intgroationally

Brian J Goggin
20 May 2008
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Operating and Financial Review

Rewview of Group Performance

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2008 31 March 2007
Group Incoma Statement €m £€m % Change
Net interest income 3,263 2,757 18
QOther mcome 857 1,112 23)
Total operating income (net of insurance claims) 4,120 3,869 6
Qperating expenses (2,140) (2,110} 1
Imparment losses {232) (103} 125
Share of income from assoclates and joint ventures (post tax} 46 44 5
Underying profit before tax 1,784 1,700 6
Non core items
Add
= Investrent return on treasury stock held for pohcyholders ** 189 {68}
* Profit on disposal of business assets a3 358
Deduct
» Gross-up for policyholder tax in the Life busmess 60} 19
v Cost of restructunng programme {17) {49)
» Hedge meftechiveness on transition to IFRS {6) 2
Profit before tax 1,933 1,968 [4)]
Taxation (229} (306) (29
Minority Interest &) 1)
Ervidends to other equity inferests 4 {15)
Profit attnbutable ta ordinary stockholders 1,685 1,638 3
Basic earnings per share 174 6¢ 1722¢ 1
Underlying earnings per share” 150 3¢ 144 8¢ 4

* Excludes the impact of nom-core dems after tax of €198 mitlion (31 March 2007 €225 million) {tax movement explained on page 18
LUinder accounting rules, the Group mcame statement impact of Bank of frefand stock held by Bof Life poicyholiders Is excluded The amount above refiects the Impact of the
stock price movement between 31 March 2007 and 31 March 2008 Units of stock held at 31 March 2006 were 19 miflon (31 March 2007 27 milhon)

Cost / ncome ratio 51% 54%
31 March 2008 31 March 2007
€bn €bn % Change
Loans and advances to customers 136 125 9
Customer deposits 86 T2 19
Risk weighted assets Basel | 126 113 11
117

Risk weighted assets Basel Il

The following commerttary 15 based on the Group's performance excluding the iImpact of non core tems A reconciliation of the mpact of
these non core tems on the Income statement Ine items s shown on pages 25 and 26 of this document

The Group ncome statement above does not adijust for the trading mpact of the dispoesal on 31 October 2006 of the Group's 80 444% staka
in J&E Davy Holdings Limrtted (Davy) Adusting for the profit contnbution of Davy in the prior comparative penod, underlying PBT grew by 8%

and underlying EPS grew by 6% in the year ended 31 March 2008

| Bankoflretand (=)
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Operating and Financial Review

Income

Total ncome increased by 6% to €4,120 milion driven by strong volume growth in both loans and deposits across the Group Total income
after adjusting for the trading impact of the Davy disposal increased by 9% year on year

31 March 2008 31 March 2007
Total Incame £m €m Change %
Total operating income 4,120 3,869 6
Trading Impagt of disposal (95)
Total operating ncome excluding trading impact of disposal 4,120 3,774 9

Net interest Income and ‘other Income’ growth Is affected by the trading impact of the Davy disposal together with a number of IFRS
income classdicahions Under IFRS, certain assets and habiities can be designated at farr value through profit or loss Where we have
designated assets or labities at far value through profit or loss, the total farr value movements on these items, including net interest
incoms, are reported In ‘other income’ However, the funding costs of the assets and the mterest income on the habilities are reported

in net interest ncome  in addition we raise debt in a vanety of currencies and manage the foreign exchange and interest rate nsk using
derwvative instruments  The interest element on the debt 1ssued mpacts our net nterest ncome while the far value moves on the dervative
nstruments, Including net interest Income, are reported in ‘other Income’ To enable a better understanding of underiying business trends,
the impact of these IFRS income classications and the trading impact of the Davy disposal are shown in the tables below

31 March 2008 31 March 2007
Nat interest income / Net interest margin €m €m Change %
Net interest income 3,263 2,757 13
Trading impact of disposal 1
IFRS income classifications (346) (122
Net interest income excluding trading Impact of disposal
and IFRS mcome classifications 2917 2,634 11
Average interest earning assets (€ billion) 175 156 12
Net interest margin 166% 169% (3bps)

Growth in net interest income was drnven by strong volume growth in loans and deposits across the Group Loans and advances to
customers increased by 9% and customer deposits grew by 19% (16% and 27% respectively on a constant currency basis) A number of
dnvers contnbuted to this volume growth the strength of our franchise in Ireland, supported by the scale of our mutt channel distnbution
network, the continued delivery from our investment n Business Banking UK and internationat Corporate Banking teams together with a
strong deposit gathenng performance by UK Post Office Financial Services (POFS), Business Banking UK, Corperate Banking and Global
Markets

The Group net interest margin reduced by 3bps to 1 66% for the year ended 31 March 2008 from 1 69% for the year ended 31 March

2007 The key drivers of margin attrition were

* balance sheet structure where average lending growth exceeded average deposit growth for the year which reduced margins by 2bps,

* the impact of the market dislocation which reduced margins by 2bps,

* ncreasing competition which adversely impacted lending margins by 1bp, of which mortgage margins were down 2bps partially offset by
mproved pricing in non mortgage lending,

Offset by

+ mproved asset mix with stronger growth i fugher margin products, mncreasing margin by 2bps

Report & Accounts Bankofireland (&) |
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Operating and Financial Review

31 March 2008 31 March 2007
Other Income €mi €m Change %
Other income 857 1,112 23)
Trading Impact of disposal (94}
IFRS neorne classifications 346 122
Other Income excluding trading impact of disposal
and IFRS income classifications 1,203 1,140 6

‘Other Income' excluding the effect of the trading mpact of the Davy disposal and IFRS income classfications increased by 6% for the year
ended 31 March 2008 compared to the pror year The dnvers of this growth include Global Markets performance, POFS performance and
increased activity in our credit card business The growth s impacied by reduced ncome n Asset Management Services and a significant
negatve investment vanance (€50 million} in Bank of Ireland Life due to weaker global equity markets Excluding the negative investment

vanance, ‘other ncome’ grew by 10%

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses ncreased by 1% n the year ended 31 March 2008 or by 5% excluding the impact of the Davy disposal Efficiency
Improvements remain a core focus across the Group and we continue to make significant progress in this regard Our cost / income ratio
continuas to Improve with a further reduction of 3 percentage points from 54% in the year ended 31 March 2007 to 51% in the year ended
31 March 2008

31 March 2008 31 March 2007
Operating expenses £m €m Change %
Operating expenses 2,140 2,19 1
Trading Impact of disposal 83)
Operating expenses exciuding trading impact of disposal 2,140 2,047 5

QOperating expenses, excluding the tracing impact of the Davy dispasal, have increased by 5% drven by

* Investment costs of 2% relating to the continuing international development of our Corporate Banking and Global Markets activities,
together with the costs associated with the continuing development and launch of new products :n POFS,

* Business as usual cost growth of 6% where 2% s due to volume growth and 4% 1s due to inflation

Offset by

= Cost savings of 2% from the Strategic Transformation Programme,

« Cost savings of 1% ansing from reduced compliance spend - Basel 1l and Sarbanes Oxley Programmes

We successfully completed the Strategic Transformation Programme (STP} a year ahead of schedule and ahead of target with annualised
cost savings of €145 mition The Programme has fundamentally strengthened our business by consohdating and streamlining key functions
within customer operations and support services into the Group Manufacturing Division This restruciuring resulting in over 35% of the
Group's cost base now being managed within the Group Manufacturing Division, together with a more clearly defined operating model, has
enabled the achievement of operational efficiencies  Since the inception of the Programme our cost / incame ratio has been reduced by 9
percentage points from 60% in the year ended 31 March 2005 to 51% i the year ended 31 March 2008

The changing economic environment and slowing revenue growth has brought a heightened focus to cost management and although
significant progress has been made since the launch of the STP in March 2005, there are opportunities for further efficiency gans Tight cost
management remans an mperatve We reerate our commitment to ngorous cost management ard to our objectve of achieving further
improvement In our cost / Income ratio In an environment where, In the short term, Nncome growth will be more challenging, ocur decision to
nvest In the longer term development of our business may delay the achievement of this objective

Report & Accounts
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Asset quality Loans and advances to customers
Asset quality remans strong being underpinned by our prudent nsk appetite, strong underwnting skils and proactive portfolio management

Disclosure under IFRS 7 requrres that loans are classified as ‘financial assets netther past due nor impared”, “financial assets past due but not
impaired’ and ‘impaired financial assets’ Loans and advances to customers withmn 'financial assets neither past dus nor impaired’ are assigned
an internal credit gradie by the Group based on an assessment of the credit quality of the borrower and these ratings are summansed below into
four segments, ‘rugh'’, 'satisfactory’, ‘acceptable’ and ‘lower qualiy but not past dus nor rmparred’ The segmental defintions are as follows
High quality loans and advances to highly rated obligors, strong corporate counterparties and personal barrowers (ncluding residential
mortgages) with whom the Group has an excellent repayment experience,
Satisfactory qualty good quality loans that are perforrming as expected, including loans and advances to small and medium sized
enterprises, leveraged entriies and more recently established businesses,
Acceptable qualty  customers with mcreased nsk profiles that are subject to closer monnonng and scrutiny by lenders with the objectve
of managing nsk and mowving accounts to an imgroved rating categaory,
Lower quality but not past due norimparred  those loans that are nerther in arrears nar expected to result in loss but where the Group
requires a work down / out of the relationship unless an early reduction m nsks achievable
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Past due but not impawred loans and imparred loans are defined as follows %
Past due but not impared loans loans where repayment of interest and / or pnncipal are overdue by at least one day but for which the 5
Group does not expect to incur a loss, é
imparred joans  loans with a specific mpatrment provision attaching to them
The classriication of 1oans in the pnor year has been updated to reflect the above segments In particutar only thosa loans on which the Group
expects to mcur a loss are classified as imparred In ing with IFRS All other loans are classified as ‘nerther past due nor impawred’ or 'past due
but nct imparred’
31 March 2008 31 March 2007
Asset quality Loans and advances to customers €m % €m %
High quality 77,952 572% 74,214 59 1%
Satlsfactory quality 47,001 345% 43,297 34 5%
Acceptable quality 6,527 48% 3,849 31%
Lower quaitty but not past due nor imparred 683 05% 342 03% é-l
Past due but not Impared 3,019 22% 2,005 25% a
Impaired (including SVs) 1,082 08% 679 05% =
Total loans and advances to customers 136,334 100 0% 125,476 100 0% %
[
Group loans and advances to customers at 31 March 2008 were €136 billon compared to €125 billon at 31 March 2007, a 9% increase §
87% of loans and advances to customers at 31 March 2008 were classfied as 'netther past due nor imparred’, unchanged from 31 March o
2007 At 31 March 2008 0 8% of the total loan book was wmpawed, compared to 0 5% at 31 March 2007
31 March 2008 31 March 2007
Impaired loans £m bps €m bps
Retall Republic of reland 642 19 380 79
Capital Markets (inchuding Sivs) 193 69 175 74
UK Financial Services 227 40 124 22
Group {including SiVs) 1,062 78 679 54
@
Imparred loans increased from €679 milkon at 31 March 2007 1o €1,062 milion at 31 March 2008, or from 54bps to 78bps of total loans 3
remaining befow the 10 year average to 31 March 2007 of 96bps for the Group It should be noted that the 54bps in the year ended 31 March @
2007 represented the lowest paint in this 10 year penod The increass in imparred loans from this low point in March 2007 1s manly due to the 9_.,
impact of higher interest rates, slowing economic growth i Ireland and the UK and softerung in the property sector (-33*
&
In Retal Republic of Ireland imparred loans ncreased from €380 million at 31 March 2007 to €642 milion at 31 March 2008 or from 79bps §
to 118bps of total Dvsional lending This trend in credit quakty 1s due to higher mterest rates, softering in the property sector and the overall
slowdawn it the level of economic actnty An emerging trend, previously nated, within the busmness barkang portiolo indicates that a shamer
than expected slowdown In residential property development activity has created challenges for a small number of mid tier participants in this
sector
e
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In Capital Markets Drasion mpaired loans mcreased from €175 milion at 31 March 2007 to €193 million at 31 March 2008 representing
a declne 0 basis points from 74bps to B9bps (400ps excluding SVs) of total Divisionat lending at 31 Mareh 2008 reflecting a signficant
improvement m the quality of the book.

In UK Financial Services imparred loans increased from €124 miflion at 31 March 2007 to €227 mdlion at 31 March 2008 or from 22bps at 31
March 2007 to 400bps of total Dvsional lending at 31 March 2008 This increase from an histoncally low base at 31 March 2007 1s reflectve of
the slowing economic ervironment in the UK and the softening trend 1n the UK property market

31 March 2008 31 March 2007
Batance sheet impairment provisions €m £m
impairment provisions 596 4238
Impaired loans as a % of total loans 78bps 54bps
Impalrment provisions as a % of total loans 44bps 34bps
Imparmnent provisions as a % of impaired loans 56% 63%

Total balance sheet provisions aganst loans and advances to customers were £596 milion at 31 March 2008, compared to €428 milion at
31 March 2007 Imparment provisions as a percentage of total loans were 44hps, the ratio being 3bps for the Group mortgage book and 76
bps for non morigage lending We continue 1o mairtain a satisfactory tevel of provisions, with a coverage ratio of 56% aganst impared loans

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2008 31 March 2007

Group impairment loss charge £€m bps €m bps
Specific impairment [net of provision write backs) 169 13 121 10
Incurred but not reported (BNR) 30 2 1

Specific impalrment on Structured Investment Vehicles (SIVs) 48 3

Recovenes {13 Q)] (19) 1)
Total mpairment loss charge 232 17 103 9

The Group mpairmenit foss charge for the year ended 31 March 2008 amounted to €232 milkon or 17ops, when expressed as a percentage
of average loans and advances to customers The charge mncluded €46 million (3bps) being 57% coverage on €81 million of exposures io
SIVs that are classified as loans and advances to customers The remaning charge of €186 million or 14bps {excluding SiVs) was bops higher
than the charge for the year ended 31 March 2007 This hugher charge reflected the impact of a slowing economic environment, consequent
loan grade degradation and a reversion towards a more narmahsed Jevel of mparment koss charge following an fistorically low charge n the
year ended 31 March 2007

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2008 31 March 2007
Divisional impairment charges £m bps £m bps
Retail Republic of Ireland 146 28 63 14
Caprtal Markets (including SIVs) 53 21 21 10
UK Financial Services 33 6 19
Group (ncluding Sivs) 232 17 103

in Retall Republic of Ireland the impairment loss chiarge for the year ended 31 March 2008 was 28bps of average lcans compared 1o 14bps
for the year ended 31 March 2007, remaming within the 10 year range to 31 March 2007 of 14bps to 31bps for the Dvimion 50% of the
increase N impairment charge relates to a very small number of specific cases, while the balance 15 broadly based reflecting the mpact of
higher Interest rates and the overall slowdown in the level of economic actvity

In Capital Markets asset quality remamned excellent with an tustoncally low mpairment loss charge of 3ops (excluding 18ops relatng to SIvs),
down from 10bps at 31 March 2007 and below the 10 year range ta 31 March 2007 of 5bps to 28bps for the Dmsion We have seen a
significant improvement in the quality of the book with a lower level of speciic cases requIing provision in the year ended 31 March 2008

compared to the pror year

In UK Financal Services asset quakty continued to be strong From an unsustalnably low level, the imparment foss charge ncreased from
4bps i the prior year to Bbps for the year ended 31 March 2008 This is well withun the 10 year range to 31 March 2007 of 3bps to 18bps
for the Division The imparment charge on residential mortgages remained neglgtble Sore grade degradation was evident in the Busingss
Banking loan book as a result of weakness in the property sector
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In summary, we beleve that mpairment trends are now reverting towards a more normalised leve! for the Group having reached unsustainably
low fevels at 31 March 2007 This trend reflects the slowdown in economic aciivity in both Irgland and the UK Qur approach to the
management of balances in arrears and dentification and management of problem accounts 15 ngorous, with early interventicn and proactive
management of accounts remaining a key nsk mibigant for the Group  Cur disciphined approach to credit managerent together with the
positive contnbuting factors of continued low unemployment, relatrvely low interest rates and the prospects for economic recovery, provides
us with confidence that we will not see a significant detenoration in our asset qualty

Availabte for Sale Financial Assets
Af 31 March 2008 the Group's portfolio of available for sale (AFS) financal assets amounted to €29 3 billion (31 March 2007 €33 4 bilkon)

The Ligud Asset Portfolio {which 1s held for iquidity purposes) compnses €26 4 billon of the total AFS financial assets, €1 8 bitkon in
government bonds and €24 & billion n senior bank debt The other AFS assets of €2 & hillon are Asset Backed Securities {ABS) compnsing

Commercial Mortgage Backed Secunties (CMBS) of €0 9 bilon, Residentiat Mortgage Backed Secunties (RMBS) of €0 8 hillion, Student
loans, SME loans, Whole business ABS and syndication loans totaling €1 2 billon and Collateralised Debt Obligations {CDOs) of €0 04

bilion

The Group expects to retain s AFS assets untl matunty and, under IFRS, they are marked to market through reserves These assets have

ncurred minimal impairment of €5 milion in the year ended 31 March 2008

The following table quantfies our exposure to each asset class and the impact of market dislocation on valuations at 31 March 2008

rated «<6% US

€0 4 billion Student loans /

SME loans / Whole business | gaer aAan 7 AL/ Mark to market negative
ABS A rated impact of €138 millan an
€0 1 billion leasing bonds reserves
€0 2 billion syndication Corporates Cumulative €7 million
foans {not rated) impaiment through mcome
€0 3 billon other categories | 95% AAA/AA | Statement

rated
€0 2 blllion corporates BBB or higher
€43 milon CDOs €30 €8 mithon US
million relates to the Group's | subprime

own CDO which s
consolidated

Portiolio Volume Asset Typo Prefile Balance Sheet (AFS Falr Value
Reserve) and Income exprossed as %
Statement impact (where | of Underlying
applicable) Nominat
Liquid Asset Portfolio €26 4 bllion £1 8 billion government >95% Mark to market negative 103 2%
bonds AAA rated impact of €3 million on
reserves
No impairment
€24 8 billlon senior bank FRNs / CP /CDs | Mark to market negative 98 4%
debt and covered bonds { Covered Bonds | impact of €278 miilioh on
Average rating reserves
No smpairment
Asset Backed Securitles €2 9 biflion €0 B billlon RMBS 98% AAA S AA 84 4%
Portfolio rated All prime,
<3% US
€0 9 billion CMBS 75% AAA fRA

The Group has no direct exposure to US subpnme asset backed securties and an €8 milion indirect exposure to this asset class through

ABS CDOs

Trading Securities

The Group holds a portfobo of bonds for trading purposes typically taking posrions in financial and corporate nsk with ratings between
investment grade AAA and BBB (average rating A} The valug of these securthies at 31 March 2008 was €119 million (3t March 2007 €520
milion) In the year ended 31 March 2008 a loss of €1 million was incurred on this portfolio and 1s ncluded in the Income statement

Report & Accounts

Bank of freland (&) !

o)
fad
@
=
0
23
v
e
0]
=
T
2

SOUBLLIBAOD

SIUSLLBIELS [BIOUBUIY

LOITBLUIOW] [BIBUSD)



2
2
=
o
o
7]
1
o
=
@
-
m

Governance

Finanociat Statements

General Information

16
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Share of Associates and Joint Ventures

Profit after tax from associated undertakings and jont ventures, which manly relates to First Rate Exchange Services (FRES), mcreased
from €44 milion in the year ended 31 March 2007 to €46 milhon 1n the year ended 31 March 2008, primanly as a result of strong margin
management

Balance Sheet — Capital and Funding

Total assets increased by 5% {12% on a constant cumency basis) from €189 bition at 31 March 2007 to €187 billon at 31 March 2008

The rate of growth In loans and advances to customers moderated dunng the year to 9% (16% on a constant currency basis) Growth in
customer deposits of 19% (27% on a constant currency basis) was very strong reflecting an increased Group focus on depostt gathenng to
strengthen its funding structure

The Insh Financial Regulator has given the Group approval o use the Foundation Internal Ratings Based Approach (RBA) under the Capital
Requiremerts Directive (Base! Il framework) Base! | nisk weighted assets {(RWA) grew by 11% {20% on a constant currency basis) from €113
bihon at 31 March 2007 to €126 billion at 31 March 2008 RWA under Basel Il were €117 billion at 31 March 2008

% Growth 31 March 2008 over 31 March 2007

Loans and advances to Customer

Basel | RWA customers deposits

Group 1 9 19

Retall Republic of Ireland 12 11 5

Capital Markets 13 22 56

UK Financial Services (euro equivalent) 10 1 3
Capital

The Group has strong capial resources and a proactive approach to captal management to ensure adequate capital to support its business
plans

The increase in Basel | capital between 31 March 2007 and 31 March 2008 refiects the benefits of retained earmings and new capital raised
offsat by adverse exchange rate movements (caprtal is mantamed n the main currencies in which the Group holds nsk wexghted assets in
order to avoid volatiity in capial ratios due 1o exchange rate movemenis)

| Bank of Ireland (&)

31 March 2008 31 March 2008 31 March 2007

Basel H Basel | Basei |

Rigk welghted assets {€ billion) 117 126 113
Total capital ratlo * 111% 105% 11 5%
Tier 1 ratic * 81% 76% 79%
Equity Tier 1 ratio * 57% 53% 49%

With effect from July 2007 the Insh Financlal Regufator issued a requirement that a Prudentie! Fiiter be applied to proposed dividends which results in these dividends baing
daducted from capital when calculating capital ratios Caprtal ratias have been restated fo reflect that requirement  this resufts in each of the ratios being reduced by 0.3% in

both years The practice s the UK is not to deduct such proposed dividends from haif year or year end ratios

The movement in the Tier 1 ratio and Total caprtal ratio between 31 March 2007 and 31 March 2008 reflects a capitaf posttion in March
2007 which was boosted by two securtisation transaclions which were executed in the month of March 2007

Dunng the year ended 31 March 2C08 the Group completed a number of caprtal management indiatves We raised USE600 million (€439
rnifkon at the exchange rate on the date of 1ssue) of lower Tier 2 Capttal and completed the sale and leaseback of a second tranche of 30

retall branches in Ireland

Report 8 Accounts
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In October 2007, the Group completed a €400 mifion embadded value secunties transaction which references the future cash flows from
our Iife assurance business The transaction resulted in the reclassification of certan capital reserves relating to the value of in force In our
Ifa assurance business from Tier 2 capital to Equity Tier 1 capital Repayment of the secunties issued will depend on the emergence of

future cash flows thereby preserving the value of the capital protected by the transaction The transaction mposes no obligations on our ife
assurance business

Through our proactive capital management programme and more mederate nsk weighted asset growth we have strengthened our capital
position with our Equity Trer 1 ratio on a Basel | basis increasing from 4 9% at 31 March 2007 to 8 3% at 31 March 2008 after deducting
the proposed dwvidend (O 3%) at both year ends On a Basel || basis our Equity Tier 1 ratio at 31 March 2008 was 5 7% after deducting the
proposed dwidend {0 3%) Gowng forward we remain committed to further strengthening our caprtal base and are targeting an Equity Tier 1
ratio in the range of 5 5% to 6 5% after deducting proposed dwidends

Funding

Wholesale funding at 3t March 2008 at 41% of the total Group batance sheet {excluding Bank of Ireland Life assets held on behalf of
policynolders) compares to 46% at 31 March 2007

31 March 2008 30 September 2007 31 March 2007
Balance Sheet Funding € billion % £ billion % € billicn %
Deposits by banks 14 8 19 10 20 12
CP/CD's 2 15 27 15 21 12
Securitisations 8 4 10 5 " [}
Senlor Debt / ACS 25 14 29 16 28 16
Wholesale Funding 75 41 85 46 80 46
Customer Deposils 86 47 76 41 72 41
Capital / Subordinated Debt 14 8 15 8 15 8
Other 10 4 10 5 8 5
Total 185 100 186 100 175 100

Barnk of Ireland has successfully mantained a strong funding position throughout an extended penod, since August 2007, of dislocation
in global financial markets Short and long term funding has been accessed using a comprehensive range of funding prograrmes, across
a wide range of Investor classes and unsdictions Our aceess to euro, Sterling and LS dollar markets through the dverstty af our funding
programmes has proved a particutar strength in the qurrent market

Customer deposits have been increased by 19% as a result of our market leading Insh customer franchise and our presence in targeted
customer segments internationally At 31 March 2008, wholesale funding as a percentage of the balance sheet at 41%, was 5 percentage
points lower than at 31 March 2007 with term funding i & funcing with a maturity greater than one year at year end} accounting for 33%
of wholesale funding The Group financed 1ts customer loan book in a prudent manner with 82% of s loan book funded through customer
deposits and wholesale term funding with a matunty greater than one year

Bank of Ireland operates under the robust Liquidity Regime introduced by the lnsh Financial Regulator n July 2007 This regime requires that banks

have sufficient payment resources {cash inflows and marketable assets) to cover 100% of expected cash outflows In the 0 to 8 day time horzon

and 90% of expected cash outflows i the over 8 day to one morth time horzon The Group contnues to maintain a significant iquidity tuffer n
excess of these requirements

Overall, Bank of Ireland's established and diversified funding strategy continues to support growth across our businesses
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=z
e
DaE Stockholders’ Equity
@w
% €m
£
2 Stockholders’ equity at 31 March 2007 6,724
m
Movements
Profit retained for the year (after dividends) 1,074
Reissue of stock / treasury stock 194
Foresgn exchange adjustments (a} (712}
Avattable for sale (AFS) reserve movernent (b) {386}
Cash flow hedge reserve movement {c} {247}
Pension fund cbligations (d} {209)
Other movements 48
Stockholders' equity at 31 March 2008 6,484
© (8} foreign exchange adjustments reflect the impact of the strength of the euro on the transiation of Sterling and US dollar dencrmnated net
b investrment in foreign subsidiaries
g {b) the AFS reserve movernent 1s driven by the net impact of interest rate changes and the widering of credt spreads on the value of our
iy AFS ook (€29 bion) at 31 March 2008 This reserve is expected to reverse 43 the undedyng financial assets mature
8 {c) the cash flow hedge reserve movement reflects the impact of sterling weakness on the mark to market of hedge accounted interest rate
swaps Over tme thig balance will flow through the income statement in fine with the undertying hedged instruments wath no net income
statement impact
{d) movement in pension fund cbligations 15 prmanly as a result of changes in key assumptions mcluding discount rate and martality
together with the impact of the weakness in global financial markets on the valuation of pension fund assets at 31 March 2008
Effective tax rate
The taxation charge for the Group was €229 millon in the year ended 31 March 2008 compared o €306 millon in the year ended 31 March 2007
The effective tax rate was 11 8% in the year ended 31 March 2008 compared to 15 8% for the year ended 31 March 2007 The rate has
decreased largely as a result of a reduction in the tax charge of Bol Lfe due to lower levels of investment income earned and lower caprtal
*Lé) gains, together with the effect of the elimination of the Investment return on treasury shares held by Bol Life for policyholders
)
=
4%’ Excluding the impact of non core tems, the effective tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2008 was 16% (16% for the year ended 31
&a March 2007)
=
3]
3
c Dwidend
o
The Court has recommanded a final dvidend of 39 4 cent per unit of stock in respect of the year ended 31 March 2008 The recormmended
final dvidend together with the intenm dmvidend of 24 2 cent resutts m a total dadend of 83 6 cent per untt of stock for the year ended 31
March 2008, an increase of 5% on the pnor year
Qur dvidend policy is to mantain a payout ratia of between 40% and 45% and the rate of growth In our dridend will reflect the medium
term outlook for the Group's eamings
Return on Equity
[
S
B Return on equity, excluding the impact of non core items (set out on page 10) was 21% for the year ended 31 March 2008 cornpared to
E 23% for the year ended 31 March 2007 The rate of return has decreased reflecting lower growth in prafits in the current year, together with
5‘_:_) the full year impact of gains from disposals in the pror year which balstered the Group equity base
g
Q@
c
@
@]

Report & Accounts

18 | Bankof Ireland (&)




Operatng and Financial Review

Divisional Performance

31 March 2008 31 March 2007
Divisional Profit Before Tax £fm €m % Change
Retall Repubic of lreland 716 698 3
Bank of lreland Life 108 148 27
Caprtal Markets 651 572 14
UK Financial Services 495 441 12
Group Centre (178) (159 (10
Underlying profit before tax 1,794 1,700 6
Non-core items (see page *} 139 258
Profit before tax 1,933 1,958 )]
Retaill Republic of ireland o
2
Retail Republic of Ireland incorporates our Branch network, Mortgage, Consumer Banking, Business Banking and Prvate Banking activitres %
in the Republic of Ireland  Together with Bank of Ireland Life, it 1s the leading bancassurance franchise in Ireland built on a broad distnbution %
platform, a comprehensive suite of retail and business products and services, a commitment to service excellence and strong operating 8
efficiency
Retarl Republic of Ireland delvered PBT growth of 3% to €716 mullion, in the year ended 31 March 2008, in an increasingly challenging
emwonment Total operating income grew by 8% and total operating expenses rose by 6%, gving a 3% positive cost / Income jaws While
markets were generally less buoyant, the continued strength of our leading franchise in Ireland underpinned this performance
31 March 2008 31 March 2007
Retall Republic of Ireland Income Statament £m €m % Change
Net interest income 1,429 1.31 9
Other income* 416 377 10
Total operating Incoms 1,845 1,688 Iy
Total operating expenses (@83) {927 8
(9]
Operating profit before impairment losses 862 761 13 o
impairment losses on loans and advances {146} (63) 131 %}Q
Profit before tax 716 698 3 g‘
* Includes share of associates / joint ventures (31 March 2008 €(1) miion 31 March 2007 Ni) 8
&
Cost/ income ratio 53% 55%
33 March 2008 31 March 2007
€bn €bn % Change
Leans and advances to customers 54 48 1
Customer deposits 33 a1 &
Risk weighted assets Basel | 40 36 12
Basel Il 35
o)
g
Net nterest income ncreased by 9% with the impact of strong volume growth being partially offset by a lower net interest margin due to, o
loans growing faster than deposits, the impact of competion on residential mortgage margins and higher funding costs partly offset by =3
Improved resource marging c;:"
&
3
Our strong position :n the Business Banking market was reflected in robust book growth of 16% in the year ended 31 March 2008 A weaker @
residential property market led to a significant siowdown in morigage demand as the year progressed, nevertheless the mortgage book grew 8
by 9% in the year ended 31 March 2008
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Cther income increasad by 10%, driven manly by growth m credit card activity together with the benefit from the chsposal of Mastercard
shares which accounted for 2 percentage poirts of thig increase

Operahing expenses grew by 6% year on year dnven by salary and general inflation together with business growih, partially offset by
efficiency gans which reduced the cost / ncome ratio from 55% to 53%

The imparment loss charge was €146 miion (28bps of average loans) for the year ended 31 March 2008 compared to €63 mithion or 14bps
for the year ended 31 March 2007 The imparment charge of 28bps remans withn the 10 year range 1o 31 March 2007 of 14bps to 31bps
for the Division 50% of the ncrease in the Impairment charge relates to a very small nurber of specific cases, whie the balance s broadly
based reflectng the impact of higher interest rates and the overall slowdown in the level of economic actmty

Bank of Ireland Life

Sales on an annual premiunm equivalent (APE) basis grew by 4% to €501 milion in the year ended 31 March 2008 Hawing achieved sales
growth of 27% n the half year ended 30 Septermber 2007, the second half of the financial year was significantly impacted by the weakness
and volatilty 1n global equity markets resulting in APE sales being 13% lower than the second half period in the prior year Improved
aperating efficiencies led to the cost / income ratio faling from 42% in the year ended 31 March 2007 to 40% in the year ended 31 March
2008

Operating profit grew by 12% year on year to €164 million for the year ended 31 March 2008 Profit befare tax was 27% lower than the year
anded 31 March 2007 reflecting & negative iInvestment vanance of €50 milion ansing from the significant weakness In global equrty markets

Bank of lreland Life Income Statement 31 March 2008 31 March 2007

{iFAS performance} £m £m % Change
Operating income 274 250 9
Operating costs (110 {104) 5
Operating profit 184 146 12
Investment variance (50 2

Discaunt and other rate changes ()

Profit before tax 108 148 2n
Cost / Income ratio 40% 42%

Consistent with increases in long term borkd yrelds, the discournit rate applied to future cashflows was ncreased by 0 5% to 8% in the
year ended 31 March 2008 This negative mpact has been significantly offset by an increase of 0 75% 10 6 25% In the future growth rate
assumption on unit linked assets, resulting n a net cost of €6 millon

Bank of Ireland Life has a leading position 1n the Insh market resutting from the combination of their mult channel distribution platform and
an industry leading bancassurance sales model This combination feaves the Life busness well positioned to compete in a market place that
rermains very attractive over the medium term

Embedded Value Performance

The alternaiive method of presenting the performance of the Life business 1s on an Embedded Value basis This method is widely used n the
Iife assurance indusiry Under this approach, Bank of Iretand Life shows operating profit up 10% 10 €193 midlicn for the year ended 31 March
2008 New business profits were €113 miliion for the year ended 31 March 2008 compared to €114 milion for the prier year reflecting
weaker sales growth given the significant weakness and volatiity of global equity markets Existing business profits have performed well a5 a
result of continuing favourable experience vanances and some charges to the actuaral assumplions in line with expenence

Profit before tax for the year ended 31 March 2008 fell by 69% pnmanly as & result of a negative investment vanance of €137 miilion
reflecting the significant weakness in global equity markets Applying the Embedded Value methodology to the investment and kfe assurance
contracts, the negative impact of Increasing the discount rate by 0 5% to 8% 1s offset by an increase of 0 75% to 6 25% the future growth
rate assumption on unit inked assets

| Bankofireland (=) Repart & Accounts
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Bank of Ireland Life* Income Statement 3t March 2008 31 March 2007
{Embedded Value performance) £m £m % Change
Mew business profits 13 114

Existing business profits

* Expected raturn 98 83 18
* Expensnce variance 11 14 21
* Assumption ¢hanges 3
Inter company payments (32) {36) (11}
Operating profit 193 175 10
Investment variance (137 2
Discount and other rate changes m
Profit before tax 55 1w {69}

The key assumptions used in the Embedded Value methodology are a discount rate of 8% (31 March 2007 7 5%), future growth rate on
unit inked assets of 6 25% (31 March 2007 5 5%} and the rate of the tax to be levied on shareholder profits of 12 5% {31 March 2007

12 5%) Actuanal assumptiens are also required in relation to mortalty, morbidity and persistency rates and these have been denved from
the company's expenence

Capital Markets

Caprtal Markets Dvision comprises Corporate Banking, Global Markets, Asset Management Serices and IBI Corporate Finance

% Change excluding

impact of IFRS

31 March 2008 31 March 2007 classifications &

Capital Markets Income Statement €m €m % Change disposal

Net Interest income 1,030 671 54 27

Other mcome * 90 378 76) 4

Total operating incorne 1,120 1,049 7 17

Total operating expenses (4186) {456} {9) B

Operating profit before impairment losses 704 593 19 26
imparrment losses (53) 21 152

Profit before tax 851 572 14 21

includes share of associates / foint ventures (31 March 2008 nit 31 March 2007 €{1) muilion) and profit on disposal of property {31 March 2008 €1 millan, 31 March 2007 ril)

Cost/ income ratio 37% 43%
31 March 2008 31 March 2007
€bn £bn % Change
Loans and advances to customers 27 22 22
Customer depasits 32 21 56
Risk weighted assets Basel | 48 41 13
Basel il 45

PBT increased by 14% to €651 million for the year ended 31 March 2008 The Dmvsional performance for the year ended 31 March 2008 15
not directly comparable with the year ended 31 March 2007 as the disposal of Davy in October 2006 impacts the year on year analysis In
addition the growth In net nterest income and 'other income’ 1s mpacted by IFRS income classifications between net interest mcome and
‘other Income’ Excluding the impact of both of these items, net interest income increased by 27% and 'other ncome’ ncreased by 4%
whilst costs grew by 6% and PBT by 21%
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Operating and Financial Review

The analysis below excludes the trading impact of the Davy disposal and the IFRS incorne classifications referred to above

Total cperating Income was 179 fugher in the year ended 31 March 2008 drven by strong lending volume growth in Cerporate Banking and
an excelent parformance n our Global Markets business The growth in net interest income of 27% was driven by strong volume growth
and mproved margins reflecting the mix of the loan book and improved pricing for risk in a number of loan portfolios ‘Other income’ growth
of 4% has been impacted by lower assets under management in Asset Management Services

Total operating expenses Increased by 6% to €416 milhon, the man drivers of growth being investment costs 1%, volume related growth
3% and nfiation 2%

Asset quality remains excellent with an imparment loss charga of €53 million, or 21bps of average loans (€7 millon or 3 bps excluding the
€46 milhon or 18bps Mparment charge relating to SIVs), compared to €21 mifion or 10bps at 31 March 2007 and within the 10 year range
to 31 March 2007 of 5bps to 26bps for the Division We have seen a significant improvement in the qualtty of the book with a lower level of
specific cases requinng prowision in the year ended 31 March 2008 compared to the prior year

31 March 2008 31 March 2007
Capral Markets Business Unit Profit Before Tax €m €m % Change
Corporate Banking 375 332 13
Global Markets 221 144 54
Asset Management Services 66 66
Division Centre {11y 30 (126)
Profit before tax 651 572 14

Corporate Barking has mantained its strong mementum with profit growth of 13% for the year ended 31 March 2008 The loan book
increased by 22% between 31 March 2007 and 31 March 2008 across a broad range of portfolios We continue to closely marage our
asset quality and to seek opportuarties for growth In both Europe and the US We continue to see improved pricing and nsk structures
across our business segments

Global Markets delvers a comprehensive range of nak management products to the Group's custorner base and acts as Treasurer for the
Group Profit for the year ended 31 March 2008 increased by 54% The performance of our markets / trading teams has been very strong in
volatle market conditions and the outturn for the year has been postively iImpacted by above normal levels of trading profits of €30 million,
the results also Include a credit of €25 million ansing from the widening n the credit spread of the Group’s structured labifities  Excluding
these fterms, Global Markets profit before tax increased by 15% to €166 millon Global Markets custorner businesses have delivered a

strong performance

Asset Management Services PBT for the year ended 31 March 2008 was €66 miflion, which 1s in ine with the year ended 31 March 2007
Our fund adrministration business continued to drve strong growth in its niche activities while assets under management in BIAM are €33
billion at 31 March 2008 compared to €44 billion at 31 March 2007  weakness in global equity markets contnbuted significantly to this

reduction

Drasion Centre includes central management costs for the Division, together with 1Bl Corporate Finance (and Davy in the year ended 31
March 2007} I1BI Corporate Finance continues ta perform well
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UK Financial Services (Sterling)

UK Financial Services (UKFS) Division, which mcorporates Business Bankng UK, our UK mortgage business and our joint ventures with the
UK Post Office, delivered a strong performance dunng the year ended 31 March 2008 buiiding on the momentum shown in the year ended
31 March 2007 PBT increased by 18% to £353 milion (12% on a euro equivalent basis)

31 March 2008 31 March 2007
UKFS Income Statement £m £m % Change
Net interest incame 602 531 13
Other income* 153 118 30
Total operating income 755 649 16
Total operating expenses (379) 337) 12
Operating profit before impalment losses 3716 312 21
Impamment losses on loans and advances (23) {13) 7
Profit before tax 353 299 18
Profit before tax (euro equivaient) 495 441 12

*Includes shara of associates / joint ventures after fax (31 March 2008 £34 mullion, 31 March 2067 £30 miliion) and profit on disposal of property 37 March 2008 £4 milion, 31 March 2007 nd}

Cost/ income ratio 50% 52%
31 March 2008 31 March 2007
£hn Fbn % Change
Loans and advances o customers 44 38 19
Customer deposits 17 14 21
Risk weighted assels Basell 32 25 29
Basel H 29

Total operating income grew by 16% to £755 million for the year ended 31 March 2008 Net interest income grew by 13% and 'cther
incomea’ by 3C% Net interest Income growth was due to excellent volume growth for both customer loans and deposits which increased
by 198% and 21% respectvely partially cffset by the mpact of higher funding costs Excellent growth in ‘other mcome’ was drven by the
performance in our joint ventures with the UK Post Cffice with igher fee income from the increased sales and renewals of insurance
products in Post Offica Financial Services (POFS) and higher profits n First Rate Exchange Senvices [FRES)

Operating expenses increased by 12% to £379 millon for the year ended 31 March 2008 driven by volume related expenses across the

Dmsion together with higher regulatory, corporate restructunng and compliance costs Further efficiency gains reduced the year on year cost /
mncorne ratio from 52% to 50%

Asset quality continued to be strong  From an unsustainably low level, the mpairment loss charge increased from £13 milion (dbps) n
the year ended 31 March 2007 to £28 milkon {6bpes) of average loans in the year ended 31 March 2008 This 1s within the 10 year range
to 31 March 2007 of 3bps to 16bps for the Dmsien The impaiment charge on residential mortgages remained neghgible Soma grade
degradation was evident in Business Banking as a result of weakness in the property sector

31 March 2008 31 March 2007
UKFS. Business Unit Profit Before Tax £m £m % Change
Business Banking 189 156 21
Mortgages. 147 145 1
Consumer Financial Services 46 24 g2
* POFS 7 (8}
*® FRES (post fax} 34 30 13
* Other 5 H 150
Bivision Centra (29) (26) 13
Profit before tax 353 299 18
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Business Banking's profit before tax increased by 21% to £189 millon reflecting the benefits from our nvestment in building a high
performing team of business bankers Volume growth was strong with loan book growth of 27% and depostt growth of 14% Loan margins
have remained stable In an environment of ncreased funding costs as the costs have been substantially passed to customers Asset quality
continues 1o be strong with an mparment loss charge of 13bps compared 1o Stps n the pror year reflecting the slowing economic environment
in the UK and the softenng trend in the UK property market

The Mortgage business delvered prafit before tax of £147 millon in the year ended 31 March 2008, simitar to the performance in the year ended
31 March 2007 There ars a number of factors influencing this outcome including competitor actvity which impacted negatively on volume and
margn in the first hatf of the year and higher funding costs which emerged In the second hatf of the year

The mortgage market changad signficantly in the second half of aur financial year as a number of prowders exited the market as a result of funding
constraints arisng from the market disiocation Notwithstanding the slowdown in the overall market due to jower house prces, we expenenced
greater demand for our morigage products In addition, we achieved sigruficantly higher pricing on our mortgage products not only covenng the
higher cost of funding but also meroving the economics of new mortgage business flows The residential mortgage book increased by 14% to £27
bilon at 31 March 2008 reflecting significant growth in the final quarter of the fiscal year, with strong growth in the tbuy to let and standard business
beng pariially offset by more moderate growth in self certdfied business Credit performance remains strong with amears levels significantly below
the industry average and the mparment charge for mortgages at 2bps for the year endad 31 March 2008 compared to 1op for the year ended 31
March 2007

Consumer Financial Services, our jont ventures with the UK Post Office, delivered a very strong performance with profits almost doubling POFS
has made good progress with customer numbers increasing to 14 mifion at 31 March 2008 and the business continues to add approximately
60,000 new customers every month We contmue to gain market shere in nsurance products arid also continue 1o achieve strong depost volume
growth Total deposits in POFS were £3 3 bilion at 31 March 2008 Policy renewals on insurance products and retentions after the indial incentva
penod on savings accounts are both n ine with Industry leading levels demonstrating the strong loyatty and affinty with the Pest Office brand
FRES, the joint venture with the UK Post Office for the provision of forexgn exchanga services, delivered profit after tax growth of 13%, as a resutt of
strong margin management and a 5% increase in sales

Dwsion Gentre reported a net foss of £29 milion for the year ended 31 March 2008 compared 1o £26 million for the year ended 31 March 2007
Tris increase includes the costs associated with completing the corporate restructunng of Bnstol & West

Group Centre

Group Gentre, which comprises earrings on surplus capital, unaliocated support costs and some smaller busmess units, had a net loss

of €176 milion in the year ended 31 March 2008, compared to €158 miliort n the year ended 31 March 2007 The key dnivers behuind the
higher net loss were increased funding costs due to the market dislocation and the cost of additional subordinated debt capral raised dunng
the financial year partly offset by lower costs particularly from reduced compliance spend resutting from the implementation of the Basel i
and Sarbanes Oxley Programmes
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Risk Management

Risk Management and Control

Prudent nsk management i1s firmly embedded i our corporate
culture It provides a solid foundation for sustained growth in
earnings and sharsholder value even in times of increased financial
volatility

Risks are unexpected future events that could influence the
achievement of the Group's strategic, financial, capital or other
objectives One of the Group's core business objectives 1s o engage
in calculated, profitable nsk taking, applying strong sk rmanagement
skl to ensure nsk diversification and the achievernent of targeted
returns Proactive identification and management of nsk is therefore
central to delivery of the Group's strategy and underpins operations
throughout the Group

Risk Management Approach

The Group follows an integrated approach to nsk management to
ensure that all matenal classes of nsk are taken inte account and
that its risk management and capital management strategies are
aligned with its overall business strategy

This integrated approach 1s set out in the Group Risk Framework,
which is approved by the Court of Directors it identifies the Group’s
formal governance process around nisk and the approach to nsk
identification, assessment, analysis and reporting

Risk Governance

Graup Cregit Risx Asset & Group Group
Committes Measurement Laplmi:ry Regulatory and Laudity
Commitice Comrnittee Operational Cemmittes
Risk,
Committee

Group Emuity
UngersTitng
Commates

Partiens Reviow
Comi

Business Umts

= The Court of Directors

The Court of Directors 1s responsible for apgroving high level policy
and strategic direction in relation to the nature and scale of nisk

that the Group 1s prepared to assume to achieve s comorate
objectves The Court ensures that an appropnate system of internal
conirol 1s maintained and reviews its effectiveness

Specifically the Court

* approves the Group's nsk appetite and top down loss tolerance
guidepoints,

* approves other key high level nsk imits as required by nsk policies
(e g Value at Risk {VaR) imis),

+ approves the terms of reference, operabing parameters and
membership of the Group Risk Policy Committee {(GRPC),

Report & Accounts

* approves the Group Risk Framework and the Group's credit
policy and high fevel pnnciples governing market and hquidity nsk,
ncluding matenal changes thereto,
* reviews regular reports on the size and composition of key nsks, and
* reviews the proceedings of the GRPC

* Group Fisk Policy Committee

The GRPC, which s chaired by the Group Chief Risk Officer (GCRQ),
15 the executive committae with responsibility for nsk management
Its membership includes Executve Drectors and 1t operates as a sub
committee of the Court The GRPC exercises authority delegated

by the Court to approve business inmiatives that have matenal
implications for the level or composition of nsk, and which are
consistent with high level policy approved by the Court In addition

10 considenng specific nsk 1ssues, the GRPC 1s responsible for
reviewing overall Group nsk on a portfolio bass

The GRPC, in tumn, delegates specific responsibilty for oversight of

the major classes of nsk to specific committees that are accountable

tat These committees are

+ Group Credit Committee {(GCC) — approval of all large credt
transactions

* Portfolic Review Committee (PRC) - assessment of the
composition of the Groug's loan portfolo, concentration nsk and
dentification of unused sk appetite

* Group Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO)  oversight of interest
rate, market and lquidity risk, capttal and funding

* Group Liquidty Commitiee —~ management of the kquidity and
funding posttions of the Group This committee 1s nvoked dunng
periods of market disruption

* Risk Measurement Committee (RMC) — governance of credit nsk
measurement and sk model validation

* Group Regulatory and Operational Risk Committee - governance
of regulatory and operatonal risk

* Group Equity Underwnting Committee — approval of equity
underwriting transactions

* Private Equity Governance Committee — approval of equity
nvestments

= Group Tax Committee  approval of tax based transactions and
oversight of tax policy

* Basal Il Steerng - governance and oversight of Basel 1l Programme

Group Internal Audt {GIA) provides independant assurance on the
continued effectiveness of the Group's controt environment

Risk Management Structure & Organisation

The orgarisational structure for nsk management 1s dasigned to
facilitate reporting and escalation of nsk concerns from business
uruts and nsk functions upwards to the GRPC and the Court of
Directors, and conveying approved nsk management policies and
decisions from the Court and the GRPC to business units

In addition, while Finance 1s responsible for Asset and Lability
Management (which includes Caprtal Management}, there 1s
close coliaboration with Group Risk on the nsk aspects of these
responsibibities
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* Group Chief Risk Officer

The Group Risk function 1s headed by the Group Chief Risk Officer
{GCRO), who 15 a member of the Group Executive Committee (GEC)

Group Chief Executive

Hagd of
Craup
Fnaneial
Bervices Servces
trelane

Head of
Graup Market

Groum Crodit & Operabenal ik

Risk

The GCRO reparts directly to the Group Chief Executve and 18
responsible for oversight of all nsk categones, the formulation

of nsk appette recommendations, development of policies and
estabhshment of integrated Group wide nsk measurernant and
management standards As owner of the nsk management
framework, the GCRO leads a team of functional experts who work
together to identify, measure, analyse monitor, control and report on
nsks across the Group

In addstion to the core responsibility of nsk oversight, the GCRO
provides independent advice and constructive challenge to the
GEC in the support of nsk informed business decisions This
nvolves acting as an enabler of wall structured business growth
opportunities that can be shown to fit within the Group's nsk

appetite

« Central nsk management functions

The Group’s approach to Risk Management 13 based on Iine
management having pnmary responsibility for management of nsk
n mdmidual businesses To balance indmdual responsibilty, nsk
15 subject to independent oversight and analysis by four centralty
hased nsk management functions reperting to the GCRO

+ Credit Risk

+ Market Risk

* Group Regulatory and Operatonal Risk

* Group Risk Office

Risk specialists within the nsk management functions assist the
GCRO 1n the formulation of nsk policy and strategy, which are
approved through the Group nsk governance framework

+ Business risk management

A key principle of nsk management within the Group 1s the rehance

on individual responsibikty Business managers are accountable for

identfying and controling nsk in therr own business areas, assisted,
where appropnrate, by nsk speciafists Overall guidance 1s provided

by the Group Risk Managerment functions

Risk Strategy and Appetite

Risk strategy I1s an essential component of strateqic planning

The Group sets out its corporate business objectives in ts 5 Year
Strategic Plan and annua Operating Plan / Budget The nsk strategy
descnbes the pnnciples that underpin the Group's approach to
managing nsks ansing from its business actvities In principle, nsks
are accepted If
+ the nsks represent an attractive investment from a nsk return
perspectve,
+ they are aligned with Group strategy,
» ihe Group has the skiled resources to analyse and manage
the nsks,
+ stress and scenang testing around the nsks exist, and are
satisfactory;
= governance structures have been defined, and,
+ new product approval processes capture the nsks

Appetite for particular levels of nsk s defined and measures are
adopted to identdy, assess and manage nsks within appette
parameters The Group's nsk appetite s determined on the basis that
it ams to deliver sustanable growth through the pursui of business
opportunities that can be managed effectvely It is conditioned by
the Group's dvidend policy, target debt rating, the need to protect
access to funding and capital, by the economic and competitve
chrmate (both nabonal and international), and by the need to protect
the Group's core franchise

The Group defines how much nsk it 15 wiling to take based on three
fundamental principles

Maintain Capital

Pratect the Long

Ensura Short Term

Financial Stability Lavals Term Group
Franchise
Setting top down Ensuring that Ensurng support to
Loss Tolgrance economks and the Group's strategy
Guidepoints to requlatory caprtal and future growth by
protect against ara in lina with target makntaining target debyt
undesired earnings capital levels rating and protecting
volalilty access to / cost of
funding, market posiion
and reputation

To ensure that t operates withim #s nsk appetite, the Group
assesses the nsks in s existing businesses and prospectve
husiness plans and estimates possible financial earnings volatihity
and associated capital requirements

The Group's nsk appelte 1s sat out i its Risk Appetite Statement
which s approved by the Court of Drectors on the recommendation
of the GRPC and reviewed annually

Principal nisks and uncertainties facing the Group

Fusks facing the Group are identified and assessed at least annually
through the Group'’s Comprehensive Risk Identification process
The results of this assessment drive the Group's nsk management
actons

Fisks that are deemed material are included i the Groug Risk
Framework, owner(s) entified, appropriate policies put in place
and a formalised measurement and management process defined
and implemented The Group may set aside capital in order 1o
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mitigate the nsk, or determine that other mitgants may be more
approprate

The pnncipal matenal nsks managed by the Group are shown
below, the Group's approach to the management of these nsks 15
set out on pages 31 to 40

Credit risk defined as the nsk of loss resufting from a
counterparty being unable to meet its contractual obligations to the
Group in respect of loans or other financiat transactions This nsk
inchudes concentration nisk and country nsk, among others

Market risk- the nsk of loss in Group incorne or net worth ansing
from potential adverse change In interest rates, exchange rates or
market pnces

Life insurance fisk the volatdty n the amount and timing of
claims caused by unexgected changes In mortality, morbidity and
longewity

Operational nsk. the rsk of loss resulting from inadequate or
faled nternal processes, pecple and systems, or from external
events and outsourcing arrangements In the case of legal and
contractual nsk, this includes the nsk of loss due to igation ansing
fram errors, omissions, and acts by the Group in the conduct of ds
business

tiquidity risk the nsk that the Group will experience difficulty
n financing its assets and meeting its contractual payment
cbhgations, or will only be able to do so at an unacceptable cost

Regulatory risk. ansing from a failure to comply with the laws,
regulations or codes applicable to the financial services industry in
the junsdictions within which the Group operates Regulatory nsk
also includes, among others, tax compliance nsk, which is the nsk
of loss due o non compliance with tax legislation and the Group’s
tax policy

In additon to the nsks listed above, the Group alse manages

Pension risk the nsk that the value of the llabilities of the Group's
defined benefit pension schemes would exceed the value of the
schemes’ assets to such a degres that the Group would elect to
make unanticipated contnbutions to reduce the deficit

Business and strategic nsk. the nsk of loss due to uncertainty
in profits or revenue that damages the franchise or operaticnal
economics of the busness It includes volatility caused by changes
n the competitive environment, new market entrants, new
products or fallure to develop and execute a strategy or anticipate
or mitigate related nsk

Model risk the nsk that the Group's sutte of nisk models
Inaccurately measures the Group’s exposures, resulting in the
mispricing of deals, holdng inadequate regulatory capial and being
subject to economic, requlatory and / or market censure

Report & Accounts
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Reputation risk the nsk 1o earnings ansing from adverse
percaption of the Group’s mage on the part of customers,
counterparties, stockholders, investors or regulators

For each of the matenal nsks, Group Risk identifies a nsk owner

While business urits remain responsible for the identification and

managernent of nsk n therr birsiness, nsk management functions

are responsible for establishing a nsk controt framework Under the

Group Risk Framework, nsk owners ensure that

* apohcy 1s in place for the nsk they have ownership of,

» axposure to the nsk s corectly identified, assessed according
to the Group’s matenalty cntena, and reportedt upon, and

* dentffied nsk events are appropnately managed or escatated

The Group 15 alse exposed to, among other things, unfavourable
changes in economic conditians, which could impact profits

On a quarterly basis, the GURO assesses the economic
environment to which the Group 1s exposed, with input from the
Group’s Chief Economist, nsk functions and business managers
Thus assessment s reported to the GRPC and the Court

The Group's Capital Management function assesses the impact of
the most material nsks on the Group's capidal ratios

Concentration Risk

In addhion to reviewing these nsk classes in aggregate and the
individual exposures within each nsk class independently, the
Group assesses potental nisk concentrations  As with any lending
Instdution, the largest concentrations of nsk ogour with credit nsk

Credit concentration nsk 1s the nsk of loss due to exposures to a
single entity or group of entries engaged in similar actvibes and
having similar economic charactenstics and / or dependencies
that would cause ther ability to meet contractual obligations to

be similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions
Undue congcentrations could lead to ncreased volatiity in the
Group's expacted outcomes It is the policy of the Group to avoid,
where possible, undue concentrations of counterparty, industry /
sector, product, geography or other forms of signficant connected
nsk in its credit books I order 10 avoid nsk concentrations,
monetary nsk imits and guide points are set by the GRPC The
PRC is charged with montoring emerging credit nsk concentrations
and with drecting actions to avoid unacceptable concentrations

Macro Risk ldentification

In addtion to the Comprenensive Risk Identification process, the

top nsks facing the Group are identified on a half yearly basis

through a process led by the GCRQ with mput from members of

the GEC and the GRPGC to dentify and assess the top macro risks

using the followng critenia

i) the seventy of the nsk n terms of matenality and the length of tirne
it would take the Group 10 recover,

1) the Ikelihood of the nsk occumng, and

i} the impact of the nsk, taking mitigants and likelihood into account
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The GRPC and the GEC members use this assessment to agree
the top nsks which are presented to the Court half yearly for ts
consideration

Risk Monitoring

Responsibility for nsk mondoring lies pnmartly with each businass
urut head The specific processes for montenng, reporting and
reviewing nsks are set out in the relevant policy documents

At Group leve), the nsk monionng and review process is the
responsiility of the GRPG and ts operating sub-commuttees {see
diagram on page 27)

Tne GRPG and the Court of Directors regularly review capttal and
key nsk indicators, to agsess the degree to which the Group 13
operating within its nsk appelite, loss tolerance and other specic
nsk imits This 1s in addition to detatled nsk information regularly
reviewed by the Group's sk functions and by business units

Risk Measurement

Risk management systemns are in place to facitate measunng,
mondonng and analysis of nsk These systems are in ine with
good practice and designed to ensure compliance with regulatory
requirements

* Economic capital

The Group has elected to use Economic Caprtal (Ecap) as the
common metnc by which risk 1s assessed, nsk based budgets and
strategic plans are arliculated and an ntarnal nsk based capital
framework apphed Ecap 18 used internally for caprtal planning as
well as for the calculation of nsk adjusted returns The common
measure of return on nsk used by the Group 15 Risk Adjusted
Retun on Economic Caprtal (RAROC)

* Stress testing and scenarlo analysis

As a core part of ts nsk management framework, relevant nsks are
subject to scenano based stress tests to examine the impact of
extreme but plausible events The tests are applied to current fisk
posttions and also to projected posttians ervisaged in the strategic
plan, taking nto account expected management action Impacts
are measured in terms of potential losses, hquidity poston, and
regulatory and economuc caprial ratios

The stress tests assist the GRPC and the Court in determining
whether the Group would be comfortable with the possible financial
consequences of a set of macroeconomic scenarnios, taking mnto
account the Group's target capdal ratios, dvidend cover and foss
tolerance

Risk Reporting

The GCRO prasents a Quarterly Fisk Report to the GRPC and the
Court The report comments on the nisk environment in which the
Group 15 operating and includes an assessment of all matenal nsks,
the current list of which 1s set out on page 29

| Bank of Ireland
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Management of Principal Risks

The information set aut below up to the end of page 38 forms an
integral part of the audited financial statements as detaled in the
Accounting Policies to the Financial Statements on page 78

Credit Risk
Defirution

Credit Risk Is defined as the nsk of loss resulting from a
counterparty being unable to meet #s contractual obligations to the
Group n respect of loans or other financial transactions

Credt nsk compnses default nsk, recovery nsk, counterparty risk,
the credit nsk N securitisation, cross border {or transfer) sk, credit
concentration nsk and settiernent risk

How Credit Risk Arises

The Group's typical customer base includes retal customers,
financial insttutions and commercial entities  The Group 1s exposed
to credit nsk as a result of the financial transactions it enters into
with them

The main types of financial transacton the Group enters into and
which give nse to credit nsk are loans and advances The Group
15 also exposed to credit nsk through ds dett securties and
dervatives actwvity In addibon, credit nsk anses in Bank of Ireland
Life, pnimanly in relation to s reinsurance actvities

In relation 1o loans and advances, credit nsk anses as a result of
ameounts the Group has aciually lent and amounts which the Group
has committed to lend Such commitments take a number of
forms, the key ones are as follows undrawn loans and overdrafts,
guarantees, performance bonds and letters of credit As regards
commitments, the Group couid petentially suffer loss to an amount
equivalent to ds total unused commitments However, the Group
does not expect to incur losses to that extent as most retal
commutments can be cancelled and commutmenis of a commercial
nature are entered nto subject te the customer contmuing to
achieve specific credit standards

The nature of the Group's exposure to credit nsk and the manner in
which it anses, 15 obyectives, pohcies and processes for managing
cradit nsk and the methods it uses to measure credrt risk remain
matenally unchanged from the premous reporting period and are
outlined below

Credit Risk Management

« Credit policy

The core values governing the provision of credit are contained in
the Group Credrt Policy, which is approved by the Court on the

Report & Accounts
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recommendation of the GRPC Business unit credit policies, approved
by the GRPC / Head of Group Credtt as appropriate, define in greater
detall the credt approach apprognate to the units concerned, taking
account of the markets in which they operate and the products they
provide Procedures for the approval and monttonng of exceptions

to policy are included In policy decuments i a number of cases,
business unit policies are supplemented by sectoral credit palicies

* Lending authonsation

The Group’s credit nsk managsment systems operate through a
hierarchy of lending authorties, which are related to internal loan
ratings All exposures above certain levels require approval by the
Group Credt Comrmittes {GCC), other exposures are approved
according to a system of tered indmdual authorties Indnaduals
are allocated lending mils according to credit competence, proven
Judgment, expenence and the nature and scale of lending in therr
business unit

Matenal lending proposals are referred to credit units for ndependent
assessment, formulation of a recommendation ardt subsequent
adjudication by the applicable level of approval authorty

Lending caps are put n place when it 1s considered appropnate to
Iimit exposure to certan sectors

Group Credit Review, an independent function within Group Credd,
reviews the quality and management of nsk assets across the Group
and reports to the GRPC on a quarterly basis

+ Credit related commitments

The Groug classifies and manages credr related commitments as
follows

Guarantees and standby letters of credit irevocable commitiments
by the Group to make payments at a future date in specified
circurnstances on behalf of a customer These instruments are
assessed on the same basis as loans for credit approval and
management

Performance or smilar bonds and guarantees group undertakings
on behalf of a customer to deliver funds to a third party in specified
cireumstances should the customer farl in thewr oblgations to the third
party These instruments are assessed on the same basis as loans far
credit approval and management

Docurnentary and commercial letters of credit wntten undertakings
by the Group on behali of a customer authonsing a third party to draw
drafts or payment instruments on the Group te a stipulated amount
under specific terms and condttions Also, situations where the Group
confirms / guarantees to a foreign bank in respect of export letters of
credit These instruments are collateralised by the underlying shiprment
of goods to which they relate These instruments are assessed on the
same basis as loans for credit approval and management
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Commitments unused elements of authonsed credit in the form
of loans, guarantees or letters of credd, where the Group 1s
potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to the total unused
commitments The kkely amount of loss 1s less than the total
unused commiEments, as most commitments are contingent upon
customers mantaning specific credt and performance standards
These instruments are assessed on the same basis as loans for
credit approval and management

Letters of offer where the Group has made an wrevocable

offer to extend credtt to a customer and the customer may or

may not have confirmed acceptance of the offer on the terms
outlined, the exposure 15 assessed on the same basis as loans for
credit approval and management The exposure to credit nisk 15
considerably less than the face value of offer letters, as not all offers
will be accepted

» Dernvatives

Credit nsk exposure ansing from dervative instruments 1s managed
as part of the overall lending imits with customers

Credtt nsk exposure on denvative transactions s caloulated using
a methedology that estmates the maamum cost of rewrhing

the contract in the event of counterparty defauft This credit

nsk exposure 1s managed as part of the overall lending tmits

with customers, together with potential exposures from market
movements The credit process lmits gross dervative positions
Collateral, cther security or margin deposits may be required from
counterparties

« Country risk

The Group Is exposed to country nisk as a result of the Increasing
international focus of the Group's specialist niche busingsses

Country nsk exposures are managed within a framework approved
by the Court annually

+ Settlement risk

Settlement nsk anses in any situation where a payment in cash,
securies or equities 1s made 1N expectation of a cormesponding
receipt in cash, securties or equites Daily settlement limits are
established for each counterparty 1o cover the aggregate of all
settlernent nsks ansing from the Group’s market transactions on
any single day

Credit Risk Measurement

The use of Internal credit rating models, which measure the degree
of nsk inherent In lending to specific counterparties, 1s central to
credt nsk managemerit within the Group

The pnmary model measures used to assess credit nsk are
1 Probability of Default PD} the probabity of a given counterparty
defaulting on any of ts borrowings from the Group,

| Bankof reland €=
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2 Loss Gwen Defautt (LGD) the loss mcurred an a specific
transachon should the borrower default, expressed as a
percentage of Exposure at Default {see below),

3 Exposure at Defaull {EAD) the exposure the Group hasto a
defaulting bomower at time of default, and

4 Maturty (M) the contractual or estimated time pericd untd an
exposure 15 fully repad or cancelled

These measures are fully embedded i, and form an essential
component of, the Group's dally and strategic credit nsk
management and credit prcing

Where appropriate, an independent unit validates internal credd nsk
models from a performance and comphance perspective annually
This unit reports to the RMC

Risk modeling is also applied at a portfolie level in the Group’s
cradit businesses to guide economuc capital allocation and strategic
portfolie management

The measures to calculate credit nsk referred to above are used

to calculate expected loss A different basis 1s, hawever, used to
derve the amount of incurred credit losses for financial reporting
purposes For financial reporting purposes, Impaiment allowances
are recognised only with respect to losses that have been

ncurred at the balance sheet date based on objective evidence of
imparment Trug alternative basis of measurement means that the
amount of ncurred credit losses shown in the financial statements
differs from expected loss

Credit Risk Mitigation

An assessment of the borrower's abiity to service and repay the
proposed level of debt 1s undertaken for credit requests and 15 a
key element in the Group's approach to mitigating nsk In addwion,
the Group mitigates credt risk through the adoption of both
proactive prevenitative measures, (e g controls and lmits) and

the development and mplementation of strategies to assess and
reduce the impact of particular nsks, should these matenalse (e g
hedging, securtisation and colateralisation)

+ Controls and fimits

Currently the Group impaoses nsk control imits and guide points to
mitgate significant congentration nsk These limits and guidepoints
are nformed by the Group's joss tolerance guidepoints and are set
in the cortaxt of the Group's nsk strategy and nsk appetite

The GRPC approves country maximum exposure mds annually
based on internal country ngk rating models supported by external
ratings

Bank maximum exposure kmits are alse approved annually by

the GRPC for each rating category based on credit sk modeling
techniques combined with expert judgement

Report & Accounts
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* Risk transfer and financing sirategies

The objectve of nsk mitigation / transfer 1s to it the nsk mpact to
acceptable {quantiatve and quaiative) levels and protect Group
Income streams These Group uses appropnate nsk transfer and
financing strategies to protect against risk concentrations that might
anse from s business actvities

Where the nsk review process indicates the possible emergence of
undue nsk concentrations, the GCRO will explore and recommend
appropnate nsk transfer and mitigation options to the PRC These
ophons may inckide hedging strategies and secuntisation
programmes

The Group currently makes very hmited use of hedging strategles
or cradit denvatives for nsk mitigation purposes A number of
securitsation transactions for residential mortgages and a small
collateralised debt cbhgation (CDO) vehicle for leveraged loans have
been undertaken While there are some nsk transfer characteristics
inherent in the structures, the pnmary purpose of these intatives
was for regulatory capital and Iiquidity management

= Collateral

Credit nsk mitigation inchudes the requirement to obtain collateral,
depending on the nature of the product and local market practice,
as set out in the Group's policies and procedures  The nature and
leved of secunty required depends on a number of factors, Including
but not imited to the amaunt of the exposure, the type of faciity
provided, the term of the facility, the amount of the borrower’s own
cash input and an evaluation of the levet of nsk or probability of
default

A vanety of types of collateral are accepted including property,
secunties, cash, guarantees and insurance, grouped broadly as
fokows

* Financial collateral (len over deposits, shares, etc}

* Residential and commercial real estate

* Physical cellateral (pkant & machinery, etc )

* Ciher collateral (debtors, guarantees, insurancs, etc)

The Group's requirements around completion, valuation and
management requirements for collateral are set out In appropnate
Group or business unit policies and procedures

As operationally /mpraclicable, the Group has avated of the option
under IFRS 7 not to disclose the far value of collaterat held aganst
past due or mparred financial assets

* Master netting arrangements

The Group reduces s exposure to credtt losses by enterng into
master netting arrangements with counterparties with which it
undertakes a significant volume of transactions Master netting
arrangements do not generally result in an offset of balance shest
assets and labildies, as transactions are usually settled on a gross
basis However, the credit nsk associated with favourable contracts
18 reduced by a master netting arrangement, to the extent that, if

Report & Accounts
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a default occurs, all amounts with the counterparty are tenminated
and settled on a net basis

* Credit risk avoldance

The Group chooses not to assume certan types of credit risk
exposure by not operating in particular markets, avording particutar
business activties and / or not seling particular products and
services

Loan Loss Provisloning

The Group's Imparment provisioning methodologies are complhiant
with International Financial Reporting Standards (FRS) International
Accounting Standard (IAS) 39 requires that an incurred loss
approach be {aken to mparment provisioning

All credrt exposures, etther indmvidually or collectvely, are regularty
reviewed for objectve evidence of imparment, where such
evidence of impairment exists, the exposure 15 measured for an
imparrment provision The critena used to determine that there i
objective evidence of mpairment include

* Delnguency in contractual payments of pancipal or interest,
* Cash flow difficulties,

* Breach of kan covenants or conditions,

* Detencration of the barrower's competitive postion,

* Detanoration in the value of collateral,

* External rating downgrade below acceptable level, and

* [nmation of bankruptcy proceedings

Specific provisions are created where a shortfall s expected
between the amount of the Group's exposure and the likely
recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s calculated
by discounting the value of expected future cash flows by the
exposura’s anginal effectve interest rate

Impairment provisions are alse recagnised for losses not specifically
identified but which, expenence and observable data indicate,

are present in the portfolio at the date of assessment These

are descnived as incurred but not Reported {BNR) provisions
Statistical models are used to determine the appropnate level of
IBNR prowsions These rmodels are regularly reviewed, and revised
where necessary

All business unts review and confirm the appropriateness of ther
provisioning methodologies and the adequacy of ther impairment
provisions on a half yearty basis and their conclusions are reviewed
by Group Credtt and the GRPC

Market Risk

Definition

Market nsk 1s the nsk of loss in Group Income or net worth ansing

from potential adverse change in interest rates, exchange rates or
other market prices
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How Market Risk Anises

« Market nsk arising from customer and wholesale
banking business

Market risk arses i customer facing banking urits mainty on the
asset side of the balance sheset through fixed rate lending At 31
March 2008 the Group had €14 billion of fixed rate lending in euros
and €29 bilion equivalent 1n Stering {31 March 2007 €11 billon
and €27 bilion respectively), the major part of which was morigage
lending that 1s fixed for periods of between 1 and 3 years These
books are hedged by way of matunty matched funding from

Bark of Ireland Global Markets (BolGM) This exposure is, in turn,
substardially efminated by BolGM with external markets

The Group's wholesale banking actvity encompasses funding,
debt ssuance and the mamtenance of a prudent stock of kquid
assets The mterest rate risk which anses from wholesale acthity 15
managed using a range of instruments (mainty demvative), including
swaps and futures

« Discretionary market nsk

BolGM 15 the sole Group business permitted to take discretionary
market nsk on behalf of the Group Discretionary nsk is taken

in both the Trading and Baniing Books in BolGM Postions are
allocated to the Trading Book in line with the cntenon of ntent to
trads as set out in the EU's Caprtal Requirements Directive and are
marked to market for financial reporting purposes  Trading Book
positions arse m the main from dervative and foreign exchange
transactons executed with customers or through the proactive
assumption of trading positions in these mstruments and markets
{pure proprietary trading)

Drscretionary nsk 1s also taken i the Banking Book in BolGM
Banking Book nsk positions anse from internal hedging transachicns
which are not fully or immediately eliminated with the market,

from wholesale funding in cash and debt markets and from the
managernent of lquidity While these postions do not arise from an
intent to trade, they are actively montored and exposures can be
reduced or eliminated if market conditions warrant

The major part of the Group's discretionary nsk (s miterest rate nsk
In the euro, Steding and US dollar markets, assumed in money
markets, secunties, money and bond futures, swaps and option

on futures The Group's foreign exchange risk 1s mainly taken in US
dodlar / euro, US doltar / Yen and euro / Sterling exchange rates

» Structural market nsk

Structural interest rate nsk anses from the existence of nen imterest
bearing assets and tabilties on the balance sheet and structural
foreign exchange nisk anses from the Group's net mvestment in its
non euro based subsidares The measurement and management
of structural market nsk1s discussed separately below

¢ Bankof Ireland (&
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Market Risk Management

The managemenl of market risk In the Group 1s governed by high
levet principles approved by the Gourt and a detalled staterment

of policy approved by the GRPC Itisa requirement of palicy that
market nsk {poth interest rate nsk and currency nsk) which arises
from customer business n the Group's retal, mortgage, corporate
panking and specialst firance businesses 1S transferred, by way of
ternal hedging arrangements, 1o BolGM

Discreticnary market nsk 1s subject to strict controls which set out
the markets and mstruments n which nsk can be assumed, the
types of posizons which can e taken and the limits which must be
comphed with

The Gaurt of Directors approves an overall Value at Risk {VaR} imi,
which 15 a quantrfication of the Group's appetite for discretionary
market nsk VaR is discussed below ALCO approves VaR lrmits for
BolGM, ncluding lemits for interest rate, foregn exchange {h) and
credit spread VaR Market risk limits are ngorously enforced and
comgliance 18 monitored by ALCO

Market Risk Measurement
» Bank of Ireland Global Markets

The Group employs a VaR approach to measure, and set Iinits

on, discretionary market nsk n BolGM This applies to beth the
Trading and Banking Books VaR s an estmate of the potential
mark to market loss on a set of exposures over a speciiied time
honzon at a defined level of statistical confidence VaR 1s measured
using a varance covanance matrix approach Matnces are updated
weekly using the Exponentially Weighted Mowing Average (EWMA)
methodology This widsty used approach gwes greater wemght to
more recent data and, as a consequence, estmates of VaR are
more responsive to changes in market condrtions

Management recognises that VaR 1s subject to certain inherent
limttations The past will not always be a reliable gude to the

future and the statistical assumphions employed may understate
the probability of large moves For these reasons, VvaR limits are
supplemented by a range of controls that includes posttion mns
and loss tolerances In addition, scenano based stress tests and
long run historic smulatons, which measure the effect of past
penods of market stress (going back to the early 1990s) on current
posttions, are used to assess and manage discretionary market
nsk

The Group measures VaR for a 1 day honzon at the 89% level of
statistical confidence Tris means that, for a given set of market nsk
positions on a gven day, the Group belleves there 1s no more than
a 1% chance of a gam or loss in excess of the VaR number over
the following day In the course of the year ended 31 March 2008,
the Group changed the basis of its VaR measurement from a a5%
10 2 99% level of statlstcal confidence This was intended to bring
market nsk measurement nto ine with representative practice in
the Industry
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The Group’s peak, average and end of year 1 day Trading Book
VaR in the year ended 31 March 2008 1s summansed in the
following table

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2008 31 March 2007
€£m €m

Interest Rate VaR
Peak 52 40
Average 23 20
End year R7 7

Fx VaR

Peak 18 15
Average 10 [¢F:]
End year 09 o7

¢ Consolidated bankmng book nsk

The Group measures the interest rate nsk n its consolidated
Banking Book (or non tracing book) by calculating the impact on
net interest ncome of a 1% straght ine increase and decrease in
short dated interest rates over a penod of a year (e 8 3bps per
month) This captures the combined effect of changes in interest
rates on Banking Book exposures in BolGM, the maturty and
reinvestment of assets held to manage structural interest rate
nsk and minor fictional nsks 10 business units where market risk
1s managed at an overall balance sheet fevel The 1% change
assumes that net asset or lability positions are rolled over from
month to month, all spread {basis) relationships remain constant
and all assets and labilities reprice n ine with the change in
market rates By convantion, the net interest income simulation
also assumes no Intervention to mitigate the nsk ansing on these
exposures as nterest rates change which, although these are not
trading positions, would ba unrealistic n some circumstances

The impact on net interest Income of a 1% strasght Iine increase
and decrease in euro and Sterling interest rates, appled to
positions at 31 March 2008, 1s shown in the following table

31 March 2008 31 March 2007
€m €m

Euro

1% increasa {19) 11

1% decrease 15 13}
GBP

1% mcrease 39 164

1% decreass 63 {12 4)

The sensiivities to interest rate ncreases and decreases will not
necessanly be symmetnc to the extent that the yeld curve 15 not
flat and 15 already discounting an increase or decrease in short term
rates

Financial Assets Avallable For Sale

At 31 March 2008, the Group held €29 3 billon in debt securties
classified as Avalable for Sale Financial Assets (31 March 2007
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€33 4 bilhon) These securities are held at far value on the talance
sheet and accrual accounted In the income statement This
accounting practice can give nse 1o a credit or debit to reserves

Within the total of €29 3 bithon, fixed rate government secunties
amounted to €1 8 bifion and the balance consisted of floating

rate paper, predominantly bank senior debt and a relatvely smaller
holding of corporate securhes A 1bp increase in the average yield
on the government secunties book at 31 March 2008 weuid have
reduced ts value by €0 5 million (31 March 2007 €2 0 mifion)

A 1bp increase n the average spread to Eunbor or Libar of the
floating rate book at 31 March 2008 would have reduced tts value
by €6 9 millon (31 March 2007 €6 9 mullion)

Derivatives

A denvative 1s a financial contract whose value 1s inked to
movements in interest rates, exchange rates, equity or commodity
pnces or, more generally, to any objectvely measured vanable
agreed between the parlies Dernvative markets are an efficient
mechanism for the transfer of nsk and nsk mitigabon The Group
uses dervatives to manage the market nisks that anse naturally in
its retal and wholesale banking actvities In addition, ¢ transacts in
dervatives with its business and corporate clients for the purpose
of assisting these clents In managing ther exposure to changes

In interest and foreign exchange rates Finally, the Group takes
discrationary market nsk in derivative markets

The Group also uses credit dervatives, on a very inited basis,
within its Trading Book to take exposure to specific and general
credit spread movements and in its Banking Book to provids
default protection on specific credit exposures

Further detalls can be found in note 16 and the accounting policy 1S
set out on page 84

+ Policy

The Group's participation in dervaives markets 15 subject to

policy approved by the Court of Directors and, at a more detailed
level, by the GRPC The Group makes a clear distinction between
dervatives which must be transacted on a perfectly hedged basts,
and those whose risks can be managed within broader interest
rate or foreign exchange books Since these broader bocks can be
structured to assume some degree of discretionary nsk, dervative
positions held within them wil not necessanly be exactly hedged
Market nsk can only be assumed in clearly defined categores of
dervative which are traded in well estathshed, liquid markets,
supperted by industry standard conventons and documentation
and valued n accordance with generally accepted methods
Pasttions can enly be taken in instruments which the business can
settls, administer and value, and where the nsks can be accurately
measured and reflected within exposure aganst mits

BolGM 15 permitted to take discretionary nsk in derwatves, such as
interest rate futures, bond futures, forward rate agreements, interest
rate swaps, credit denvatwves, forward foreign exchange and
currency swaps In addition, it 18 permitied to take exposure in the
most widely traded option markets, principally options on futures,
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caps, floors, swap options (swaptions) and conventional currency
options Transactions n more complex dervatives are typically on

a perfectly matched back to back basis This category consists
predormnantly of equity ndex dernvatwves, used for the purposes of
eonstructing retal savings products whoss performance 1s inked to
equity markets

+ Collateral agreements

BolGM has executed Coltateral Support Agreements (CSAs) with
its principal interbank dervatives counterparties and, as a result,

a very high proportion of its total interbark denvatives book s
covered by CSAs The purpose of a CSA s to imit the potential
cost of replacing denvative contracts at market prices in the event
of default by the onginal counterparty Under the terms of a CSA, f
the aggregate market value of a set of dervative contracts between
the two parties exceeds an agreed threshold figure, the party which
would be exposed to loss in the event of defautt receves a deposit
of cash or eligible securties equal to the excess aggregate vatue
over the threshold In BolGM's case, valuations are agreed and
collateral 1s typically exchanged on a daily basis and n some cases
webkly

Structura! Market Risk

Structural interest rate nsk anses from the existence of non interest
bearing assets and llabilities on the Group’s balance sheet These
cansist mainty of non nterest beanng current accounts plus equity
less fixed assets If these net labilibes were used to fund floating
rate assets, the Group's earnings would fully reflect any vanation

i interest rates from one reporting penod to the next It s Group
pokcy to Invest the mayor part of these net labikties n a passvely
managed portfolio of fixed rate assets with an average life of 4
years and & maxinum ife of 7 years This portfolio consists of
swaps, fixed rate loans and government bonds and 1s continuously
reinvested to mantain approximately a 4 year average Ife

At 31 March 2008, the volume of net habilties subject to this
investment convention was €11 1 billion in euro and €4 4 bilhon
equvalent in sterling {31 March 2007 €10 2 billon and €5 biliion
respectvely}

¢ Bankof lreland &)

Audited

Structural foresgn exchange (i) nsk is defined as the Group’s non
trading net asset position 1 non euro currencies Structural fx nsk
anses substantally fom the Group's net nvestment in its sterling
based subsidianes A structural open positon in a particular
currency can also be considered to be a measure of that part

of the Group's capital which 18 denominated in that currency In
censidering the most approprate structural fx postion, the Group
takes account of the currency composition of its nsk weighted
assets and the desrabiity of mantaining a similar currency
cistnbution of captal Tris 18 designed to ensure that capdal ratios
have a low sensitvity 1o changes in exchange rates At 31 March
2008, the Group's structural fx position was as foilfows

31 March 2008 31 March 2007

€m €m

Steing net assets 3,683 3,980

US dollar net assets 280 256
Total structural tx

pasition 3973 4,236

A 10% depreciation of the euro against Sterkng and the US dollar at
31 March 2008 would have resulted i a gain taken to reserves of
€397 mullon (31 March 2007 gain of €424 million)

Market Risk in Bank of Ireland Life

Market nsk m the Group's ife business anses In two areas  non
linked #fe assurance business and the value in force (VIF) asset
on unit inked insurance contracts For non Inked bfe assurance
pusiness, market nsk anses to the extent that the expected
duratiors of cash flows on the labiity side differs from the duration
of the matching fixed interest assets The expected duration of
the habilities 1s cenved from a projection of contractual cash flows
based on prudent estimates of mortahity morbidity and voluntary
terminations Bal Life pursues a pohcy of close asset / iability
matching and any difference In the mean duration of assets and
Iiabiftres 1s minimised by buying and sellng euro fixed interest
government securties No corporate Donds or equities are held

At 31 March 2008, the senstmty of the non fnked portfolio to a
50bps parallel shift in the yield curve was as follows

31 March 2008 31 March 2007

€m €m

56bps increase Q1) {11
50bps decrease {0 6} (16}

Bol Life does not bear equity nsk directly, this 1s borne by the

unit inked policyholders However, the VIF asset on unit knked
insurance contracts 18 indwectly affected because the management
fees the company recenves are related to the value of assets under
management A 5% fall in equty and property markets, applied to
the book at 31 March 2008 would reduce earnings by €9 miflion
{31 March 2007 areduction of €8 million for the same percentage
dechna}
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Similarty, the company bears indrrect exposure to changes in
exchange rates through management fees earned on non euro urit
linked funds under management A 5% increase in the eurc against
all other currencies midway through the year would reduce earmings
by €5 milion (31 March 2007 a reduction of €4 milkon for the same
percentage dechne)

More details of the VIF asset are ncluded n the Iife assurance
business note to the financial statements  Sea note 54 on page
171

Liquadity Risk
Definition

Liquidiy nsk is the nsk that the Group will expenence difficulty
in financing its assets and meebing s contractual payment
oblgations, or will only be able to do so at an unacceptable cost

How Liquidity Risk Anises

bquidity distress 15 almost nvariably associated with a severe
deteroration in financial performance, but it can also result from
unexpected adverse events or systemvc difficulties The Group has
In place a nsk management framework t¢ manage hquidity nisk

The Group’s contractual financial liabiities are reported in note 44
to the financial statements, as required by IFRS 7

Liquidity Risk Management

The Group's exposure to iquidity nsk 1s governed by policy
approved by the Court and the GRPC The operation of this policy
18 delegated to ALCO

Group Asset and Liabitty Management, on behalf of ALCO, 15
responsible for montorng the liquicity nsk of the Group and for
the development and monitoning of iquidity policy BoiGM are
responsible for the day to day management of the Group’s hquidity
postton

In addition to our internal iquidity nsk management processes,
the Group complies with the requirements of the insh Financial
Regulater in respect of quidity management and with the
requirements of focal regulators in those junsdictions in which the
liquidity reguirements apply to the Group

Liquidity management within the Group consists of twoe man
actmbies The first is tactical Iiquidity management by monitonng
current and expected future cashflows to ensure that the Group's
Siquidity needs can be met This is achieved by taking into account
the Group's access to unsecured funding {customer deposits and
wholesale funding) and the hquidity charactenstics of a portfolio of
hughly marketable assets that can be easily lquidated as protection
aganst any unforeseen interruption to the Group's cashflow

The second set of actwities s strategic in nature and 1s focused

Report & Accounts
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on assessing the matunty profile of assets and liabiliies on the
balance sheet and the Group's debt ssuance strategy

Liquidity Risk Measurement

The Group's cash flow and iquidity reporting processes provide
dally hquidity nsk nformateon by designated cash flow categones
to management These processes capture the cash flows from
both balance sheet and off balance sheet transactions In respect
of specific products such as custorner deposis, mortgage
repayments and off balance shest commitments, the Group
apples behavioural adustments to reflect the Group's expenence
of these cash fliows based on histoncat trends The Court has set
a coverage hmit for the Group's net cutflows in the O to one month
penod, ALCO has established subsidiary controls

The marketable assets portfolio represents those secunties that
can be used to raise liqudity via secured funding transactions This
portfalio 1s compnsed of bank paper, government debt and asset
backed securties The lquidity value of securttes s calculated at
market value less a margin In addition the Group has the ability

to access secured funding through the tendenng operations of
central banks

+ Stress testing and scenarto analysis

The Group performs stress testing and scenane analysrs to
evaluate the impact of stresses on its quidity position These
stress tests are at both a Group specific and systemic nsk level
The stress tests are run at three levels of mederate, senous and
severe The results of the stresses are compared to the tactical
actions which the Group can take In such circumstances to correct
the posrion and bring it back n order Such actiens range from
seling assets, switching from unsecured to secured funding and
adusting the pnce the Group would pay for labilites The result of
the stress testing 1s reported at regular intervals to the GRPC and
the Court
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Liquidity Risk Mitigation
* Funding diversification

The Group's strategy s to diversy its funding profile by investor
types, regions, nstrurments and currency of actvity The Group's
core fundirg resources such as its retal and corporate deposit
base as well as its long term capital markets funding form the core
of its habilty profile Institutional Investors and interbank funding are
also important sources of funding

Balance Sheet
Funding 31 March 2008 31 March 2007
€ hillion % € hilion %

Deposits by banks 14 8 21 12
CP/CDrs 27 15 21 12
Secuntisations 8 4 LR 6
Senior Debt / AGS 26 14 27 16
Wholesale Funding 75 41 80 48
Customer Deposits BG 47 2 41
Capital / Subordinated
Debt 14 3 15 8
Other 10 4 8 5
Total 185 100 175 100

Bank of Irsland operates under the robust Liquidity Regime introduced
by the Insh Financial Regutator in July 2007 This regime requires

that banks have sufficent payment rescurces {cash infiows and
marketable assets) to cover 100% of expected cash outflows inthe O
to 8 day time honzon and 90% of expected cash outflows in the Bto
one month time honzon The Group cantinues to maintan a sgnificant
kyuiclity buffer n excess of these requirements The Group also has
in place a kgquidity contmgency plan which can be actvated should
the need arse

Life insurance Risk
Definition

Life insurance nsk is the volatiity i the amount and timing of
clams caused by unexpected changes in mortality, moridity
and tongevity Mortality nsk 1s the nsk of deviations in timing

and amounts of cash flows (premiums and benefits) due to the
ncidence ar non ncitdence of death Longevity risk 1s the nsk of
such deviations due to ncreasing Ife expectancy trends among
pelicy holders and pensioners, resulting in payout ratios nigher
than what the company onginally accounted for Morbidity nsk is
the rigk of deviations In timing and amount of cash flows (such
as clamns} due 1o the iIngident or non incident of disability and
sickness

Audited

Life Insurance Risk Management

Life nsurance nsk 1 taken and managed by Bank of Ireland Life
{Bol Lifg}, a wholly cwned subsidiary of the Group

The Bol Life Rainsurance Comrmittes reviews the reinsurance
arrangements at east annually and reports to the Audit Committee
of Bol Life’s Board on this revew This includes a review of the
panel of reinsurers that may be used and the optmal structure

of Its reinsurance arrangements The Rensurance Committee

15 compnsed of senior members of the management teamn with
actuanal and underwniing expertise

Life Insurance Risk Measurgment

The amount at risk on each life assurance policy 1s the difference
between the sum assured and the reserve held Bol Life calculates this
amount for the total portfolio on a quarterly basis

Risk expenence is monitored quarterly Actual clams expenence 15
compared to the underlying risk assumptions, and risk profits and
losses are reparted to senior management and reflected m new
busness pricing and new product design

Life insurance nsk s included in the Quarterly Risk Report presented
to the GRPC and the Court by the GCRO The report details
a number of insurance nsk measures, ncluding actual claims
expenence and other early warning ndcators, with a comprehenswe
range of follow up actions depsnding on the staius of gach ndicator

Life Insurance Risk Mitigatlon

Boi Life mitigates the potential mpect of nsurance nsk through the
use of rensurance

End of inforrmation that forms an integral part of the audited
financial statements
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Management of Regulatory and Operational
Risk

The Group Regulatory and Operationai Risk (GROR) function
manages the Group's nsks associated with operations, legal
comphance, tax comphance, and compliance with antt money
laundenng legislation, health and safety and envirenmental
regulations it also reviews upstream nisks in retation to regulatory
and operational developmenta This funchion reports to the GCRO
with oversight by the Group Regutatory and Operational Risk
Commiitee (GRORC), a sub committee of the GRPC The objective
of the Commities 15 to
* define and identify reguiatary and operational nisks,
+ dewvise and mplement a framework for management of thesa nsks,
s report on the status of these nisks, and
«  make recommendations to the GRPC on the management of
these nsks as appropnate

The Committee also promotes awareness of regulatory and
operatienal nsks throughout the Group

The Head of GROR 1s responsible for formulating and
communicating the nsk controf framework for the management

of regulatory and operational risks and for monronng the
implementation of the framework by business management across
the Group The Head of GROR reports to the GRPC and the
Group Audit Committee (GAC) on a half yearly basis

Regulatory Risk
Definition

Regulatory nsk anses from a falure to comply with the laws,
regulations or codes applicable to the financial services mdusiry n
the junsdictions within which the Group operates Non comphance
has adverse reputational imphcations and may lead to fines, public
reprimands, enforced suspension of operations or, in extreme
cases, withdrawal of authenisation to operate

Management of Regulatory Risk

The Court oversees regulatory comipliance with the extensive
supervisory and regulatory regmes to which the Group 1s subject,
prncipaly in Ireland, the UK and the US

The Group manages regulatory risk under an overall framework
which s implemented by accountable executives monitored

by the GRPC, the GAC and the GRORC, supported by the

Group Regutatory and Operational Risk function The effective
management of regulatory cornpliance is pnrmanly the responsbility
of business management

The Group's regulatory compliance 1S governed by policy formulated
by the GRORC and approved by the GRPC, on behalf of the Court
Thus requires the conduct of business n accordance with apphcable
regulaticns and with an awareness of regulatory nsk by all employess
The Group has established a formal approach to the management
of regulatory nsk and the olyective 1s the identification,

Report & Accounts
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assessment, montonng and management of regulatory nsks
Business urits, Dvisional comphance and GROR undertake nsk
based comphance monitonng, and annual compltance monitonng
plans are reviewed to reflect changes or emerging regulatory nsks
Regulatory complance reports from business units are analysed
and reviewed by GROR and by the GRORC

Operational Risk
Defimtion

The Basel Committee on Baniang Supervision defines Operational
Risk for regulatory and supervisory purposes as “the nsk of loss
resulting from inadequate or falled mternal processes, people

and systems or from external events " The Group embodies this
definition in sts pokcy on operational sk management

Management of Operational Risk

It 15 the responsibility of the Court to ensure that the assets of
the Group are safeguarded and that attempted fraud or other
iregularties are prevented or detected

The Group's exposure to operabonal nisk 15 governed by policy
formulated by the GRORG and approved by the GRPC, on behalf
of the Court The Policy specifies that the Group will operate
such measures of nsk identification, assessment, monitonng and
management as are necessary to ensure that operational nsk
managemert I1s consistent with the approach, ams and strategic
goals of the Group, and 1s designed 1o safeguard the Group's
assets while aflowing sufficient operational freedom to eamn a
satisfactory return for shareholders

The Palicy dacument further sets out tha responsibdties of
management, the requirernent for mandatory reporting of incidents
and the role of GIA In providing the ndependent review function

The Group has established a formal approach to the management
of operational gk In the form of the Operationat Risk Management
Framework The cbiective of this frarmework s the identification,
assessment, monitoring and management of operational nsks that
may Impact the achievernent of the Group’s business objectves

The Operational Fisk Management Framework 15 designed to meet

the requirements of good Corporate Governance (e g Turnbull,

the Basel ll Accord, the Capital Requirements Cirective (CRD}

and the Bank for International Settlements (BIS) Sound Practices

Guidance It consists of

* Formulation and dissemination of the Group Operational Fisk
Policy

* The establshment of organisahonat structures for the
oversight, monitoring and ranagement of cperational nsk
throughout the Group

*» Embedding the operationat nsk management process in all
business and suppaort umts throughout the Group

+ Creafing awareness throughout the Group of the need to
manage cperational nsk and training of relevant staff in the
operational nsk management process
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This framework s formally reviewed each year to ensure ds
continuing appropnateness to manage the Group's exposure o
operational nisk

The Group's Operational Risk Management Framework is subject
to regular audit by GlA

Operational Risk Management Process

The Operaticnat sk Management Process 15 in six stages and
provides a roadmap from the identification of threats to the
achievernent of business objectives, through the mitigating effect
of controls, to the mplementation of remediation and action plans
where weaknesses hava been identfied 1t is designed to be
fterative In nature to ensure it 1s contnually updated and reflects
the current operational nsk profile of the Group

On a half yearly basis, the business and supgort units formally
reassess therr operational nsk profile and provide a certificaton to
GROR These reports are analysed and consolidated by GROR,
and presented to and reviewed by the Group Regutatory and
Operational Risk Committee {(GRORC), the GRPG and the GAC
The reporting consists of a number of elements ncluding nsk maps
and commentary, action plans for the mitigation of highest rated
nsks and detals and analysis of loss events and near misses

This reporting 15 supplemented by the subrmission of management
information by the business and support units, and there 1s a
process In place for the immediate reporting of loss events and near
neidents which require prompt escatation fo senior management

Mitigation of Operatlonal Risk

The Group manages operational rigk under an overall strategy
which 1s implemented by accountable executives monitored

by the GRPC, the GAC and the GRORC, supported by the

GROR function Potential nsk exposures are assessed and
appropnate controls are put In place Recognising tnat operational
nsk cannct be entirely ekminated, the Group implements nsk
mitigation controls including fraud prevention, information secunty,
contingency planning and maident management This strategy 18
further supported oy sk transfer mecharusms such as the Group's
nsurance programme, where appropriate

I Bank of Ireland (=)
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Capital Management

The information set out below up to the end of page 42 forms an
integral part of the audited financial statements as detaded in the
Accounting Policies to the Financral Statermments on page 78

Capital Management Objectives and Policies

The objectives of tha Group’s capital management policy are to

+  Ahgn capital management to the Group's strategy,

* Mast the requirements of equity and debt investors,

* Achieve the optmal mix of capital to meet the Group's
regulatory requirements and rating ambitions, and

* Manage capttal In aggregate and at business level, ensuring
that capital 1s only invested in businesses which delver
adequate returns

it s the Group's pokcy 1o mantain a strong capital base, 10 seek

to expand this where appropnate and to utilse # efficiently in the
Group's development as a diversified iternational financial services
group Long term debt, undated capstal notes, preferred securties
and preference stock are raised in vanous currencies in order to
ahgn the composition of caprtal and nsk weighted assets The
Group's capital includes the Group's equity stockholders” funds
together with perpetua! and dated subordinated secunties with
appropnate regulatory adjustrments and deductions appled

The Group in managing its caprtal uses as the basis for its capital
management the capital adequacy requirements set by the
Financial Regulator in Irefand which reflect the requirements as set
out n the EU Capital Requirements Birective and its preceding
drectives These requirements set a floor under wiich capital levels
must not fall The Group seeks to maintain sufficient capital to
ensure that even under stressed conditions these requirements ase
not breached

The Group also looks at other methodologies of caprtal
measurement including the capital definions set out by rating
agencies ! also calculates economic capital based on its own
internal models

How the Capital Management Objectives are Met

The Group meets its objectives in terms of capital management
through the holding of capital ratos above the minmum levels set
by the Financial Regulator The Group stress tests the caprtal held
to ensure that under stressed conditions that #t continues to comply
with regulatory rririma ratios It also seeks to minimise refinancing
nsk by managing the matunty profile of non equity capital in
addiion the currency mix of caprtal 1Is managed to ensure that the
sensimty of capital ratios to currency movements 1s minimised

Capital strategy s integrated nto the overall strategy of the Group
reflecting s iImportance as a key enabler

The Group has a portiolo approach to ts businesses to ensure that
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optimum returns are targeted and earned with a focus on ensunng
growth in value enhancing actvities New lending actmty and
transactons are subject to RAROC return critena

Capital Resources

The following table sets out the Group's capital resources

31 March 31 March
2008 2007
€m €m

Stockholders’ funds
Equity (including other equity reserves) 6,477 6,717
Non-cumulativa preference stock 7 7
Minonty interests  equity 33 34
Undated loan capial 3,209 3,494
Dated loan capital 4,599 4,314
Total capital resouvces 14,330 14,566

In the year ended 31 March 2008 total Group capital resources
decreased by €236 milion to €14 330 milion folowing retentions
of €1,074 milion, other net negative rovements in equety of
€1,314 millon including changes in the cash flow hedge reserve
(€247) milion, the AFS reserve (€386) millon, foreign exchange
adjustments (€712} millon, movement in the defined benefit
pension schemes (€208} milhon offset by the issue or reissue of
caprtal stock €194 million and other movements of €46 rmillion

As at 31 March 2008, the Group had €3,209 millien of undated
loan capital and €4,599 milion of dated loan capital including
far value adjustments), a total of €7.808 milion in aggregate of
subordinated kabiities Of the dated loan capital €3,832 million
is repayable m five or more years The cost and avalabilty of
subordinated debt are influenced by credit ratings A reduction
in the ratings assigned to the Group's securties could increase
financing costs and reduce market access The credit ratings of
Bank of Ireland Group at 20 May 2008 are as follows

Senior Debt

Maoodys Aa2
Standard & Poors A+
Fitch AA

DBRS AA

Depending on the degree of subordination, the ratngs assigned
to loan capital may be one or more notches below the level for
servor debit Credit ratings are not a recommendation to buy,

held or selt any secunty and each rating should be evaluated
independently of every other rating These ratings are based on
current information furmished to the rating agencies by Bank of
Irefand and nformation obtained by the rating agencies from other
sources The ratings are accurate only as of 20 May 2008 and

Bank of lreland ¢&2)

oy
o
=
{D
0
7
s
M
=
@
=

SILIBLUBIEIS [eIoURLIL 80UBULISACE)

UQIBLLIOM) fiaust)

M




=
@
=
a
o
2]
2]
@D
&
w
]
m

Financtal Statements Governance

General Infformation

42

Risk Management

may be changed, superseded or withdrawn as a result of changes
in, or unavailtability, of such information

Capital Adequacy Requirements

The Group's capital management palicy has been developed within
the supervisory requirements of the Insh Financtal Regulator

The EL) Capttal Requirements Directive (CRD) which came into
force from 1 January 2007 mntroduced significant amendments to
the existing capital adequacy framework The implementation of
the CRD results i a more nsk sensitive appreach to the dervation
of a bank’s capital requirements

The CRD s divided nito three sections commonly referred 1o as
Pillars Pillar 1 introduced the Internal Ratings Based Appreach
{IRBA) which perrmits banks to use ther own internal rating
systems to calculate ther capital requirements for credit nsk

Use of the IRBA 1s subject 1o reguiatory approval Where credt
portfolios are not subject to IRBA the caleulation of the rminimum
capital requirements 1s subject to the Standardised Approach 15 a
more granular approach tq the calculation of risk weightings

Under Pillar 2 of the CRD {Supervisory Review) banks undertake
an Internal Capttal Adequacy Assessment Process {(CAAP) which
15 then subject to supervisory review

Piliar 3 of the CRD (Market Discigline) involves the disclosure of a
range of gualitatve and quantitative information relating to capral
and nsk The Group will be disclosing this information in due
course

The CRD also ntroduced a requirement to caloulats capital
requirements, and to set capital aside, with respect to operational

nsk The Group s also required to set capital aside for market rsk

Dunng the financial year under review all externalty mposed capital
requirements werae complied with

End of information that forms an integral part of the audited financial
statements
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The following table shows the components and basis of calculation of the Group's Tier 1 and Total Capital ‘%J
é.
31 March 2068 31 March 2008 31 March 2007* =
Basel it Basel | Basel |
€m £<m €m
Capital base
Equlty Tier 1
Total equity 6,522 6,522 6,758
Regulatory adjustments retirement benefit obligations 807 807 590
Perpetual preferred securities 2,995 2,995 3,319
Available for sale reserve and cash flow hedge reserve 471 471 (162)
Intangible assets 827 827 (941)
Revaluation reserves to Tier 2 (173) {173} 647)
Cther adjustments (371) {200) 15 o
Total Tier 1 capital 9,424 9,505 8,932 g
Tier2 @
Undated lean capital 229 229 294 §
Dated loan capital 4,115 4,115 3,995 g
IBNR provisions 114 159 134
Revaluation reserves 173 173 647
Other adjustiments (208) (38) (32)
Total Tier 2 capital 4,423 4,638 5,038
Total supervisory deductions {816 973 {1,019
Total Caprtal 13,031 13,260 12,951
Banking book 122,351 109,968
‘Trading book 3,482 2,972
Gradit nisk 107,820
Market risk 2,908 n
Operational risk 6,123 g
Total sk weighted assets 116,961 125,833 112,940 3
@
Equety Tier 1 Ratlo 57% 33% 49% @
Tier 1 Ratio 81% 76% 79% %
Totat Capital Ratio 11% 10 5% 115% g
*After deducting proposad dwdend comparable with 31 March 2008 treatment =2
7
Basel | Tier 1 capital ncreased by €663 million reflecting €1,074 million in retained earnings and €400 million related to the embedded value
securdies fransaction (transfer from Tier 2) offset by negative currency movements of €1,036 million {of whuch €712 million related to equity}
and €225 mikion of net other movements
Tier 2 capttal benefited from the LIS$600 milkon of new Tier 2 capital raised offset by the transfer of €400 million te Tier 1 reflecting the
embedded value securtties transaction, negative exchange rate movemnents of €149 milion and miscellaneous other movements of €230
millon negative
Capital resources are €229 milion lower under Basel |l than under Basel | prmarily as a result of the deduction of expecied lesses that are in o
excess of accounting provisions and with coflectve provisions an transactions on IRB approach ao longer included wittun Tier 2 captal The @
only other amendment relates to the deduction of the first koss on secuntisations equally from Tier 1 and Tier 2 as opposed to Total Capital §
&
S
=
ot
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Non Executive Officers

t  Richard Burrows @ O Governoy
Appomnted to the Court n 2000 Deputy Governor 2002 2005 Seniar
Indeperdent Dirsctar 2003-2005 Govemnor smeca July 2005 Fomner
co Chief Execlitive of Pernod Ricand SA (2000 2005) and former Chuef
Exacutwve of Insh Distillers Group (1978 2000} A Dirsctor of Pemod
Ricard S A,, Crtyiet Ltd, Rentoki Initial ple, Mey [cki San ve Tic AS and
Step Green Ltd. {Age 62)

2 George Magan FCA § OF Deputy Governor
Apponted to the Court n 2003 Senior independent Director 2008
2006 Appointed Deputy Governor in October 2008 Chairman of
Raboock & Brown Global Partners, Carlton Capital Partners Mallett ple
Margan Shiplgy {Dubar) Former Group Drector of Morgen Grenfell and
former Charman of JO Hambro Magan, NatWest Markets Corporate
Finance and Hawkpont Partners Ltd (Age 62)

Executive Directors

3 Bran J Goggin MSciidgt) FOCA Group Cluef Executive
Joined Bark of treland in 1969 Subsequently held a varety of
senior ranagament positions within Bank of Irefand Group in the
US, UK and Ireland Appanted Chief Executive Corporate andt Treasury
in 1996, Chief Executve Wholesale Financial Services in 2002 Chief
Executive Asset Management Services In 2003 and appointed Group
Chief Executive in June 2004 Appointed to the Court in 2000
President, Insh Chapter, The ireland  US Council and 15 a Global
Counselior of the Conference Board (Age 56)

4 John O Donovan B Comim FCA Group Chuof Financsal Officer
Joned the Group n 2001 as Group Ctuef Financiat Offcer Appointed
to the Court n 2002 Formerly Group Finance Director / Company
Secretary of Aer Lingus plc {Age 56}

i BankofIreland (&>

Dems Donovan 8 Comm MBA, Chief Executive, Capital Markets
Joned Bank of Ireland n 1985 from the Central Bank of reland He was
appointed Chief Executive of the Group's Capital Markets Division n
20086, having held the postion of Chief Executive, Wholesale Financial
Services Dvision since 2003 Ha was CEC of Global Markets fram
1999 to 2003 and Chief Operating Officer  International with Bank of
Treland Asset Management from 1993 1c 1999 Appointed o the Court
n 2006 (Age 54)

Richie Beucher, Chief Executive, Retal Financial Services treland
Jowred tha Bank of Irefand Group as Chief Executve Corporate
Banking from Royal Bank of Scotland in 2003 He was apponted Chiet
Executve Retal Financal Services Ireland n 2005 Appointed 1o the
Court in 2006 He was immediate past President of the Insh Banking
Federaton Ha 1s President of The institute of Bankers in Ireland and

a member of the boards of Bank of lreland Prvate Banking, Bark of
Ireland 1afe, Bani of reland Mortgege Bank and iCS Bulding Society

(Age 49)

Des Crowley BAMoed) Econ FLMA

Chief Executive UK Finansial Services

Joned Bank of reland m 1688 from Arthur Andersen & Co  and held
a number of senior managemant posttons befors being apponted
Chief Executive, Retal Barking and Dstnbution and joining the Group
Executve Committee n 2000 In 2004 he was eppointed Chiet
Executve, Retal Financial Sences and Chief Executive, UK Financial
Services in 2006 Appomted 1o the Court ih 2008 He is a Director

of Bnstol & West ple, Post Office Financie Services and First Rate
Exchange Servioes, out jont veniures with the UK Post Ofice and a
member of the British Bankers Assocation Retal Committee (Age 48)

Report & Accounts
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Dawiet Dilger GBE 8BA ' CA ®Q O

Appointed to the Court n 2003 Appointed Senior Independent Director
in September 2007 Dawd recently retired as Chief Executive Officer

of Greencore Group ple 2 posiion he hefd since 1895 He was Chief
Operating Officer from 1992 and Chief Executive of Food Industries

ple, which was acquired by Greencore, from 1988 Formerdy CFO,
Wocedchester Investments plc and former director of Enterpnse Ireland
Director of IBEC {Age 51}

Heather Ann McSharry 8 Comim MBS Q%

Appointed to the Court in July 2007 General Manager of Reckitt
Benclaser i Ireland a leading global househcld, health and

persanal care company having previously been Managing Oirector

of Boots Healthcare Limited i Ireland  Diractor of Enterprise lreland,
of the Insh Pharmaceutical Healthcare Association and 18 a member of
the Govemning Authonty of UCD (Age 47)

Declan McCourt BL MA MBA A

Apponted o the Court n 2004  Chisf Executive of automotive
distributor the OHM Group, a Director of Fyffes ple, Blackrock
International Land ple, and a number of ather companies Chairman of
the Mater Hospital Foundation and of UCD taw Scheol Develcpment
Gouncil {Age 62)

Torry Nedi MA MSc (Leon) ¢ A

Apponted te the Court in 2004 A member of the Governing Body
and charman of the Finance Committee of London Business School
A member of the Boards of CRH plc and Tnnity Foundation

Former Senior Partner in Accenture and former charman of its global
Board Chaiman, Camerata reland (Age 62)

Paul Haran MSe BSc AO #

Apponted to the Court n 2005 Chairman of the National Qualfications
Authority of Ireland, of Edward Dillon & Company and of UCD Michael
Smurfit Graduate Business School and Principal, UCD College of
Busness & Law A mernber of the Forum of the Economic and Social
Research Institute, the Insh Taxation insttute and the Road Safety
Autnomty Former Secretary General of the Department of Enterpnse,
Trade and Employment and a former member of the National Economic
and Social Counct and the Board of Forfas A Director of Glanbia ple and
the Mater Private Hosprtal (Age 50)

Report & Accounts
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Apponted to the Court in 2006, Based n the UK Dennis 1s former
Group Crief Executva Olficar of AXA UK plc and a member of Axa's
Global Executve Committee from 2001 to 2006 where he also served
as Charman of AXA treland Lid Pnor to 2001 be served for aver 30
years with LUoyds TSB latterly as the Main Board Executive Director
responstble for the UK Retal Bank Chairman of Liverpool Victona
Frendly Society Ltd and Non Executive Director of Autornobile
Association Insurance Senaces Ltd and Bnush Istarmic Insurance
Holdings Ltd {Age 59)

Rose Hynes BCL AT 5o A

Apponted ta the Court in July 2007 Drrector of Bank of ireland
Mortgage Banrk and Total Praduce plc, whera she is its senior
independent Drector and chairs ts Remuneration Commitiea Also

a Drrector of Bord Gais Erreann Shannon Awrport Authonty plc and

a number of other companies Previously hatd senor management
positions In GPA Group ple including General Counsel and Head of
Commercal and 15 alsc a former director of Fyfles ple, Morthern Ireland
Water {td and Aer Lingus {Age 50)

Jerame Kennaedy FCA A

Apponted to the Court in July 2007 Drirector of Bank of trelana Lfe
Holdings ple New Ireland Assurance Gompany plc and Total Produce
ple, where he charrs the Audit Committees Charrman of Caulfield
McCarthy Group Retall and a member of the Insh Board of the UCD
Michael Smurfit Graduate Business School He was Managing Partner
with KPMG Ireland for three terms batween 1995 and 2004 and 1s a
Chartered Accountant by profession {Age 59)

Senor Independent Drector

Chairrnan of Group Audt Committee

Member of Group Audit Committee

Chairman of Group Remuneration Committes

Member of Group Remuneration Committee

Charman of Group Nominauon & Governance Comrnittee
Mermber of Group Nomination & Governarice Committee
Charman Board of Trustees of the Bank Staff Pension Fund
Trustee of the Bank Staff Pension Fund

*ET O SeDrS
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Financial Statements

General information

Report of the Directors

The Directors present ther report and financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2008

Results

The Group profit attnbutable o the stockholders was €1,685 milion
after non-cumulative preference stock dividends of £14 miflion

The reported profit for the peniod amounted fo €1,704 million as sel
out in the consclidated income statement on page 71

Dividends

The Directors have recommended a fina! dvidend of 39 4 cent per
urut of €0 84 ordinary stock in respect of the year ended 31 March
2008 to be paid on 23 July 2008 to stockholders on the Register

at the close of business on 30 May 2008 The recommended final
dmidend together with the intenm dvidend of 24 2 cent per urut of
€0 64 orchnary stock paid in January 2008 results in a total dvidend
of 63 6 cent for the year ended 31 March 2008 and compares

with a total of 60 4 cent for the previous year If approved by
stackholders, this would amount to €626 million (31 March 2007
€577 mithor)

Group activities

The Bank and s Group undertakings (the Group) provide an
extensive range of bankng and cther financial services The
Governor's Statement, the Group Chief Execuive's Review and
the Operating and Financial Review on pages 2 10 3, pages 4 to
9 and pages 10 to 26 respectively, descnbe the operalions and
the development of the Group Addihionat disclosures reguired by
the International Fnancial Reporting Standards and the Farr Value
Regulations are contained in the Operating and Financial Review
and in the financial statements and notes thereto

Principal nsks and uncertainties

Information concerning the pnncipal nsks and uncertanties facing
the Group 13 set out In the Risk Management section of the
Business Review

Capital stock and subordinated liabilities

1,025,549,226 units of ordinary stock, of nominal value of €0 84
each, were In ssue at 1 Apnl 2007 of which 70,192,621 were held
n treasury stock. During the year the Bank issued umts of ordinary
stock under staff stock schemes, t also reissued treasury stock
under staff stock schemes and under the stock alternatve scheme
As at 31 March 2008, the Bank had 1,026,217,250 units of ordinary
stock of €0 64 each of which 45,734,778 were held in treasury
stock

I Bank of Ireland (&2

The authorities granted at the Annual General Court in July 2007

to purchase up to 88,000,000 units of the Bank's ordinary stock, up
to 1,876,090 units of the Bank's Sterhng preference stock and up to
3,026,598 units of the Bank's euro preference stock have not been
exercised

Full details of the changes during the year in the capital stock and
subordinated habiltes are disptayed in note 39 and note 33

Takeover Bids Regulations

The European Communities (Takeover Bids (Directve 2004/25/EC)
Reguiations 2006 implerment the Takeovers Directive in Ireland
and require the Bank to make certain addrional disclosures The
required disclosures are set out in a Schedule to the Report of the
Drrectors on pages 48 and 49

Directors

The names of the members of the Ceourt of Directors as at 31 March
2008 together with a short iographucal note on each Director
appear on pages 44 o 45

Rose Hynes, Jerome Kennedy and Heather Ann McSharry were
elected to the Court with effect from 17 July 2007 Richard Burrows,
Dawid Diger, George Magan, Declan McCourt and John O'Donovan,
retire at the 2008 Annual General Court and, being eligible, offer
themseives for re election

Directors’ interests

The interests of the Directors and Secretary, n office at 31 March
2008 and of ther spouses and mingr children, in the stock issued
by the Bank are shown in the Remuneration Report on pages

50 to 58

In relation to the Group’s pbusiness, no contracts of significance

to the Group n which the Drectors of the Bank had any injerest,
existed at any time dunng the year ended 31 March 2008 except as
described in note 50

Report 8 Accounts




Substantial stockholdings

There were 79,603 registered holders of the ordinary stock of the
Bank at 31 March 2008 An analysis of these holdings is shown
on page 179

As at 14 May 2008, the Bank had receved notfficabion of the
following substantial interests in its ssued ordinary stock

Name %
Hams Associates LP * 429
Bank of Ireland Asset Management Lirmted * 338
UBS Global Asset Management Trad * 337

* This stockhokding 1s not beneficially owned but 1s held on behalf
of a range of clients, none of whom hold, so far as the Direclors
have been notified, more than 3% of the issued crdinary stock

So far as the Directors have been notified, there were no other
holdings of 3% or more of the 1ssued ardinary stock of the Bank

Corporate governance

Statements by the Diectors in relation to the Group's compliance
with the Combined Code on Corporate Governance, the Group's
system of nternal controls and the activities of the Group Audit
Commitiee for the year are set out in the Gorporate Governance
Statement on pages 59 to 64

The Remuneration Report 1s set out on pages 50 to 58

Environment

The facitation of a clean environment and effective environmental
protection 1s a fundamental aspect of good business operations
The Group recognises that is business actvities have an impact
on the environment, both globally and locally, and it 1s our

policy to minmsse any adverse impact of our operations on the
environment  An environmental management system has been
established to allow the identrfication and pnontisation of local and
Group wide programmes to reduce the Group's envronmental
mpacis The full text of the environmental policy 18 accessible on
the web at www bankeofireland com

Political donations
The Directors, on enquiry, have satisfied themselves that there

ware no political donations which reguire disclosure under the
Electora! Act 1997, as amended

Report & Accounts

Report of the Directors

Branches outside the State

The Bank has established branches, within the meaning

of Regulation 25 of the European Commurnities {Accounts)
Regulations, 1993 {which gave effect o EU Council Directive
BY/BEB/EEC), in the UK, France, Germany and the US

Going cencern and books of account

The Directors are satisfied that the Group has adequate resources
to continue in business for the foreseeable future For this

reason, they continue to adopt the 'going concern’ basis for the
preparation of the financial statements

The Directors ensure that proper books and account records are
kept at the Bank's regstered office, through the appointment of
surtably gualified personnel, the implementation of appropnate
computerised systems and the use of financial and other controls
over the systems and the data

Auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, have indicated ther
willingness to continue in office In accordance with Section 160(2)
of the Companies Act, 1963

Richard Burrows
Gaverncr

George Magan
Oeputy Governor

Bank of Ireland
Head Office

l.ower Baggot Street
Dublin 2

20 May 2008
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General Information

Schedule to the Report of the Directors

Information required under the European
Communities (Takeover Bids {Directive 2004/25/
EC)) Regulations 2006

As requrred by these Regulations, the information contained below
represents the positon at 31 March 2008

+ The siructure of the Bank's cap#a! is set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements The percentage of the total
capital stock represented by each class and detals regarding the
nghits and oblgations attaching to the classes of stock are set out
at note 1 below

« Save In certan hmited circumstances set out in the bye laws, there
are no restnciions Imposed by the Bank on the transfer of stock,
nor are there any requirements to obtan the approval of other
stackholders for a transfer of stock A copy of the bye laws may
be found on www bankofireland com or on request to the Group
Secretary

» Details of significant shareholdings may be found on page 47

« Other than the nghts set out :n note 1 below, there are no specral
rights with regard fo control of the Bank

» There are no unusual restnctions on voting nghts  Deadlines for
exercising voting nghts are specified in note 1 of this schedule

+ There are no arrangements between stockholders, known 1o the
Bank, which may result in restrictions on the transfer of securties
or votng nghts

« The rules concerming the appontment and replacement of the
directors and amendment of the Bank’s bye laws are sef out in
note 2 of this schedule

« Detats of the powers of the Bank's directors, Including powers in
relation o 1ssuing or buying back by the Bank of iis shares are set
out in note 3 of this schedule

» There are a number of agreements that take effect, alter or
termunate upon a change of control of the Bank following a
takeover None of these are deemed to be signficant in terms of
ther poterttial impact on the business of the Group as a whole

» There are no agreements between the Bank and its directors
or employees providing for compensgation for loss of office or
employment (whether through resignation, purported redundancy
or otherwise) that occur because of a bid There are however
provisions for early matunty of employee stock schemes in the
avent of a change of control

Note 1 Percentage of the Bank’s capital represented by class
of stock and rights and obllgations attaching to the classes of
stock

The ordinary stock represents £38% of the authonsed capital
stock and 99% of the ssued capital stock The preference stock
represents 32% of the authonsed caprtal stock and 1% of the
issued capital stock

{a} Ordinary stock
Dividend rights
Under Irish law, and under the bye laws of the Bank, dwvidends

are payable on the ordinary stock of the Bank only out of profits
avaflable for distnbution Hotders of the ordinary stock of the Bank

| Bankofireland (&)

are entitled to receive such dividends as may be declared by the
stackholders in General Court, provided that the dwidend cannot
exceed the amount recommended by the Directors The Bank must ‘
pay stocknolders such interim disdends as appear to the Directors 1
10 be justified by the profits of the Bank Any dwdend which has ‘
remained unclamed for 12 years from the date of ts declaration
may be forferted and cease to remain owing by the Bank

Voting rights
Votng at any General Court 1s by a show of hands or by poll Cna {
show of hands, every stockhelder who 18 present in person or by

proxy has one vote regardiess of the number of units of stock held

by twm On a poll, every stockholder who 1s present in person or by

proxy has one vote for every unit of ordhinary stock of €0 64 each |
A poll may be demanded by the chamman of the meeting or by af \
least nine memiers of the Bank present in person or by proxy and
entitled to vote on a poll The necessary quorum for a General Court
i5 10 persons present n person or by proxy and entitled 10 vote

All business 1s considered to be special business ff it 1 transacted

at an Extraordinary General Court as 1s all business transacted at

an Annual General Court other than the declaration of a dvidend,

the conswderation of the financial statements, the balance shest and

reports of the Directors and Auditors, the election of Directors in the

place of those retinng, the re appointment of the retning Auditors, i
and the determmation of the remuneration of the Audntors, all of i
which 15 deemed ordinary business, Special business s dealt with

by way of a special resclution, which must be passed by not less

than three fourths of the votes cast by such members as being

ertitled s0 to do, vote i person or, where proxies are allowed, by

proxy at a General Court at which not less than 21 days’ notice

specifying the intention to propose a resolution as a special

resolution has been duly gven Ordinary business is dealt with by

way of an ordinary resolution which requires a simple majorty of

the votes cast by the members voting in person or by proxy at a

Genera Court Where an equal number of votes have been cast on

any resolution the charrman of the meeting 18 entitled to a second or

casting vote

Liquldation rights

In the event of any surplus ansing on the occasen of the kquidation
of the Bank, the ordinary stockholders would be entrtled to a share
in that surplus pro rata to therr holdings of ordinary stock

{b) Preference stock

The capital of the Bank s dvided nto ordinary stock and non
cumuilative Dollar preference stock, non curmulative Sterlng
preference stock and non cumulatve euro preference stock At 31
March 2008, there was no non-cumulatve Dollar preference stock
in ssue Any non cumulative Dollar preference stock issued will
rank equivalently to the existing euro or Sterting preference stock as
regards enttlements to drvdends The holders of non cumulatve
Sterling and euro preference stock are enttled to @ fixed annual
dwictend in accordance with the terms and conditions relating to
the i1ssue of the preference stock Any dvdend which has remained
unclaimed for 12 years from the date of s declaration may be
forferied and cease to reman owing by the Bank

Report & Accounts



The non curmudative Sterling preference stock and the non
cumulatve euro praference stock ranks pan passu inter se and

tha nght 10 a fixed dvidend s in prortty to the dividend nghts of
ordinary stock m the capital of the Bank On a winding up or other
return of capital by the Bank, the non cumulative Stering preference
stockhotders and the non curnulative ewro preference stockholders
ara entitled to receve, out of the surplus assets avalable for
disinbution to the Bank's members, an amount equal to the amount
paid up on thewr preference stock including any preference dividend
outstanding at the date of the commencement of the winding up or
other return of capital Otherwise the preference stockholders are
not entrtied to any further or other nght of participation i the assets
of the Bank

Bye law 7 enables the Directors to 1ssue and allot new preference
stock (the 2005 Preference Stock) which can be erther redeemahle
or non redeemable, and can be denominated m US dollars, 1n euro
or in Sterlng Any prefarence stock ssued under bye taw 7 wil rank
egquivalently to the existing euro and Sterling preference stock as
regards entittements to dvidend Bye law 7 permmits the substtution
of alt of the oulstanding preferred secunties in the event of the
oceurrence of a thgger event A trigger event will ocour when the
capital adequacy requirements of the Financial Regulator have been,
ar are expected to be, breached

Vartation of class rights

The nghts attached to the ordinary stock of the Bank may be varied
or abrogated, either while the Bank s a gong concern or during of
in contemplation of & winding up, with the sanction of a resolution
rassed at a class meeting of the holders of the ordinary stock
Similerly, tha nghts, prvileges, imdatrons or restnctions attached

1o the preference stock may be vaned, altered or abrogated, edher
while the Bank 1s a going concern or duning or 1n contemplation

of winding up, with the written cangsent of the holders of not less
than 75% of such class of stock or with the sanction of a resolution
passed at a class meetng at which the holdars of 75% n nomnal
value of those in attendance vote in favour of the resolstion

Note 2 Rules concerning the appointment and replacement
of the directors and amendment of the Bank’s bye laws

All Directors appaonted between Annual General Courts are
submitted to stockholders for election at the first Annual General
Court following ther co option and for re election at intervals of
no more than three years Thereafter, in proposing the election or
re election of any ndnadual Director to the Annuat General Caurt,
the reascns why the Court believes that the indwidual should

e elected or re elected are provided in the Governor's Letter to
stockholders

All Non Executive Directors are appointed for an iniial three year
term with an expectation of a further term of three years assuming
satisfactory performance Where a Director 5 inwited to remain
beyond six years, his / her performanca is subiect to ngorous review
Should any Non Executive Directors be invited to serve longer than
ning years they are subject to annual re election by stockhalders

Repaott & Accounts

Schedule to the Report of the Directors

Rules concerning amendment of the Bank’s bye laws

The Bank's bye laws may be amended by special resolution
passed at an Annual General Court or Extraordinary General Court
An Annual General Court and a Gourt called for the passing of a
special resolution shall be called on 21 days' notice in writing at the
least Special resolutions must be approved by not less than three
fourths of the votes cast by stockholders entitled to vote in person
or by proxy No business may be transacted at any General Court
unless a quorum of members Is present at the time when the Court
proceeds to business Ten persons present i person or by proxy
and entitfed to vote shall constdute a quorum

Note 3 Powers of Directors including powers in relation to
issuing or buying hack by the company of its shares

Under s bye laws, the business of the Bank shall be managed by
the Directors, who exercise all powers of the Bank as are not, by the
Charter, the Banks Acts or the bye-laws, required to be exercised
by the Bank in General Court The Directors may exercise all the
bomowing powers of the Bank and may give securty in connection
therewith These borrowing powers may e amended or restncted
only by the stockhelders n General Court

The members of the Bank in General Court may at any time and
from trme to time by resolution enlarge the capral stock of the
Bank by such amount as they think proper Whenever the capital
stock of the Bank is so enlarged, the Directors may, subject to
vanous provisions of the bye-laws, 1ssue stock to such amount not
exceeding the amount of such enlargement as they think proper
All ordinary stock so 1ssued shall rank in equal priorty with existing
ordinary stock

Subject to the Companies Acts, to any rights conferred on any class
of stock n the Bank and to the bye laws, the Bank may purchase
any of its stock of any class (including any redeemable stock) and
may cancel any stock 20 purchased The Bank may hold such stock
as treasury stock, n accordance with Section 209 of the Gompanies
Act, 1900 {the treasury stock) with iberty to e 1ssus any such
treasury stack on such terms and conditions and in such manner

as the Dwectors may from tme to tme determne The Bank shall
not make market purchases of is own stock unless such purchases
shall have been authonsed by a special resolution passed by the
members of the Bank at a General Court (a Section 215 Resolution}
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Remuneration Report

This Remuneration Report has been prepared in accordance with
the requrements of the Combined Code on Corporate Governance

The Group Remuneration Commitige holds delegated responsibility
for setting polcy on the remuneration of tha Governcr and semor
management (including Executve Directors} and approves specific
remuneration packages for the Governor, each of the Executive
Directors, the Group Secretary and those senior exacutives who
report directly to the Group Chief Executve (Group Executive
Committee}

The remuneration of Non Executive Directors 1 determined and
approved by the Court Nerther the Governor nor any Director
participate in dacisions relating 1o therr own remuneration

Remuneration policy

Group remuneration pokcy 1s to ensure that the remuneration
arrangements for Directors and senior management are
competitve and designed 1o attract, retain and motwvale pecple
of the highest calibre, who are expected to perform to the mighest
standards

Reward policies are aligned with the objectve of maximising
stockholder value in determining remuneration levels account
18 taken of such factors as each indmdual's responsibiilies and
performance as well as Jevels of remuneration in comparable
businesses both in retand and the United Kingdom

Executive Directors are expected, over time, 10 buld up a Group
stock ownership equivalent to a suinimun of 100% of salary

The remuneration package for Executive
Directors

The iotal remuneration package s reviewed by the Group
Remuneration Commitiee with assistance from externat
remuneration consuttants who provide indspendent remuneration
advice and analysis to the Commitiee Currently the key elements of
the remuneration package are salary, a performance related bonus,
the Long Term Incentive Plan, stock ogtions, partcigation it the
Employee Stack Issue and the Sharesave Schemes and provision of
retirement benefits These various elements are summansed below

» Salary — ls payable monthly and 15 set at a lavel to recogmise an
ndmdual’s market worth Salanes are reviewed annually by the
Group Remuneration Comimittee

» Performance related bonus scheme ~ The level earned by each
Executive Director s based on the Remuneration Comimittea’s
assessment of that Director's performance agamst pre determined
financial goals and requrred leadership behaviours In the vear
anded 31 March 2008, the Group's actual year on year underlymg
earnings per share growth and the achuievernent cf cost savings

-

L ]

under the Strategic Transformation Programme were the key
financial goals Bonus potentiat of Executive Directors s currently
uncapped with 25% of the actual bonus awarded being deferred
until the successful completion of the Strategic Transformation
Programme n March 2009 or earlier As the programme was
complated satistactortly no deferral appled to bonuses eamed (in
the year ended 31 March 2008) and deferred bonuses earned In
previous years ara now released

Long Term Incentive Plan — Singe 2004, the Group has operated
a Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIF), with stockholder approval, for
key senior executives Under the LTIP, which s described 11 more
detait In note 39 on pages 150 and 151 condrtional awards have
been made to the Executive Drrectors as set out in the table on
pages 55 and 56

Stock Options - In 2004, the Group updated the Executwve Stock
Option Scheme, with stockholder approval It1s policy to grant
stock options under the terms of the Stock Option Scheme to
Executive Directors and semior executves across the Group 1o
align therr nterests with the nterests of stockholders n general
The exercise of all options granted smce 2004 1s conditional upon
underlying eamings per share achieving a cumulative growth

of at least 5% per anmum compound above the Increase n the
Consumer Price Index over the three year performance period If
this performance cendition is not achieved, the options lapse {see
also note 30 on pages 150 and 151)

Employee Stock Issue Scheme The Bank operales an
Employee Stock lssue Scheme under which the Court of Drrectors
may set aside an element of Group profit before taxation for
allocation to the trustees of the scheme 1o enable them to acauire
units of ordinary stock on behalf of the scheme partcipants The
amount set aside is refated to overall Group performance (see also
note 39 on pages 148 and 149) Executve Directors participate on
the same basis as staff generally

Sharesave Scheme In 1999 the Group established a Sharesave
Scheme (SAYE scheme) for all ekgible employees Under the SAYE
schermne the Executive Directors who participated were granfed
options over units of ordinary stock a3 set out n the table on
pages 54 and 55 (see also note 38 on page 149)

Retirement benefits = The Executive Directors, with the
excaphion of Derus Donovan, are members of the Bank Staff
Pansion Fund, which 1 a contnbtory scheme at the rate of 2 5%
of salary Dems Donovan 1s a member of the Bank of lreland

Asset Management Pension Scheme, which 1s a non-cantributory
scheme Both the Bank Staff Pension Fund and the Bank of
Ireland Asset Management Pension Scheme are defined benefit
plans, based on an accruai rete of 1/601h of pensionable salary for
each year of a Director's pensionable service with a maximum of
40/60ths payable on normal retirement, at age 60 Brian Goggn's
contract provides for an option, exercisable by 1he Group of by
him, allowing him ta retire at age 58 on a persion without actuanal
reduction Of the Executive Directors' 1olal remuneration package,
only ther salanes are pensionable

Report & Accounts



Remuneration Report

The Finance Act 2005 effectively established a cap on pension
provisicon by intraducing a substantial tax charge en pension
assets m excess of the higher of €5 rmifion or the value of
indvtdual prospectve pension enttlements as at 7

December 2005 {each to be ndexed annually) Having
reviewed market responses to this development and

naving taken actuanal adwvice, the Committee agreed

that Executive Directors be offered an option (a} to continue
with unchanged pension funding arrangements or {b} 1o elect
for a revised armangement whereby thew prospective penson
fund would be hm#ted to the value of the pension cap, together
with a taxable, non penswonable, cash allowance in fieu of the
penston benefit foregone All the Executive Directors have
opted for the revised arrangement, the mcome statement
impact of which is simidar to that of continuing to fund therr
pensions under the earler arrangement

MBINGY SSBLISNg

* Sarvice contracts ~ No service contract exists between the
Bank and any Drrector which provides for a notice period from
the Group of greater than one year
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Remuneration Report Audited

2
[
& The nformation set out below up 1o where indicated on page 58 forms an integral part of the audited financial statements as detatled in the
CEO Accounting Pohcies to the Financial Statements on page 78
@
= Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2008 (all figures in €'000’s)
o}
o
Release of
Parformance deferred Other Pension
Satary  Fees bonus bonuses remuneration contributions Total Total
1) 2 3) {4 5) {6) 2007/2008 200872007
Governor
R Burrows 512 512 483
Deputy Governor
G Magan 164 164 128
Executive Directors
8 A Boucher 550 137 398 265 167 1,457 *1015
é D Crowley 589 194 404 435 (103) 1,519 *1,133
& D Donovan 6§25 250 452 491 {114) 1,704 * 1,248
>
8 B J Goggin 1,155 323 841 1,026 372} 2,972 3,998
J O'Donovan 525 173 350 400 18 1,466 1,581
Non—Executive Duwrectors
D Ditger 115 115 94
P Haran 122 122 104
0 Holt 102 102 48
R Hynes * (apponted 17 July 2007) +82 82
J Kennedy * (appointed 17 July 2007} +94 o4
0 McCourt 128 128 115
a H A McSharry * fappanted 17 July 2007} 2] 69
5 G Marland * (retired 17 July 2007) 38 38 98
g T Moran * (retired 17 Juy 2007) 33 39 94
=
(% T Neil 17 17 100
= Totals 4,120 900 1,077 2,445 2,616 {464} 10,694 10,237
o
&
ug_ Ex gratia payments pald to former Directors / dependants 440 424
* Fmom date of appointment or to date of retirement as a Director as indicated
+ Inchkides foes paid in raspect of services as Directors of subsidiary companies (R Hynes €18 000, J Kennedy £34,000}
Notes.
(1) The Govemor and Deputy Govermor, as Non-Executive Gfficers of the Bank, are not paid Court fees but are remynarated by way of non-pensionable salary.
(2) Fees are paid only to Non Executive Directors, a basic fee of €84,000 per annumm applies, subject to review annually. Additiona! fees are paki to Committee chalrmen, the
Senior Independent Director and for Commuitee rnetbership
(@ Payments under the performancs bonus schams, are hnked fo individual performance and overall Group performance versus pre-determined targets for the financial year
Under the rufes of the perfarmance refated bonus scheme, 25% of any boenus awarded is deferrad unti tha ful completion of the Strategic Transformation Programme
1 March 2003 or earfier As the Strategic Transtarmabon Prograrmns has been successily compiated it March 2008 no efement of the 2007 / 2068 bonus awand has been
deferred for payment.
fus (&) This represents the refeasa of deferred bonuses eamed in previous years, together with acerued interest, following completion of the Strategic Transformation Programme
g which achieved annushised savings of €145 mitlion
«©
= (5) Executives whose contractual pension promise would exceed the persions 'cap’ introduced in the Finance Act 2006 have elected for the option of a taxabla cash allowance in
!5 beu of pensicn foregone
E The figures shown also include car iiowance, the benefit of any loans at staf rates and the vatue of awards urder the Employee Stock Issue Scheme
o @& I the case of B J Goggm, T Crowlsy and [ Donovan thelr pension accrual Is now capped at the ncreass in thresholds set out in the Finance Act each year, Bnd as a result, a
2 clawback of previously funded benefits anses on an apnual basls
Q
(O] Aft pension amounts at (5) and {6) have been determmed by Watson Wyatt, the Group’s actuary, and appraved by the Group Remuneration Comtittee,
R
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Audited

Stock options held by Directors and Secretary

(a) Executive stock options
Options to subscnbe for ordinary stock in the Bank granted and exercised dunng the year ended 31 March 2008 are set out in the table below

R Boucher

Total
D Crawley

Tatal

D Donovan

Total
B J Goggin

Total

J O'Denovan

Totat
Secretary
J Chtford

Total

Report & Accounts

Data of
grant

8 Dec 2002
26 Jul 2004
21 Jun 2005
4 Jut 2006
12 Jun 2007

13 Jul 1999
21 May 2004
24 Jun 2002
18 Jun 2003
26 Jul 2004
21 Jun 2005
4 Jul 2006
12 Jun 2007

24 Jun 2002
18 Jun 2003
26 Jul 2004
21 Jun 2005

4 Jul 2006
12 Jun 2007

13 Jul 1999
21 May 2001
24 Jun 2002
18 Jun 2003

26 Jul 2004
2% Jun 20056

4 Jul 2006

12 Jun 2007

24 Jun 2002
18 Jun 2003
26 Jul 2004
21 Jun 2005

4 Jul 2006
12 Jun 2007

24 Jun 2002
18 Jun 2003
26 Jui 2004
21 Jun 2005

4 Jul 2006
12 Jun 2007

Earfiest
exerclsa
date

B Dec 2008
26 Jul 2007
21 Jun 2008
4 Jul 2002
12 Jun 2010

13 Jul 2002
21 May 2004
24 Jun 2005
18 Jun 2006

26 Jul 2007
21 jun 2008

4 Jul 2009

12 Jun 2010

24 Jun 2005
18 Jun 2006
26 Jul 2007
21 Jun 2008

4 Jul 2009
12 Jun 2010

13 Jul 2002
21 May 2004
24 Jun 2005
18 Jun 2006

26 Jul 2007
21 Jun 2008

4 Juf 2009
12 Jun 2010

24 Jun 2005
18 Jun 2006
26 Jul 2007
21 Jun 2008
4 Jul 2009
12 Jun 2010

24 Jun 2005
18 Jun 2006
28 Jus 2007
21 Jun 2008

4 Jul 2009
12 Jun 2010

Expiry date
B Dec 2013
26 Jul 2014
21 Jun 2015
4 Jul 2018
12 Jun 2017

13 Jul 2009
21 May 2011
24 Jun 2012
18 Jun 2013
26 Jul 2014
21 Jun 2015
4 Jul 2018
12 Jun 2017

24 Jun 2012
18 Jun 2013
26 Jul 2014
21 Jun 2015

4 Jut 2016
12 Jun 2017

13 Jul 2009
21 May 2011
24 Jun 2012
18 Jun 2013
26 Jul 2014
2% Jun 2045
4 Jul 2016
12 Jun 2017

24 Jun 2012
18 Jun 2013
26 Jul 2014
21 Jun 2015

4 Jul 2016
12 Jun 2017

24 Jun 2012
18 Jun 2013
26 Jul 2014
21 Jun 2015
4 Jul 2016
12 Jun 2017

Exerclse
prica
€

1054
1076
1285
14 00
1545

8493
1105
12 50
1077
1076
12 85
1400
1545

1250
1077
10716
1285
14 00
15 45

893
1105
12.50
1077
1076
1285
14 00
1545

12 50
1077
1076
12 85
14 00
15 45

1250
1077
1076
1285
14 00
15 45

—

Remuneration Report
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T
Options at 2
1 April 2007 Market prico
or date of atexercise  Optlons at
appointment  Granted (n Exarcised wn date 31 March
of later year yoar € 2008
20,000 20,000 1065
26,000 26,000
23,000 23,000
30,500 30,500
33,950 3,950
99,500 33,950 20,000 113,450
20,000 20,000 1006
25,000 25,000
25,000 25,000
50,000 50,000
35,000 35,000
32,500 32,500
30,500 30,500
33,850 33,950
218,000 33,950 20,000 231,850
20,000 30,000
50,000 50,000
35,000 35,000
32,500 32,500
30,500 30,500
33,950 33,950 m
178,000 33,950 211,950 %
20,000 20,000 1330 &
25,000 265,000 1330 __q:}
25,000 25,000 =
50,000 50,000 g
92,000 92,000 Z
77,500 77,500
78,500 78,500
74,750 74,750
368,000 74,750 45,000 397,750
25,000 25,000
50,000 50,000
35,000 35,000
32,500 32,500
30 500 30,500 g)
33,950 33,950 2
173,000 33,850 206,950 ‘T:’
10,000 10,000 S"
20,000 20,000 3
21 500 21,500 '%
13,000 13,000 -
18,700 18,700
13,950 13,950
83,200 13,950 97.350
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Remuneration Report Audited

No cther Directors have been granted options to subscnbe for units of ordinary stock of the Bank or of other Group entities The
performance condition attached to the grant of stock options made n July 2004, under the 2004 Executive Stock Option: Scheme, was mel
in July 2007 and the options became capable of exercise from that date

The market pnce of ordinary stock at 31 March 2008 was €90 42 (31 March 2007 €16 15)

(b) Sharesave Schems options 2000

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme offered in 2000, options were granted to all eligible Group employees, who elected to paricipate,
on 28 February 2000 at an oplion price of €5 40 per unit aof ordinary stock (This price was set at a discount of 20% of the then market

price as permitted by the Rules} The options held under this scheme by the Directors and Secratary are set out below Under the terms of
the 2000 Sharesave offer, participants could save for three, five or seven years The three year scheme matured in May 2003, the five year
scheme matured in May 2005 and the seven year scheme matured in May 2007

Sharesave Market value at Market vatue
options granted date at date of Sharesave
at 28 February of grant Options Dato of exercise optigns hetd at
Name 2000 € exercised 1 € 3t March 2008
Directors
B J Goggin 4,261 607 4,281 2 May 2007 16 45

(c) Sharesave Scheme ophions 2003

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme offered in 2003, options were granted to alk ehgible Group employees, who elected to participate,
on 15 December 2003 at an option prce of €7 B4 in Ireland and €8 37 n the UK, per unit of ordinary stock This price was set ata discount
of 25% of the then markel pnce as permitted by the Rules i Irefand and at a discourit of 20% of the then market price permitied by

the Rules n the UK The options held under thrs scheme oy the Directors and Secretary are set out below Under the terms of the 2003
Sharesave offer, parhicipants could save for three or five years The three year scheme matured in February 2007 and the five year scheme

will mature in February 2009

Sharesave Market valug at Market value
options granted date at date of Sharesave
at 15 December of grant Options Date of exercise options held at
Name 2003 € exercised ® i € 31 March 2003
Directors
J O'Donevan 2,653 10 60 2,653

{d} Sharesave Scheme options 2006

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme offered in 2006, options were granted to alf eigible Group employees, who elected to participate,
on 22 December 2006 at an option prce of €12 28 In Ireland and €13 08 n the UK, per unit of ordinary stock This price was setata
discount of 25% of the then market price as permitted by the Rules n lreland and at & discount of 20% of the then market price permitted
by the Fules i the UK The options heid under this scheme by the Directors and Secretary are set out below Under the terms of the 2006

Sharesave offer, participants could save for three years

Sharesave Market vaiue at

options granted date Sharesave

at 22 Dacember of grant options held at
Name 2006 € 31 March 2008
Directors
B J Goggin 301 1733 301
R Boucher a1 1733 3ot
Secretary
J Clifford 3 17 33 3

Report & Accounts




Audited Remuneration Report

{e) Sharesave Scheme options 2007

Under the terms of the Sharesave Scheme offered in 2007, options were granted to all eligible Group employees, who elected 1o participate,
on 24 December 2007 at an option prce of €6 968 in Ireland and €7 43 in the UK, per untt of ordinary stock This price was set at a discount
of 25% of the then market price as permitted by the Rules in lreland and at a discount of 20% of the then market price permitted by the
Rules in the UK The optrons held under this scheme by the Directors and Secratary are set out below Under the terms of the 2007
Sharesave offer, participants could save for three years

MBIASY SSaUISNg

Shatesave
optiohs granted Market value at Sharesave
at 24 December date of grant options held at
Name 2007 € 31 March 2008
Directors:
B J Goggin 531 101 531
D Crowley 574 AU RN 574

w2

{f} Long Term incentive Plan (LTIP)

Condtitional awards of units of ordinary stock are made to Group Senior Executives annually since 2004 under the terms of the LTIP These
awards do not vest in the Executives unless demanding performance criteria are achiaved (see descnption of LTIP i note 39 on page 150}
Pror to the intreduction of the LTIP 1n 2004, condrtional awards of units of ordinary stock were made under the Long Term Performance
Stock Plan (LTPSP) The performance conditions attached to the award of condional units of stock, made in July 2004, under the

LTIF, wera met in July 2007 and 40 25% of awards granted under the scheme vested in participants (29 82% vested 1n the Group Chief
Executive} The percentage vesting levels were established in line with the rules of the plan The conditional awards of units of ordinary stock
made to date to the Executive Directors and the Group Secretary are as follows

o
&
@
pin]
W]
]
O
(o]

No of shares Potential
conditionally Cenditionally interest in
held at 1 April dod in Vested in tha Retained in Lapsed nthe shares at 31 Original
Date of award 2007 the yoar* yoar schemeg ™ year March 2008 maturity date Maturity date **
R Boucher 26 Jui 2004 18,500 7,446 11,054 26 Jul 2007
21 Jun 2005 16,000 16,000 21 Jun 2008
4 Jul 2008 30,500 30,500 4 Jul 2009
12 Jun 2007 33,950 33,950 12 Jun 2010 m
Total 65,000 33,950 7,446 11,054 0,450 5
D Crowley 13 Jut 1899 6,158 7,687 13 Jul 2002 13 Jul 2008 g
25 May 2000 13,079 18,348  25May 2003 25 May 2010 o
21 May 2001 9,496 11,868 21 May 2004 21 May 2011 g
24 Jun 2002 7,070 8837  24Jun2005  24.Jun2012 %
26 Jut 2004 35,000 14,088 20912 26 Jul 2007 g.
21 Jun 2005 32,500 32,500 21 Jun 2008
4 Jul 2006 30,500 30,500 4 Jul 2009
12 Jun 2007 33,950 33,950 12 4un 2010
Total 98,000 33,950 14,088 35,803 20,912 141,701
D Donovan 13 Jul 1989 7,544 8,430 18 Jul 2002 13 Jul 2009
25 May 2000 11,494 14,387 25 May2003 25 May 2010
21 May 2001 7,067 8833 21 May2004 21 May 2014
24 Jun 2002 4714 5892 24 Jun2005 24 Jun 2012
26 Jul 2004 35,000 14,088 20,012 28 Jul 2007 Q
21 Jun 2005 32,500 32,500 21 Jun 2008 @
4 Jut 2008 30,500 3,500 4 Jul 2009 8
12 Jun 2007 33,850 33,850 12 Jun 2010 g:.
Total 98,000 33,950 14,088 30,819 20,912 135,472 g
S

L
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5
é {f) LTIP (continued)
72}
&
ik
% No of shares Potential
5 conditionally Conditionally Interest in
jai} heldat1 awardedin Vestedinthe Retained In Lapsed inthe sharesat 31 Origiral Maturity
Date of award Aprd 2007 the year* year schemo ** year March 2008 maturity date date **
B J Goggin 13 Jui 1998 9,221 11,526 13 Jul 2002 13 Jul 2009
25 May 2000 16,249 20,311 25 May 2003 25 May 2010
21 May 2001 10,378 12,973 21 May2004 21 May 2011
24 Jun 2002 8,258 10,322 24 Jun 2005 24 Jun 2012
26 Jul 2004 139,000 41,450 97,550 26 Jui 2007
21 Juh 2005 116,500 116,500 21 Jun 2068
4 Jul 2006 117,850 117,850 4 Jul 2009
12 Jun 2007 112,100 112,100 12 Jun 2010
Total 373,350 112,100 41,4580 44,107 97,550 401,582
g\ J O'Donovan 24 Jun 2002 8,034 7,542 24 Jun2005 24 Jun 2012
g 26 .Jul 2004 35,000 14,088 20,912 26 Jut 2007
e
ﬂ>) 21 Jun 2005 32,600 32,500 21 Jun 2008
O
(O] 4 Jul 2006 30,500 30,500 4 Jul 2009
12 Jun 2007 33,850 33,950 12 Jun 2010
Total 98,000 33,950 14,088 6,034 20,912 104,492
Secretary
J Chiford 13 Jul 1998 7.648 9,559 13 Jul 2002 13 Jul 2008
25 May 2000 12,271 15,339 25 May 2003 25 May 2010
21 May 2001 5,764 7,204 21 May2004 21 May 2011
24 Jun 2002 3,422 4,277 24Jun 2005 24 Jun 2012
26 Jul 2004 15,000 6,038 8,062 26 Jul 2007
21 Jun 2005 9,500 8,500 2t Jun 2008
.,C@ 4 Jul 2008 18,700 18,700 4 Jul 2009
g 12 Jun 2007 9,600 8,600 12 Jun 2010
% Totzl 43,200 9,600 6,038 29,105 8,962 74,173
%
T *  Market price at date of award €15 45
8 Only applies to awards made under the LTPSP Miimum of 20% of the vested stock must be retained for two years from matunty of eward After the two year retention period
8 an adchtional gward of 20% is made f the award is retained for an acdibonal 5 years a further award of 30% is made.
s As performance conditions relating to awards mads under the 2003 LTPSP were not met, details of these awards pave not been included as alf awards lapsed m 2006
[
a
5]
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=
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Audited

Directors’ pension entitlements

Set out below are details of the pension benefits earned by the Directors dunng the year ended 31 March 2008

Remuneration Report

(e} Accrued pension

{a) Additional pension {b) Increase / decrease entitlement at
earned in the yeaé In transfer valu: 31 March 200:

Executive Directors
R Boucher 19,854 265,901 156,802
D Crowley 2,347 17,571 273,575
D Donovan 2,326 44,345 271,192
B J Goggin 5,634 87,575 656,672
J O'Doncvan 10,624 142,815 221,57

Column (a) above 15 the ncrease in pension built up dunng the pened Increases are after adjustment for nflabon and compnse allowance
for addiional pensionable service, increases in pensionable earnings and any agreed adjustment in the indmdual's pension accrual
Column (b) 15 the additonal capital value, less each Director's contnbutions, of column (@) which could anse If the pension were to be
transferred to another pension plan on the Director leaving the Group and is calculated using factors supplied by the actuary in accoardance
with actuanal guidance notes ASP PEN 2, and s based on pension benafits becoming payable at normal retirement date, age 60

Column {c) 15 ihe aggregate pension entillement payable a1 normal retrement age based on each Director's pensionable service with the

Group at 31 March 2008

Report & Accounts
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Remuneration Report

8
é Directors’ interests in stock
@
@ In addition 1o theyr nterests in the erdinary stock through therr holding of stock options and the conditional awards of stock under the LTPSP
@ and LTIP as set aut above, the interests of the Directors and Secretary in office at 31 March 2008, and of therr spouses and rmnor children,
3
ai) in the stocks issued by the Bank are set out below
Units of €0 64 of ordinary stock
As at 31 March 2008 As at 1 April 2007
beneficial beneficial
DIRECTORS
R Boucher 30,312 1,923
R Burrows 324,219 100,443
D Crowley 128,415 93,187
D Diiger 2,998 2,998
D Donovan 140,377 99,721
g B.J Goggin 600,260 427,327
L P Haran 2,407 2,407
<
5 D Haolt 10,284 3,03t
> .
(% A Hynes * 25,000 11,600
J Kenhedy 3,062 3,000*
D McCourt 50,674 25,674
H A McShamy 7,604 5,000
G Magan 70,000 1,898
T Nesh 94,300 ©4,300
J O'Denovan 95,511 76,044
SECRETARY
J Clifford 135,399 127,945
as at date of appointment
o + heild s Amercan Depository Recerpts (ADR'S} Orie ADR squates 1o four urits of ordipary stock.
€
[t
@©
g There have been no changes i the stockholdings of the above Drrectors and Secretary between 31 March 2008 and 20 May 2008, except
= n the case of R Burows whose helding mcreased by 3,868 units of ordinary stock ansing from an nherttance
%)
g Apart from the interasts set out above and i the previous section, the Dreciors and Secretary and ther spouses and minor chiidren have no
% other nterests in the stock of the Bank or its Group undertakings at 31 March 2008
o
[
End of information that forms an integral part of the audited financial statements
Changes in the Directorate durnng the year
Non-Executive
Executive Director Directors and Officers
Number at 31 March 2007 5 4
Changes dunng year
- C Marland (retired 17 July 2007)
(=3 T Moran (retired 17 July 2007}
© + R Hynes {appomted 17 July 2007)
& +J Kennedy (appointad 17 July 2007)
é +H A McSharry (appointed 17 July 2007}
C
_T; Number at 31 March 2008 5 10
&;3 Average number during 2007 / 2008 (2006 / 2007) 505 9709
Q)
[
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Corporate Governance Statement

The Court of Directors i1s accountable to stockholders for ihe overall
direction and control of the Group It 18 cormmidted to high standards
of governance designed to achieve enhanced stockholder value,
sustained business growth and protection of the interests of
cuslorners, employees and other stakeholders while promoting the
hughest standards of integrity, transparency and accountability

A key objective of our governance framework 18 to ensure
comphance with appicable legal and regulatory requirements and
with best governance practice as set out in “The Combined Code
on Corporate Governance” (the Combined Code) The Directors
beleve that the Group has dehvered on these ohjectives and expect
it to continue to do 8o Speciically, the Group has comphed with
the provisions of the Combined Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2008

The Court of Directors

At 31 March 2008, the Court consisted of 15 Directors, ten of whom
were Non Executve Drrectors It held seven scheduled and two
additional unscheduled meetings dunng 2007 / 2008 Agendas and
papers are creulated pnor to each meeting to provide the Directors
with relevant information to enable them to fully discharge therr
duties

The Court has the following schedule of matters specifically reserved

for ts decision

* the determination of strategy and company values,

* overseeny the management of the business including control
systemns and risk management,

* approving matenal acquisitions, disposals and investment
decisions,

* gverseeng corporate governance and succession planning,

*  guaraniges emtered into by the Group, other than in the normat
course of business, and

+ changes n Group pension schemes

Management s responsible for the execution of agreed strategy and
for alt operational matters

Detais of the number of scheduled meetings of the Cowrt and its
Commuttzes and attendance by ndeadual Directors are et out on
page 62 The terms of reference of the Committees are reviewed
annually by the relevant Committees and by the Court and are
avallable on the Bank’s websie (www bankofireland com) or by
request to the Group Secretary The Nen Executive Directors meet
at least once annuaily writhout the Executive Directors present

The Bank has put in place Directors and Officers habiity insurance

In respect of legal actions against ts Directors, this insurance cover
does not extend to fraudulent or dishonest behaviour

Report & Accounts

Governor and Group Chief Executive

The respective roles of the Governar, who 1s Charman of the Gaurt,
and the Group Chief Executve, are set out in writing and have been
agreed by the Court

The Governor oversees the operation and effectiveness of the Court
of Directors He also ensures that there 1s effective communication
with stockholders and promotes comphance with the highaest
standards of corporate governance

The Group Chief Executive 13 responsible for execution of agreed
strategy and holds delegated authority from the Court for the day 1o
day management of the business

Dawd Diger was appointed Senior independent Director on 12
September 2007 n succession to Carolne Marland

Board Balance and Independence

Each of the Non Executive Directors bnngs considerable business
and / or professional expenenca, independent challenge and

rigour 10 the deliberations of the Court of Directors The Court has
determined that each current Non Executve Director 1s independent
withimy the meaning of the Combined Code and the New York Stock
Exchange (NYSE’} Corporate Gavernance Standards

Appointments to the Court

The Group Nomination and Governance Committee 18 chaired by the
Govemor and ts gomposrtion 15 fully compliant with the Combined
Code The Committee 15 responsible for leading the process for
succession to the postion of Group Chief Executive and for Court and
key subsidiary Board non-executve appointments and renewals

The Committee regularly reviews succession plans for the Court

in the context of the Group’s strategy and the skills, knowledge

and expenence of current Directors and makes appropriate
recemmendations to the Court Pnor to any appointment, the
Comitee approves a job specification, assesses the ime involved
and identriies the skills and expenence required for the role External
search consulfants were ulhised n the process leadng to the
appointments of Rose Hynes, Jerome Kennedy and Heather Ann
bcSharmy as Non Executive Directors

All newly appownted Directors are provded with a comprehbensive
letter of appointment detailing their responsibities as Directors, the
terms of ther appontments and the expected tune commitment for
the rola A copy of the standard terms and conditions of appomtment
of Non Executive Directors can be inspacted dunng normnal business
hours by contacting the Group Secretary

In addtion the Committee, with the support of the Group Secretary,
mantors developments in corporate governance, assesses the
impbecations for the Group and adwses the Court accordingly It 1s
also charged with overseeing the Group's Corporate Responsibility
Programme

Bankoflreland &) |

MaBInaY SSauEng

Gy
2
=
[43)
=
=
i)
=
[¥]
]

SjuswielelS JBloLEBUI

UOIBULIOJLY [BIBLOL)

59



Business Review

o
o
c
G
—
c
2
3]

[

Financial Statermnents

General information

€0

Corporate Governance Statement

Information and Professional Development

On appointment, all Non Executive Directars recewve
comprehensive brefing documents designed to farmiliarise them
with the Group's operations, management and governance
structures, these nclude the functioning of the Court and the role
of the key Committees (n addition, new Directors undenake an
induction programme, ncluding vists to Group businesses and
briefings with senior management The Groug will facihtate any
mayor stockholder who wishes to meat with a new Non Executve
Dractor On an ongoing basis bnefings appropnate to the business
of the Group are provided to all Non Executive Directors

The Directors have accass fo the advice and services of the
Group Secretary, who is responsible for adviang the Court on

all governance issues and for ensunng that the Directors are
provided with relevant nformation on & timely basis 1o enable them
to consider ssues for decision and to discharge thew oversight
respensiilties The Drectors also have eccess 10 the advice of
the Group Legal Adwiser and to Independent professianal adwvice,
at the Group's expense, if and when required Gommittees of

the Court have simiar access and are provided with sufficient
resources to undertake therr duties

Performance Evaluation

Each Committee of the Court reviews its performance and
discusses #s conclusions with the Court The Court evaluates

its own performance and that of ndmdua! Directors annually

and also reviews the conclusions of the Group Nominahion and
Governance Committee in relation to the performance of indvidual
Directors standing for election or re etection The objectve of all
these evaluations 18 to identify any scope for improvement and, In
the case of the ndmdual evaluations, to determine whether each
Director continues to contribute effectvely and to demonstrate
commitment to the role

The Court and ndmvdual Director performance evaluation process
nvolves completion of questionnarres by Directors, one 1o one
discussions between the Governor and each Director and
presentation of the overall findings to the Court for its consideration
and action as required

As part of the averall performance evaluation process, the Non
Executive Directors, led by the Senior Independent Director, meet
annually without the Governor present to appraise the Governor's
performance, having taken the views of the Executive Directors
and Group Secretary nto account They may atso meet on such
other occasions as are deemed appropnate

| Bankof Ireland (&)

Election / Re Election of Directors

All Directors appointed between Annual General Courts are
submtted o stockholders for election at the first Annual General
Court followang their appointment and for re election at intervals of
not more than three years thereafter

Blographical detas of all Directors are provided in this Report
and Accounts, and the reasons why the Court believes that an
ndmdual should be elected or re elected are provided in the
Governor's Letter to Stockholders to enahle stockholders to take
an informed decision on ther election or re glection

At the forthcoming Annual General Court, Richard Burrows, David
Dilger, George Magan, Declan McCourt and John O'Dongvan are
standing for re electon Following formal performance evaluation,
the Caurt has confirmed that the performance of each of these
Directors 15 effective and recammends that stockholders vote in
favour of their re election

All Non Executive Drectors are apponted for an intial three year
term wath an expectation of a further term of three years assuming
sansfactory performance Where a Director ss invited to remain
beyond six years, his / her performance 18 subject to ngorous
review Should any Non Executive Drectors be invited to serve
langer than rine years they are subject to annual re election by
stockholders

Remuneration

The Remuneration Report, incorporating the responsibiiies of the
Group Remuneration Committee, 1s set out on pages 5010 58

A statement confirming that remureration consulfants apponted
by the Group Remuneration Commities nave no other connechions
with the Group 18 avadable on the Group’s websie (www
bankofiretand corm) ar by request to tha Group Secretary The
Group's long term incentive schemes have been approved by
stockholders

Accountabitity and Audit

The Report of the Directors, ncluding & going concern statement,
15 on pages 46 and 47

internal Controls

The Dwectors acknowledge their overall responsibiiity for the
Group's systems of nterna! controt and for reviewing thewr
effectveness Such systems are designed to contref, rather than
alminate, the risk oOf faiure to achieve business objectives and can
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance aganst matenal
misstatement or logss Such losses could anse because of the
nature of the Group's busmess n undertaking a wide range of
financial services that inherently mvolve varying degrees of rsk

Report & Accounts



The Court has cbligations as a non US registrant under US
secunties laws and regulatons, including the requirement to
comply, where applicable, with the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002
(SOx) The Group has put n place & comprehense framewark to
document and test its internal control structures and procedures in
ine with the requirements of Saction 404 of SOx, which requires,
amang other things, certfication by management regarding the
effectivenass of nternal contrals aver financial reporting

The Group's overall control systems include

* aclearly defined organisation structure with defined
authonty ks and reporting mechanisms 1o higher levels
of management and to the Court, which support the
mantenance of a strong control envsonment,

+  establshment of Committees with responsibility for core
polcy areas,

* acomprehensive set of policies and procedures relatng to
financral controls, asset and habity management (ncluding
interest, currency and hquidity risk), operational nsk and
credit nsk management (further detals are given n the Risk
Management section on pages 27 to 43

+ & Code of Conduct settmg out the standards of behawour
expected of all drrectors, officers and employess This covers
arrangemenis, should the need anse, for the mdependant
investigation and follow up of any concerns raised by staff
regarding matiers of financiat reporting or other matters,

+ monthly reporting by business units which enables progress
aganst business objectives to be monitored, frends 1o be
evaluated and vanances to be acted upen, and

+  asemi annual detaded operational nsk assessment by il
Group businesses with reports to Dmsional Management on
the effectrveness of iher nsk management systems Heads of
business units are required to certfy the accuracy of the self
assessment and the results ansing from {his process are noted
by the Group Risk Policy Committes

These controls, which are embedded within the operations of the
Group, are reviewad by Group Internal Audit In these reviews,
emphasis 15 focused on araas of greater nsk as identified by nsk
analysis

The Directors confirm that the Court, through its Commitiees,

has reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's systems of

mternal control for the year ended 21 March 2008 This review
involved consideration of the reports of intemal audit and the nsk
management functions, (nchiding operational nsk, regulatory nsk
and complance) and estabkshing that appropnate actien 1s being
taken by management o address issues highlighted In addibion,
the reports of the external auditors, which contain details of

any matenal control ssues Wentfied ansing from ther work, arae
reviewed by the Group Audit Commitiee After each meeting of the
Group Audd Gommittee, its Chawnan reports {o the Court on alf
significant issues considered by the Committee, and the minutes of
meetings are ciroulated to all members of the Gourt

Report & Accounts
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Foflowing the end of the financial year, the Court reviewed the
Group Audit Committes's conclusions in relation to the Group's
systemns of internal control and the appropnateness of tha
structures i place to manage and monitor them This process
nvolved a confirmation that a system of internal control according
with the Financial Reporting Council Rewised Guidance on Internal
Controf was in place throughout the financeal year and up to the
date of the signing of these financial statements |t also nvolved
an assessment of the ongoing process for the identification,
evaluation and management of ndeadual neks and of the role of
the vanous Committees and Group risk management functions
and the extert to which vanous signvficant chatlenges facing the
Group are understood and are beng addressed

Audit Commuttee and Auditors

The Group Audit Commitiee compnses only ndependent Non

Executive Directors and rather than designating any indwidual as

having recent and relevant financial expenence, the Court has

determined that the Commuttee memibers' collective skills enable

# 10 discharge s responsipbties The Group Audit Committee

assists the Court n fulfilling its respensibilities relating to

= the mtegnty of the financial statements and any related formal
announcements,

* overseeing tha relatonship between the Group and 1ts external
audtors,

+  the review of the Group’s internal corrols, inchuding financal
controls,

+ assessment of the effectiveness of the internal audit,
complance and nsk management funchons,

* therevew of the internal and external audst plans and
subsequent findings,

+*  the sefechon of accounting policies,

= the review of the auditors’ report,

* chigations under appicable faws and regulations ncluding
S0Ox, and

= the review of the effeciveness of the services prowded by the
external auditors and other related matters

The Committee has conducted a formal evaluation of the
effectiveness of the external audit process and has reported

on s findings to the Court It conducts an annual review of the
procedures and processes by which non audit services are
provided by the external auditors in order o ensure, among

other things, that auditor objectnity and independence are not
comprorrused In this regard, a key procedural control requires
that any engagement of the exdernal audiors to prowide non audit
services must be pre approved by the Commitiee, which also
receves reports on the performance of such services

Bank of Ireland €&2) |
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Corporate Governance Statement

z
@
E Attendance at scheduled meetings durning the year ended 31 March 2008
0
(GDJ Group
c Nomination & Group
2 Group Audit Governance  Remuneratioh
[aa] Name Gourt Commitiee Committee Committes
A B A e A B A B
Rictue Bougher 7 7
Richard Burrows 7 7 3 3 5 5
Des Crowley 7 7
David Dilger 7 7 3 3 3 3 4 4 Retired from Audit Commitiee 11 September
2007 Appointed to Remuneration
Committee and Nomnations and
Govemance Committee 11 September 2007
Denis Donovan 7 7
Brian J Goggin 7 7
) Paul Haran 7 7 2 2 3 3 Appointed to the Audit Committes 11
g September 2007
® Denris Holt 7 7 5 ] 5 5
o
g Aose Hynes 5 5 2 2 Elocted to Gourt 17 July 2007 Appoeinted to
8 Audit Commitiee 11 September 2007
Jerome Kennedy 5 5 2 2 Elected to Court 17 July 2007 Appointed to
Audit Gommittes 11 September 2067
Declan McCourt T 6 5 5 1 1 Retired from Remuneration Committes 11
September 2007
Heather Ann McSharry 5 8 1 1 Etected to Court 17 July 2007 Appointed to
Nominations and Governance Committea 11
September 2007
George Magan 7 6 3 3 5 4
Cargline Marland 2 2 1 1 Retired 17 July 2007
Tom Moran 2 2 3 3 1 1 Aetired 17 July 2067
Terry Neill 7 7 5 5 & 5
g John O'Donovan 7 7
o}
£
o
o
% Column A indicates the nurnber of scheduled meetings held dunng the penod the Director was a member of the Court and / or the
o Committee and was eligivle to attend Column B indicates the number of scheduled meetings attended
c
g
il Thers were additional unscheduled meetings of the Court and its Committees, between scheduled meetings, as the need arose
fost
o
o
€
2
=
©
s
@
o
)
&
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Court Sub Committees

Group Risk Pohcy Commyttee — The Group Risk Policy
Committee 13 respansible for recommending high level nsk policy
and risk strategy to the Court for its approval and for overseeing
management of nsk within approved policy parameters

Group Investment Comimnittee — The Group Investment
Commitiee s responsible for evaluating all matenal investment /
dvestment / caprtal expenditure proposals, determiming those
within its authorty and recommending those outside ds authority
to the Court for its approval it is also responsible for monitorng
the :mplementation of such propasals and ensuring satistactory
delvery of expected benefits

Membership of the above committees at 31 March 2008 was
as follows

Group Risk Policy Committee
Ronan Murphy (Chairman)
Richie Boucher *

John Chiford

Des Crowley *

Dervs Donovan *

Bnan J Goggn *

Vincent Mubvey

John O'Donovan *

Mick Sweeney

Group Investment Committee
Brian J Goggn * (Chairmany
Rxhie Boucher *

Chnsting Brennan

John Chfford

Des Crowley *

Oervis Donovan *

Lewis Love

Ronan Murphy

John O'Donovan *

Tony Wyatt

* Court member

Repaort & Accounts
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Relations with Stockholders

Communicaticn with stockholders is gven high prienty The Group
seeks to provide through its Annual Report a balanced, clear
assessment of the Group’s performance and prospects It alse
uses its infernet website, (www bankofireland com} to provide
investors with the full text of the Annual and Intenm reports,

the Form 26 F {which 15 filed annually with the US Securities

and Exchange Commussion) and with copies of presentations

to analysts and investors as they are made, so that information

15 avalable to all stockholders Annual and intenm results
presentations are webcast Iive so that all stockholders can recave
the same informaticn at the same time Additionally, the “Investor
Informaticn® section on the Group's website 1s updated with all
Stock Exchange releases as they are made by the Group The
outcome of every general meeting of the Group, ncludng detaled
voling resulls, 1s pubhshed on the Group's website

The Group has an actve and well developed Investor Relations
programme, which involves reguiar meetngs by the Group Chief
Exacutive, members of his senior execuinve team and the Head

of Group Investor Relations with the Group's principal Insitutional
stockhelders and with financial analysts and brokers The
Directors are kept informed on investor issues through regular
reports from Group Investor Relations on the outcome of these
meetings, 1 additicn, the Governor meets with major stockholders
independently of the executive tearn All meetings with
stockholders are conducted in such a way so as to ensure that
price sensitive mformation s not selectively dvulged The Governor
alsc gathers the views of insttutional stockholders, through the
Group’s brokers and adwsers, and presents feedback to the

Court In acdition, all Directors are encouraged and faciitated to
hear the views of Investors and analysts at first hand through theyr
participation in conference calls following major announcements
The Court concluded that the objective of keeping Directors fully
informed on stockholder views was achieved in 2007 / 2008

The Governor and / or the Senior Independent Diractor are
avallable to stockholders if they have concerns that cannot be
resolved through the normal channels and o s Group polcy to
faciitate any major stockholder who wishes to discuss any ssue
with the Gavernor or the Seror Independent Dwactor

The Graup's policy 1s to make constructive use of the Annual
General Court and all stockholders are encouraged to participate
Stockholders are given the opportunty to ask questons at the
Annual General Court The notice of the Annual General Court 1s
ssued at least 20 woerking days before the mesting n line with
the requirements of the Combined Code At the Annu:al General
Court separate resclutions are proposed on each substanially
separate 1ssue and voting was conducted electronically by way
of poll at the Annual General Court in July 2007 The votes for,
aganst and abstaning, on each resolution, including proxies, were
mrediately provided to those in attendance and were posted
on the Group's website following the meeting 1t 1s usual for all
Directors to attend the Annual Genera) Court and 1o be avaitable

to meet stockholders and for the charmen of the Group Audit
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Corporate Governance Statement

Committee, the Group Normination and Governance Committee
and the Group Remuneration Committee to be available to answer
relevant questions In addidion a ‘Help Desk’ faciity 18 svalable at
the meeting to assist stockholders to resolve any specfic quenes
they may have

Business Review

New York Stock Exchange (NYSE)
Corporate Governance Requirements

All non US companies fisted on the NYSE arg required 0 disclose
any significant differences between thewr corporate governance
practices and the requirements of the NYSE applicable to US
companies

As an tnsh incorporated company iisted on the Insh and London
Stock Exchanges and with an ADR listing in New York, the Group's
carporate governance practices reflect Insh company law, the
Listing Rules of the Insh Stock Exchange and the UK Listing
Authonty and the Combined Code The Group believes there

are no significant differences between s corporate governance
practices and the requrements of the NYSE
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Corporate Responsibility

Corporate Responsibibhity

In Bank of Ireland Groug, we recogrise the importance of long
term commitment, cooperation, trust and integnty in the conduct
of sustainable relationsnips with groups of people who have

a key stakeholding interest in our business [n addition to our
stockholders these include custorners, employees, investors,
regulators and business partners We also recognise a wider
responsibility towards the communities n which we do business,
and the emvaronment in which we operate

Since formalising our approach to Corporate Responsibiity in
2003, the Group has receved considerable independen exiernal
recognition of its programme including ongoing membership of
the FTSE4Good index  a histing of companies that manage theyr
social, ethical and environmental Impacts

In thus, our fifth successve Corporate Respensibiity report, we
gwe an nsight into some of the actaty taking place throughaout
the Group that demonstrates our commitrment to the prnciples of
being a good corporate ctzen

Playing our part in the Community
Give Together

In last year's report, we gave detalls about Give Together our new
commurity invesiment mitiative launched in 2007 Give Together
15 based on the strong ethos of volunteaning by our empioyees
and facilitates those who wish to volunteer ther ime and support
causes that are important to them Through Give Together, Bank
of Ireland provides one day of pad leave to each employee each
year to volunteer their tme to a cause of their choice We have
also put in place an annual fund to allow the Bank to contribute to
employee fundraising and support therr volunteenng

Since the launch of Give Together in March 2007, employees
have iruly embraced the opportunity to reach out to ther
communiies and support the causes they hold dear In the last
year over 1,800 employees have participated in fundrasing
actvities and a further 1,000 have used their volunteer days - the
equivalent of almost 4 years of pad work hours given to ther
communities and chosen chanties in tme  In addiion, the funds
raised by employees with the help of Give Together, has amounted
to €4 5 mifhon

70 date over 80O chantable / cormmunity groups have benefited

from Give Together across a wide range of different causes in the
different markets in which the Group operates

Repaort & Accounts

Breakdown by Cause

Animal Care 3%
Arts 1%
Children's Needs 15%
Community 12%
Education 9%
Homelessness 3%
Hosprtal & Hospica 15%
Nature Presenvation 1%
Scentific Research 9%
Scouts Git Guides 2%
Special QOlympics 3%
Sport 8%
Support Groups 1%
Third World Support 8%

We also provide extensive information about volunteerng and
promote voluntesrng opporturities on our employes miranet,
which we receve from the community and chantable sector This
faciltates the partcipation of employees who mught not have a
perscnal favounte charity or those who are looking to make a
caninbution

“It's the whole promotion of the scheme that
anyone with a slight inchination to volunteer
might be more encouraged  there i1s a structure
there, clearly highlighting the bank’s support of
votunteenng in the commumty”

Extract of employee research 2007, conducted to ascertaun views
on Gwve Together

Miltenniur Schotars Trust

Thus 1s the penultmate year of scholarships being awarded oy
the Bank of Ireland Milennium Scholars Trust Since it started in
2004, almaost 500 scholarships have been granted to students
who otherwise may not have been able to fulfill ther potential or
personal goals by attending therd level education For the final
two years of the Trust, the number of scholarships on offer has
been ncreased to 100 each year so that even more students

will be able to participate Commenting on the importance of the
Millennium Scholarg Trust at the Annual Awards Event, the former
Insh Miruster For Education & Science, Mary Hanafin TD stressed
the importance of widening access to third level education

and highlighted the positrve impact that increased irvestment,
resources and partnerships has had on higher education

Withywood

Bank of Irefand UK continues with ts support of an Academy in
Withywood — a disadvantaged area 0 South Bnstol In addition
{0 the initial donation of £200,000, a voluntary scheme was
launched far local Temple Cuay staff i Brstol to help students to
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Corporate Responsibiity

November 2007 This award cama on the back of a €10
million nvestment and the successful launch of a range of new
services ntroduced on 365oniine com n mid October 2067

design and delver the 'Preparation for Working Life' part of therr
syllabus Since Octaber 2007, three new work streams have been
developed to help students including CV Witing and Interview
Skilis Classes are taught and delivered by 65 Bank stalf in 24

Business Review
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sessions and 6 visits to the Bank's office n Bnstol These provide
the opporiunty for students to work with a vanety of adults in &
formal manner, helpng to improve social skills and to introduce
workang Ife outside the school gates

Playing our part in the marketpiace

« In the Group's Retail Division in Trefand, the Bank launched a
Polsh Business Proposition in June 2007 n response 10 the
merease in Polish customers setting up businesses here In
Ireland Qur highly competitve Business Start Up package was
developed to help these customers with ther speciic needs
Since June, over 400 Polsh Business customers have opened
Business accourits with us We have received significant interest
from the Branch network, with many branches hosting ther own
Polish evenings A key part of our Polish Business custormer
proposition 1s our dedicated support pane! which has established
links with schctors and accountants throughout ireland who have
Polish speaking personnel This development builds on previous
itiatves to address the financial needs of the growing migrant
population in freland

Im our Life Assurance Business in Ireland, we announced our

.

o The Bank alse won three awards, Including “Custormer
Service Team of the Year”, at the Customer Service Awards
Ireland i June 2007 Bank of treland Life’s Individual Pensions
New Business Team won both the Financial Services
Customer Service Team of the Year and the grand prx
Overall Customer Service Team of the Year 2007, whie the
Gustomer Programme Service Excellence Team were winners
of Customer Service Traning Team of the Year award — for
the second year n a row The Cuatomer Service Awards are
significant in that they recognise exceflence not only across
financial services, but all Insh industry sectors

o Bristol & West Mortgages achieved a five star rating in the
prestigious Financial Adwviser Service Awards These awards
are the UK industry’s most prestigious and are considered to
be the benchmark for service standards Only a handful of
companies recenve a five star rating and this 1s the first tme
that we have achieved this level of recognition  The award is
voted for by thousands of independent Financial Advisers and
mortgage brokers and 18 ndependentty audited

Playing our part in the workplace

participation i the Hepatiis C insurance scheme operated s The results of our sixth Group Employee Engagement survey :
by the Insh Health Service Executive (HSE} The Hepatitis C 1ssued m March 2008 These results act as a catalyst for
Insurance Scheme was launched to make Ife insurance cover qualty team discussions about different aspects of employee
avalable at normai costs to those who acquired Hepatitis C and / engagement and what it means to work for the Bank of lreland
5’50 or HIV through State provided infected blood or bleod products Group We have seen a consistent improvement in engagernent
GEJ Many of those affected would have previously been unable to lavels across the organisation and have expenenced the posttive
% secure life assurance, making it mpossible to provide protection impact t can have In suppering the growth of our business
b for tharr families or even take out a mortgage Participation in Equally important 1s the differerice it can have in making Bank of
@ the HSE scheme (s an important soctal ntiative and the process irefand a great place to work Ouwr ratio of employee engagement
8 developed will serve those eligivie it a sensitive and efficient across the Group 18 at best practice level when hanchmarked
E manner aganst external ndustry The chart below fustrates the Group's
w percentila rankang when benchmarked showing a consistent fovel
» The Group recenved considerable external accreditation in of improvement year on year
2007, reflecting Its posiioning In the vanous markets in whch it
operates as folows
Bol Group Engagamant
P Percentile Ranking
o Bank of Irefand has been hsted among the Top 100 World
Banks n The Banker magazine's Top 1,000 World Banks 70
2007 ranking In therr 38th annual global Iisting, and their & 55th
most gomprehensive survey yet, Bank of Ireland achieved an 2 :2 25t '
c international ranking of 80 Published in the July 2007 1ssus of g a0 +— A3t
% The Banker, the Top 1,000 World Banks s a comprehensve & 50 o
= Iisting of the world's leading commercial banks As well as 10
B assesang the strength of banks worldwide, the Top 1.000 a r - T T T
% listing takes nto account a number of performance indicators, 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
g such as rea) profits growth and return on assets The ranking Is Year
5 also proken down by country and region « At Bank of Ireland Group we are committed to encouraging
o) and supporting the education, traning and developrment of our
o 38%0nhne com was named Best Online Banking service at employees in ine with therr role business requrements and
1he Insh Imernet Association’s {IIA) Net Visionary Awards in individua! development needs Through our Learningzone service
66 i Bank of treland @ Repont & Accounts



we deliver a wide range of learning and educational programmes
wia nstructor led courses, technology based solutions and
support for 3rd level education programmes Dunng 2007/08, In
excess of 22,000 student days of classrogm training and 25,000
& learning programmes were completed across the Group

Bank of Irefand Private Banking recently commenced rts second
wealth academy programme aimed at providing an excellent
foundation for participants who wish to pursue careers in wealth
management The Bank of Ireland Prvate Banking Academy
was established in 2006 for the purpose of accelerating tha
development of exceptional client relationship managers via

an intensive, full time, six month traning programme aimed at
enhancing thewr skills, knowledge and experbse and posttioring
tnem to become ther clients’ princigle investment adwsor The
programme was created in consultation with Professor John
Murray, Chair in Business Studies, Trnity College Dubfin and 15
modelied on a business school concept

As part of our objectve to ensure our employess share with
stockhaolders in the continuing success of the business, we
launched our fourth Save As You Earn (SAYE) scheme, which
was taken up by 56% of eligible employees SAYE allows
employees to acquire Bank stock at an attractively discounted
price and provides a convenient way to save The Group

also continues to operate s annual Staff Stock Issue / Stock
Incentive Plan Both schemes offer employees an opportunity
to avail of a free stock award based on the performance of the
Group over the financial year Both the SAYE and Staff Stock
issue / Stock Incentive Plan schemes operated in the Group are
Revenue approved schemes which means that both schemes
offer employees the maximum tax efficiency permitted by the
Revenue Commussioners and HM Revenue and Customs
respactvely

Playing our part in the environment

* Bank of Ireland contmues to enjoy a umque poestion n the fast
growing cartxon markets, as the sole domestic bank with a
transactional capability in the European Union Emissions Trading
Schema (EUETS} Dunng the year we have developed a sutte
of nsk management products for Phase I! of the Scheme We
have also extended our actmbes in the carbon market into
the UK and US with a number of indiatives Our position as
treasury specialists in this area has prompted governmental and
professional bodies to actively seek our input with regard to the
future direction of the market and the formulation of polcy

Report & Accounts
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* Dunng the past year, Bank of ireland UK launched a new
mortgage that will offset the carbon footpnnt of the average
home The Carbon Offset Mortgage s designed to appeal to the
increasing number of consurmers who would ke to do therr b
for the environment It works by offsetting 100% of an average
home's carbon emissions for each year of the prometionat perod
of the foan The Giraffe Garbon Qffset mortgage works by retring
carbon credits from the EUETS This approach conforms to the
UK Government's proposed Code of Best Practice for Carbon
Cffsetting Giraffe receved this year's “Your Money’ magazine's
Edsor's Special Award This award 15 given to an organisation
that has delvered significant value to the consumer n & manner
that falls cutside the standard judging critena of the other
product categones “Your Money' felt that the product was a
very real effort to nvolve home owners in talang an actve part n
helping the environment and giving the consurner an option to
make a positive contribution to cutting carbon emissions

-

As a founding member of Business in the Gommunny Ireland,
we actively participate at afl relevant opportunities During the
year we have taken part in s “Shanng and Learning Working
Group” aimed at reducing the carbon foolprint The purpose of
the group s {o provide an opperturity for companies tc share
information and best practice around the 1ssue of cimate change
and to explore challenges and opportunities facing companies
inthis area The companies in this group recagnise the role that
they can play In addressing the environmental challenges facing
soclety today, working towards improving best practice in this
area and measunng therr carben footprint with the intertion of
reducing it

In summary, 2007/08 marked further progress in the Group's
Comporate Responsibility Programme  We look forward to reporting
contnued progress in the coming year
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Financial Statements

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responstole for prepanng the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with Internatonat Financial
Reporting Standards {FRS} and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Gommittes (IFRIC) nterpretations adopted by the European
Union {EU and with those parts of the Companies Acts, 1963 to 2006 applcabls to companies reporting under IFRS and Ariicle 4 of the
IAS Regutation and the European Communties (Credit Institutions Accounts) Regulations, 1992 In prepanng these financial staternents, the
directors have also elected to comply with IFRS 1ssued by the international Accounting Standards Board (ASB}

insh company law requires the Directors to prepare financia! statements for sach financial year which give a true and far view of the state of
affars of the Bank and the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for that pariod In prepamng these financial statements, the Drirectors
are required to

« select suttable accounting pohcies and then apply them consistently,

» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

* siate that the financial statements comply with [FRS adopied by the EU and IFRS 1ssued by the IASB, and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless 1 18 inappropriate to presume that the Group will continue n business

The Directors are rasponsible for keeping proper books of account that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial postion
of the Bank and enable them to ensure that the financial statements are prepared n accordance with [FRS and IFRIC interpretations
endorsed by the European Unien and with those parts of the Companies Acts, 1963 to 2006 appficable to companies reporting undar
IFRS and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and the European Communiies {Credt Institutions  Accounts) Reguiations, 1992 They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Bank and the Group and hence for taking reascnatie steps for the prevention and detection

of fraud and other wregularties

The Directars are also required by the Transparency ([Directive 2004/1 09/EC) Regulations 2007 and the Transparency Rules of the Insh
Financial Services Regulatory Authonty to ncluda a management report contaning & farr review of the business and a descnption of the

prncipal nsks and uncertainties facing the Group

The Directors are responsible for the mantenance and integrity of the corporate and financial nformation ncluded on the Bark's website
Legisiation i Iretand governing the preparatton and dissernination of financial staternents may differ from legisiatian in other unsdictions

The Directars confirm that, 10 the best of each Drector’s knowledge and belief

* they have complied with the above requirements in prepanng the financial statements,

« the financial statements, prepared In accordance with (FRS as adopted by the European Union and with 1FRS as ssued by the IASE, give
atrue and far view of the assets, habilties, financial pogition of the Group and the Bank and of the profit of the Group, and

« the management report cantaned 1n the Business Review incluctes a farr review of the development and performance of the business and
the posttion of the Bank and Group, together with a descnption of the principal nsks and uncertainties that they face

Y /:W{f %"QA"*\

Brian J Goggin John Clifford

Richard Binrows George Ma
Governor Deputy Govemor Group Chief Executive Secretary
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of the Governor and Company of the Bank of Ireland

We have audited the Group and Bank financial sigtements of the Bank of ireland for the year ended 31 March 2008 which compnse the
Consotdated Income Statement, the Gonsolidated and the Bank Balance Sheets, the Consoldated and the Bank Statement of Recognised
Income and Expense, the Consolidated and Bank Cash Flow Statements, and the related notes These financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

Respective responsibiiities of directors and auditors
The directors' responsibilities for preparing the Report & Accounts, In accordance with apphcable Insh faw and International Financial
Peporting Standards (JFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, are set out n the Statement of Directors’ Responsibities on page 68

Our responsibility 15 to audd the financial staternents in accardance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) This report, including the oprmian, has been prepared for and only for the members of the Governor
and Comparny of the Bank of Irefand as a body 1n accordance with Section 193 of the Companses Act, 1990 and for no other purpose We
do not, in giving this opimon, accept or assume responstilty for any other purpose ar to any other persan ta whom thus report s shown ar
mto whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Grroup financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union We report to you our opinion as to whether the Bank financial statements give a true and far view, n accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Union as apphed in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Acts 1963 to 2006 We also report
te you whether the financial statements have been propery prepared in accordance with Insh statute compnsing the Companies Acts, 1963
10 2006, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and the European Communites (Credit institutions  Accounts) Regulations, 1992 We state whether

we have obtained all the information and explanations we consider necessary for the purposes of our audtt, and whether the Bank's balance
sheet s in agreement with the bocks of account

We also report to you our cpinien as to

+ whether the Bank has kept proper books of account,

* whether proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have been receved from branches of the Bank not visited by us,

« whether the directors’ report 1s consistent with the financial statements, and

* whether at the balance sheet date there exsted a financial stuation which may require the Bank to convene an extracrdinary general Court
of the Bank, such a financial stuation may exist f the net assels of the Bank, as stated in the Bank balance sheet, are not more than half
of it called up share capral

We also report to you if, in our opirion, any information specified by law or the Listing Rules of the Insh Stock Exchange regarding directors’
remuneration and directors’ transactions 1s not disclosed and, where practicable, nclude such mfcrmation in our report

We review whether the Corporate Governance Staterment reflects the Bank’s compliance with the nine prowvisions of the Combined Cods
2006 specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Insh Stock Exchange, and we report f it does not We are not required to consider
whether the Directors' statements on nternal control cover all nsks and controls, or form an opinion on the sffectiveness of the Group's
corporale governance procedures or its risk and control procedures

We read the other information contained in the Report & Aceounis and consider whether it 1s consistent with the audited financial
statements The other nformaticn comprses only Section 1 Business Review and Section 2 Governance (Report of the Directors,
Remuneration Report and Corporate Governance Statement) We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any
apparent risstatemeants or matenal inconsistencies with the financial statements Our responatiities do not extend o any oiher nfermation

Basis of audit opinion

We condugcted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (LK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board An
audit ncludes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements it also inciudes
an assessment of the signficant estimates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's and Bank's creumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtan all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order 1o provide
us with sufficient ewdence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstaternent, whether caused

by fraud or other imegulanty or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the everall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial staternents

Report & Accounts Bank of Ireland @ I
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Opinion

In our opinion

* the Group's financial statements give a true and farr view, 1n accordance with IFRSs as adgdted by the European Umicn, of the stale of the
Group's affars as at 31 March 2008 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then X

* the Bank’s financial stalements gve a true and fair view, 1n accordance with IFRSs as gdopted by the Europaan Urion as applied m
accordance with the provisions of the Companles Acts 1963 to 2008, of the state gf the Bank’s affawrs as at 31 March 2008 and cash

flows for the year then ended,
* the Group's and Bank's finanoal statements have been properly prepared n rdance with the Gompanies Acts, 1963 to 2008, Article 4
of the IAS Regulation and the European Communidies {Credit Institutions nts} Regulations, 1992

Wa have obtaned all the information and explanations which we conader Aecessary for the purposes of our audit Iri our opinion proper
books of account have been kept by the Bank and proper returns ad te for the purpose of our audit have been receved from branches
not visted by us The Bank’s balance sheet s n agreement with the of account

in our apmion the mformatian gven n the dirsctars' report 13 eongistent with the financial statements

The net assets of the Bank, as stated in the Bank balance sfifet are more than half of the amaount of fs called up share caprtal and, i aur
opnion, on that basis there did not exist at 31 March 2008/ financial stuation which under Section 40 (1) of the Companies (Amendment)
Act, 1983 would require the convening of an extraordingfy general Court of the Bank

Separate opinion in telation to IFRSs
As explained in the Basis of Preparation on page/78 the Group 1n addition to complyng with its legal obhgation ta camply with IFRSs as
adopted by the Europsan Union, has also conpflied with the IFRSs as issued by the Intemational Agcounting Standards Board

In our apiren the Group's financial staterpénts grve a true and falr view, in accordance with IFRSs, of the state of the Group's affaws as at 31
March 2008 and ds profit and cash flow for the year then ended

PnecewaterhouseCooper!
Chartered Accauntants’and Registered Auditors
Dubiin

20 May 2008

| Bank ofreland (&3 Report & Accourits
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Independent Auditors Report

Opinion

In our opinion

» the Group's financial statements give a true and far view, In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the state of the
Group's affars as at 31 March 2008 and of s profit and cash flows for the year then ended,

= the Bank's financial statements gve a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Urion as applied in
accordance with the prowisions of the Companies Acts 1963 to 2008, of the state of the Bank's affairs as at 31 March 2008 and cash
flows for the year then ended,

» the Group's and Bank’s financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Compares Acts, 1963 to 2006, Article 4
of the JAS Regulation and the European Communities (Credit Insteutions  Accounts) Regulations, 1992

We have obtaned all the nformation and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our audit In our opinion proper
bocks of account have been kept by the Bank and proper returns adequate for the purpose of our audit have been received from branches
not wisted by us The Bank's balance sheet 1s in agreement with the books of account

I our opinion the infermation given in the directors’ report is consistent with the financial statements

The net assets of the Bank, as stated in the Bank batance sheet are more than half of the amount of tts called up share caprtal and, in our
opimion, on that basis there did not exist at 31 March 2008 a financral situation which under Section 40 (1) of the Companies {Amendment)
Act, 1983 would raquire the convening of an extracrdinary general Court of the Bank

Separate apmion in relation to IFRSs
As explamned in the Basss of Preparatton on page 78, the Group in addition 1o complying with its legal ebligation to comply with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union, has also complied with the IFRSs as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board

In our opinion the Group’s financial statements give a true and farr view, in accordance with IFRSs, of the state of the Group's affairs as at 31
March 2008 and of its profit and cash flows for the year then ended

Q
' V:th-iﬂl\q-u-b(m?—o)

PncewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Dubhn

20 May 2008
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for the year ended 31 March 2008 -
z
Year ended Year ended 8
31 March 2003 31 March 2007 @
Notes €m £m o
m
interest mcome 2 10,397 8,137 (%
Interest expense 3 .15 (5,380) =
Net Interest income 3,263 2,757
Net Insurance premium Income 4 1,940 2,188
Fees and commissions Income 5 816 898
Fees and commissions expense {150) (160}
Net trading expense [ 246) (70 ‘"""
Life assurance investment income and {losses) / gains 7 {826) 247
Other operating income 8 238 199
Total cperating income 5,035 6059
Insurance contract kabilties and claims pad k] {798) (2.213)
Total operating income, net of insurance claims 4,237 3,846 o
ad
Total operating expenses 10 2,157} (2,159) 2
(0]
Operating profit before impairment losses 2,080 1,687 S
5]
Impairment losses 2t (232} (103) 8
Operating profit 1,848 1,584 @
Share of profit of associated undertakings and joint ventures (after tax) 45 44
Profit on disposal of buslness activities i1 243
Profit on dispasal of property 27 39 a7
Profit before taxation 1,833 1,958
Taxation 13 (229) (306}
Profit for the pericd 1,704 1,652
Attributable to minority interests 5 1
Attributable to stockholders 1,699 1,651
Profit for the period 1,704 1,652 ;_Jl'l
g
Q,
[
Eamings per unit of €0 64 ordinary stock (cent) 14 1746¢ i722¢ &
&
3
Diuted earmings per unit of €0 64 ordnary stock {cent) 14 r 1739¢ 710e e
5’*
f£ ' Jegas
\J\A-—-.--\r—-, %
Richard Burrows George Magai Brian J Goggin / John Ciifford
Govemnor Deputy Govermor Group Chief Executive Secretary
(@]
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Consolidated balance sheset
as at 31 March 2008

3 March 2008 31 March 2007
Notes £m €m
ASSETS
Cash and balances at central banks 484 362
ltems in the course of collection from other banks 683 811
Central government and other eigible bills 10 1
Trading seturities 15 119 520
Dervatlve financial instruments 18 4,568 2,849
Other financial assets at falr value through profit or loss 17 10,909 12,707
Loans and advances to banks 18 9,409 7,210
Available for sale financial assets 19 29,307 33,449
Loans and advances to customers 20 135,738 125,048
Interest in assocuated undertakings 22 28 26
Interest In joint ventures 23 70 73
Intangible assets  goodwill 25 293 347
Intangible assets other 25 570 586
Investment property 26 151 1,142
Property, plant and equipment 27 593 £85
Defarred tax assets 38 145 25
Cther assets 28 2,754 2,883
Retiroment benefit asset 37 11
Assets classified as hald for sale 29 232 a3
Total assets 197,434 188,813
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Deposits by banks 30 14,130 20,405
Customer accounts 31 86,234 72,277
ltems in the course of iransmissten to other banks 254 243
Derlvative financial instruments 16 4,322 2,935
Liahilities ta customers under investment contracts 5,662 6,736
Debt secunties In issue 32 60,842 £9,523
insurance contract liablltes 54 7,140 7,190
Other llabitihes 34 3,535 3,883
Provisions 35 47 87
Deferred tax habilties a8 i3 278
Retirement benefit sbligations 37 o7 580
Subordinated liabiitles 33 7,808 7,808
Total liabilities 186,912 182,055
Enjusty
Capital stack 39 664 663
Stock pretmium account 40 775 771
Retained earnings 4 5,670 4,672
Other reserves  « 42 (400) 905
Own shares heyd for the benefit of ife assurance potcyholders {225) [287)
Stockholders’ equity 8,484 8,724
Minority interests 43 38 34
Total equity 6,622 6,758
Total equity and liabilities 197,434 188,613
Iy
L) e}
M [
‘J g——— ’ d /
Richard Burrows George Magan Brian J Goggin lohn Clifford
Governor Deputy Governor Group Chief Executive Secretary
I Bank of Iretand @ Report & Accounts



Bank balance sheet
as at 31 March 2008 o
z
31 March 2008 31 March 2007 3
Notes £m £m &
ASSETS Z
=
Cash and balances at central banks 462 347 g
ltems in the course of callection from other banks 683 811
Trading securities 15 119 520
Dervative fiancial Instruments 18 4,653 3,557
Other financial assets at far value through profit or loss 17 59
Loans and advances to banks 18 32,052 59,770 e
Available for sale financlal assets 19 27,053 29,700
Loans and advances to customers 20 114,873 71,434
Shares in Group undertakings 24 1,262 2,041
Intangible assels other 25 418 399
Property, plant and equipment 27 481 522 ®
Deferred tax assets 36 104 2
Other assets 28 1,008 1,227 g
Retirernent benefit assat 37 11 §
Assets clasuified as held for sale 29 144 78 @
Total assets 183472 170,408
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Deposits by banks 30 30,860 46,679
Customer accounts N 40,110 66,367
Iltems in the course of transmission to other banks 254 243
Derivative financial instrurments 18 4,322 3,397
Debt securitles in issue 32 45,778 41,797
Other liabilihes 34 2,229 2,465 I
Provisions s 48 50 ':‘33
Deferred tax llabilties 36 41 %)i
Retirement benefit obligations a7 707 464 0
Subordinated llabilthes 33 5,380 4,934 ?Q'
Total fiahllities 179,686 166,437 §
Equrty @
Capital stock 39 664 663
Stock premium account 40 775 771
Retained earnings 41 2,817 2,027
Qther reserves 42 470) 508
Stockholders’ equity 3,786 3,969
Total equity and liabilites 183,472 170408
Q\ I fegor. |8
) //l/ M S
T N g . 0]
&
Richard Burrows George Magan Brian J Goggin John Ciifford =
Govemor Deputy Governor Group Chief Executive Secretary g‘
a2
5
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for the year ended 31 March 2008
&
B
T Group Bank
£ Year ended Year ended Year anded Year ended
b3 31 March 2008 31 March 2007 31 March 2008 31 March 2007
< €m €m £m €m
S
m Met changs In property revaluation reserve 29 18 23 7
Net change in cash flow hedge reserve {247 135 {247 135
Net change in available for sale reserve (386} (49) (249) 51
Nat change 1n pension fund obligations 209} 180 {185 176
Foreign exchange transtation (losses) / gains (712} 49 {420) 15
Amount recognised in equity {1,583) 343 {1,134} 282
Profit for the period 1,704 1,852 1,385 1,558
Total recognlsed income for the year 121 1,995 251 1,840
Attributable 10
Equity holdets of the parent 118 1,994 251 1,840
& Minortty interests 5 1
& 121 1,995 251 1,840
o
55}
3
L] g
& { [&f(”
/{ /i [l
Lofly [V W PN .
Richard Burrows George Magai Brlan J Goggin (, ohn Chiford
Govemnor Deputy Governor Group Chief Executive Secretary
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Cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March 2008 @
@
Group Bank §
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended %
31 March 2008 31 March 2007 31 March 2008 31 March 2007 [}
£m £m £m £m S
Cash flows from operating activities =
Profit befors taxation 1,933 1,958 982 B19
Share of profit of associated undertakings and jont ventures (46) 44y
Profit on disposal of business activities {243)
Profit on disposal of property (39} 87 (33) (88)
Deprecation and amortisation 137 151 109 12
Nagt change in prepayments and interest receivable (12) (202) (53) {228)
Net change in aceruals and interest payable 114 323 40 145
Provislans for impairment 232 103 148 103
Loans and advances written off ngt of recoveries 29 {34 {20} 24)
Revaluation of investment property 149 (96)
Profit on disposal of investment property (6} o
Q
E:Etu ::Eue;s: n:)sn subordinated liabilities and cther 450 381 283 182 Cfg
Profit on disposal of avallable for sale financial assets (34) {10) (33) 9) §
Charge for share based payments 13 12 13 12 2
Amortisation of premiums and discounts (94) 52} {100} (51}
Amortisation of debt Issue expenses 18 5 3 2
Cash flows from operating activities before changes
In operating assets and liabilities 2,792 2,069 1,339 985
Net change In deposits by banks (6,024) (11,810} (15,509) 1,998
Net change in customer accounts 16,333 9,988 28,328 8,655
Net change In loans and advances to customers {20,309) (22,736} (49,902) {15,163)
Met change in loans and advances to banks 857 3,035 30,754 4173}
Net change in non investment debt and equity securities 400 (68) 400 18
Net change in derivative financial Instruments (558) 621 (463) 718 et
Net change in assets at falr value through profit or loss 1,830 2.317) (59) 15 é
Net change in ltemns in tha course of collection 114 83 14 a3 Q.
Net change In debt securities in issue 3,061 22,624 4,656 10,326 ?m-
Net change in insurance contract liabilities (50) 1,998 53,’_\:'_
Net change i other assets 64 191 146 29 2
et change in liabiities to custamers under @
Investment contracts (1.074) 8 b7y
Nst change in other llabilities (384) (313) {107 (44)
Effect of exchange translation and other adjustments 2,979 1 2,939 626
Met cash Inflow from operating assets and liabihties 239 1.383 1,207 3,051
Met cash Inflow from operating activitles before taxation 3,031 3,452 2,548 4,036
Taxation pajd {276) 272} {167 (125)
Net cash inflow from cperating activities 2,755 3,180 2,379 3911
Investing activitles (section a) 1,278 {5,792) 1,439 {5,991)
Financing activities (section b} {466) 709 (296) 874
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 3,568 {1903) 3,522 (1,208)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 4,297 6,162 3,954 5122
Effect of exchange translation adjustments 218 3a (203) 38
Closing cash and cash equivalents {note 48) 7,647 4,207 7,273 3,954

LONBULIGN, [218USE
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Cash flow statemeant

Gash flow statement {continued)

Group Bank
Year ended Year ended Yoar ended Year endad
31 March 2008 31 March 2007 21 March 2008 31 March 2007
€m £€m £m €m
(a) Investing activities
Met change In financial investments 2,006 (5,865) 463 6,937}
Additions to tangible fixed assets 54 57 1) (44)
Disposal of tangible fixed assets 10 257 5 247
Additions to intangible assets (o8) (109) 53 81)
Purchase of investment property (529 (263)
Disposal of investrment property 1" 30
Purchase of assets hetd for sale 211 {10 (124} Ll
Disposal of assets held for sale 113 104
Dlsposal of business activities 323
Cash balances of subsidiary disposed of (122)
Dividends received from jont ventures 34 68
Mot change In interest In associated undertakings (] @
Deferred consideration pawd (19
(ncrease In nvestment In subsidianes (58)
Diwvidend receved from Group undertakings 585 892
Acqulsition of joint venture 2y
Cash flows from investing activities 1,279 (5,792} 1,439 (5,991}
{b} Financing activities
Rerssus of treasury stock and (ssue of ardinary stock 194 133 178 110
Issue of new subordinated llaklities 439 1,479 439 1,479
Reduction in subordinated tiabllities {22)
Interest paid on subordinated liabllities {450} (361) (271 (161)
Equity dividends paid ©11) (524) (628) 539
Dividends on other equity interests {14 {15} (14) 15
Dwidends paid to minory interests 2 3
Cash flows from financing activites 1488) 709 298) 874
I{/ q
L1
ey
o }@7{71)\
LAAN T
Richard Burrows George Magan Brian J Goggin [ /John Clifferd
Governor Deputy Govemor Group Chief Execulive Secretary
( BankofIreland (&) Report & Actounts
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ndex @ arcountng policirs
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Group accounting polcies

Accounting policies

The following are Bank of treland Group's principal accounting pohcies

Business Review

Financial statements

The financial statements compnse the Consolidated Income Statement, the Conschdated and Bank Balance Sheets, the Consclidated and
Bank Staternent of Recogrised Income and Expense and the Consoldated and Bank Cash Flow Staternent together with the notes to the
Consohdated Financial Statements The notes nchude
« information contaned in the Business Review on pages 31 to 38 and pages 41 to 42 thal are cross referenced to the financial
statements These disclosures are required under [AS 1 'Presentaton of Financial Statements’ relating to the management of caprtal
and IFAS 7 ‘Financial Instruments  Disclosures' relating to the nature and managerment of rsks These disclosures form an integral
part of the firancial staternents and are indicated as such on the relevant pages
« information cortained n the remuneration report as set out on pages 50 to 68 that 1s described as being audited

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (FRS) and
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commitiee (FRIC} nterpretations as adopted by the European Union {EU) and with those
parts of the Companies Act, 1963 to 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS with the European Commursties (Credit Institutions
Accounts) Regulations, 1982 and with the Asset Covered Secunties Act, 2001 to 2007 The EU adopted version of [AS 39 currently relaxes
some of the hedge accounting rules in 1AS 39 ‘Financial instruments - Recognition and Measurement' The Group has not avaled of this,
hence these financial statements comply with both IFRS as adopted by the BU and IFRS as issued by the IASB The parent company financial
statemenis have been prepared In accordance with {FRS as issued by the IASB and adopted by the EU, and n accordance with Irish statute

Governance

Tha financial statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention as mockfied to include the fair valuation of certain financial
instruments and Yand and buldings

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with [FRS requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and hiabifites at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounis of revenues and expenses dunng the
reporting period Although these estimnates are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount, event ar actions, actual results
ultimately may differ from those estimates A description of the entical estimates and judgements s set out on page 94 and 95

Dunng the year the Transparency (Directive 2004/109/EC) Regulations 2007 {signed Into Insh law on 13 June 2007) became effective for
the Group This directive aims to enhance fransparency 1 EU capital markets 1n order to mprove investor protection and market efficiency
It sets out reporting requirements In respect of intenm and annual reports and provides time tines for the publication of management
statements during the year This directive does not have a significant impact on the Group financial statements
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Adoption of new accounting standards

The foliowing standards / amendments to standards have been adopted by the Group from 1 April 2007

« IFRS7 Fnancal Instruments Disclosures (effective for penods beginming on or after 1 January 2007} This standard requirres
more detaled qualtative and quanitative disclosures about exposures to nsks arising from the Group's financial mstruments As a
disclosure standard, the applcation of the standard has not had any imoact on the amaounts recognised in the financial statements
The IERS 7 disclosures are set out in these financial statements and n the risk management report on pages 31 10 38 IFRS 7
supercedes IAS 30 'Disclosures in the Financial Statements of Banks and Similar Insttutions’ and the disclosure requirements
praviously contained i1 1AS 32 'Financial Instruments Presentation’

»  Amendment to IAS 1 - Capital Disclosures {effective for periods beginring on or after 1 January 2007} This amendment requires
disclosure, both quantiatve and qualtative, of an entty's objectves, policies and processes for managing capital These disclosures
are set out in these financial statements and in the Risk Management section on page 411042

«  IFRIC @ - Reassessment of Embedded Dervatves (effectve for periods begmning on or after 1 June 2006) This interpretation
requires an entity fo assess whether a contract containg an ermbedded denvatwve at the date an entity first becomes party to the
contract and prohibis reassessment unless there 1s a change 1o the contract that sigruficantly moddies the cash flows The adeption
of this nferpretation has not had an Impact on the Group

General Information
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Group accounting pohcies

¢ |FRIC 10 - Intersm Financial Repariing and Impairment {effective for penods beginning on or after 1 November 2006) This
interpretation clarifies that any mpairment Josses on goodwill and equity instruments recognised in an intenm period may not be
reversed In subsequent intenm penods This curently does not have an impact on the Group

+ IFRIC 11 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions {effective for penods beginning on or after 1 March 2007} This interpretation
deals with accounting for share based payments in the standalone financial statements of the parent and group companies, hence i
has no impact on the consohldaled financial statements

Details of those IFRS pronouncements which will be relevant to the Group but which were not effective at 31 March 2008 and which have
not yet been adoptad by the Group are set out on pages 94 and 95

Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes n presentation in the current year Comparatives for the
prior year have been reclassified to amend the income statement presentation in respect of the profit on disposal of business actvities and
the profit on sale of property This has impacted total operating ncome but profit before / after tax 15 unchanged

Group accounts

{1} Subsmidanes
Subsidianies, which are those comparnies and other entities {including Special Purpose Entities (SPE's) in which the Group, directly or

indirectly, has power to govern the financial and operating policies, generally accompartying a shareholding of more than half of ts voting
nghts, are consoldated

Assets, liabitres and results of all group undertakings have been included in the Group financial staternents on the basis of financial
statements made up to the end of the financtal year

The existence and effect of potential voting nghts that are presently exercisable or presently convertible are considered when assessmg
whether the Group controfs another entity

Subsidianes are consolidated from the date on which control 1s transferred to the Group and are no longer consalidated from the date
that control ceases The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidianes The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the far value of the assets given up, equity instruments 1ssued or liabilties undertaken at the date of acquisition, plus
costs directly attrbutable to the acquisiticn The excess of the cost of acquisrion over the fair valug of the Group's share of the identifiable
net assets of the subsidiary acquired 1s recorded as goodwill If the cast of acquistion 18 less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference 1s recognised directly in the income statement (see “Intanghble Assets’ for the accounting policy on
goodwill)

Intercompany transachons, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated Unreatsed losses are
also ebminated unless the fransaction provides evidence of mparrment of the asset transferred Where necessary, accounting policies of
subsidianes have been changed to ensure consistency with the pokcies adopted by the Group

Upon adoption of IFRS, the Group avalled of the exemption not to restate the Group financial statements for any acquisitions or business
combinations that tock place pror to 1 Apnl 2004

{2) Assocates and Joint Ventures

Associates are all entties aver whuch the Group has significant nfluence but not contral, generally accompanying a shareholding of between
20% and 50% of the vating nghts

Jont ventures are contraciual arrangements whereby the Group and ancther party undertake an economic activity that 1s subject to jont
cantrol

Investments n assoctates and jont ventures are accounted for by the equity method of accounting and are inttially recogrised at cost
Under this method, the Group's share of the post acquisition profits or losses of associates and joint ventures 1s recognised in the income
statement, and s share of post acquistion movements in reserves 1s recognised in reserves The cumiutative post acquistion movements
are adjusted against the carmying amount of the investment
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Group accounting policies

When the Group's share of losses in an associate or foint venture equals or exceeds its nterest in the associate or joint venture the Group
does not recogrise further losses unless it has incurred obhgations or made payments on hehalf of the associate or jont venture

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and ts associates or jont ventures are elminated to the extent of the Group's interest
in the associate / jont venture, unreaksed losses are also elmnated unless the transaction provides evidence of animparment of the asset
transferred The Group's investrnent in associates and joint veniures includes goodwill (net of any accumulated mpaimment losses) on
acquisMon

Accounting pohcies of the associate / jomnt venture have been changed where necessary to enaure consistency with the poficies adopted by
the Group

(3} Minonty interests
Transactions with minorties where the Group has control over the entity are accounted for using the *Economic entity modet” This
accounting model requires that any surplus or deficit that anses on any transaction(s) with minonties to dispose of ar to acqure additional

\mterests in the entity are settled through equity

(4) Sscunlsations
Certain Group undertakings have entered into secuntisation transactions i order to finance specific loans and advances to customers

Al financial assets continue to be held on the Group balance sheet, and a liabiity recognised for the proceeds of the funding transaction,

unless
« the nghts to the cash flows have expired or been transferred,
« substantially all the nisks and rewards asscoiated with the financial nstruments have been transferred outside the Group, in which case

the assets ars derecognised in full, or
« asignficant portion, but not all, of the nisks and rewards have been transferred outsile the Group, the asset 18 derecognised entirety f

the transfares has the abiity to sell the financial asset, otharwise the asset continues to ba recognised only to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvernent

Where the above conditions apply to a fully proportonate share of alfl or specifically identfied cash flows, the relevant accounting treatment
ts applied to that proportion of the asset

Foreign currency translation

ltems ncluded in the financial statements of each entity of the Group are measured using the currency of the pnmary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the functional currency} The consolidated financial statements are presented i euro, which s the functicnal
and presentation currency of the parent

Foreign currency transactions are translated into ewro at the exchange rates prevaling at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange
gans and losses resulting from the settiement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets
and llabikhes dencminatad in foreign currencies, are recogrised 1 the ncome staternent, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges and gualifying net Investment hedges Translaton differences on nan monetary tems, such as equitles held at far value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gan o loss Translation differences on non monetary tems such as equities classifled as
avadable for sale are included in the availlabie for sale reserve n equity

The results and financial postion of all the group entites that have a functonal currency different from the presentation currency have been

translated into the presentation currency as follows

« ascets and labdites for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet,

« income and expenses for each ncome staternent are transtated at average exchange rates (unless this average 1s not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevaling on the transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the date of the fransactons), and

« all resulting exchange differences are categonsed as a separate component of equity

The Group availed of the exempton to deem all accumislated balances ansing from translation of foreign subsidianes to be nil on transition
to IFRS on 1 April 2004

Report & Accounts



Group accounting policies

On consclidation, exchange differences ansing from the translation of the net investment in foregn entities and of horrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of such Investments, are taken directly to a separate component of stockhalders' equity When
a foregn operation is sold, such exchange differences are recogmsed in the mcome staterment as part of the gan or loss on disposat

Goodwill and far value adjustments ansing on the acquisttion of a foregn entity are treated as assets and habilities of the fareign entrty and
translated at the closing rate

The prncipal rates of exchange used in the preparation of the financial statements are as follows

31 March 2008 31 March 2007
Average Closing Average Closing
€/USs 14328 15812 12012 13318
€/ Stgk 07116 07858 08783 08798

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised In the Income statement for all nstruments measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method

The effective interest method Is a method of calgulating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financal Iability and of allocating the
interest income or nterest expense over the relevant penod The effective interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expectad ife of the financial Instrument or when appropnats, a shorter penod to the net carrying
amount of the financial agset or habity When calculating the effective nterest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considerng &l
contractual terms of the financial nstrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit losses The calculation
includes all fees and points pard or received between parties 1o the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and all other prermuums or discounts

Once a financial asset or group of simiar financial assets has been written down as a result of an imparment koss, interest ncome 15
recogmised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purposes of measunng the mpament loss

Fees and commission income

Fees and commissions which are not an integral part of the effective mterest rate are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the
service has been prowded Commission and fees ansing from negotiating, or parlicipating in the negotiation of a fransaction for a third
party, such as the acquisiion of loans, shares or othsr secunties or the purchase or sale of busmnesses, are recognised on completion

of the underlying transaction Portfolio and other management adwisory and service fees are recogmised based on the applicable service
contracts usually on a time apportionate basis Asset management feas related to investment funds are recognised rateably over the penod
the service 1s provided  The same prnciple s apphed for wealth management, financial planning and custody senvices that are continuously
proviced over an extended period of trme Loan commidment fees for loans that are hkely to be drawn down, are deferred (togather with
related direct costs) and recogrised as an adjustment to the effective yield on the loan once drawn

Leases

(1) A Group company is the lessee

The total payments made under cperating leases are charged 1o the income siatement on a straight ne basis qver the penod of the lease
When an operating lease 1s terminated before the lease penod has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of
penalty 1s recogrised as an expense in the penod in which tenmimation takes place

teases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the neks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases Finance leases are capitalised at the lease's mception at the lower of the farr value of the feased property and the present value of the
mirumum lease payments
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Group accounting policies

The corresponding rental obkgations, net of finance charges, are ncluded infong tern payables The nterest element of the finance costs s
charged to the Income statement over the lease period s0 as to produce a constant penodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
Iiabiity for each penod

(2) A Group company Is the lessor

When assets are held under a finance lease, the present value of the lease payments s recognised as a recevable The difference between
the gross recenable and the present value of the recewvable s recogrised as unearned finance mcome  Lease income 18 included within net
Interest Income and 1 recognised over the term of the fease reflecting a constant penodic rate of return on the net investment i the lease

Fmancial assets

(1) Classification, Recogrution and Measurement
The Group classifies its financial assets in the followng categones financial assets at far value through profit or loss, loans and recewvables,

held to matunty nvestments, and avalable for sale financial assets Managament determines the classfication of its financial assets at ital
recognition

(@) Financsal assets at far value through profit or loss
Fnancial assets at far value through profit or loss can either ba held for trading, If acquired principatly for the purpose of seling in the short

term, or designated at far valus through profit or loss at inception

A financial agsel may be designated as at far value through profit or loss only when

() 1t elminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognIticn INCONSIStENcy, “an accounting mismatch”, that would otherwise anse
from measuring assets or labilities or recognising the gains and ksses on them on & dlfferent basis, or

() agroup of financlal assets, financial labilties or both 1s managed and its performance 15 evaluated on a farr vaiue basis In accordance

with documented risk management or investment strategy, or
(i) a contract contans ane or more embedded denvatves that signficantly changes the cash flows of the contract and the separation of

the embedded denvatve(s) 1s not prohibited

The principa category of assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are those held by the Group's Ife assurance business, which
are managed on a farr value basis

Purchases and sales of financial assets at farr value through profit or loss ars recognised on trade date — the date on which the Group
commuts to purchase or sell the asset Thereafter they are carned on the balance sheet at far value, with all changes n fair value included in

the Income statement

(o) Loans and recevables
Loans and recenables are non dervative financiai assets wath fixed or deterrminable payments that are not guoted in an active market They

arse when the Group provides money, goods or senvices directly to a debtor with no mtention of trading the recelvable

Loans are recorded at farr value plus transaction costs when cash 1s advanced to the borrowers They are subsequently accounted for at
amortised cost using the effective nterest method

{c) Held to matunty
Held 1o matunty investments are non denvatve financial assets with fixed or determmnable payments and fixed matunties that the Group's

management has the posdive intention and ability 1o hold to maturty Were the Group to sell other than an insignificant amount of held to
maturty assets, the entrre category would be tanted and would need to be reclassified as avallable for sale

Purchases and sales of held to maturty investments are recorded on trade date They are inmialty recognised at farr value plus transaction
costs and are subseguently accounted for at amortised cost using the effective interest method

{d) Available for sale
Avaitablo for sale Investments are those intended to be held for an indefinite pencd of time, which may be sold in response to nesds for

liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices

Report & Acoounts



Group accounting polcies

Purchases and sales of avallable for sale financial assets are recognised on trade date They are intially recogrised at far value plus
transacton costs and subseguently accounted for at farr value with all measurement gains or losses recognised in equity  Interest 1s
calculated using the effective Interest method and s recogrised in the income statement

If an avalable for sale financial asset 1s derecognised or impaired the cumulative gain or loss previously recogrised 1n equity 1s reroved from
equity and included in profit or loss

Dmdends on avalable for sale equity nstruments are recognised in the income statement when the entity's nght to receve payment 1s
established

(2) Derecognition
Financial assets are derecogrised when the nghts to receve cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where the Group has
fransferred substanhally alt nsks and rewards of ownership

{3) Shares in Group Entibes
The Bank's mvestments in its subsidianes are stated at cost less any imparment

Financial habihties

Financial liabisties are nhally recognised at farr value, being therr 18sue proceeds (far value of consideration receved) net of transaction costs
incurred Financial liabilties are subsequently measured at ether amortised cost or farr value through profit or loss For liabiities subsequently
carned at amortised cost, any difference between the proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised In the
income staternent using the effective interest method

Preference shares, which carry a mandatory coupon, are classified as financial labiliies The dwidends on these preference shares are
recognised in the income statement as interest expense using the effective interest method

A habilty may be designated as at farr value through profit or loss only when

) 1t ebminates or signficantly reduces a measurement or recognibon INConsistency, “an accounting mismatch”, that would otherwise anse
from measunng assets or labiities or recognising the gains and losses on them on a different basis, or

(i) a group of financial assets, financiat labilbes or both 1s managed and its performance 1s evaluated on a farr value basis in accordance
with documented risk management or investrnent strategy, or

(i) a contract contams one or more embeddad denvatves that significantly changes the cash flows of the contract and the separation of
the embedded denvatve(s) s not prohibted

The Group designales ceran financial labilties at farr value through profit or loss as set out in note 45 to the financial statements

Financial habities are derecognised when they are extinguished, that 1s when the obligation 1s discharged, cancelled or expires

Valuation of financial mstruments

The Group recognises certan financial instrumnents at far value © the balance sheet Far value 1s the amount for which an asset could be
exchanged or a hability settled between knowledgeabla, willing parties in an arm's length transaction

The far values of financial assets and liabiites traded i active markets are based on current bid and offer prices respectively if an actve
market does not exist, the Group establishes far value using valuation technigues These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
discountsd cash fiew analysis, optien pricing models and other valuation techruques cammonly usaed by market paricipants Where
possible, the Inputs to these rmodels are based on observabla market data Where observable data does not exist, the Group uses
estimates based on the best information avalable
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Group accounting policies

The best evidence of the farr value of a financial Instrument at inkhial recognition 18 the transaction price unless the farr value of that
instrument 1s evidenced by companson with ather observable current market transactions in the same instrument (| @ without medrfication
or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique which primarily uses observabie market inputs When such evidence exists, the mitial
valuation of the nstrument may resuit in the Group recogrusing a profit on inttial recognition In the absence of such evidence, the instrument
15 intally valued at the transaction pnee

Sale and repurchase agreements and lending of secunties

Secunties sold subject to repurchase agresments (repos) are retained on the patance sheet and reciassified as pledged assets when the
transferee has the nght by contract or custom to sell or repledge the collateral, the counterparty tability 1s Included in depoatts by banks or
customer accounts, as appropriate Securties purchased under agresments 10 resell (‘reverse repos’) are treated as coliateralsed loans and
recorded as loans and advances fo banks or customers, as appropriate The difference between sale and repurchase prce 1s treated as
interest and acerued over the Iife of the agreements using the effective inlerest method Secunties lent to counterpariies are also retaned on

ihe balance sheet

Secunities borrowed are not recogrised n the financial statements, unless these are sold to third parties, i which case the purchase and
sale are recorded with the gain of loss included in trading income  The obligation to return them s recorded at far value as a trading habiity

issued debt and equity securities

The classification of instruments as a financial habidity or an equity nstrument s dependent upon the substance of the contractual
arrangement Instruments which carry a contractual obligation to delver cash or another financial asset to another entity are classified as
financial lizbitbes and are presented in other borrowed funds The dvdends on these Instrurnents are recognised in the income statement
as Interest expense Where the Group has discretion In refation to the payments, the instrument 1s classified as equity and the payments are

ncluded as preference dmdends

If the Group purchases its own debt, 111s removed from the balance sheet and the difference between the carrying amount of the habiity and
the consideration paid 1s ncluded n net tracing ncome within the income statement

Denvative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Dervatwes are inthially recogrised at falr value on the date on which the contract 1s entered into and are subsequently remeasured at thew fair
value at each balance shest date All denvatives are carried as assets when their tar value 1s positive and as habiies when their farr value 1

negatve

Certan denvatves embedded in other financial instrurnents ars treated as separate dervatives when their econormic charactenstics and risks
are nat closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract 1s not camed at fair value through profit or loss

Farr value gains or losses on dervatves are normally recognised in the Income statement However where they are designated as hedging
\nstruments, the treatment of the farr value gains and losses depends on the nature of the hedging relationship

The Group designates certan dervatives as either (1) hedges of the farr value of recogrised assets or habdites (fair value hedge), or (2)
hedges of highly probable future cash flows attnibutable to a recognised asset or lrabikty, or a forecasted transaction (cash flow hedge)
Hedge accounting 1s apphed to these denvatives provided certain critena are met The Group documents, at the inception of the transaction,
the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged tems, as well as ts risk management ohjactive and strategy for undertaking
vanous hedge transactions The Group also dacuments tts assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongaing basis, of whether the
dervatives that are used In hedging fransactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in farr values or cash flows of hedged items

(&) Fair value hedge
Changes i the far value of denvatives that are designated and qualfy as farr value hedges are recorded i the income statement, together

with any changes in the far value of the hedged asset or lability that are attributable to the hedged risk
If the critena for hedge accountng cease to be met no further adjustiments are made to the hedged tern for falr value changes atinbutable

10 the hedged nsk. The cumulative adjustrment to the carrying amount of a hedged rtem 1s amortised to profit of loss over the penod 10
matunty usiig the effective Interest method

| Bankof retand (&) Report & Accaunts



Group accounting policies

(b) Cash flow hedge
The effsctive portion of changes in the far value of dervatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised In equity

The gan ar loss relating to the meffectve portion 1s recogrused immediately in the income statement Amounts accumulated i equity are
recycled to the income statement in the penads in which the hedged item affects profit or loss

When a hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the critena for hedge accounting, any cumulatve gamn or
loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and 1s recognised when the forecast transaction is ultmately recogmsed in the income
statement When a forecast transaction 1s no longer expected 1o occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was reporied in equity 1s Immediately
transferred to the ncome statement

(¢} Net nvestment hedge

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for simitarly to cash flow hedges Any gain or loss on the hedging instrument
relating to the effectve portion of the hedge 1s recognised In equity, the gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion Is recognised
immediately n the mcome statement Gans and losses accumulated 1n equity are included in the income statement when the foraign
operation 15 disposed of

Impairment of financial assets

Assets camed at amortised cost

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there 1s objective evidenca that a financral asset or group of financial assets is
mpaired A financial asset or a group of financial assets 1s impared and impairment losses are iIncuned i, and only If, thers 1s ohijectve evidence
of imparment as & result of one or more events that occurred after the intiat recogniion of the asset {a *loss event’) and that loss event {or
events) has an impact on the estmated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be rekably estimated

Objectve evidence that a financial asset or grour of assets Is impared in¢ludes obssrvable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about the following loss events
{) signficant financial difficulty of the ssuer or obligor,
(® abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
(i) the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons rejating to the borrower's financtal difficulty, a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider,
{v) 1t becorming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financia) recrgarusation,
(v} the disappearance of an actve market for that financial asset because of financiat difficulties, or
(vii observable data indicatng that there 15 a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial assets since
the initial recagnition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the indwidual financial assets In the group,
including
adverse changes m the payment status of borrowers in the group, or
national or local economic condrtions that corredate with defaults on the assets in the group

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of Impairment exsts individually for financial assets that are indvidually significant,

and indndually or collectivaly for financial assets that are not indvidually significant If the Group determmes that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it ncludes the asset In a group of financial assets
with simiiar credit nsk charactenstics and collectively assesses them for impairment Asgets that are imdvidually assessed for mparment and
for which an impairment foss 1s or continues to be recognised are not included i a collectve assessment of imparrrnent

If there 15 objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and recenvables or held to maturity iInvestments carned at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss 18 measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash fiows {excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s onginal effectve Interest

rate The carmying amount of the asset 1s reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the ioss Is recognised i the
Income statement If a loan or held to matunty Investment has a vanable interest rate, the discount rate for measunng any imparment loss 1s
the current effective interest rate determined under the contract As a practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis
of an instrument's fair value using an observable market price

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that rmay
result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and sefling the collateral, whether or not forectosure 1s probable
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Group accountng policles

For the purposes of a collectve evaluation of impaiment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk charactenstics (i e
on the bass of the Group's grading process that considers asset type, Industry, geographical location, collateral type, past due status and
other relevant factors) Those charactenstics are relevant 1o the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicatve
of the debtors’ abiily to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated

Future cash flows 1n a group of financial assets that are collectvely evaluated for imparment are estimated on the basis of the contractual
cash flows of the assets in the group and historical loss expencnce for assets with credit risk charactenstics similar to those In the group
Historical loss expenence 15 adusted on the basis of curment observable data to reflect the pffects of current conditions that did not affect
the penod on which the histoncal loss experience 1s based and to remaove the effects of conditions in the hustoncat period that do not exist
currently The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows ate reviewed regularty by the Group to reduce any

differences between loss estimates and actyal loss experlence

If, m & subsequent penad, the amount of the Impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be refated objectively to an event ocournng
after the imparment was recogmised {such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised mmpaiment loss 1
reversed by adjusting the allowance account The amount of the reversal 18 recogmised in the income statement

When a loan 18 uncoliectible, 1t 1s written off against the refated prowision for loan impairment Such loans are wrtten off after alt the
necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has been determined Subsequent recovenes of amounts
previously written off decrease the amount of the provision for loan impairment it the Income staternent

Avallable for saje financial assets
The Group assesses at each balance shect date whether there Is cbiective evidence that an avatabls for sale financial asset 1s mparred

In ardition to the factors set aut above, a sgndficant or prolonged dechne in the faur value of the asset below ds cost is considered n
deterrmining whether an imparment loss has been wncurred I an imparment loss has been mcurred, the cumulative loss measured as the
difference between the onginal cost and the current farr value, less any mparrment loss on that asset previously recognised, Is removed from
equrty and recognised 1 the income statement If, n& subsequent penod, the falr value of a debt nstriment classified as available for sale
Increases and the ncrease can be objectively related to an event cccurring after the imparment loss was recognised, the impairment loss

Is reversed through the mcome staternent Impairment losses recognisid in the ncome statement on equity mnstruments are not reversed

through the Income statement

Property, plant and eguipment

Freehold land and buidings are nihally recogrised at cost, and subsequently are revalued annually to open market value by ndependent
external valuers Revaluatons are to be made with sufficient regulanty to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ matenally from the
cpen market value af the balance sheet date

All other property, plant and equiprrent, ncluding freehold and leasshold adaptations, are stated at Tustoncal cost less accumulated
depreciation Cost Includes expenditure that 1s directly attnbutable to the acquisition of the tems Subsequent costs are included in the
assef’s carrying amount or are recogrised as a separate asset, as appropnate, only when it 1s probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item waill flow to the Group and the cost of the tem can be measured reliably All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statement dunng the financial penod in which they are incurred

Increases n the carrying amount ansing on the revaluation of land and buidings are credited to revaluation reserve n stockholders” equity
Decreases that offset previous increases on the same asset are charged against revaluation reserve, all other decreases are charged to the

income statement

The directors consider that residual values of freehold and long leasenold property based on pricas prevailing at the ime of acquisition or
subsequent valuation are such that depreciation (s not matenal

Depreciation s calculated on the siraght line method to wrte down the camyng value of assets to ther residual values over their estimated
useful fives as follows

Adaptation works on freshold and leasehold property 15 years, or the remaining perod of the lease
Computer and other equipment Maximum of 10 years
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Group accounting policies

The assets' residual values and useful ives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date Property, plant and
equipment are reviewed for Imparment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carmying amount may not be
recoverable An asset’s camying amount i1s wntten down immediately to its recoverable amount (f the asset's carnying amount 18 greater than
s estimated recoverable amount The estimated recoverable amount s the higher of the asset's far value less cosis to sell or value 1n use

Gans and losses on the disposal of progerty, plant and equipment are determined by reference to therr carrying amount and are taken into
account In determining profit before tax If the asset being disposed of had previously been revalued then any amount In the revaluation
reserve relating 1o that asset 1s transferred to retained earnings on disposat

Investment properties

Property held for fong term rental yields and capital appreciation within the life assurance funds 1s classified as nwvestment property
Investment property compnses freehold and long leaseheld land and buldings It 1s carried at far value In the balance sheet based on annual
revaluations at open market value and 1s not depreciated Changes in far values are recorded in the income statement Rental income from
nvestment properties is recognised as it becomes recenvable over the term of the lease

intangibie assets

@) Goodwil

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquistion over the far value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets of the
acquired subsidiary / associate at the date of acquistion Geoodwilt on acquisition of subsidianes is included in intangible assets Goodwill
on acquistions of associates or joint ventures is iIncluded in ‘nvestrments in associates’ and “investments in joint ventures' as appropnate

The carrying amount of goodwil in the Insh GAAP balance sheet as at 31 March 2004 has been brought forward without adjustrment on
transiton fo IFRS

Goodwill 13 tested annually for imparment and camed at cost less accurnulated imparment losses Goodwill 1s allocated to cash generating
urvts (CGL) for the purpose of Impairment testing The CGU 1s considered to be the smallest identfiable group of assets that generates
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets The Group impairment model compares
the recoverable amount of the GGU with the carrying value at the review date An impawment loss anses If the carrying value of the GGU
exceeds the recoverable amount The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its farr value less costs to sell or its value n use, where
the value In use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derved from the CGU

Gamns and losses on the dispasal of an entity include the camying amount of goodwill refating to the entity sold

{b) Computer software
Acquired compuiter software licenses are capttalised on the basis of the costs Incurred 10 acquire and bang to use the specific software
These costs are amortised on the basis of the expected useful lves, which 1s normally five years

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred Costs that
are drectly associated with the production of identfiable and unique software products controlled by the Group and which will probably
generate economuc henefits exceadng casts beyond one year, are recogrised as mtangible assets Dwect costs nclude software
development, employee costs and an appropnate portion of relevant overheads

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised using the straight kne method over their useful ves, which 1s
normally five years

Computer software 1s reviewed for mpairment whenever events or changes in crcumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable An asset's camying amount s wntten down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carmying amount 1s greater than
tts eshmated recoverable amount The estimated recoverable amount 1s the figher of the asset's far value less costs 10 sell or s value 1 use

fc} Cther intangible assets

Cther intangible assets are amortised on a straght line basis over ther useful Iife and reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in evcunsiances mdicate that the camying amount may not e recoverable An asset’s carrying amount 1s wntien down immediately 1o s
recoverable amount if the asset'’s carrying amount is greater than ts estimated recoverable amount The estimated recoverable amount Is
the higher of the asset's farr value less costs to sell or its value in use
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General Informaton

Group accounting pokces

Assets classified as held for sale

An asset or a disposal group 18 classfied as hefd for safe if the following condibons are met
+ Its carmying amourt will be recovered principally through sale rather than continuing use,

+ iis avalable for mmediate sale,
+  the sale s hughly probable within the next twelve months

When an asset {or disposal group} [s nitialfy classified as held for sale, it 1s measured at the lower of its carrymg amount or fair value less
costs to sell at the date of reclagsification Prior period amounts are not reclassified

Propertes held for sale are not depreciated Impairmerit losses subsequent 1o classification of properties held for sale are recognised in
profit or loss Increases in far value less costs 1o sell of property that has been classifled as held for sale are recognised in profit or loss to
the extent that the ncrease 1s not in excess of any cumulative mpayrment foss previously recogrised in respect of the asset

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
oultflow of resources embodyng eccnomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a rellable estrate of the amount of the

oblgation can be made

Provision 1s mede for the anticipated costs of restructunng, incluchng related redundancy costs, when an obligation exists An obligation
exsts when the Group has a detalled formal plan for restructunng a business and has rased valid expectations m those affected by the
restructuning by starting to impiement the plan or announcing ts main features

Contingent kabhiies are possible obigations whose existence wil be confirmed only by uncertain future events or present obligations where
the transfer of economic benefit 1s uncertain or cannot be reliably measured Contingent habilites are not recogrused but are tisciosed

unless the probabilty of ther occurrence 1s remote

Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations
The Group comparnies operate varnous pension schemes The schemes are funded and the assets of the schemes are held n separate

trustee administered funds The Group has both defined contribution and defined benefit plans A defined benefit plan I1s a pension plan
that defines an amount of pension benefit to be provided, usually as a function of one or more factors such as age, years of serice or
compensation A definad contrbution plan 1s a pension plan undet which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity {a fund)
and will have no legal or constructive abligations to pay further contnbutions f the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees

benefits relating to employee service I the current and pnor penods

The asset / liabhty recognised in the balance sheet n respect of defined benafit pension plans 1s the present value of the defined benefit
obhgation at the balance sheet date minus the farr value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecogn:sed past service cost The
defined benefit obligation Is calculated annually by mdependent actuanes using the projected unit credit methad The present value of the
defined benefit obligation 1s determined by discouritng the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high qualty corporata
bonds that are denorminated in the currency m which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of

the related pension hability

Actuanal gains and losses ansing from expenence adjustments and changes in actuanal assumptions are charged or credited directly 10
reserves through the statement of recogrised income and expense Past service costs are recognised rmmechately In ncome, unless the
changes to the pension plan are conditional on the emmployees remaining In service for a specified penod of time {the vesting peniod) In this
case, the past service costs are amorhised on a straight line basis over the vesting period

For defined contribution plans, once the contributions have been paid, the company has no further payment chligations The contnbutions
are recogrised as employee beriefil expense when they are due Prepad contributions are recogrised as an asset to the extent that a cash

refund or a reduction In the future payments 15 avarlable
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Group accounting policies

{b) Equity compensation benefits

The Group has a number of equity settled share based payment schemes The far value at the date of grant of the employee services
receved in exchange for the grant of the options or shares 1s recogrused as an expense The total amount to be expensed over the vesting
penod 1s determined on the date the options or shares are granted by referenca to therr far value, excluding the impact of any non market
vesting conditions {for example, growth it EPS)  Non market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of cptions
or shares that are expected o vest Al each balance shest date, the Group revises s estimate of the number of optians or shares that are
expected to vest It recognises the impact of the revision of the onginal estimates,  any, in the income statement, and a coresponding
adjustment to equity over the remaining vesting penod

Whare new shares are issued, the proceeds recewvad net of any dusctly attnbutable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nomunal
value) and share premium when the options are exercised

The farr value of the options granted 1s determined using option prcing models, which taka into account the exercise price of the option, the
current share price, the nsk free interest rate, the expected volatility of the share pnce over the life of the option and other relevant factors

Upon transition to IFRS, the Group avalled of the exemption only to apply IFRS 2 to share based paymenits which were granted on or after 7
November 2002 that had not yet vested by 1 January 2005

(¢} Short term ernployee benefits
Short term employee benefits, such as salanes and other benefits, are accounted for on an accruals basis over the period m which the

employees’ service 18 rendered Bonuses are recognised where the Group has a legal or constructive obhgation to employees that can be
rehably measured

fd} Terrmination payments
Termination payments are recognised as an expense when the Group 1s demonstrably committed to a formal plan to terminate employment

belore the normal retirement date Terrmination payments for voluntary redundancies are recogrised where an offer has been made by the
Group, it 1s probable that the offer will be accepted and the number of acceptances can be rehably estimated

Income taxes

(a} Current income fax
Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law in each jurisdiction, s recogrised as an expense in the pencd in which profits

anse The tax effects of ncome tax losses avallable for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it 1s probable that future taxable
profits wil be avaiable aganst which these losses are utilised

{b) Deferred) income tax

Deferred income tax 1s provided in fufl, using the labiity method, on temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets and
lab:itres and ther carmying amounts 1n the financial statements Deferred income tax 1S determined using tax rates {and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantally enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected 1o apply when the related deferred income tax asset s
realised or the deferrad income tax liability 1s settled

The rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date are used 1o determine deferred income tax However, the deferred
income tax 1s not accounted for f t anses from intial recognition of an asset or habilty in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transacton affects nether accounting nor taxable profit or loss

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be avalable agangst which the temporary
differences can be utiised

Deferred income tax 15 provided on temporary differences ansing from investments in subsidianes and associates / jont ventures, except

where the timing of the reversa! of the temporary difference 1s contrelled by the Group and it 1s probable that the difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future

Deferred tax related {o far value remeasurement of avalable for sale investments and cash flow hedges, or related fo the revaluaton of land
and buldings, which are charged or credited drrectly to equity, 1s also credited or charged directly to equiy and 1s subsequently recognised
in the iInceme statemment together with the deferred gain or loss
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Group accounting policies

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equvalents compnse of cash i hand and balances with central banks and
post office banks which can be withdrawn on demand It also compnses balances with an onginal matunty of less than three months

Business Review

Capital stock

(1) Stock issuse costs
tncremertal external costs directly attnbutable to the issue of new equity stock or options or to the acquisition of a business, are shown

equrty as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

{2) Dwidends on ordinary stock
Dwictends on ordinary stock are recogrused n equity in the penod in which they are approved by the Bank's stockholders Dwidends for the

year which are declared after the balance shest date are dealt with n note 47

(3) Treasury stock

Where the Bank or its subsidiaries purchases the Bank's equity caprtal stock, the consideration paid is deducted from total stockholders”
equity as treasury stock untl they are cancelled Where such stock 1s subsaquently sold or resssued, any consideration recerved 18 Included
In stockholders' equity Any changes in the value of treasury stock held are recognised in equity at the time of the disposal and dividends are

not recogrised as income or distrbutions

Governance

Tris 1§ particularly relevant in respect of Bank of Ireland stock held by Bank of Irefand Life for the benefit of policyholders The Group
beheves that this treatment, white required by IFRS, creates an artificial profit or loss and does nat preaent faity the legal and economic
consequences of these transactions The number of units of Bank of Ireland stock held by Bank of frefand Life on behalf of polcyholders at
31 March 2008 was 19 milion {31 March 2007 27 milkon) The impact of the negatve movernent in the Bank of freland stock price, during
the period, in accordance with accounting rules, has not been reflected In the Group’s income statement, however, it has been reflecied as
a reduchion in the Group's Insurance contract labiities The net impact 18 10 ncrease the Group's profit before tax by €189 million (2007

decrease of €68 million}

Life assurance operations

In accordance with IFRS 4, the Group classifies all Ife assurance products as ether nsurance of nvestment contracts for accounting
purposes

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance nsk These contracts are accounted for using an embedded value
basis
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investrment contracts are accounted for m accordance with [AS 39 All of the Group’s mvestment contracts are und inked in nature

These contracts are accounted for as financial kabihties whose value 1s contractually hnked to the fair value of the financiel assets within

the policyholders' unit inked funds The value of the unit 1nked financial habilties s determined using current unit prices multolied by the
number of units atinbuted to the contract hotders at the balance sheet date Thew value is never less than the amount payable on surrender,
discounted for the required notice penod where applicable

Non unit inked insurance labilites are calculated using efther a gross premium of net premum method of valuation The assumpticons are
also set in accordance with the guidetines in the Insurance Regulations and contain a margin for adverse development The key assumptions
used In the valuation of nsurance contract habities are

Interest rate The nterest rates are derved In accordance with the guidelines i the Insurance Regulations
Margins for nek are aliowed for i the derved interest rates

Mortality and morbidity ~ The mortality and morindiy assumptions, which include an allowance for improvements in longevity for
annutants, are set with regard to the Group’s actual expenence and / or relevant industry data

General information

Mamtenance expenses  Allowance s made for future policy costs and expense inflation explicily
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Group accounting pohcies

The Group will recognise an asset for deferred acquisiton costs relating 10 nvestment contracts  Up front fees recenved for nvestment
management seraces are deferred These amounts are amortised over the peried of the contract

The Group recognises the value of in forge Wfe assurance business asset as the present value of future profits expected to anse from
contracts classified as insurance under IFRS 4 The asset I1s determined by projecting the future statutory surpluses atinbutable to
stockholders estimaled 1o anse from nsurance contracis The surpluses are projected using appropnate assumptions as to future
nvesiment retums, persisiency, morality and expense levels and include conskderation of guarantees and options These surpluses are then
drscounted at a nsk adjusted rate Thus, the use of best estimate assumptions in the valuation of the value of in force asset ensures that the
net carrying amaunt of iInsurance labilties less the value of n force assets is adequate

The value of in force asset n the consolidated kalance sheet and movements in the asset in the income statement are presented on a

gross of tax basis The tax charge comprises both current and deferred tax expense and inchudes tax atinbutable to both stockholders and
policyholders for the penod

Prermums and claims

Premums recenveble in respect of non unit inked msurance contracts are recogrused as revenue when due from policyholders  Premiums
recenved n respect of unit inked msurance contracts are recognised in the same penod in wiieh the retated policyholder liabilibes are created
Clarns are recorded as an expense when they are incurred

Remnsurance

Contracts enteraed into by the Group with remsurers under which the Group 1s compensated for losses on one or more contracts issued
oy the Group are deall with as nsurance confracts, subject 1o meeting the signdicant insurance nsk test in IFRS 4 Outward rensurance
premiums are accounted for in accordance with the contract ferms whan due for payment

Offsetting financial mstruments

Financial assets and labilities are cifset and the net amount reported in the balance shest when there 1s a tegally enforceable nght of set off
and there is an intention 1o settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the habity smultaneously

Collateral

The Group enters into masier agreements with counterparties, to ensure that f an event of defautt occurs, all amounts cutstanding with
those counterparties will be settled on a net basis

The Group obtams collateral n respect of customer lisbiities where this 18 considered aporopnate The cofiateral normally takes the form
of a lten over the customer's assets and gives the Group a claim on thesa assets for both existing and future habilites The collateral 1s, 1
general, not recorded on the Group balance sheet

The Group also recenes collateral in the form of cash or securities in respect of other credit instruments, such as stock borrowng contracts,
and derwvative contracts in arder to reduce credit nsk  Collateral receved in the form of secunties 15 not recorded on the balance sheet
Collateral recenved In the form of cash 1s recorded on the balance sheet with a corresponding lability These tems are assigned to deposits

receved from banks and other counterparties in the case of cash collateral recenved Any interest payable or recevable ansing I1s recorded as
interest expense or interest ncome respectively

In certain arcurnstances, the Group will pledge collateral in respect of labilities or borrowings Collateral pledged i the fom of securites
or leans and recevables continues to be recorded on the balance sheet Collateral pard away in the form of cash 1s recorded in loans and
advances to banks or customers Any interest pad or recenvable arising s recorded as interest expense or interest income respectvely

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are given to banks, financial instriutions and other bodies on behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other
banking facikbies ('faciity guarantees'), and to other parties in connection with the performance of customers under oblhgations refated to
contracts, advance payments made Dy oiher parties, tenders, retentions and the payment of mport dutes  Financial guarantees are mially
recognised in the financial statements at faur value on the date that the guarantee is given  Subsequent to mitial recognition, the bank's
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Group accounting policies

tabiihies under such guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial reasurement, less amortisation calculated to recogmse in the
ncome statement the fee Income earned over the penod, and the best estmate of the expenditure required to settle any financiat obligation
ansing as a result of the guarantees at the balance sheet date

Any increase n the liabiity relating o guarantees is taken to the ncome statement 1n prowisions for undrawn contractually committed
faciltigs and guarantees

Business Re aew

Segmental reporting

The segmental analysis of the Group’s results and financial position ts set out in note 1 by business class and by geographic segment  The
Group has five business classes that reflect the internal financial and management reparing structure The analysis of results by business
class 1 based on management accounts nformation Transactions between the business segments are on normal commereal terms and
conditiens Internat charges and transfer pricing adjustments have been reflected in the performance of each business Revenue sharing
agreements are used to aflocate external customer revenues 10 a business segment on a reasonable basis

The geographical segmental analysis provides financial nformation on products and senvices within a particular economic environment that
Is subject to nsks and rewards that are different 1o those operating In other economic environments

Governance

Materality

In tts assessment of matenality, the Group considers the impact of any misstaternents based on both

« the amount of the misstatement onginating n the current year income statement, and

« the effects of correcting the misstatement existing in the balance sheet at the end of the current year irrespective of the year m which the
misstatement cccurred

Impact of new accounting standards
The following standard has been approved by the IASB and adopted by the EU but has not been early adopted by the Group

IFRS 8 - Operating Segments (effective 1 January 2009) This standard replaces IAS 14 Segmental Reporting and requres an entity to
base ther segmental reporting on the nformation that 19 reported internally to management This standard will be adopied by the Group n
the year ended 31 March 2010 The impact is not expected to be signficant for the Group

The following standards / amendments 10 standards have been approved by the IASB but have not yet been adopted by the EU and have
rot been early adopted by the Group
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Amendment to IFRS 2 Share based payments Vesting Condrtions and Cancellations {effective 1 January 2009) This amendment clardies
the accounting treatment of cancellations and vesting conditions it 18 not expected to have a sigrificant impact on the Group

IFRS 3 Revised - Busness Combinations (effectve 1 July 2008) This standard deals with how an accurer recogrises, measures and
discloses in tts financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the labilities assumed and any non controfing interest in the acquiree
The significant changes from existing prachice as a rasult of this revised standard are in relation 1o acquistions that are achieved in stages
and acquisthons where less than 100% of the equity 15 acquired The objectve 15 10 enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the
nature and financal effects of the business combination The impact on the Group will be dependent on the nature of any future acquisrion

FRIC 12 - Service Concession Arrangements (effectve 1 January 2008) This iMerpretation deals with entities providing public senices,
hence It is ot expected 1o ympact on the Group

{FRIC 13 — Customer Loyalty Programmes (effective 1 July 2008} This interpretation deals with accounting for customer loyalty award
schemes, hence 1t 15 not expected to have a matenal impact on the Groun

General Information

IFRIC 14 — The Limtt on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimurm Funding Requirements and therr interaction (effective 1 January 2008} This
imerpretation deals with accounting for refunds n contrbutions and minimum funding requrements  This IFRIC will not have a materiat

impact on the Group
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Group accounting policies

Amendment 10 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, (eflective 1 January 2009} This amendrrent revises the requirements for the
presentation, structure and content of financial statements This amendment will impact on the presentation of the financial statements of
the Group, however this 1s not expected to be significant

Amendment to 1AS 23 Borowing Costs (effective 1 Jaruary 2009} This amendment requires an entity to capitahise bomowing costs that refate to
assets that take a substantial perod of time to get ready for use or sale It is not expected to impact on the Group

Amendment to IAS 27 - Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (eflective 1 July 2009) The objective of this amendment 1s 1o
enhance the relevance, reliability and comparability of the information that a parent entity provides in its separate financial statements and in
fs consohdated financial statements for a group of entihes under its control The ntroduction of this amendment will impact Group reporting
although this s not expected to be significant

Amendment to 1AS 32 - Financial Instruments Presentation and IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (effectve 1 January 2009) This
amendment changes the classification from habilihes to equity of {a) some puttable financial instruments and (b} some financial instruments
that mpose on the entity an obligation to deliver to ancther party a pro rata share of the net assets of the entity enly on liquidation to be
classified as equity This amendment 1s not expected to impact the Group
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements J

The Group makes estmates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabiibes within the next financiat year
Estrmates and judgements are conbnually evaluated and are based on histoncal expenence and other factors, Including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances

\)

Bus ness Review

(a) Impamment losses on financial assets

The Group reviews its loan portfoios at keast on a quarterly basis to assess impairment In determining whether an impairment loss should
be recarded 1 the ncome statement, the Group makes jutdgements as to whether there 1s any observable data ndicating that there s a
measurable decrease In the estmated future cash flows from a portiolio of loans before the decrease can be identfied with an mdnvidual

koan in that portfolio This evidence may nclude observable data mdicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment status

of barrewers in a group or national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the group Management uses
estimates based on historical loss expenence for assets with credit nsk charactenstics and objectve evidence of impairment similar te those
In the portfolio, when scheduling ts future cash fiows The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and tming of
future cash flows are reviewed regularty to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss expenence Ses note 21 for more
informaton

{b} Fair value of financial instruments

The Group measures certan of its financial instruments at far value in the balance shest Ttus includes trading securities, other financial

assets and habiiies at far value through profit or loss, all denvatves and avallable for sale financial assets The farr values of financial |
instruments are determined by reference to observable market prices where avaitable and an active market exists Where market prices are

not avatable or are unrehahle, far values are determned using valuation techniques including discounted cash flow models which, to the

extent possible, use observable market nputs |

Governance

Where valuation techniques are used they are validated and penadically reviewsd by qualdfied personnel ndependent of the area that
created them All models are calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparable market pnces Using valuation technigues
may necesstate the estimation of certan pricing inputs, assumptions or model charactenstics such as credtt nsk, volatilies and correlations
and changes in these assumptions could affect reported far values

The far value movement on assets and habilihes held at fair value through profit or loss, including those held for trading, are ncluded in net
trading ncome Fair values in respect of financral assets and liabilties are disciosed in note 45

{c) Retirement benefits

The Group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemnes in determining the actual pension cost, the actuarial values of the
liabities of the schemes are calculated This Involves modeliing therr future growth and reguires management to make assumptions as

to price inflation, dvidend growth, salary and pensions INCreases, return on investments and employee mortaiity There are accepiable
ranges in which these estimates can valdly fall The impact on the results for the perod and financial posttion could be materially different if
alternatve assumptions were used See note 37 on retrement penefit obligations for more information
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{d} Life assurance operations

The Group accounts for the value of the stockholder's interest in long term assurance business using the embedded value basis of accounting
Ermbedded value 1s compnised of the net tangible assets of Bank of Irefand Life and the present value of is n force business The value of n force
business 18 calculated by progcting future surpluses and other net cash flows attributable to the shareholder ansing frem business written up o
the batance sheet date and discounting the result at a rate which reflects the shareholder's overali nsk premium, before provision has been madea
for taxation

Future surpluses wil depend on expenence n a number of areas such as nvestment retumns, lapse rates, mortality and nvestment expenses
Surpluses are projected by making assumptons about future expenence, hawving regards to bath actual expenence and forecast long term
economic trends Chariges to these assumplions may cause the present value of future surpluses to differ from those assumed at the balance
sheet date and could signficantly affect the value attnbuted to the n force busness The value of in force business could also be affected by
changes n the amounts and timing of other net cash flows {prnoipally annual management charges and other fees levied upon the policyholders)
or the rate at which the future surpluses and cashfiows are discounted Inaddition, the extent to which actual experience 1s different from that
assurmed will be recognisext in the iIncome statement for the pened Sea note 54 for more nformation on the Life Assurance business

General Information
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Critical accaunting estimatas and judgemants

{e} Taxation

The taxafion charge accounts for amounts due to fiscal authonties in the vancus terntonies in which the Group operates and includes
estimates based on a judgement of the application of law and practice n certan cases to determine the quantrication of any labiities
ansing  ln armvang at such estimates, management assesses the relatve merts and nsks of tax treatments assumed, taking ito account
statutory, jdicial and regulatory guidance and, where appropniate, external advice (see note 34)

FASINDY SRIUISNE

{f} Goodwill

The Group capdalises goodwill ansing on the acquisition of businesses, as disclosed in the accounting policies The carrying value of
goodwill as at 31 March 2008 was €293 million {31 March 2007 €347 millior) Goodwill 1s tested for rpairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in crcumstances indicate that # might be mpared

For the purposes of mpairment testing goodwill acquired in a business combination s alfocated to each of the Group's cash generating
units expected to benefit from the combination  Goodwill imparmment testing involves the companson of the carrying value of a cash
generaling unit with its recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s the higher of the unit’s far value or its value in use Value In use 1s
the present value of expected future cash flows from the cash generating unit Fair value 1s the amount obtainable for the sale of the cash
generating uret in an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, wiling parties

Impaimment testing inherently nvolves a number of judgemental areas the preparation of cash flow forecasts for penods that are beyond the
normal requrements of management reporting, the assessment of the discount rate appropnate to the business, estmation of the farr value
of cash generating units, and the valuation of the separable assets of each business whose goodwill is being reviewed See note 25 for
further information
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1 Segmental reporting

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

The segmental analysis of the Group's results and financial posiion 1s set out below by business class and by geographic segment For the
geographic analysss, Irefand (excluding Morthern Ireland) includes profits generated in the International Financial Services Centre

Revenue cornpnses interest income, net insurance premium income, fees and commissions income, net trading expense, Ife assurance
investment meorne and {osses) / gans, other operating ncome, net of insurance contract iapihties and clarns paid and ncome from
associates and jomt ventures The Group has five business classes detalled in the table below These segments reflect the internal financial

and management reporting structure

The analysts of results by business class 13 based on management accounts nformation  Transactions between the business segments are
¢n normal commercial terms and conditions Internal charges and transfer pricing adjustrments have been reflected in the performance of
each business Revenue shanng agreements are used to allocate external customer revenuas to a business segment on a reasonable basis

Business segments
Retail Republic Capital UK Financiat

of Ireland Bol Life Markets Sarvices Group Centre  Elimenations Group
31 March 2008 £m €m €m m €m €m €m
Interest iIncome 7,452 14 8,612 5,484 2.792) [8,373) 10,397
Interest expense {6,023) 21} (7,582) 4.638) 2,757 8,373 (7,134)
Nt Interest income 1,428 (5] 1,030 B46 (35} 3,263
Net insurance premum Ihcome 1,900 40 1,840
Other mcome 417 (859) 89 163 122 (168)
Total operating income 1,846 934 1,119 1,008 127 5,035
Insurance contract liabilities and
claims paid (776) 22) (798)
Teta! operating income,
net of Insurance clams 1,846 158 1,119 1,009 105 4,237
Operating expenses (a09) {106} {405) {497 {103) (2,020)
Depreciation and amortisation (74) 1] (11 (36 2 an
Impaiment losses {148) (53) 33) (232)
Share of profit of associated
undertakuings and joint ventures 4} 47 46
Profit on disposal of property 33 1 5 39
Profit before taxation 749 48 651 495 (10) 1.933
Profit on disposal of property (33) (33)
Gross up of policyholder tax
nthe Lfe business 60 60
Investment return on treasury stock
held for palicyholders (189) {189)
Hedge ineffectiveness on transition
to IFRS 6 6
Cost of restructuring programme 17 17
Group profit before tax excluding
the impact of above tems 716 108 651 495 {176} 1,794
Capital expenditure 56 15 14 57 10 152
External assets 59,555 13,678 66,888 56,690 623 187,434
Intet segment assets 58,205 907 114,889 13,973 40,747 228.811)
Total assets 117,850 14,585 181,777 70,663 41,370 (228,811) 197,434
External labiities 43,237 13,307 97,338 28,587 8,445 190,912
Inter segment llabilities 72,065 3ss 83,404 40,761 32,213 {228,811}
Total liabilitles 115,302 13,675 180,740 69,348 40,658 {228,811) 190,912

Capital expenditure comprises addrtions to property, plant and equipment (note 27) and intangible assets (note 25) including addrtions
resulting from acquistions through business combinations

Etminations represent inter segment transactions which are elimnated upon consolidation

Report & Accounts
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Notes to the conschidated financial statements

1 Segmental reporting (continued)
Business segments
Retall

Republic Capnal UK Financiaf

of eland Bol Lifa Markets Services  Group Centre Eliminations Group
31 March 2007 €m £m €m €m £€m €m €m
Interest ncorme 5,181 8 6,572 4,163 (2,032) {5,765} 8,137
Interest expense (3,880) (13) (5,901) {3,379) 2,028 5,765 {5,380)
Net nterest income 1,311 (5) 671 784 4 2,757
Net insurance premlum income 2,155 33 2,188
Other iIncome 377 326 379 129 [en)] 1,114
Total operating income 1,688 2,476 1,050 913 {68) 6,069
Insurance contract fabilities and
elaims paid (2,208) 8 (2,213}
Total eperating income,
net of insurances claims 1,668 2 1,080 913 {76) 3,846
Operating expenses (852} (100) {439) [458) {159) (2,008)
Depreciation and amortisation s [%4] an (3% {16} (151}
Impairment losses 63} 21} 20} 1 (103}
Share of profit of associated
undertakings and joint ventures (1) 45 44
Profit on disposal of business
achity / property 87 ] 237 330
Profit before taxation 785 167 872 447 {13 1,958
Profit on disposal
of business activities & {233} {239)
Profit on disposal of property {B7) 87
Gross up of policyholder tax
in the Life business {19) (19)
Investment return on treasury stock
held for pehcyholders 68 &8
Hedge neffectiveness on transition
10 IFRS 2 2
Sale of Head Office {32) {32
Cost of restruciuring proagramme 49 49
Group profit before tax excluding
the impact of above items ] 148 572 441 {159} 1,700
Capital expenditure 54 7 18 58 25 162
External assets 51,672 15411 64,706 55,788 1,236 188,813
Inter ssgment assets 45820 452 101,692 _ron 31,250 {196,334
Total assets 97,601 15,863 166,398 72,799 32 486 (196,334) 188,813
External habiities 41,806 14,605 86,517 31,621 7.606 182,055
Inter segment llabihes 53 354 330 78,306 38,820 25,424 {196,334) -
Total liabilides 95,160 14,935 164,823 70,441 33,030 (198,334) 182,055

Capttal expenditure compnses addiions to property plant, and equipment (note 27) any

resulting from acqusiions through business combinations

| Bank of lreland (&)

Report & Accounts
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1 Segmental reporting (continued)
31 March 2008
freland United Kingdom Rest of World Ehrminations Total
Geographical segments €m €m €m €m €m
External revenues 7,308 4118 142 1,567
Inter segment revenue 1,267 2341 225 {3.833)
Gross revenue 8,573 6,460 57 {3,833) 11,567
Profit before taxation 1412 491 30 1,933
Capital expenditure 93 57 2 152
External assets 133,925 6141 2,038 167,434
Inter segment assets 38,440 33,023 13,298 _(84.759)
Total assets 172,385 84,494 15,334 {84,759) 197,434
Externat labittles 130,490 47,414 13 008 190,912
Inter segment liabilities - 37.299 45,815 1,645 (B4,759)
Tatal liabllties 167 789 93,229 14,653 {84,759) 190,812
31 March 2007
Iretand United Kingdom Rest of World Elmmations Total
€m €m €m €m €m
External revenues 5,741 3,556 133 9,430
Inter segment revenus 1,333 1,083 194 {2,610)
Gross rovenue 7.074 4,639 327 (2,610} 9,430
Profit before taxation 1,603 s 41 1,058
Caprtal expendrture a5 53 g 162
External assets 126,547 60,524 1,742 188,813
Inter segment assets 34,458 25,075 9,767 (69,300)
Total assels 161,005 £5,509 11,509 (69,300) 188,813
External liabiities 126,646 45,951 9,458 182,055
inter segment liabilities 29,603 38,40% 1,288 (69,300)
Total liabihties 156,249 84 360 10,746 {69,300) 182 055

Report & Accounts
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

2 interest ncome
Group

2008 2007
£m £m
L.oans and advances to customers 8,213 6,272
Avallable for sale financial assets 1,604 1,342
Loans and advances to banks 323 292
Fmance feasing 251 222
Other 6 9
Interest income 10,397 8,137

Included within nterest mcome 15 €31 million (31 March 2007 €19 millon) in respect of ympared loans and advances to customers Net
\nterast Income also ncludes a credit of €165 millon (31 March 2007 credit of €80 millon) transferred from the cash flow hedge reserve (see
note 42)

3 Interest expense

Group
2008 2007
€m €m
Diebt secunties in issue 3,041 1,935
Customet accounts 2,808 2,009
Deposits by banks B40 1,066
Subordinated llabliities 445 370
Interest expense 7,134 5,380
4 Net insurance premium income
Group
2008 2007
€m £m
Gross premums written 2,101 2,220
Cedead relnsurance premiums {173) (35}
Net premiums written 1,928 2,188
Changa In provision for unearned premurms 12 3
Net Insurance premium income 1,940 2,188

Bank of Ireland Life completed a transaction to reinsure a sigrificant part of the annuty book dunng the year ended 31 March 2008

5 Fees and commissions income
Group

2008 2007
€m €m
Retall banking customer fees 401 372
Assat management fees 189 208
Crodit refated fees 81 50
Insurance commissions 42 40
Brokerage fees 23 27
Trust and other fiduciary fees 8 9
Other 74 192
Fees and commissions income 816 898

Other fees and commissions iIncome nclude amounts 1n respect of Davy in the year ended 31 March 2007

Report & Accounts
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Notes to the consoiidated firancial statements

6 Net trading expense

Group

2008 2007

£m €m
Financial assels designated at far value {6) @
Related derivatives held for trading 12 14
-] 5
Financial liabilties designated at fair value 107 (297
Related denvatives held for trading {272) 170
(165} (127

Other financial instruments held for trading {79) 51
Net far value hedge ineffectiveness =) @
Cash flow hedge ineffactiveness (] 10
Net trading expense (246) {70)

Net trading expense of €246 milkon (31 March 2007 £70 mullion) ncludes the gaing and losses on finanaal nstruments held for trading and
those designated at far value through profit or loss (other than unit inked Iife assurance assets and nvestment contract labilties) It ncludes
the gains and losses ansing on the purchase and sale of these mstruments, the interest ncome recevable and expense payable and the farr
value movement on these instrumerts, together with the funding cost of the trading instrumenis

Net trading expense includes the farr value movement (ncluding interest recevable and payable) on denvatves which act as economic
hedges of the interest rate and foraign exchange nsk inherent In some cash instruments (ncluding financial assets and habilites
designated at far value through profit or loss above) The offsetting net interest recevable of €346 million (31 March 2007 €122 miion) on
the cash instrumants 18 reported N net interest mcome

Net far value hedge ineffectveness compnses a net gan from hedging instruments of €168 million (31 March 2007 net loss of €112 million)
offsetting a net loss from hedged stems of €174 milion (31 March 2007 net gain of €103 milion)

The net gain from the change i credit spreads refating to the Group's 1ssued notes designated at farr value through profit or loss was
€32 mikon (31 March 2007 il

See notes 45 and 46 for datals of the assets and fabiltes designated at far value through profit or loss

7 Life assurance mvestment income and (losses} / gains
Graup
2008 2007
€m £m
Gross hfe assurance mvestment ingome and (losses) / gains (924) 275
Elmination of investment return on treasury stock held for the benefit of policyholders 98 {28)
Life assurance investment income and {losses) / gains (826) 247

IFRS requires that Bank of Ireland stock held by the Group, Including those held by Baot Life for the benefit of polcyholders, are reclassified
as treasury stock and accounted for as a deduction from equity Changes in the vatue of any ireasury stock held are recogrused in equrty at
the time of disposal and dvdends are not recognised as income or distributions

The impact on the income statement of accounting for the stock held by Bol Life for the benefit of policyholders 1s as follows Ife assurance
investment income and (osses) / gains of (€924) mdlion has been reduced by €98 rullon, which relates to the investment return on stock
held under insurance contracts Other operating income (see note 8} has been ncreased by €91 mullion, which relates to the mvestment
return on stock held under investment contracts The effact of the combined adjustment of €189 million can be seen in note 1

Report & Accounts Bank of Ireland (&) |
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Notes to the conschdated financial statements

8 Other operating income

Group
2008 2007
€m £€m
Etmination of investment return on treasury stock held for the benefit of poheyholders (see note 7} =1 (40)
Cther insurance mcome 91 176
Transfer from avallable for sale reserve on asset disposal 34 10
COther income 22 21
Gain on sale of Head Office premises 32
Other operating income 238 199
9 Insurance contract habifiies and claims paid
Group
2008 2007
€m €m
Gross clams 1,013 683
Reinsurance 27 {22}
586 861
Change In llabrlities
Gross 41 1,579
Relnsurance (147} {27}
(188) 1,552
Insurance contract habilities and clyims paid 798 2,213
Gross claims can be analysed as follows
Surrenders 851 552
Death and critica tiness 113 86
Annuitles 32 28
Maturities 3 7
Other 14
1,013 683
I Bank of lreland (&) Report & Accounts




10 Total operating expenses

Notes to the consciidatad inancial statements

Group
2008 2007
€m £m
Administrative expenses
Staff costs 1,235 1,244
Other administrative expenses 785 764
Depreciation
Intangible assets (note 25) 87 a7
Property, plant and equiptment (note 27) 50 54
Total operating expenses 2,157 2,159
Staff costs, including performance reward are further analysed as follows
Wages and salaries 963 086
Social secunty costs 93 90
Retirement benefit costs  defined benefit plans (note 37) 130 114
Retirement benefit costs  defined contribution plans 4 4
Share based payment schemes (ncte 42) 13 12
Other 32 33
Stalf costs 1,235 1,244
Staff numbers

In the year ended 31 March 2008 the average full tme equivalents was 16,026 (31 March 2007 15,952) categensed as follows In ine with

the business segments as stated in note 1

2008 2007
Retall Republic of Ireland 8,467 8,451
Bol Life 1,183 1,100
Capital Markets 1,737 1,986
UK Financial Services 3,508 3415
Group Centre 1,040 1,000
Total 16,026 15,952
Report & Accounts
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements

11 Profit on disposal of business activities

Year ended 31 March 2008

There wore no disposals of business acimties in the year ended 31 March 2008

Year ended 31 March 2007

The total gans on disposal of business actvities in the year ended 31 March 2007 was €243 mikon, shown as follows

€m
Davy Stockbrokers 229
Enterprise Finance Europe GmbH 8
Whiteback in refation to Bristol & West &
243

Total

On 21 April 2006 the Group completed the sale of Enterpnse Finance Ewope GmbH for a consideration of €10 millon giving nse to a profit on

disposal of €8 mither Costs incurred on disposal were €1 mithon

0On 31 October 2006 the Group completed the sale of ts 90 444% equity stake n Davy Stockbrokers, which 15 analysed further below

€m
Canrying value of net assels at date of disposal B4
Cast of disposal 8
Galin on thsposal 229
316

Cash consideration received

in addition, €6 milion was written back to the Group ncome statement i relation to costs provided, at 31 March 2006, aganst antcipated
expenses In exting certan contracts refating to the disposal of the Bnstol & West branch network

12  Auditors’ remuneration

Group

2008 2007
Notes Rol Overseas () Total Total
£m €m €m £m

Audit and assurance services (including VAT}
Statutory audit (ncluding expenses) 36 13 49 46
Other audit and assurance services ) 41 o7 48 78
77 20 a7 124

Other services {including VAT}

Taxatlon services 04 07 11 25
81 27 108 149

The figures n the above table relate to fees pa to PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC} The Group Audit Commutiee has reviewed the level of
fees and 1s satisfied that it has not affected the independence of the audtors

{} Fees to overseas auditors pnncipally consist of fees to PwC in the UK,
&) Other audit and assurance services consist prmarily of fees in connection with reparting 1o regulators, letters of comfort, reporting on

Sarbanes Oxiey and accounting matiers

It 15 Group policy to subject afl major consullancy assignments to 2 competiive tender process

¢ Bankoftreland (&)
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13 Taxahon

Notes to ihe consolidated financial statements

Group
2008 2007
€m €m
Current tax
Ieish corporation tax
cufrent year 236 244
prior year 2 12
Double taxation rellef (62) {230
Forgign tax
cutrent year 140 98
priar year 1 3
313 327
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of ternporary differences (note 36) (84) (21)
Taxation 229 306

The reconcikation of tax on profit at the standard Ingh corporation tax rate to the Group’s actual tax charge for the years ended 31 March

2008 and 2007 1s shown as follows

Group
2008 2007

€m €m
Profit before taxation muttiplied by the standard rate
of corpaoration tax in the Republlc of Ireland of 12 5% (2007 12 5%) 242 245
Effects of
Farelgn aarnings subject to diferent rates of tax 86 49
Bal Life Comparves  different basis of accounting (53) 16
Elminatien of investment return on treasury stock hetd for the benefit of policy holders (24) 8
Tax exempted profits and income at a reduced [rish tax rate 2 (26)
Non-deductible expenses 7 11
Prior year adjustments (1) 6
Shares of associates / joint ventures profit shown post tax in income statement (6} {5}
Other adustments for tax purposes (24) 2
Taxation charge 229 306

The taxation charge for the Group was €228 million for year ended 31 March 2008 compared to €306 millon in the year ended 31 March
2007 The effectve tax rate was 11 8% in the year ended 31 March 2008 compared to 15 6% for the year ended 31 March 2007 The rate
has decreased largely as a result of a reduction in the tax charge of Bol Life due 1o lower investment ncome earmned and lower capial gans,
together with the effect of the elimination of the investmeant return on treasury stock held on behalf of poticyholders by Bol Life
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Notes o the consolidated financial statements

14  Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earmings per unit of £0 84 ordinary stock s pased on the profit atinbutable to ordinary stockholders dvided by the
weighted average ordinary stock i rssue excluding treasury stock and own stock held for the benefit of hfe assurance policyholders

Group
2008 2007
£m €m

Basle
Profit attributable to stockholders 1,699 1,651
Dividends on other equity interests (14} {15)
Profit attributable to ordinary stockholders 1,685 1,636
Weighted average number of units of stock in Issue excluding treasury stock and own stock
teld for the benefit of ke assurance pelicyholders 965m a950m

1746 ¢c 1722¢

Basic earnings per share {cent)

The diluted earnings per share is based on the profit attnbutable to ordinary stocknolders dvided by the weighted average ordinary stock
In 1ssue excludmg treasury stock and own stock held for the beneflt of ife assurance policyholders adjusted for the effect of all dilutive

potential ordinary stock

Group
2008 2007
€m £m
Diluted
Profit attributabile to stockholders 1,699 1,851
Dividends on other equity ntsrests (14) (15)
Profit attributable to ordinary stockholders 1,685 1,638
Welghted averaga number of units of stock in issue excluding treasury stock and own stock
held for the benefit of ife assurance paolicyholders $E5m 950m
Effect of all diiutive potentlal ordinary stock 4m 7
969m 957Tm
Diluted earnings per share (cent) 1739¢ 1710¢
15  Trading secunties
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m €m €m £m
Bebt secunties  listed 119 520 119 520
Trading secunbes 119 520 119 £20

The Group holds a portfolio of bonds for iraching purposes typically taking positions n financial and corporate risk with ratings between

investment grade AAA and BBB (average rating A)

I Bankof reland (&2
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Notes 10 the consohdated fnancal statements
&
Lﬁ
16  Denvative financial instruments i
v
w
Denvatives C:{I}J
&
A denvative 1s a financial contract whose value is inked 1o movements in interest rates, exchange rates, equidy or commodity prices or, more =
generally, to any objectively measured vanable agreed between the parties Denvative markets are an efficient mechanism for the transfer of
nsk The Group uses dervatives 10 manage the market nsks that anse naturally in ts banking and other activities In addition, it transacts n
dervatves with its business and corporate clients for the purpose of assisting these clients in managing their exposure 10 changes in interest
and foreign exchange rates Finally, the Group fakes discretionary market nsk in dervative markets The Group also uses credit dervatives,
on a very hmited basts, within its trading portfollo to take exposure to specific and general credit spread movements and in its halance shest
to prowide default protection on specific credit exposures The Group's objectives and policies on managing the nsks that anse in cortnection -
with dervatives, including the policies for hedging, are included in the Risk Management section from page 27 10 43
The notional ameunts of certain types of financial iInstruments prowde a basis for companson with mstruments recognised on the balance
sheet but do not necessarnly indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the current far value of the instruments and, therefore, do
not ndicate the Group's exposure to credit or price nsks The dervative instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable (labifties)
as a result of fluctuations in market rates or prices relatve to ther terms  The aggregate contractual or notional amount of dervatwe financal g)
nstruments on hand and the aggregate far values of dervative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate signeicantly (‘:D
The far vatues and notional amounts of denvatve instruments held are set out in the folflowing tables 8
Fair Values
Group Contract / notional amount Assets Liabiiities
31 March 2008 €m £m £m
Denvatives held for trading
Forelgn exchange derivatives
Currency forwards 55,078 906 835
Currency swaps 758 ra 24
Over the counter currency options 2,561 74 78
Total foreign exchange derivatives haid for trading 58,305 1,051 837 —._—.,,“
intorest rate derivatives %}
Interest rate swaps 147,174 940 960 @_{
Cross cumency Interest rate swaps 29,999 893 1,268 %
Forward rate agreements 1,819 5 4 g
Over the counter interest rate options 8,873 50 50 g
Total interast rate dertvatives held for trading 197,965 1,888 2,282 &
Equity and commaodity contracts
Equity index iinked contracts held 7,051 445 259
Total derfvative assets / kabilities held for trading 28341 3,385 3,478
Derivatives held for hedging
Dertvatives designated as tair value hedges
Interest rate swaps 16,115 256 180
Cross currency interest rate swaps 1,195 122
Total designated as fair value hedges 17,310 378 190 %
Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges g
Interest rate swaps 83,950 685 654 =
Cross cutrency interest rate swaps 4,370 220 §
Total designated as cash tiow hedges 88,320 805 654 %
Total derivative assets / liabilties held for hedging 106 630 1,183 844 g
Total derivative assets / liabilitles 366,041 4,568 4,322
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
8
s 16 Denvative financial instruments {continued)
p
@ Faur values
g Group Contract / notloral amount Assets Liabiltles
o 31 March 2007 €m €m &m
Dervatives held for trading
Foreign exchange denvatives
Currency forwards 33,591 148 266
Currency swaps 952 28 14
Over the counter curency options 2,204 13 12
Total toreign exchange derivatives held for trading 36,747 189 292
Interest rate denvatives
Intorest rate swaps 200,498 5711 663
Cross currency Interest rate swaps 25,959 207 408
2 Faorward rate agreements 16,866 1 2
Eﬁ Over the counter interest rate options 4,002 14 14
Ei;b Total interest rate desivatives held for trading 247,414 793 1,087
8 Equity and commodity contracts
Equity index lnked contracts held 7,472 932 871
Total derivative assets / habilities held for trading 201,633 1,914 2,250
Derivatives held for hedging
Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
Interost rate swaps 15,757 185 228
Cross currency interest rate swaps 1,101 15 8
Total designated as fair value hedges 16,858 200 236
Derlivatives designated as cash flow hedges
n Interest rate swaps 100,257 735 436
é Cross currency Interest rate swaps 6,598 13
Q Total designated as cash flow hedges 106,855 735 449
Fg Totai derivative assets / Habilities held for hedging 123,713 935 685
_‘_g Total derivative assets / liabilitles 415,348 2,849 2,935
(Y
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16  Dernwvative financial instruments {continued)

Fair Valves
Bank Contract / notional amount Assets Llabilities
31 March 2008 fm €m €m
Derivatives held for trading
Foreign exchange denvatives
Currency forwards 55,078 908 835
Currency swaps 754 71 24
Over the counter currency options 2,561 74 78
Total foreign exchange derivatives held for trading 58,383 1,051 837
Interest rate denvatives
Interest rate swaps 185,720 1,333 1,274
Cross cumency interest rate swaps 29,748 47 1,081
Forward rate agreements 11,919 5 4
Over the counter interest rate options 8,874 50 50
Total interest rate derivatives held for trading 236,261 2,335 2,409
Equity and commaodity contracts
Equity index linked contracts hetd 7,051 445 259
Total darivative assets / Gabilitles held for trading 301,765 3,832 3,605
Derivatives held for hedging
Derivatives designated as faw value hedges
Interest rate swaps 7,510 114 63
Cross currency interest rate swaps 1,185 122
Total designated as fair value hedges 8,705 236 63
Denvatives deslgnated as cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps 83,950 585 654
Total designated as cash flow hedges 83,950 585 654
Total derivative assets / Nlabilitses held for hedging 92,655 B21 nz
Total derivative assets / fiabilitles 394,360 4,853 4,322
Amounts include
Dua fram / to Group undertakings 31,452 338 209

Report & Accounts
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

16 Denwative financial instruments (continued)

Fair values
Bank Contract / notional amount Assets Liabllities
31 March 2007 €m €m €m
Devivatives held for trading
Fareign exchange dervatives
Currency forwards 33,502 149 266
Currency swaps 942 27 14
Owver the counter currency options 2,204 13 12
Total foreign exchange detlvatives held for trading 36,738 189 292
Interest rate denvatives
Interest rate swaps 241,185 828 889
Cross currency Interest rate swaps 27,173 312 394
Forward rate agreements 16,865 1 2
Qver the counter interest rate options 4,143 14 14
Total interest rate derivatives held for trading 289,366 1,155 1,299
Equity and commodity contracts
Equity index linked contracts held 9,321 1,350 1,320
Total derivative assets / liabilities held for trading 335,425 2,694 2911
Detivatives held for hedging
Derivatives designated as fair value hedges
Interest rate swaps 6,207 113 42
Cross currency Interest rate swaps 1,14 15 ]
Tatal designated as fair value hedges 7,308 128 50
Detivatives designated as cash flow hedges
interest rate swaps 100,257 735 436
Total designated as cash flow hedges 100,257 T35 435
Total derivative assets / llabiiities held for hedging 107,565 863 486
Totsl derivative assets / habihtles 442,99 3,557 3,397
Amounts include
Due from / to Group undertakings 34,947 752 515
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16 Denvative financial instruments {continued)

The Group designates certain denvatives as hedging instruments in either farr value or cash flow hedge refationships

Fair value hedges

Certain interest rate and cross currency interest rate denvatives are designated as hedging instruments  These are prmanly used to reduce
the Interest rate and foreign exchange exposure on the Group's fixed rate debt held and debt wssued portfolios

Cash flow hedges

The Group designates certain interest rate and cross currency interest rate swaps in cash flow hedge relationships in order to hedge the

exposure to vanakiity in future cash flows ansing from vanable rate assets and labifites See note 42 for the movement in the cash flow
hedge reserve

The pencds in which the hedged cash flows are expected to occur are shown n the table below

Upio Between Between More than

Group tyear 1to2years 2to5years 5 years Tatal
2008 £m £m €m £m €m
Forecast recevable cash flows 818 754 1,978 5,897 9,447
Forecast payable cash flows (1,491) {1,462) (2,659) (7,586} {13,198)
Up to Between Between Moere than
Group lyear 1to2years 210 5years 5years Total
2007 €m €m €m €m €m
Forecast recewable cash flows 1,174 1123 2,396 9,249 13,942
Farecast payable cash flows {1,750) (2,037} (3,024} (11,038) {17,849)

The hedged cash flows are expected to impact the income statement in the following penods, excluding any hedge accounting adjustments
that may be appled

Up to Between Botween More than
Group 1year 1to2years 21io5years 5 years Total
2008 €m €m €m €m £m
Forecast recelvable cash flows 928 743 1,940 5,838 9,447
Forecast payable cash flows (1,783) (1,343) (2,536) (7 536) (13,198)
Upto Between Between Wore than
Group lyear 1to2years 2to5years Syears Total
2007 €m €m €m €m €m
Forecast recelvable cash flows 1,352 1,039 2,350 9,201 13,942
Forecast payable cash flows (2.132) {1,832) (2,807) (10,988) (17,849)

There ase no forecast transactions for which hedge accountng had previcusly been used, but are now no longer expected to occur
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Notas to the consolidated financial statements

16  Derwatwve financial nstruments {continued)

The penoads in which the hedged cash flows are expected to occur are shown in the table below

Upto Between Between More than
Bank fyear 1to2years 2toeSyears 5 years Total
2008 €m €m £m £m £m
Forecast recelvable cash fiows 616 553 1,373 656 3,198
Forecast payable cash flows 1,238) 1,209) (1,899} (1,001} (5,347
Upte Between Between More than
Bank 1year tto2years 2to5years 5 years Total
2007 £m €m £€m €m £m
Forecast recelvable cash flows 905 803 1,438 620 3,767
Forecast payabie cash flows (1,438) {1,665) (1,912} (1,016) B.031}

The hedged cash flows are expected to Impact the income statement in the following pencds, excluding any hedge accounting adjustments

that may be applied

Upto Between Between More than
Bank {year 1to2years 2toS5years 5 years ‘Total
2008 €m £m £m €m €m
Forecast recewvable cash flows 728 541 1,336 596 3198
Forecast payable cash flows (1.529) {1,080) {1,776} @52} (5,347)
Upto Between Between More than
Bank 1 year tto2years 2tofyears 5 years Total
2007 €m €m €m £m €m
Fotecast recevable cash flows 1,083 718 1,393 573 3,767
Forecast payable cash flows (1,821) {1,460) {1,784) (966} 6 031)

There are no forecast transact:ons for which hedge accounting had previcusly been used, but are now no longer expected to occur
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Notes to the conschdated financial statements

17 Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
€m €m €m €m
Equity securities 7,484 9,241
Government bonds 2,142 2,168
Umit trusts 868 542
Debt secunties 356 756
Loans to customers 59 59
Other financial assots at fair value through profit or loss 10,909 12,707 59

A portion of the Group's ife assurance business takes the legal form of investment contracts, under which legal title to the underlying mvestment is
held by the Group, but the inherent nsks and rewards in the investments 15 borne by the investors Dug to the nature of these contracts, the carrying
value of the assets 1s always the same as the value of the liabiliies due to policyholders and any change in the value of the assets results m an equal
but opposite change in the value of the amounts due to policyholders At 31 March 2008, such assets amounted to €10,460 miion (31 March 2007
€12,403 million}, while the remaning €449 milion (31 March 2007 €304 million) refates to other Group businesses The associated liebilties are
mncluded in kabidities to customers under Investment contracts and insurance contract habibies on the balance sheet

18  Loans and advances to banks

MIARY SSaISNG

FOUBLLIZACL)

Group Bank

2008 2007 2008 2007

€m €m €m £m

Mandatory deposit with central banks. 3,748 2,124 3,642 2,063

Placements with other banks 3,275 2,338 26,024 55,006

Funds ptaced with central banks 2,218 906 2,218 859

Securities purchased with agreement to resel! 168 1,842 168 1,842

Loans and advances to banks 9,409 7,210 32,052 58,770
Amounts include

Due from Group undertakings 23,014 53,036

Due from associates and joint ventures
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19  Avaidable for sale financial assets

Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
€m €m €m €m
Available tor sale financial assets
Govemnment bonds 1,755 6,380 1,755 6,380
Gther debt securities
Iisted 21,059 21,530 18,511 19,260
unlisted 6,450 5,480 5,785 4,027
Equnty securities
listed 20 30 ] ]
unlisted 23 18 1 4
Availlable for sale financial assets 29,307 33,449 27,063 29,700
Amounts include
527 20

Due from Group undertakings

At 31 March 2008, avalable for sale financial assets at far value of €582 million (31 March 2007 €5,659 milion) had been pledged to third

partes In sale and repurchase agreements for penods not exceeding six months

The movernent on avallable for sale financial assets may be summansed as foliows

Group Bank

2008 2007 2008 2007

£m €m €m €m

At 1 Apnl 33,448 28,206 29,700 22,785
Revaluation, exchange ahd other adustments {2,293) (604) {1,786) (50T
Additions 22,312 30,465 21,684 29,330
Sales {10,367 (8,256) (9.673) 7912)
Redemptions {13,883) {16,333) {12,972) {14,448)
Amartisation 94 52 100 3]
Provision far impairment {note 21} 5) 1 1
Transter frotn subsidiary 589
Reclassification 81} (71}
At 31 March 29,307 33,4458 27,083 29,700
i Bank of lreland @ Report & Accounts




20 Loans and advances to customers

Notes to the consoldated financial statements

Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
€m €m €m €m

Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to customers 132,575 121,933 113,770 70,328
Finance leases and hire purchase receivables 3,759 3,543 1,567 1,450

136,334 125,478 115,337 1,778
Less allowance for losses an loans and advances to
customers {(note 21) (596) (428) (464) {344)
Loans and advancas to customers 135,738 125,048 114,873 71,434
Amounts include
Due from group undertakings 17,104 16 709
Due from assocates and jolt ventures 153 181

Finance leases and hire purchase receivables

Loans and advances to customers include finance leases and hire purchase receivables, which are analysed as follows

Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
€m €m €m £m
Gross investment in finance leases

Not later than 1 year 1,512 1,409 664 803
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 2,565 2,385 1,055 977
Later than 5 years 104 125 19 21
4,181 3,919 1,738 1,601
Unearned future finance income cn finance leases {422) (376) (171} (151)
Net investment in finance leases 3,759 3,543 1,567 1,450

The net investment in financa ieases is analysed as follows
Not later than 1 year 1,359 1,273 538 546
Later than 1 year and not later than & years 2,303 2,155 951 885
Later than 5 years 97 115 18 19
3,759 3,543 1,567 1,450

Securitisations and other asset transfers

As part of its capital management process, the Group has engaged in secuntisation transactions of certan of the residential mortgage
assets inits portfolo In general, the assets, or interests in the assets, are transferred to Special Purpose Entries (SPEs), which then issue
habilhes to third party investors All the Group's secuntisation SPEs are consoldated in the financial statements of the Group

Report & Accounts

Bank of Irefand (&) |

MBI SSBUISNYG

BOUBLLIBAOL)

iy
-
o
-
Q.
L
147]
o
%
=
&
=
Pl
o

UOIRILLIOR [BIeUB5)

115




Notes to the consolidated financial statements
L3
5
é 21 Credit nisk exposures
[42]
5 The table betow represents the maxmum exposure to credit nsk for financial assets with matenal credd nskc at 31 March 2008 and 31 March
§ 2007 taking no account of collateral or other credil enhancements held Exposures are based on the net camying amounts as reported 1
oM the balance sheet for on balance sheet assets The breakdown of loans and advances to customers in this note, with the exception of the
geographical / ndusiry analysis tale, reflects how the nsk 1s managed Equity securtties are included m the maximum exposure table for
completeness purpases Interest recevable has been excluded from the table Detals of interest receivable ¢an be found i note 28 The
following tables shouid be read n coryunction with the credit nskc information contained In the Risk Management section on pages 27 o 43
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
€m €m €m €m
Maximum exposure to credit risk
{before collateral or other credit enhancements)
Laans and recelvables
@O Loans and advances to banks 9,409 7,210 32,052 59,770
(é Loans and advances to customers
% > Morigages 60,028 58,811 34,901 465
A > Personal 7189 6,152 4,908 4,032
@ > Commercal 69,117 60,513 75528 67,281 |
Gross loans and advances to customers 138,334 125,476 115,337 71,778 !
Less allawance for losses on loans and advances (5986) {428 {464) (344)
Loans and advances 1o customers 135,738 125,048 114,873 71,434
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Trading securities 119 520 119 520
Designated at snitial recognition
> Unit trusts 868 542 .
. > Govemment bonds 2,142 2,168
g > Equity secunties 7,484 9,241
@
E‘ » Debt secuntles 356 756 |
© » Loans and advances to customers 59 59
E:J—ﬁ Dervative financial instruments 4,568 2,849 4,653 3,557
g Available tor sale financial assets :
;gj Government bonds 1,755 6,380 1,755 6,380 }
Treasury biils and otber bills eigibie for refinancing with central banks 10 11 |
Equity secunties 43 49 2 13
Debit securities 27,814 27,020 25,296 23,307 !
Less aliowance for losses on avajlable for sale financial assets & i
Other assets !
Reinsurance asset 484 336 1
Total 191,444 183,041 179,609 165,770
% Off batance sheet {(note 38} I‘
!
% Contingent liabilities 2,915 2,503 2,757 2,289
£ Commitments 36,381 36,013 30,619 24,364
"g Total off balance shest 39,798 38,516 33,376 26,653
'é‘ Total maximum exposure 231,240 223,557 212985 192,423
g
&
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g]
@
21 Credtt sk exposures {(continued) a
?
In the table below, the industry breakdown of loans and advances to customers 1s based on the sector / type of the borrower or the %5’
guaranter of utimate nsk and the gecgraphic breakdown s based on the location of the business unit where the borrowing 1s booked §
The Group's pnmary markets are Ireland and the UK and exposures onginated and managed in these countnes represent a material
concentration of credit nsk
The Group's expoesure to credtt nsk from its lending actwvidies does not exceed 10% of loans and advances 1o customers after provisicns
in any individual sector or ndusiry with the exception of residential mortgages, construchion and property
The Group's residential mortgage portfalio 1s widely dversified by indaadual borrower and amounts to 45% (31 March 2007 47%) of the gross
loans and advances to customers, 34% (31 March 2007 36%) of the loans and advances in Ireland and 59% (31 March 2007 629%) in the
UK
Group o
2008 £m 2007 €m 2
Goographica! / Incustry analyst %
Iraland %
Personal @
Readential morgages 25 696 24 634
Other lending 6589 6148
Construciion and property 20313 16 305
Business end other services 9032 6284
Manutactunng 5727 5446
Distribution 3,726 3305
Transport 1860 1829
Financial 1720 238
Agricutture 1,379 1300
Energy 1131 889 n
Total treland 78173 68519 8
UK S
Porsonal =)
Rasdential mortgages 34064 35053 %}
Other lenging 2820 2808 (313
Construction and property 15173 13374 @
Businass and other sarvices 2905 2910 &
Manufactunng 1238 1183
Distributon 566 514
Transport s 319
Financial 285 353
Agricuttira 113 105
Energy 112 8
Tots) UK 57 599 56702
Other
Personal o)
Rasdential morgages 1 2 %
Construction and property 10 16 o
Business and other sernces 11 45 i
Markfactumng 128 6 g
Distributon & 6 %
Transport & ;6;
Finarcsal 144 139
Total Other 562 255
Gross loans and advancas to customers 136 334 125 476
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

21 Credrit risk exposures (continued)

The tables below summanse the Group's financial assets over the following categones neither past due nor mpared, past dug but not
imparred and impared Cther financial nstruments alse ncludes the Group's rensurance asset Exposures are based on the gross amount,

before provisions for impairmert

Group
31 March 2008
Other financial
Mortgages Personal Commercial instruments Total
Summary €m £m £€m €m €m
Financial assets neither past due nor Impaired 58,320 6,696 87,237 54,803 187,056
Financial assets past due but not impalred 1,693 262 1,064 3,019
Impaired financial assets 15 23t 816 8 1,070
Total 60 028 7,188 69,117 54811 191,145
Group
31 March 2007
QOther financtal
Morigages Personal Commercial Instruments Total
Summary €m €m €m €m €m
Financlal assets neither past due nor impaired 57,199 5,753 58,750 57,075 178,777
Financial assets past due but not impaired 1,562 245 1,258 3,095
Impalted financial assets 20 154 605 7 686
Total 58,811 6,152 60,513 57,082 182,558
Bank
31 March 2008 Other financlal
Mortgages Parzonal Commerctal Instruments Total
Summary €m £m £m £m £m
Financial assets neither past due nor impaired 33,750 4,484 73,857 63,935 176,006
Financial assets past due but not Impared 1,132 24 1,048 2,421
Imparred financial assets 19 203 623 845
Total 34,901 4,908 75,528 63,935 179,272
Bank
31 March 2007 Other financial
Mortgages Personal Commerelal instruments Total
Summary £€m £€m €m €m €m
Financial assets nerther past due nor impaired 459 3,671 65,635 93,547 163,312
Financlal assets past due but not impaired 228 1,249 1,477
Impaired financiat assets ] 133 397 536
Total 465 4,032 67,281 93,547 165,325

Financial assets neither past due nor impaired
The Group uses internal ratngs as part of its credit nsk management system These have been mapped to the summary ratings below

Mortgage, personal and commercial loans are assigned an internal credit grade based on an assessment of the credd quality of the
borrower A thirteen point grade scale 1s used for more complex, indndually managed exposures, including wholesale, corporate and
business lending A seven pomi grade scale s used for standardised products (including mortgages, personal and small business loans)
Other loans and financial nstruments are assigned an internal rating supported by external ratings of the mayor raling agencies

| Bankoflretand ()
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

21 Credsit nisk exposures (continued)

High quality ratings apply to hughly rated financial cbligors, strong corporate counterparties and personal borowers (includmg residential
mortgages} with whom the Group has an excellent repayment experience High qualty are denved from grades 1 to 4 on the thiteen pont grade
scale, grades 1 and 2 on the seven pont grade scale and ratings equivalent 1o AAA, AA+, AA AA |, A+ A A BBB+ and BBB for the external
major ratng agencies

Satisfactory qualty ratings apply to financial assets that are performing as expected, including leans and advances to small and medum
sized enterpnsas, leveraged entities and more recently established businesses Satisfactory quality also includes some element of the
Group's retal portfolos Satisfactory ratings are derived from grades 5 to 7 on the thirteen point grade scale, grade 3 on the seven pont
grade scale and external ratings equivalent to BBE and BB+

Acceptable qualty ratings apply to customers with increased nsk profiles that are subject to closer monitonng and scrutiny by lenders with
the objective of managing risk and moving accounts to an improved rating category Acceptabla qualty ratings are derved from grades

8 and 9 on the thirteen point grade scale, grade 4 outstandings that are neither past due nor mparred within the seven point scale and
external ratings equivalent to BB and B+

The lower qualty but not past due nor impared rating applies to nsks that are neither in arrears nor expected to result in loss but where the
Group requires a work down or work out of the relationship unless an early reduction in nsk 1s achievable Lower quahty ratings are derved
from outstandings that are neither past due nor impaired within ratngs grades 10 and 11 on the thirteen point grade scale and grade 5 on

the seven pont grade scale and external ratings equivalent to B or below

All assets in grades 12 and 13 on the thiteen point grade scale and grades € and 7 on the seven point grade scale are impared

Group
31 March 2008
Other financial

Risk profile of financlal assets Mortgages Personal Commercial instruments Total
nether past dus nor impaired €m €m £m €m €m
High quality 57,754 5,123 15,075 45,748 123,700
Satisfactory quality 845 1,394 45,152 8,977 56,0688
Acceptable quality 21 170 6,338 B5 5,592
Lower quality but not past due nor impaired 9 674 13 698
Total 58,320 6,698 67,237 54,803 187 056
Group

31 March 2007

Other financial

Risk profile of financlal assets Mortgages Personal Commercial instruments Total
neither past due nor impaired €m €m €m €m £m
High quality 56,753 4,028 13,433 46,394 120,608
Satisfactory quality M7 1,641 41,239 10,570 53,867
Acceptable quality 29 84 3,736 99 3,048
Lower quality but not past due nor impaired 342 12 354
Total 57,199 5,753 58,750 57,075 178,777
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Notes to the consolidated financial staterments

21 Credit risk exposures (continued)
Bank
31 March 2008

Other financial
Risk profile of financial assets Mortgages Personal Commercial Instruments Total
nelther past due nor impaired €m €m €m £m £m
High quality 33,184 2,891 27,821 63,396 121,392
Satisfactory quaity 545 1,394 39,812 453 42,214
Acceptable quality 21 170 5572 63 5,826
Lower quality but not past due nor imparired 9 552 13 574
Total 33,750 4,464 73,857 53,935 176,006
Bank
31 March 2007

Other financlal

Risk profile of financlal assets Mortgages Personal Commercial instruments Total
neither past due nor impalred €m €m £m €m €m
High quality 13 1,983 25,840 93,349 121,185
Satisfactory quality 417 1,604 36,063 86 38,170
Acceptable quality 29 34 3,503 100 3,716
Lower quality but nat past due nor Impatred 229 12 241
Total 459 3,671 $5,835 93,547 183,312

Financial assets past due but not Impaired

Where possible, the tables will generally exclude amounts ansing from operational / timing issues that are outside the contrdl of customers

Consistent with the introduction of a 'past due but not wmpaired' category, the Group has reclassified those loans which are past due more
than 90 days on which it does not expect to incur a loss, from imparred loans

As operationally impracticable, the Group has avalled of the option under IFRS 7 to not disclose the far vatue of collateral held aganst past

due or mpaved financal assets
Group
31 March 2008

Other financial
Financial assets past due but Mortgages Personal Commerclal instruments Total
not Impaired €m €m £m €m €m
Past due up to 30 days B49 200 744 1,793
Past due 31 - 60 days 18 44 165 527
Past due 61 - 90 days 134 16 100 250
Past due more than 90 days 392 2 55 449
Total 1,693 262 1,064 3me

| Bank of Ireland &)
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21 Credit risk exposures {continued) @
@
I

Group @
=
@D

31 March 2007 2

Othet Tinancial

Financial assets past due but Mortgages Personal Cormmercial instruments Total

not impaved €m €m €m £m £€m

Past due up to 30 days 862 190 659 1,711

Past due 31 60 days 307 39 336 682

Past due 61 — 60 days 134 13 140 287

Past due more than 90 days 289 a 123 415

Total 1,592 245 1,258 3,095

Bank

31 March 2008 g)
<

Other tinancial @

Financilal assets past due but Mortgages Personal Commercial instruments Total =

not impaired €m £m €m £m £m 2
[}

Past dua up to 30 days 621 187 730 1,538 @

Past dua 31 60 days 225 39 164 428

Past due 81 90 days 8z 13 99 204

Past due more than 80 days 194 2 55 251

Total 1,132 241 1,048 2,421

Bank

31 March 2007

Other financial

Financial assets past dua but Mortgages Personal Commercial Instruments Total

not impaired €m €m €m €m €m uE
=

Past dua up to 30 days 180 651 831 2
o

Past due 31 60 days 34 335 369 &

Past due 61 90 days 1 140 151 w
=

Past due more than 90 days 3 123 126 @'

Total 228 1,248 1477 @
W

Impaired financral assets

Please refer to page 33 of the Risk Management sectien for infarmatien on the Group's approach to assessing ynparment

Group
31 March 2008
ther financial
Mortgages Personal Commerctal instruments Totat
fmpaired financial assets £m €m €m €m €m
(D]
Impatred financial assets 15 231 B16 8 1,070 %
&
2
Allowancs at beginning of year 19 121 288 428 =
ok
Exchange adjustments @ (4 23 29 @
Amounts written off @ (15 (25) (43) g
Recoveries 2 6 5 13 8
Charge against income statement 5 79 143 5 232
Allowance at end of year 21 187 388 5 601
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MNaotes to the consohdated financial statements
Z
@
E 2t  Creds risk exposures (canhnued)
<
% Allowances nclude specific and Incurred but not reported’ (IBNR) allowances [BNR allowances can be recognised on ail categories of
@B loans for losses not specifically 1dentified but which, expenence and observable data indicate, are present in the porticho at the date of
=
m assessmant The classification of loans In the pnor year has been updated to refiect the IFRS 7 segments |n particular, only those loans on
which the Group expects to incur a loss are classfied as rmparred in ine with IFRS All other loans are ctassified as 'neither past due nor
impared’ or ‘past due but not impalred’ The effect of this1s 1o reduce imparred loans and advances to customers i the prior year from
€968 milhon to €679 milion
The allowance of €601 million at 31 March 2008, 1s held agamnst loans and advances to customers €586 mllon {31 March 2007 €428
million) and avatable for sale financial assets €5 millon (31 March 2007 i) The commercial classdication includes an allowance of €2
rrilion at the beginning and end of the year relating to ather financial instruments
The Commeroial cassification iIncludes €81 million relating to the Group's exposure to Structured Investment Vehicles (SVs) with the related
impairment provision of €45 milhon
5 The Group had a total exposure to Collateralised Debt Oblgations (CDOs) of €43 million ai 31 March 2008 all of which s classified as other
§ financial mstruments Of this amount, €30 mifion relates to the Group's own CBO vehicle, Partholon (see note 53) which s fully consohdated
& into the Group's financial statements Of the rermaining exposure, £9 milion 1s nesther wnpaired nor past due whie the balance of €4 million is
(% imparred with a related €2 milon provisicn
The Group's exposure to Monoline Insurers {pnmanly through wrapped products) of €127 milion s nerther past due nor impared and 15
classified in other financial Instruments
Group
31 March 2007
Other financial
Mortigages Persanal Commerciat Instrumenis Total
impaired financial assets €m €m €m €m €m
impatred financial assets 20 154 505 7 6686
£
?_é Allowance at beginning of year 8 102 250 360
.S_.m" Exchange adjustrments 1 1
&h Amounts wntten off @ 28) (23 {53)
.’g Recoverles 1 9 a 19
5 Charge against income statement 12 42 49 103
L,E_ Other movements (4} 2 (2
Altowance at end of year 19 121 288 428
Bank
31 March 2008
Other financial
Mortgages Personal Commetrcial Instruments Total
Impaired financial assets £m €m £m tm €
Impaired financlal assets 19 203 823 845
[}
= Allowance at beginning of year 107 237 344
g Exchange adustments () (19) 08
= Amounts written off @ (0 (18 {30)
_ﬁ Recoverles 5 5 10
[ b
a’:) Transfer of provisions from subsidiary undertakings 8 8
o Charge against ncome statement 4 72 72 148
Allowance at end of year 10 173 281 464
122 I Bankof reland @ Report & Accounts
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29 Credit nisk exposures (continued) &
o
D

Bank (2
@

31 March 2007 =

Other financial
Mortgages Personal Commercial instrumants Total

Impaired financial assets €m €m €m €m €m

Impafred financial assets ] 133 397 536

Allowance at beginning of year 69 192 261 B

Exchange adjustments 2 2

Amounts wniten oft {20) 20) [40)

Recovenes 16 <] 16

Charge aganst income statement A8 56 104

Other movements 1 1 [
Q

Allowance at end of year 107 237 344 S
=
o
3
&
[o)

Financial assets renegotiated that would otherwiso be past due or Impaired

Financial assets may be renegotiated at the request of the Group or the customer for commerciat purposes, where there 1s evidence of the

continuing ability of the customer to meet renegotiated payment obligations Where facilities that are past due or impaired are renegotiated,

1t 15 1he Group's standard practice 1o retan these facilites in the past due or impaired classifications unti the customer nas demonstrated

the abiity to meet present and future commitments The balance of facilities that have been renegotiated that would otherwise be past due

or mpaired as at 31 March 2008 was nil {31 March 2007 nil)

Repossessed collateral

Burng the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group took possession of collateral held as secunty, as follows g’
g

Q.

B

31 March 2008 31 March 2007 w

€m €m L

Y

Residential properties 34 33 b
3

@

Repossessed properties are sold as soon as practicable, with the proceeds appled aganst cutstanding indebtedness

UDHEBLL DL [P 18UA5)
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Notes to the consoldated financial statements

22  Interest in associated undertakings

Group
2008 2007
€m €m
At 1 Apri 26 21
Shara of results after tax [0} 1
Increase In investments 3 4
At 31 March 28 28
In presenting detalls of the associated undertakings of the Group, the exemption permitted by Regulation 10 of the European
Communities {Credit Insttutions  Accounts) Regulations, 1992 has been avasled of and the Group will annex to its annual return to the
Compantes Office, a full listing of associated undertakings
23  Interestinjoint ventures
Group
2008 2007
€m £m

At 1 April 73 75
Acquisitions 21
Share of results after tax 47 43
Exchange adjustments (16) 2
Dividends received [34) (68)
At 31 March 70 73

The jont ventures ara First Rate Exchange Services, Enterpnse 2000 Fund and Paul Caprtal Investments, LLC The joint venture with Paul

Capital Partners was established i June 2006 See note 51 for further detads

I Bank of freland (&)

Report & Accounts




Notes to the consolidated financial statements
o8}
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@
24  Shares in Group undertakings &
&
Bank %‘j
=
2008 2007 (g
£m €m
At 1 Apnil 2,041 1,965
Exchange adjustments (28) 18
Net change dunng year {751) 58
At 31 March 1,262 2,041
Group undertakings of which
Credit Institutions 635 63§
Others 627 1,406
1,262 2,041
m
2
Cn 1 October 2007, the business of Bristol 8 West plc iransferred to the UK branch of the Governor and Company of the Bank of Ireland, @
pursant to a banking business transfer scheme under Part VIl of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 g
9]
@
25  intangible assets
Computer Computer Other
software software externally
externally Iinternally purchased
Goodwill purchased generated intangible assets Total
Group £m £m £m €m €m
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2007 347 313 726 151 1,537
Exchange adjustments 54) (19) {14) @2 {109y -
Reclassiications &3 ar 4 FH
>3
Addtions 10 67 21 98 ;_'.;‘
Disposals / write-offs {4) (8) ) (14 P
At 31 March 2008 203 267 BO7 149 1,518 %
3
Accumulated amortisation and g
impairment losses r':n'
At 1 April 2007 212) {347) “n (594)
Exchange adjustments 6 5 7 18
Reclassifications 4 4
Disposals / write-offs 4 9 1 14
Charge for period {9) {70) [} (87)
2621 March 2008 21%) {401) 4% 653y
Net Book Value at 31 March 2008 293 56 406 108 863

UCBLLIGI| [2U8US5)

Report & Accounts Bank of reland (&) | 125




Business Review

Gowemance

o
2
ot
@
£
o
©
©
j4p]
T
Q
[
5
p=
1he

General infotmation

126

Notes to the consohdated financial statements

25  Intangible assets (continued}

Group Computer Computer Other
software software externally
externalty ntemaly purchased
Goodwill purchased generated intangible assets Tota)
£m €m €m £m €m
Cost
At 1 April 2006 375 312 8558 146 1,491
Acquisition / disposal
of subsidiary urdertaking (14 (t49
Goodwill / intangibles arising
on acquisitions during the year 2 4 ]
Exchange adjustments 28 3 1 1 (23)
Reclassifications m {1} @
Additions 23 82 106
Disposals / write offs (10} (14) (24)
Goodwill written back on disposals [vi] {2)
At 31 March 2007 347 33 726 151 1,537
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses
At 1 April 2006 (210) (289) 27 (526)
Acquisition / dispasal
of subsidiary undertaking 10 10
Disposals / write-offs 6 13 19
Charge for perlod {18 (85) {14 @7
At 31 March 2007 (212 {341) 41) (594)
Net Book Value at 31 March 2007 347 101 385 110 843
Barnk Computer Computer GCther
software software externally
externally internally purchased
purchased generated intangible assets Total
€m £m €m €m
Cost
At 1 April 2007 201 649 850
Exchange adjustments © ©) (18)
Teansfers to / from other Group units 16 3 37 B4
Additions 8 45 53
Disposals / write-offs (n 4] (8
Reclassification 1 (1)
At 31 March 2008 216 708 37 o961
Accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
At 1 Apnl 2007 (143) (308) 451)
Exchange adjustments 3 2 5
Transfers to / from other Group units (16) 5] {12} @
Disposals / wilte offs ;] 6
Charge for the period @ (58) 13} (68
AL 31 March 2008 (163) (367) (13 (543)
Net book value at 31 March 2008 53 341 24 418

{ Bankof reland ()
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25 intangible assets (continued)

Computer Computer Qther

softwara software externally
Internally Internally purchased

generated generated Intangible assets Total
Bank € €m £m €m
Cost
At 1 Aprll 2006 187 596 783
Exchange adjustments 1 1 2
Additions 17 &4 81
Disposals / write-offs {5) (11} {18)
Reclassification 1 {1
At 31 March 2007 201 649 850
Accumulated amoartisation and impairment losses
At 1 April 2006 (135) (261} (396)
Exchange adjustments
Disposals / wnte-offs 5 10 15
Charge for the period (13) (57) (70}
At 31 March 2007 (143) (308} 451}
Net book value at 31 March 2007 58 N 399

impairment Review Goodwill

Goodwill 1s reviewed annually for impairment or more frequently if events or crcumstances indicate that impairment may have ocourred by

companng the carrying valus of goodwill to its recoverable amount An impaimnent loss anses f the camying value exceeds the recoverahle
amount

The recoverable amount of an asset 1s the higher of is far value less costs to sell and s value in use, where the value n use is the present
value of the future cash flows expected to be derved from the asset

Impairment testing of goodwill
At 31 March 2008, total goodwill on the Group balance sheet was €293 milion (31 March 2007 €347 million) Goodwaill 1s allocated to cash
generating unis at a level which represents the smallest identrfiable group of assets that generate largely independent cash flows

Included in the totat goodwill are €48 milion (31 March 2007 €56 millon) relating to Burdale, €168 million (31 March 2007 €198 million)
relating fo Inchan and €72 mition (31 March 2007 €86 million) relating to Guggenheim The remaining aggregatae Group goedwill at 31
March 2008 of €5 milien {31 March 2067 €8 million) was compnsed of balances not considered Indmdually significant

The calcutation of the recoverable amount of goodwill for each of these cash generating units 1s based upon a value in use calculation that
discounts expected pre tax cash flows at an interest rate approprate to the cash generating unit The determination of both require the
exercise of judgement The estimation of pre tax cash flows 15 sensitive fo the penods for which forecasted cash flows are available and
te assumptions underpinrung the sustanatilty of those cash flows While forecasts are compared with actual performance and external
economic data, expected cash flows reflect management’s view of future periormance

The values assigned to key assumptions reflect past expenence, performance of the business to date and management judgement
The recoverable amount catculations performed for the significant amounts of goodwill are sensitive 1o changes n the following key
assumptions

Cash flow forecasts

Cash flow forecasts are based on internal management information for a period of up to fve vears, after which a growth factor appropnate
for the business 1s apphed Initial cash flows are based on performance in the current year and the next four years cash flows are consistent
with approved plans for each business The cash flows for Indian and Guggenheim are sensitive to future management and performance
fees and growth In assets under management

Report & Accounts Bank of ireland (&) |
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Notes to the consohdated financial staterments

25 Intangible assets (continued)

Growth rates
Growth rates beyond five years are determined by reference to local economic growth, inflation projections or long term bond yields The

assumed growth rates are 2 25% for Burdale and 3% for Indign and Guggenheim

Discount rate
The discount rate apphed n all cases 1s the pre tax waighted average cost of capital for the Group increased to include a nsk premium to
reflect the specific risk profile of the cash generating unit to the extent that such nsk 18 not already reflected n the forecast cash flows A rate

of 9% has been used in the models
Certain elements within these cash flow forecasts are cntical io the performance of the business The impact of changes In these cash

flows, growth rate and discount rate assumptions has been assessed by the Directors in the revew The Direclors conaider that reasonable
changes In key assumptions used to determine the recoverable amounts of Burdale, Indian and Guggenheim will not result in any material

imparment of goodwill

No imparment was dentrfied in the years ended 31 March 2008 or 31 Mareh 2007

26  [Investment property

Group

2008 2007

€m €m

At 1 April 1,142 807
Pevaluaticn {149) 96
Additions 529 263
Disposals {11) {24)
At 31 March 1,511 1,142

Investment properties are camed at far value as determined by external qualfied property surveyors appropriate to the vanety of properties
held Far values have been cakeulated using both current trends i the market and recent transachons for similar properties Investment

properties are held by Bol Life on behalf of policyholders

i Bankoflreland () Report & Accounts
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o
=
@
27  Property, plant and equpment a
@
s
ki)
Payments E%
Freehold land on account <
and buildings Gomputer Finance  and assets in
and long and other lease  the course of
leaseholds Adaptations equipment assets construction
{at fair value) {at cost) {at cost} {at cost} (at cost) Total
Group £m £m €m €m €m €m
Cost or valuation
At 1 Aprll 2007 442 127 683 8 7 1,267 —
E£xchange adjustments (19 4 [25) i {a3)
Addrhons 23 31 54
Disposals () (1} (24) (26)
Revaluation @7 @0
Reclassifications (11} 2 1 (3} (11 o
At 31 March 2008 380 124 658 7 35 1,204 2
@
5
Accumulated depreclation and A
amortisation @
Al 1 April 2007 (42) (553) ] {602)
Exchange adjustmeants 2 1 1 22
Disposals 1 18 19
Charge for year {16) (34) (50)
At 31 March 2008 {55) (550) {6} s11)
MNet book value at 31 March 2008 380 69 108 1 35 593
The net book value of property, ptant and equipment at 31 March 2008 above may be further analysed as follows
€m
At cost 213
Al fair valua 380
593

ut!
w
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3
&
o
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Notes 1o the consolidated financial statements
=
D
Eq? 27  Property, plant and equipment (contmued)
%]
7]
D
=
%] Paymenis on
= Freehold land account and
o and buitdings Computer Finance assets inthe
and long and other lease cowrse of
leaseholds Adaptations equipment assets construction
(at faw valuej {at cost) (at cost) {at cost) (at cost} Total
Group £m €m €m €m £m £€m
Cost or valuation
At 1 April 2006 627 124 676 10 -] 1,443
Acquisttions / disposal
of subsidiary undertaking (8} {19 27
Exchange adjustments 2 3 5
Additlons 3 4 37 13 87
Disposals / write-offs {151) {1 (18) 2) (72
8 Revaluation 34 34
&
o] Reclassifications 73 8 4 (12 73)
§ At 31 March 2007 442 127 683 B 7 1,267
Q
&
Accumulated depreciation and
amortisation
Al 1 April 2006 (33} (542) ® (583
Exchange adjustments @ 2)
Disposals / write-offs 14 1 15
Charge for year (14) 40) (54)
Acquisitions / disposal
of subsichary undertaking 3 17 22
At 31 Match 2007 (42) (553) m (602}
Net hook value at 31 March 2007 442 as 130 1 7 665
=
ol
@
oy
<
& The net book vaiue of property, plant and equipment at 31 March 2007 above may be further analysed as follows.
) €m
o At cost 223
O
o At fair value 442
s
i B65

General information
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27  Property, plant and equiprnent (continued)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Payments
Freehold land on account
and buildings Computer Finance and assets in
and long and other lease  the course of
k hold p equipment assets construction
{at fair value) {at cost) {at cost) {at cost) (at cost) Total
Bank m €m £m €m €m €m
Caost or valuation
At 1 April 2007 337 i 553 5 5 1,011
Transfers to / from other Group Units 1 a4 a7
Exchange adjustments (4 (3 an 24)
Additions 20 3 51
Disposals / wnte offs n )] 8 {10)
Reclassifications (11 1 1 2 {11)
Revaation (30 30
At 31 March 2008 291 109 583 T 34 1,024
Accumulated depreciation and
amortisation
At 1 April 2007 {37 {447} (5) (489)
Transfer to / from other group unds {28} 1)) (29)
Exchange adjustments 1 12 13
Disposals / wnite offs 1 3 4
Charge for year 114} {28) {42)
Al 31 March 2008 (49} (488) (6) (543}
Net book value at 31 March 2008 291 60 95 1 34 481
The net book value of property, plant and equipment at 31 March 2008 above may be further analysed as follows P
m
Al cost 190
At fair value 201
- 481
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements
Z
@
é?:a 27  Propenty, plant and equipment {continued)
)
i
2
%] Payments
= Freehold land on account
o and buildings Computer Flnance and assets in
and long and other lease the course of
leasehalds Adaptations equipment assets construction
{at far value) {at cost) {at cost) {at cost) {at cost) Total
Bank €m €m €m €m €m £m
Cost or valuation
— At 1 Aprit 2008 528 99 531 5 5 1,168
Tranafers to / from other Group Units 1 4 1 6
Exchange adjusiments 1 2 3
Additions 3 4 25 12 44
Disposals / wnte offs (148) (1) (13) (162}
@ Reclassifications (88} 8 4 {13) (69)
2 Revaluation 21 21
]
c At 31 March 2007 337 111 553 5 5 1,011
@
3
v Accumulated depreciation and
amortisation
At 1 Aprit 2008 25) (427 ] {457
Exchange adjustments {2) @
Disposals / wte offs 1" 1t
Charge for year [12) 29) {41)
At 31 March 2007 (67 (447) (5) (489)
Net boak value at 31 March 2007 337 74 106 5 522
The net book value of property, plant and equipment at 31 March 2007 above may be further analysed as follows £€m
2 At cost 185
-
€ At tarr value 837
E —_
%é 522
o
8 Property
=
3
T A revaluation of all Group property was carned out as al 31 March 2008 All freehald and Jong leasehold (50 years or more unexpired)

commercial properties were valued by Lisneys as external valuers, who also reviewed the valuation of all other property carmed out by the
Bank's professionally qualified staff Valuations were made on the basis of open market value

Sale and leaseback

The Group executed sale and leaseback transactions for 30 retail branches {31 March 2007 386 retal branches) which yrelded a profit of
€33 mition (31 March 2007 €86 milkon) Gngong rental commtments are €4 million and the leases are classified as operating leases Other
properties that were sold in the normal course of business netted a profit on disposal of €6 milkon {31 March 2007 €1 million)

Further disposals are being progressed with a net boek vatue of €19 million (31 March 2007 €73 milion) which includes €8 million carmed
forward fram the year ended 31 March 2007 and €11 millon that have been reciassified from property, plant and equipment These
properties are shown as assets classified as held for sale (hote 29} in the year ended 31 March 2008

General Information
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27 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements

Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
€m €m €m €m
Future capital expenrditure
contracted but not provided in the financlal statements 19 3 19 3
authorised by the Directors but not contracied 39 14 39 13
Minmum future rentals under non cancellable operating leases are as follows
Group
Payable Receivable
€m €m
Year endad 31 March 2008
Mot tater than 1 year T3
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 256
Later than 5 years 540
28  Other assets
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
£€m €m €m £€m
Interest recewvable 200 atl 800 789
Sundry debtors and other 574 794 163 317
Value in force of life assurance business (hote 54) 548 580
Reinsurance asset 484 336
Accounts receivable and prepayments 248 268 135 121
Other assets 2,754 2,389 1,098 1,227
Other assets may be analysed as follows
Within 1 year 1,690 1,946 1,096 1,224
After 1 year 1,064 943 2 3
2,754 2,889 1,008 1,227
29 Assets classified as held for sale
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m €m €m €m
Aetal branches 1 58 " 56
Other properties 221 27 133 22
Assets classified as held for sale 232 83 144 78

Cther properties primanly relate to transactions that the Group has entered into on hehalf of private chents It is anticipated that these proper

ties will be disposed of in due course
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Notes o the conschdated financial statements
=
D
é 30 Deposis by banks
5 Group Barnk
@ 2008 2007 2008 2007
% €m €m £€m €m
3
w Securities sold under agreement to repurchase 1,749 6,147 1,749 6,147
Deposits by other banks 12,099 14,258 258,829 40,532
Other bank berrowings 282 282
Deposits by banks 14,130 20,405 30,860 46,679
Amounts include
Due to Group undertakings 16,750 26,980
Due to assoclates and joint ventures
[4b}
Q 31 Customer accounts
2
s
% Group Bank
& 2008 2007 2008 2007
€m €m £m €m
Current accounts 16,327 16,932 28,282 23,578
Demand deposits 36,788 25,393 35,819 22,036
Tarm deposits and other products 31,514 27,333 24,838 19 866
Qther short term borrowings 1,605 2,619 1,171 887
Customer accounts 86,234 72,277 90,110 68,367
Amounts include
Due to Group undertakings 11,959 6,649
Due 1o associates and joint ventures 131 150
32 Debt secunties inissue
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
£m €m €m £m
Bonds and meduurn term notes 27,836 20,837 18,828 20,610
Other debt securities i issue 33,006 29,686 26,950 21,187
Debt securitles in Issue 60,842 59,523 45,778 41,797

General Information
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
93]
=
«a
33  Subordinated habilities 2
@
Group Bank (-:DU
<
o]
2008 2007 2008 2007 =
Undated loan capital £m €m €m €m
Bank of Ireland UK Holdings plc
(a) €600 million 7 40% Guaranteed Step up Callable Perpetual Preferred
Securtties 615 518
(b) Stge350 milion 6 25% Guaranteed Callable Perpetual Preferred Securiies 3584 448
BOI Capital Funding (No 1) LP
{c) €600 milhon Fixed Rate / Variable Rate Guaranteed Non voting
Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Securties 580 588
BQI Capital Funding (Ne 2) LP
(d) US$B00 milicn Fixed Rate / Vaniable Rate Guaranteed Non vohing
Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferrod Securties 541 583
BOI Capital Funding (No 3)LP g)
(e) US$400 million Fixed Rate / Variable Rate Guaranteed Non vating é
Non Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Securities 270 294 =
4]
BOI Capital Funding (No 4)LP c:_g
{0 Stge500 milion Fixed Rate / Vanable Rate Guararteed Non voting @
Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Securtties 602 707
Bank of lreland
{g) Stgt75 million 13%/3% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds 156 182 156
Bristol & West pic
(h) Stg£32 6 milion 87/2% Non Cumulative Preference Shares a1 74
3,209 3,494 156
Dated loan capital
Bank of Ireland
€750 milion 6 45% Subotdinated Bonds due 2010 767 775 767 775 %-I
€600 millen Subordinated Floating Rate Notes due 2013 600 600 600 600 f’:‘,‘)
Can$400 million Fixed Floating Rate Subordinated Notes due 2015 242 255 242 255 f‘f_ﬁ
€600 milion Subordinated Floating Rate Notes due 2017 599 5998 599 599 %-)
€750 million Subordinated Floating Rate Notes due 2017 768 748 768 748 (:I)"
StgE400 million Fixed Floatng Rate Subordinated Notes due 2018 500 584 500 584 cj:a
Us$600 milllon Subordinated Floating Rate Notes due 2018 379 3are o
Stge75 milkan 103/2% Subordinated Bonds due 2018 98 11 o8
€650 million Fixed Floating Rate Subordinated Notes due 2019 646 642 646 642
Sigf500 million Fixed Floating Rate Subordinated Loan due 2036 625 731
4,589 4,314 5,224 4,934
7,808 7,808 5,380 4934
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

33  Subordmnated hablities {continued)

(2) €600 rmullion 7 40% Guaranteed Step Up Callable Perpetual Preferred Securties
©On 7 March 2001 Bank of Ireland UK Holdings plc {the Issuer) 1ssued €600 million 7 40% Guaranteed Step up Callable Perpetual Preferred
Securnties {the Preferred Securtties) which have the benefit of a subordinated guaraniee by the Bank

Business Renew

The Preferred Secunties are perpetual secunties and have no malunty date However, they are redsemnable n whole or in part at the option

of the lssuer subject to the prior conaent of 1he Financial Regufator and of the Bank, at thelr pnncipal amount together with any outstanding
payments on 7 March 2011 or any coupon payment date thereafter The Preferred Securtties bear interest at a rate of 7 40% per annum 10
7 March 2011 and therealter al a rate of three month Eunbor plus 3 26% per annum, reset quarterty

The nghts and clams of the helder of the Preferred Securtties are subordinated to the clams of the senior creditors of the Issuer or of

the Bank (as the case may be) In that no payrnent in respect of the Preferred Secunties or the guarantee in respect of them shall be due

and payable except to the extent that the lssuer or the Bank {as apphcable) 1s sovent and could make such payment and stil ba sohvent
immediately thereafter Upon any winding up of the Tssuer or the Bank (n respect of claims under the guarantee), the holders of the Prefarred
Secunties will rank pan passu with the holders of the most senior class or classes of preference shares or stock if any) of the issuer or of the
Rank then n 1ssue and i pronty to all other shareholders of the Issuer and of the Bank

() Stgt350 miion 6 25% Guaranteed Callable Perpetual Preferred Securities
On 17 March 2003 Bank of Ireland UK Holdings pic (the Issuer) issued Stgf350 milkon 6 25% Guaranteed Callabie Perpetual Preferred
Securtes {the Preferred Secunties) which have the benefit of a subardinated guarantse by the Bank.

Governance

The Preferred Securiies are perpetual securties and have no matunty date However they are redeemable n whoie but not in part at the
option of the Issuer subject to the prior consent of the Financial Regulater and of the Bank, at thar prncieal amount togather with any
outstanding payments on 7 March 2023 or any coupon date thereafter The Preferred Secunties bear interest at a rate of 6 25% per anoum
to 7 March 2023 and thereafter at a rate of sxx month S1g€ Libor plus 1 70% per annum, reset semu annually

The nights and claims of the holders of the Preferred Secuntes are subordinated to the claims of the senior creditors of the Issuer or the
Bank (as the case may be} n that no payment n respect of the preferred secunties or the guaranies shall be due and payable except to the
exient that the lssuer or the Bank (as applicable) i1s solvent and could make such payment and stil be solvent immedhately thereafter Upon
winding up of the Issuer or the Bank (in respect of clams under the guarantee), the holder of the Preferred Secunties will rank pan passu
with holders of the most semor class or classes of preference shares or stock or other preferred securties {if any) of the lssuer or the Bank
then In Issue and in prionty to all other shargholders of the Issuer and the Bank

{c) €600 miion Fixed Rate / Vanable Rate Guaranteed Non voting Nan cumudative Perpetudl Preferred Secunties
On 2 March 2005 BOI Capdal Funding (No 1) LP (the Issuer) 1ssued £600 rmillon Fixed Rate / Vanable Rate Guaranteed Non voling
Non cumutatve Perpetual Preferred Secursties (the Preferred Securiies) having the benefit of a subordinated guarantes by the Bank
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The Preferred Secunties, comensing Emited partnershup nterests in BOt Capdal Funding N 1) LP, are perpetual secunties with no matunty
date However they are redeemable, subject 10 the prior approval of the Financial Regulator, on 3 March 2010 or any distriution payrnent
date thereafier, n whole but not In part, at the option of BOI G P No 1 Limited, which 1s the Genera) Partner of the Issuer, at thewr pnncipal
amount plus any outstanding payments due

The Preferred Securties bear interest at a rate of 6 25% per annum to 3 March 2007 and thereafier at a vanable rate of interest per annum
which 1s the lesser of () the aggregate of 0 10% per annurm and the annual spot 10 year EUR fixed versus six month Eunbor swap rate and
(ily 8% per annum

The ssuer will not pay any distnbutions and the guarantor will not make any payment In respect of distributions under the subordinated
guarantee to the extentt that such payment would exceed adjusted distributable reserves or even f adjusted distributable reserves are
sufficient to the extent that such payment would breach or cause a breach of Capital Adequacy Regulations then applicable to the Group
as determined by the Guarantor's Court of Directars, or to the extent that the guarantor is nat meeting s mirvmum caprital requirements
or 1 not mesting ds solvency ratios, or provided a Deemed Declaration Notice has not been delvered, if the Guarantor's Court of Directors
has resolved no distrbutions should ba made, or if the Regulator has nstructed the Generat Partner or the Guarantor not to make such

payment

General Information
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33  Subordinated habilities (continued}

The Preferred Secunties, together with the subordinated guarantss, are intended to provide holders with nghts an iquidation equnvalent
to non cumulative preference shares of the Guarantor Clams under the Preferred Secunt:es in respect of any liquidation distnbutions wil
rank senior to the nghts of the General Pariner in respect of other partnership interests 1issued by the Issuer and pan passu with claims
of the holders of all other preferred securities 1ssued by the |ssuer which rank pan passu with the Preferred Secunties

MalARY ssauisng

The nghts and clams of the holders of the Preferred Secunties rank (§ junior to all iabifities of the guarantor including subordinated habiities
(in each case other than any habifdy of the guarantor which constitutes Tier 1 Capital or which 1s referred to n (i) or {ii) below and any
other hability expressed to rank pan passu with or jrtor to the subordinated guarantee), (i) pan passu with panty securities issued by the
guarantor and any guarantee of the guarantor ranking pan passu with the subordinated guarantee and (i} serior to junior share capital

{d} US$800 midlion Fixed Rate / Vanable Rate Guaranteed Non voting Non-gurmulative Perpetual Preferred Securities

On 27 January 2006 BOI Capital Funding (No 2) LP (the tssuer} 1ssued LUS$800 millen Fixed Rate / Vanable Rate Guaranteed Non voting
Non curnulative Perpetual Preferred Secunties (the Preferred Secunties) having the benefit of a subordinated guarantee by the Bank,
each with a liquidation preference of US$1,000

The Preferred Secunties, compnsing brited partnership interests in BOI Capital Funding (No 2) LP, are perpetual secunties with no maturdy
date However they are redeemable, subjact to the prior approval of the Financial Regulator, on 1 February 2016 or any distnbution payment
date thereafter, n whole but not in part, at the option of BOI G P No 1 Limited, which 1s the General Partner of the Issuer, at the liquidation
preference plus any additional amounts and outstanding payments due

BTUBLIBADL)

The Preferred Securities bear interest at a rate of 5 571% per annum to but excluding 1 February 2016 and thereafter at a floating rate of
interest of 1 68% per annum above the rate for US$ Libor three month US dollar deposits

The Issuer will not pay any distrbutions and the guarantor will not make any payment in respect of distribputions under the subordinated
guarantee fo the extent that such payment would exceed adjusted distnbutable reserves or even f adusted distnbutable reserves arg
sufficient to the extent that such payment would breach or cause a breach of capital adequacy regulations then applicable to the Group

as determined by the Guarantor's Court of Directors, or to the extent that the guarantor 1s not meeting s minmum capital requirements

or 1s not meeting s solvency ratios, or provided a deemed declaration notice has not been delivered, if the Guarantor's Court of Directors
has resolved ne distnbutions should be made, or if the Financial Regulator has instructed the General Partner or the Guarantor not to make
such payment

The Preferred Secunties, together with the subordinated guarantee, are intended 1o provide holders with nghts on iquidation equivalent to
non cumulatve preference shares of the Guarantor Clams under the Preferred Securities m respect of any liquidation distnbutions will rank
senior to the nghts of the General Partner in respect af other partnership interests issued by the Issuer and pan passu with claims of the
holders of all other preferred securties issued by the lssuer whieh rank pan passu with the Praferred Secunties
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The nghts and ctams of the holders of the Preferred Securlties rank (i} junior to ali labilties of the guarantor nclucing subordinated habiities
{in each case other than any liabilty of the guarantor which constitutes Tier 1 Caprtal or which 1s referred to in (i) or if} below and any

other labidy expressed to rank pan passu with or juruor to the subordinated guarantes), (i} pan passu with panty securties issued by the
Guaranter and any guarantee of the guarantor ranking pan passu with the subordinated guarantee and (i) senior to junior share capital

{e) USE400 milon Fixed Rate / Vanable Rate Guararitead Non vofing Non cumulative Perpetual Preferred Securties

On 3 February 2006 BOtl Capital Funding (No 3} LP {the Issuer) issued US$400 million Fixed Rate / Varable Rate Guaranteed Non voting
Non cumulative Perpetual Preferred Securthes {the Preferred Securities) having the benefit of a subordinated guarantee by the Bank,
each with a hquidation preference of US$1,000

The Preferred Securities, compnsing imited partnership interests in BOI Capitat Funding N 3) LF, are perpetual securties with no matunty
date However they are redeemable, subject o the prior approval of the Financial Regulator, on 4 February 2016 or on every subsequent
tenth anniversary date of 4 February 2016, in whole but not in part, at the option of BOI G P No 1 Limited, which is the General Pariner

of the tssuer, at the liquidation preference amount plus any addional amounts and outstanding payments due

LOLBLLLIOWN| [2U8US5
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Notes to the consolidtad financial statements

33  Subordinated habilities {continued)

The Preferred Securtties bear mterest at a rate of 6 107% per anhum to but excluding 4 February 2016 and thereatter at a floating rate of
Interest of 1 06% per annum above the rate for US$ Libor three month US doflar deposits

The Issuer wilf not pay any dietnibutions and the guarantor will not make any payment in respect of distnbutions under the subordinated
guarantee to the extent that such payment would exceed adjusted distrbutable reserves or even if adusted disinbutabie reserves are
sufficient to the extent that such payment would breach or cause a breach of capral adequacy reguiations then applicable to the Group

as determined by the Guarantor's Court of Directors, or 1o the extent that the Guarantor s not meeting its minmum caprtal requirements

or 18 not meating its solvency ratics, of provided a deemed declaration notice has not been delivered, if the Guarantor's Court of Directors
has resoived no distnibutions should be made, or if the Financial Regulator has instructed the General Partner or the Guarantor not to make
such payment

The Preferred Secunties, together with the subordinated guarantee, are intended to provide holders with nghts on figuidation equivalent to
non cumulative preference shares of the Guarantor Clams under the Preferred Secunties in respect of any liquidation distnbutions will rank
sertor to the nghts of the General Partner in raspect of other partnership interests 1ssued by the Issuer and pan passu with clams of the
holdars of all other preferrad secunties 1ssued by the Issuer which rank pan passu with the Preferred Secunties

The nghts and claims of the helders of the Preferred Secunties rank f) jurvior to &l labilites of the Guarantor including subordinated habiities
(in each case other than any hability of the Guarantor which constiutes Tier 1 Capitat or which 1s referred to n (i) or () below and any

otner liability expressed to rank pan passu with or Junor to the subordinated guarantee), (i) pan passu with panty secunties ssued by the
Guarantor and any guarantee of the Guarantor ranking par passu with the subordinated guarantes and {ij) senior 1o junier share capial

(B Stgf500 midhon Fixed Rate / Vanable Rate Guaranteed Non voting Non curnulative Perpetual Preferred Securities

On 19 September 2006 BOI Capial Funding {No 4) LP (the issuer) 1ssued $tg500 milian Fied Rate / Vianable Rate Guaranteed Non voting
Non cumulative Perpetual Preferred Securties {the Preferred Secuntties) having the benefit of a subordinated guarantee by the Bank,

each with a hquidation preference of 100% of the nominal value of the denomination in which i was 1ssued

The Preferred Secunties, compnsing limited partnersip interests in BO! Capital Funding (No 4) LP, are perpetual securiies with no maturity
date However thay are redeemable, subject to the pnor approval of the Financial Regutator, on 3 April 2017 or any distnbution date
thereafter, n whole tut not in part, at the option of BOl G P No 1 Limited, which 1s the General Partner of the lssuer, at the hquidation
preference amount plus any additional amounts and outstanding payments due

The Preferred Securties bear interest at a rate of 6 4285% per annum to but excluding 3 Apnl 2017 and thereafter at a floating rate of
interest of 1 50% per annum above the rate for Stgf Libor three month stering deposits

The Issuer will not pay any distrbutions and the guaranter will not make any payment in respect of distributions under the subordinated
guarantee to the extent that such payment would exceed adjusted distnbutable reserves or even If adjusted distriutable reserves are
sufficient to the extent that such payment would breach or cause a breach of capital adequacy reguiations then appiicable to the Group

as determined by the Guarantor's Court of Dectors, or to the extent that the Guarantor 15 not meeting its mimmurn caprtal requirements

o 13 not mesting its solvency ratios, or provided a deemed declaration notice has not been delvered,  the Guarantor's Court of Directors
has resolved no Distibutions should be made, or f the Financial Regutator has instructed the General Partner of the Guarantor not to make
such payment

The Preferred Secunties, togather with the subordinated guarantes, are intended to provide holders with rightts on igudation egunvalent to
non cumulative preference shares of the Guaranter Glaims under the Preferred Securities in respect of any iquidation distributions wifl rank
senior to the nghts of the General Partner in respect of other parinership mterests 1ssued by the lssuer and pari passu with clarms of the
holders of all other preferred secunties 1ssued by the Issuer which rank pan passu with the Preferred Securties

The rights and claims of the helders of the Preferred Secunties rank {j sunior to alt habiities of the Guaranior including subordinated labiktes
{in each case other than any ability of the Guaranter which constitutes Tier 1 Caprtal or which 1 referred to i (i) or (1) below and any
other labmty expressed to rank pan passu with or junior to the subordinated guarantes), (i} pan passu with panty securites issued by the
Guarantor and any guarantee of the Guarantor ranking pan passu with the Subordinated Guarantee and (if) serwor to junior share capial
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33  Subordinated habiihes (continued)

(@) Stgf75 mifon 13%s% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds
On 1 October 2007 Bank of Ireland replaced Bnstol & West plc as the issuer of the 13%/s% Perpetual Subordinated Bonds which have a
nominal value of StgE75m and were revalued as part of the farr value adjustmants on the acquistion of Bristol & West ple

{h} Stgk32 6 mufiron 8/8% Non Cumutatve preference shares

Trese preference shares which are non redeemable, non equity shares rank equally amongst themselves as regards participation in profits
and in prionty to the ordinary shares of Bristol & West plc

Holders of the Proference Shares are entitled to receva, in pnority to the holders of any other class of shares in Bristol & West ple, a non
cumutative preference dvidend at a fixed sate per annum payable In equal half yearly instalments n arrears on 15 May and 15 November
each year The preference dividend on the preference shares will only be payable to the extent that payment can be made out of profits
avallable for distnbution as at each dividend payment date n accordance with the provisions of the UK Companies Acts

©n 1 October 2007 i connection with the transfer of the business of Bnstol & West glc to Bank of treland, Bank of Ireland entered into a
Guarantee and Capttal Mantenance Commnment {the Guarantee) with respect 10 the preference shares

Under the terms of the Guarantee, the hability of Bnstol & West pic in relation to the engoing payment of dvidends and any repayment of
capal n relation to the preference shares that remained following the transfer of business would be protected  Under the Guarantes Bank
of Ireland agrees subject to certain condiions to (1) contnbule capital to Bristol & West plc to the extent required to ensure that Brstok &
West plc has sufficient distnbutable reserves to pay the dvidends on the preference shares and to the extent required, repay the preference
shares capttal and (2) guarantee Bristol & West plc's obligations to make repayment of the dividends and Preference Share caprtal

In this connection the Guarantee contains prowisions to the effect that the nghts of Bank of lreland’s creditors under the Guarantee are
subordinated to {j unsubordinated creditors and debtors of Bank of Ireland and {i} subordinated creditors of Bank of Irefand other than those
whose claims rank, or are expressed to rank pan passu or Jumior to the payments under the Guarantee

At the tme of the business transfer on 1 October 2007 a total of 46 milion preference shares of Stgf1 each ware tendered for the cash
election offered to preference share holders leaving 32 6 million preference shares outstanding post the cash election being completed The
preference shares tendered for the cash election included the shares previously held by Barik of Ireland UK Holdings plc

Dated loan capital

The Bank set up a Sg£500 million Euro Nete Programme (the Programme) in July 1995 The Programme was mcreased to StgR1 bilion in
July 1997 On 9 November 1999 the Programme was redenominated from Sterling to euro and increased to €4 bilkon On 10 February 2000
the Bank 1ssued €600 milion 6 45% Subordinated Bonds due 2010 On 22 January 2001 the Bank issued an addtional €150 mdion 6 45%
Subordinated Bonds due 2010 which are fungible and form a single senes with the €800 million ssued in February 2000

The Bonds and Notes constitute unsecured obligations of the Bank subordinated in nght of payments to the claims of depostitors and

other unsubordinated creditors of the Bank and rank pan passu without any preference among themsetves In Apnit 2001 the Programme
was ncreased from €4 bilion 10 €8 bilion in February 2003 the Programme was agan increased from €8 billion to €10 bilkon and on 18
December 2003 €600 miion Subordinated floating rate nofes were 1ssued due 2013 in February 2004 the Programme was ncreased from
€10 kdion to €15 bilhon and on 25 February 2004 the bank ssued €650 milion, Fixed / Poating Rate Subordinated Notes due 2019

The Bank issued on 29 June 2005 €600 millon Floating Rate Subordinated Notes due 2017 and on 21 September 2005 Can$400 million
of Fixed / Floating Rate Subordinated Bonds due 2015 On 22 December 2005 the Bank ssued Stg£400 million of Fixed / Floating Rate
Subordinated Bonds due 2018

In July 2006 the Programme sze was increased from €15 bilion to €25 billen The Bank issued on 22 January 2007 €750 millon Floating
Rate Notes due 2017

The Bank 1ssued on 5 July 2007 US$6G0 milion Subordinated Floating Rate Notes due 2018

Interest rates on the floating rate and fixed rate subordinated labiities (accommodated through swaps) are determned by reference to the
relevant currency reference rate

On 1 Octaber 2007 Bank of Ireland replaced Bristol & West plc as the issuer of the 10%4% Subordinated Bonds due 2018 which have a
nominal value of Sige?s million

Report & Accounts Bank of lreland (=3 |

MOIADL SEBUISHY

SoUBLISAOD

.y
=
oy
it
Q.
®
w
=
=2
)
3
]
o
~—
&

UOIBULLICIL [R28U80D

139



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
2
b}
é 34  Other habilities
(%2
ol
g Group Bank
@ 2008 2007 2008 2007
o €m €m €m €m
Accrued interest payable 1,052 1,045 723 715
Notes in crculation 744 839 744 839
Sundry creditors 497 558 252 419
Current taxation 102 105 59 55
A Aceruals and deferred income 263 222 54 45
Other 877 1,214 g7 392
Other liabilbes 3,535 3,983 2,229 2,465
Other habiliies at 31 March 2008 and at 31 March 2007 are due within 1 year
3 The Bank is authonsed to issue bank notes in Nerthern lreland under the Bankers {irefand) Act 1845 and the Bankers {Northern Ireland) Act,
% 1928
£
<
3
35 Provisions
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
€m €m €m €m
At 1 April 87 153 50 o1
Exchange differances [t 1 (13
Addtional provisions charged to Income statement 9 23 3 15
Utllised during year 33 70 (24) {48}
Unused amounts reversed dunng the period 8 (20 {2) (8}
Other movements 20
At 31 March 47 87 46 50

Provisions recognised within this caption include restructunng and re organisation costs
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

36 Deferred tax

Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
€m €m €m £m
The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows
At 1 Apnl 253 177 41 4
Income statement credit for year (rote 13) (84) 21 (14) (32)
Available for sale securlties  transferred to reserves {54) ()] (35) (8}
Cash flow hedges  transferred to reserves {68) 53 {68) 53
Revaluation / reclassification of property durmg year {8) 16 1) 14
Pension (38) 21 (36) 17
Other movetnents (17 15 15 1
At 31 March {14) 253 (104) 41
Deferred tax assets and Habilities are attributable to the following tems
Deferred tax habifthes
Accelerated capiial allowances
on finance leases 59 66 5 6
on equipment used by the Group 29 a2 20 22
Cash flow hedgo reserve 64 64
Property revaluation surplus 42 64 40 60
Ufe companies 68 148
Other temporary differences 10 17 10 10
Deferred tax liabilities 208 391 75 162
Deferred tax assets
Pensions and other post retirement benefits 118 95 105 69
Provision for tean Impairment 11 11 12 12
Other provisions 6 6 3
Cash flow hedge reserve 12 12
Available for sale reserve 57 ] 39 -]
Other temporary differences 18 20 8 34
Deterred tax asseis 222 138 179 121
Represented on the balance sheet as follows
Deferred tax assets {145) (25) {104)
Deferred tax liabilties 131 278 4
(14} 253 (104) M

In presenting the deferred tax balances above, under 1AS 12, the Group has chosen to offset deferred tax assets and labilities where

* an entity has a legally enforceatte nght 1o set off current tax assets against current tax habibes, and

= the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabiibes relate to ncome taxes levied by the same taxation authorty on the same
taxable entty

Deferred tax fabiities have not been recogmsed for tax that may be payable if earnings of cerlan overseas subsidianes were remitted to eland,
as the timing of 1he reversal of the temporary difference can be controfled and it s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse n the
foreseeable future Unremitted earmings for overseas subsidiangs totalled €1,840 miion (31 March 2007 €2,060 millon)
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Notes o the consolidated financial statements

36 Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of tax losses, tax credits and temparary differences 1n the amount of €10 million
because it 1s not probable that future taxable profit will be avalable against which the Group can utlise the benefits Those losses do not
expire under current tax legistation

The deferred tax credit n the ncome statement compnses the following temporary differences

Group
2008 2007
€m £m
Atcelerated tax depreciation 1)
Pensions and other retirement benefits 14
Other provisiohs 2 3
Property dispasals {13) (21)
Life companies 81) 14
Other temporary differences 2 (N
84} (21}

37 Retirement benefit obhgahons

The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution schemes in Ireland and overseas The defined benefit schemes
are funded and the assets of the schernes are held in separate trustee administared funds In determining the level of contributions required
to be made to each scheme and the relevant charge to the income statement the Group has been adwised by independent actuanes,
Watson Whyatt (ireland) bimrded

The most significant defined benefit scherme in the Group 1s the Bank of Ireland Staff Pension Fund [BSPF) which accounts for approximately
85% of the pensian labiity on the conselidated Group balance sheet The BSPF was closed to new mernbers from 1 October 2006
although a small percentage of staff stil retain an option to switch mito this scheme following agreement reached on the infroduction of the
new Group pension scheme, Bank of reland Group Pension Fund (BIGPF) The BIGPF 1s a hybrid scheme which includes elements of both
a defined benefit and a defined contnbuticn scheme

Refirement benefits under the BSPF and the other defined benefit plans are calculated by reference to pensionable service and pensionable
salary at normal retrement date

The last formal valuation of the BSPE, using the projected unit method, was carmed out at 31 March 2007 The projected unit method
measures liabities taking account of the projected future tevels of pensionable earmings at the time of commencemnent of benefits1e at
normal refirement date

The valuation disclosed that the fair value of scheme assets, after alkowing for expected future ncreases I earnings and pensions,
represented 109% of the benefits that have accrued to members The actuary has recommended a contribuion rate ncrease of 0 7% of
salaries in the funding programme following the conclusion of the formal valuation of the fund at 31 March 2007 The next formal vatuation
will be made as at 31 March 2010 The BSPF met the statutory funding standard as at 31 March 2007

Dunng the year the Group rationalised some of ds pension schemes in the UK and with effect from 31 March 2008 the Bristol & West Staff
Pension Fund and the Bank of Ireland Home Mortgages Limited Retirement Benedits Schems merged nto the Bank of Ireland Group UK

Pension Fund Thig merger did not impact the benefits ansing under these schemes

The actuanal valuations are avalable for nspection to the members of the schemes
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Notes to the consalidated financial staiements

37 Retwement benefit obligations (continued)

The financial assumptions used in the preparation of these financial statemenits are set cut in the table below

2008 2007
Financial assumptions %pa %pa
Irish Schemes
Inflation rate 240 225
Discount rate S85S 495
Rate of general increase in salares 351" 338"
Rate of Increase in pensions in payment 323 308"
Rate of increase to deferred pensions 240 225
UK Schemes
Inflation rate 360 300
Discount rate 850 530
Rate of general increase In salanes 4 69" 4 22°
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 3ag 358
Rate of Increase to deferred pensions 350 300

* Waighted average increase across aff group schemes and alfows for additional 0 5% for 5 years beginning 1 Aprit 2005 for the BSFF

Mortality assumptions

The mortality assumptrons used in estimating the actuarial value of the iabilities for the BSPF were reviewed during the formal actuanal
review at 31 March 2007 This review concluded that the assumptions required updating to take account of mprovements in Yfe expsectancy
n the penod since the last review The table below sets out the revised assumptions

2008 2007
Post retirement mortality assumption {main scheme) years years
Longevity at age 70 for current pensioners
Male 150 140
Female 173 168
Longevity at age 60 tor active members currently aged 50 years
Male 251 245
Female 280 275
Longevity at age 60 for active members currently aged 40 years
Male 275 245
Female 303 275
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Notas to the consolidated financial statements
b=
@
E 37 Retrement benefit obhgations (continued)
@
8 The expected long term rates of return for the major wnsdictions and market value of assets of the matenal defined benefit plans on a
@ combined basis as at 31 March 2008 and 31 March 2007 were as follows
M
2008 2007
Expocted Expected
long term long term
rate of return rate of return
] ROIL UK Market Value ROI UK Market Valug
% % €m % % €m
Equities 75 85 2,378 74 79 3,014
Debt securities 48 61 1,051 44 51 953
Property 62 6.2 460 57 65 457
Cash 42 45 78 41 40 81
Total market value of schemes assets 3,967 4,508
Actuarlal value of liabiihes of funded
el schemes (4,752) (5,082)
o DU, b i . i
% Aggregate deficit n schemes (785) (577}
EC_) Unfunded schemes (10 (0
= Net pension deficit {795) (587)
&b
The expected rates of return on individual asset classes are estimated using current and progected economic and market factors The
expected long term rate of return on the total of the Group schemes assets as at 31 March 200818 6 6% (31 March 2007 6 5%)
The overall expected returm on plan assets is based upon the weighted average of the assumed returns on the major asset classes
The retirement benefit scheme assets mcluded Bank of Ireland stock amounting 1o €289 million (31 March 2007 €69 mifion) and property

oceupied by Bank of Irefand Group companies to the value of €46 mithon (31 March 2007 €50 million)

The following table sets out the components of the cost of the defined benefit schemes for the years ended 31 March 2008 and 31 March
2007

- 2008 2007
b= Compohents of pension expenses £m £m
= Curtant service cost 189 162
® Past service cost 6 15
o Curtaiiments o)
! Expected return an retirement benefit scheme assets (296) @272
o Interest on pension scherne liabilities 251 224
2 Cost of providing defined retrement benefits 130 119

[35]
=
e 2008 2007
Actual returt on scheme asssats <m &m
Expected return on scheme assets 296 272
Actuanal (ioss) / gain on scheme assets {823) 144
Actual return on scheme assets {527) 416
2008 2007
Movement in defined benefit obligations dunng the year £m £m
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year 5,092 4,878
Current service cost 169 162
- Actual member contributions 16 14
O Past service cost ] 15
ﬁ Interest cost 251 224
- Actuarial gaih on scheme lrabilities (486) (85}
5 Benefits paid (130) (127}
= Curtallments (1®
- Currency {gamn} / loss (156) 21
o
o Defined benefit obligation at end of year 4,762 5,002
=
@
O
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37 Retirement benefit obligations {continued)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

2008 2007
Movement In the fair value of scheme assets during the year £m €m
Fair valve of scheme assets at beginning of year 4,505 4,070
Expected return 296 272
Actual member contrbutions 16 14
Actuaral foss) / gan on acheme assets {823) 144
Contributions by employer 166 127
Banefits paid (130) (127}
Currency {loss) / gain {63) 5
Falr value of scheme assets at end of year 3,967 4,505
2008 2007

Analysis of the smount recognised in the Stat 1t of Recognlsed Income and Expense [SORIE) €m €m
Actuanal floss) / gain on scheme assets {823} 144
Experience loss on kabiities (58} (126)
Gain on change of assumptions (financial and demographic) 544 21
Currency gan / (loss) 93 (18)
Total {Joss) / gains recognised in the SORIE dunng the year before adjustment of tax (244) 213
Cumulative amount of losses recogised in SORIE {0 end of year (362} (118)

2008 2007 2006 2005
History of experience gains and losses €m €m €m €m
Actuaral foss) / gamn on scheme assets
Amount {823) 144 401 114
Percentags of schema assets (20 7%) 32% 8 9% 33%
Experfence flosses) / gan on scheme labilitles
Amount (58) (126) {48) 43
Percentage of scheme liabllities (12%) {2 5%) 0 9%) 10%
Total actuarial (loss) / gain recognised in SORIE
Amount (244) 213 131 462)
Percentage of scheme liabilities (5 1%8) 42% 27% (10 6%)

2008 2007 2006 2005
Defmed benefit penslon plans €m £€m €m £m
Present value of obligations 4,762 5,002 4,878 4,341
Scheme assets 3,967 4,505 4,070 3,417
Deflclt within schetnes 795 587 e08 224
This is shown in the balance sheet as
Retirement benefit obligations 806 587 808 924
Retlremeant benefit asset {11}
Deficit within sehemes 795 587 808 924

The defictt above includes a deficrt of €696 mudlon (31 March 2007 €464 millien) relatng to the defined benefit schemes in the Bank
The liabity to defined contnbution schemes at 31 March 2008 was €1 milion (31 March 2007 €3 millon) and this amount 1s included in

retirement tenefit cbligations in the consohdated balance sheet

Additional information

31 March 20080 31 March 2008 31 March 2007
For year ending €m £m £€m
Expected employer cantributions 114 11 113
Expected employae contribution 17 14 13
Sensrtivity analysis for each of the assumptions used to measure the scheme lfabilties 31 March 2008
Change In BSPF
Factor assumption Impact on actuanal liabiities
Discount rate Decrease 0 1% Increase 2 0%
Rate of inflation Increase 0 1% increase 2 0%
Rate of salary growth Increase 0 1% Increase 0 8%
Life expectancy Increase by 1 year [ncrease 2 9%

While the table abave shows the impact of an indmvidual assumption changs, a change n one assumption could mpact on other

assumptions due to the relatonship between assumptions
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
5
é 38  Contingent habiities and commitments
o
g The tables below gives the contract amounts of contingent habhties and commitments The maxmum exposure ta credit foss under contingent
§ habiities and commitments 18 the contract amount of the Instrument in the avert of non performancs by the other party where all counter clams,
m collateral or security prove worthiess
20038 2007
Contract Contract
amount amaount
-~ Group £m £m
Contingent linbiltles
Acceptances and endorsements 47 39
Guarantees and wrevocabla letters of credit 2,198 1,719
Other contingent llabilities 669 745
2,915 2,503
§ Commitments
g Cther commitments
% Documentary credits and short term trade related transactions a2 176
& Undrawn note Issuance and revolving underwriting facikties 175 758
Undrawn formal standby faclities, credit ines and other commitments to lend
revocable o rrevecable with onginal maturity of 1 year or less 26,162 24,232
wrevocable with original maturity of over 1 year 10,232 10,847
36,881 36,013
Bank
Cuontingent liabilities
Acceptances and endorsements 47 38
Guarantees and imevocable letters of credit 2,041 1,506
{ﬁ_ Other contmgent liabilities 569 744
‘f;j 2,757 2,289
"% Commitments
@ Other commitments
g Documentary credits and short term trade-related transactions 413 176
é Undrawn note issuance and revolving underwriting faciities 178 758
L Undrawn formal standby faclities, credit Tines and other cammitments to lend
revacable or irevecable with eriginal maturity of 1 year or less 24,361 17,054
revocable with original maturity of over 1 year 5,670 6,378
30619 24,364
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3% Capital stock 5

;]

iy

D

2008 2007 =

@

Authorised =
£ €m €m
1,500 millien units of €0 64 of ordinary stack 960 98¢
100 milhon units of non cumulative preference stock of €1 27 each 127 127
100 millien untts of undesignated preference stock of €0 25 each 25 25
Stgt £m £m
100 militon units of non-cumulative preference stock of Stget each 100 100
100 milkon units of undesignated praference stock of Stge0 25 each 25 25

uss $m sm 0]

8 million unds of non-cumulative preference stock of US$25 each 200 200 %

100 million urits of undesignated preference stock of US$0 25 each 25 25 g

>

Q

v
2008 2007
Allotted and fully pald €m €m
980 5 millon units of €0 64 of ardinary stock 628 611
45 7 million units of €0 64 of treasury stock 29 45

1 8 milkon units of non-cumulative preference stock of Stg€1 each 3

3 0 militon units of non-cumutative preference stock of €1 27 each 4 4
664 663

The waighted average ordinary stock n 1ssue at 31 March 2008, used in the earmings per share cafculation, excludes the treasury stock
which does not represent ordinary stock in issue  Treasury stock does not rank for dvidend While own stock held for the benefit of Wfe

it

assurance policyhelders legatly rank for dvidend, this dmidend does not accrue in the Group financial statements g
8
£
Lo}
=
=
o

Ordinary Treasury 5

[{3]

Movements in ordinary and treasury stock {units}) 2008 2007 2008 2007 =
o

At 1 April 455 356,605 947,803,170 0,192,621 1,212,319

Stock aption schemes 378,386 988,540 {52,000} {682,400}

Sharesave scheme 3,035,654 3,753,075 (2,708,545} (3 625,478)

Long term incentve plan (LTIF) 247,373 16,082 {232,844} {16,082}

Employee stock issue scheme 2,599,085 2,810,538 {2,599,085) (2,610,538)

Stock alternative scheme 11,379,394 2,139,653 (11,379,394) {2,139,653)

ﬁ;ﬁ:r:old / purchased and held for the benefit of ife assurance policy 7,485,575 (2,054,453) {7,485,075) 2,054,453

At 31 March 980,482,472 955,356,605 45,734,778 70,192,621

UCHBLLIOM [Riauss)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

39 Capital stock {continued)
The total authonsed number of ordinary stock 1s 1,500 milion units wih a par value of €0 64 per unit of ordinary steck All issued stock 1s fully pad

During the year the total ordmary stock in 1ssue increased from 955,356,605 urits of nominal value of €0 64 each to 980,482,472 units of nomina!
value of €0 64 each as aresult of

378,386 units of ardinary stock wers 1ssued to option halders on the exercise of ther options under the terms of the Senior Executive Stock
Option Scheme at prices ranging from €4 53 to €12 85 by the re-issue of reasury stack (52,000 urws) and by the ssue of new ordmary stock
(326,386 units)

3,035,654 units of ordmary stock were ssued to Sharesave option holders on the exercise of therr options under the terms of the SAYE
Scheme at prices of €5 40, €7 B4, €8 37, €12 28, and €13 09 by the re ssue of treasury stock (2,708,545 units) and by the ssue of new units of
ordinary stock (327,109 units)

247,373 unils of ordinary stock were issued on the vesting of awards under the tetmns of the LTIP at prices of €14 76 and €12 73 per unt, by the
re issue of treasury stock (232,844 units) and by the 1ssue of new ordmnary stock (14,529 umts)

2,500,085 units of ordinary stock were issued to employees under the terms of the Employee Stock Issue Scheme at prces of €15 00 and €12 92
perunt, by the re-issue of units of freasury stock

11,370,394 untts of ordnary stock were 1ssued to stockholders under the terms of the Stock Alternative Scheme at prices of €15 22 and €9 28
per untt, by the re 1ssua of units of treasury stock The Stock Alternative Scheme was approved by stockholders at the 2006 Annual General
Court This gave stockholders the choice of recenmg their dnidend by way of cash ar 11 stock umis

27,049,251 unis of ordinary stock held by the Group’s fe assurance company as at 31 March 2007 are categorised as “own shares” 7,485,975
units of ordnary stock were disposed of by the Ife assurance company during the year ended 31 March 2008

Al untts of ordinary stock in issue carry the same voling nghts
Preference Stock

The preference stock 1s non redesmable The holders of preference stock are entiled to recene a non cumulatve preferentil dividend,
which in the cass of the Stering preference stock will be payable n Stering, i1 a gross amount of Stgf1 2625 per unit and in the case of
euro preference stock will be payable 1 guro In a gross amount of €1 523686 per unit per annum, 1 equal semy annual nstaliments,
arrears, on February 20 and August 20 in each year

On awnding up of, or other return of capital by the Bank (other than on a redemption), the holders of preference stock will be entitied to
recerve an amount equal to the amount paid up on each unit of the preference stock heid inclucing the premium) out of the surpius assets
avalable for distnbution 10 the holders of ordinary stock

The preference stockholders are not entiiled to vote at any General Court except in certain axceptional circumstances when a resticted vote
rnay apply

The Bank has an chligation to ncrease the cash dvidend payable on each unit of preference stock so that the sum of the cash dwdend
pad or payable together with the associated dividend tax credit shall equal the appropriate gross amounts

As at 31 March 2008 and 31 March 2007, 1,876,090 units of Sterling preference stock and 3,026,508 units of euro preference stock were in
1I56U8

Use of ordinary stock in employee schemes
(a) Employee Stock Issue Scheme

At the 2006 Annual Generat Court the stockholders approved the establishment of a new Employee Stock lssus Schema to replace the
scheme onginally approved by the stockholders n 1997 Under this scheme, which has an Insh and a UK version in order to conform with
the relevant revenua legrsiation in both unsdictions, all employees i freland and the UK are ehigible to participate provitded that they have
been employed by the Group In one of the schemes’ participating companies for the previous financral year and are still employed by the
Group on the date the annual results are announced Each year the Court may set aside an element of Group profit befare taxaton for
allocation to the trustees of the scheme to enable them to acquire untts of ordinary stock on behalf of the scheme participants
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

39 Capital stock {continued}

Currently the amount set aside Is refated to overall Group performance assessed in terms of real growth in underlying earnings per share
(EPS} and cost savings achieved under the Group’s Strategic Transformation Programme  Performance matnces, under both headings,
determine the actual % award and currently, the maximum award permitted under these matrices 1s a total of 6% of a partcipant's salary To
date, annual dstrbutions under the schemes have ranged between nif and 6% of each participants salary

Real growth in underlying EPS 1s the growth in underlying EPS over the financial year adjusted to take account of inflation

In addion, if an employee etects for the free stock award, they become eligible to purchase addiional stock at market price from gross
salary subject to Revenue Commussioners and HM Revenue & Customs rules respectively

({b) Sharesave Scheme (SAYE Scheme)

At the 1999 Annual General Court the stockholders approved the estabilishment of an SAYE Scheme Under this scheme, which has an Insh
and UK version in ordar to conform with the relevant revenue legislation in both junisdictions, all employees in Ireland and the UK are elgible
to participate provided that they are employed by the Group on the invitation to participate date and they are still in the employ of the Group

on the date that the options are granted The table below shows the option pnce for gach year, and what discount this represented of the
market pnce at that tme

Grant Dates SAYE 2007 SAYE 2006 SAYE 2003
Optlon Price ROI €6 96 €1228 €784
UK £7 43 €13 09 €837
Discount ROL 25% 25% 25%
UK 20% 20% 20%

The difference between insh and UK option prices reflects the maximumn discounts permitted under Revenue Commussioners and HM
Revenue & Customs rules respectively

As at 31 March 2008, there are cutstanding options under the scheme of 9,596,847 unis of ordinary stock of the Issued ordinary capital
These options are ordinanly exercisable, prowded the participant’s savings contracts are complete, between Fetruary 2009 and August 2011

2008 Rol UK

20007yr  20033yr 20035yr 20063yr 20073yr| 20007yr 20033yr 20035yr 20063yr 2007 3yr Total
Qutstanding
at beginning
of period 2,389,431 428,770 2,116,618 2,310,960 531,916 70,504 392,339 513,615 8,754,243
Granted 3,967,756 811,265 | 4,779,021
Exercised {231,311 (216,607 26.019) {128) {422,805) 147,630) {10,904) {250) {3,0:35,654)
Lapsed 78,120y {212,163) (60,088) (277,955}  (16,772)| (109,111} (22,964) (37,591} (76,610) (9,318)| (900,663)
Outstanding
at end of ]
period 2,030540 2032877 3,950,984 343,844 436,755 801,947 § 9,896,947
Weighted
average
exarclse
price €540 €7 84 €784 €12 28 £6 96 €540 €337 €837 €13 09 €743 €864

None of the options outstanding at 31 March 2008 were exerclsable
{c) Stock Option Scheme

Options to subscnbe for units of ordinary stock are granted under the terms of the Stock Option Scheme The scheme was approved by the
stockholders at the Annual General Court In 18868  the “Bank of Ireland Group Stock Option Scheme  1996”, and its successor scheme,
the “Bank of Irefand Group Executive Stock Option Scheme 2004 which was approved by the stockholdars at the Annual General Court
held n 2004 Key executives may participate in the current scheme at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee Under the current
scheme, the fotal value of options granted may not exceed 100% of an executive's satary The subscription price per unit of stock shall not
be less than the market value of the stock at the date of grant

Report & Accounts Bank of Iretand (&) |

MO S5aUISNE

ATUBUIBADD

g
=
4]
=
Q.
g
1
9_{
@
)
[15]
=
=
]

LOIIRLLLICHY (B48U50)

149




Notas to the consolidated financial statements

w
@
[
@
=
[5)
3
[<¥]
=
2]
B
Q
j
Y]
o
i

General Information

150

i Bank of Ireland

8
é 39  Capital stock (continued)
W
& The exercise of aptions granted since 2004 are conditional upon underlying EPS achieving a cumulative growth of at least 5% per annum
7(7": compound above the increase In the Censumer Price Index over the three year performance perod, commencing with the penod in which
cﬁ the oplions are granted The performance conditions for options granted i 1996 up to and ncluding 2003 have been satsfied Optons may
not be transferred or assigned and may be exercised only between the third and tenth annversanes of thelr grant
March 2008 March 2007
Number of opti ghted average Number of options Welghted average
exercise price {€) exercise price (€)
Outstanding at beginning of period 7,016,309 1155 6,732,803 10 66
Granted during the period 1,151,782 1520 1,416,190 1314
Exercised during perlod 378,386 788 988,540 923
Expired during period 214,120 1163 144,144 1175
Qutstanding at end of period 7,575,585 12 26 7,016,309 1155
@ Exercisable at end of perlod 3,980,149 1058 2,957,605 1015
% *The waighted average market price on the date the options were exercised was €13 64 (2007 €1553)
<
o
3
& Exercise Price Range (€} Number of options
606 975 681,932
1054 1076 2,430,499
1105 1368 2,027,514
1400 1716 2,435,640
Total 7,575,585

Qutstanding options under the Stock Option Scheme are exercisabla at price ranges above The weighted average remaining contraciual Iife
of the outstanding options under the Stock Option Scheme 15 1 year

{d) Long Term Incentive Plan

The *Bank of Iretand Group Long Term Incentve Plan — 2004° (LTIP} was approved by the stockhotders at the Annual General Court 1 July
2004 its predscessor plan, the *Long Term Performance Stock Plan  1999" (LTPSP), was approved by the stockholders at the Annual
General Court in July 1999 The LTIP links the number of unis of stock recevable by participants to the Group's Total Shareholder Retumn
(TSR} TSR represents stock price growih plus dividends

Each year selected senior executives participating in the plan receve & conddlona award of a number of umits of ordinary stock The
axsmum award, for Executive Directors and Group Executive Commutiee members, cannot exceed 100% (150% for the Group CEO)} of
ther annual salary at the tirne of the award

Provided the Group's Retumn on Equity (ROE} over the three year performance penod 1, on average, at least 20%, then the proportion of
these units which actually vest In the executive on the third annwersary of the date of the onginal award 1s based on the Group’s TSR growth
relative to a comparater group of 17 financial services companies, as follows
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o
ol
@
ag  Capital stock (contmued) 3
&
The Bank's total shareholder return performance relative % of units of stock subject to an award %
to the Comparator Companes which may be issued or transferred %
Equal to or better than the company ranked second 100% 2
Between the company ranked median and the company ranked second Greater than 35% ant! 1855 than 100% (Pro rata based on the Bank's
performance relative to the Comparator Companies)
Equal to the median 35%
Below median N
I the Group's ROE over the three year performance period, 1s on average, below 20%, then the award lapses
Under the LTPSP, a muwmum of 80% of the vested stack must be retained for two years from matunty of award  After the two year retention
period, an additional award of 20% 1s made If the award is retaned for an additional five years, a further award of 30% 1s made
2008 2007+ o
Number of Weighted average Number of Weighted average 2
conditional units grant price € conditional units grant pnce € @
Quistanding at beginning of period 2,104,333 1273 1,721,993 157 g
Granted durwg the period 602,226 1487 874,173 1419 9
Vested dunng period 247,373 1088 16,082 1104
Expired during perod 470,181 1122 475,751 1131
Qutstanding at end of period 1,989,005 1396 2,104,333 1273
* The March 2007 figures have been restated to include the potential addiional units that could be awarded under the LTPSP scheme if
the vested stock is retained for two years (addtional award of 20%) and then a further five vears (additional award 1s a further 30%) This

increases the outstanding number of condiional units as at 31 March 2007 by 85,573 unis {from 2,038,754 1o 2,104,333)
Outstanding units under the LTIP were granted at pnces ranging between €8 75to €17 16

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the cutstanding options under the LTIP Scheme 15 1 year {the potential matching awards
of 30% on the previous LTPSP schemes are excluded from this calculation)
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Notes to the consalidated financial statements

39  Capsal stock (continued)

{e) Options Pricing Model

The bincmal lathce option valuation madet is used to estimate the valug of the optiens granted The following table details the assumptions
used and the resuling talr values provided by the options pricing mode!

Stock Option Scheme LTIP

2008 2007 2008 2007
Volatilty 20% 25% 20% 25%
Dividend yield 34% J4% 34% 34%
Risk free rate 4 6% 4% N/A N/A
Implied term & 4 years 85 years 3 years Jyears
Fair value €306 €317 €600 €510
Exercisa price €15 45 €14 it i
No of options {000's} 1,151 8 1,4162 5804 8531
Vesting period 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years

SAYE (ROIl} SAYE (UK)
3 Year 3 Year 3 Year 3 Year
2007 2006 2007 2006
Volatility 20% 20% 20% 20%
Dividend yleld 42% 33% 4 2% 33%
Risk free rate 41% 38% 41% 3 8%
Implied term 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years
Fair value €294 €510 €262 €455
Exercise price €696 €1228 €743 €1309
No of options {000's) 3,967 8 2,311 0 8113 5138
Vesting period 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years
SAYE (ROT} SAYE (UK
5 Year § Year
2003 2003
Volatilty 30% 30%
Dividend yield 33% 33%
Fisk free rate 36% 36%
Impited term § years 5 years
Fair value €354 €331
Exercise price €7 84 €837
No of apticns (000's} 2,209 2 4509
Vesting perod 5 years 5 years

{f) Limitations on Employee Stock lesue and Stock Option Schemes

All of the above stock 1ssue and stock option schemes are subject to a range of flow rate controls approved by the stockholders and which

conform to current mstitutional investor guidetines
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o
&
40  Stock premum account a
w
@
Group Bank g
2008 2007 2008 2007 2
£m €m £m €m
Stock prermium account
At 1 Apnl 77 767 N 767
Premlum on 1ssue of stock 4 4 4 4
At 31 March 775 FAA 775 77
41 Retamed earnings
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007 G
tm €m £m €m g
@©
At 1 Aprl 4,672 3,188 2,027 621 o
Profit for period atinbutable to stockholders 1,689 1,651 1,385 1,558 §
Equity dividends B11) (524) (628) (539)
Dividends on other equity interests 14 {15) (14) (15)
Transfer {0 capital reserves {101) 70y
Profit retained 973 1,042 743 1,004
Reissue of treasury stock 189 129 173 106
Transfer from revaluation reserve 41 108 39 107
Transfer from share based payments reserve 4 15 4 15
Pension fund obiigations (209) 190 (195) 176
Reserves ransfered fo / from other unts 26 &
At 31 March 5,670 4,672 2,817 2,027
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
3
3 42  Qther reserves
p
“ng Other reserves are summansed as follows
2
] Group Bank
2008 2q07 2008 2067
m €m €m £m
Qther reserves
Capdal reserve 530 429 48 48
Share based payments reserve 33 24 a3 24
Fareign exchange reserve (788) (76} (472) {52)
Revaluation reserve 182 252 145 218
Avallable for sale reserve M9 (@3 (286) @n
Cash flow hedge reserve {52) 195 52} 195
§ Cther equity reserve 114 114 114 114
g Closing balance {4600} 905 {470) 508
i
%)
8 Other reserves are analysed as follows
Capital reserve
Operung balance 429 359 45 45
Transfer from rataned profit 101 70
Closing batance 530 420 48 43
Share based payments reserve
Opening balance 24 27 24 27
Chargs ta the incoms statement 13 12 13 12
Transfer to retained profit 1G] (15} “4) {15}
% Closing balance 33 24 a3 24
[}
E
@ Foreign exchange reserve
(%.‘g Opening batance {76) {125) (52) 67)
= Exchange adjustments during year (712) 49 (420) 15
§ Closing balance 68 8) 472) 52)
'uE_
Revaluation reserve
Opening balance 252 342 216 316
Transfer to revenue reserve on sale of property (41) (108) (39 (107)
Revaluation of property [37) 34 (30) 21
Deferred tax on revatuation of property 8 (18) 7 (14)
Other movement ]
Closing balance 182 252 145 216
% Avaitable for sale reserve
o Opening balance (33) 26 (37} 23
% Net changes in talr value {4086) 57 {251) (59)
=
= Deferred tax on farr value changes 84 8 35 8
g Transfer to income statement on asset disposal (34) {10) 33 @
5 Closing balanca {“1s 33) {286} 37
&)
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42  Other reserves {continued)

Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
€m €m €m €m
Cash flow hedge reserve
Opening bafance 195 60 185 80
Net changes in fair value 128 268 {66) 253
Transferred to income statement
Net interest income (185) (80) (248} (85)
Net trading expense (forelgn exchange) (258)
Deferrad tax on raserve movements 68 (53 68 53
Clasing balance (52) 185 52} 195
Other equity reserve
Opening and closing balance 114 114 114 114

The capral reserve represents transfers from retained eamings and other reserves in accordance with relevant legisiation The reserves are
nat distnbutable

The foreign exchange reserve represents the curnulative gains and losses on the retranslation of the Group's wivestment in s foreign
operations

The revaluation reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses on the revaluation of the Group's properly portiolo It ncludes the
revaluation ¢f property classified as Property, plant and equipment and Assets classified as held for sale

The avalable for sale reserve represents the unrealised change in the farr value of available for sale nvestments since iniial recognition

The cash flow hedge reserve represents the cumulative gains and losses on effective cash flow hedging mstruments that will be transferred
to the incomae statement when the hedged transactions impact the Group's profit or loss

Other equity reserves compnses a US$150 million undated floating rate prmary capttal note which was reclassified from subordinated
llabiltres in accordance with IAS 32 on transitton to IFRS in the year ended 31 March 2006

43  Mmority interests

Group

2008 2007
£m €m
At1 Aprd k2 45
Share of net profit 5 1
Dividends paid to minority interest @ @)
Disposal of minonty interest (Davy) ©)

Other movement 1
A1 31 March 38 34
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

44  Liqudity nsk

The tables below analyse the financial assets and financial katiites {excluding those anging from Insurance and participating iInvestment
contracts} of the Group and the Bank into refevant maturty groupings based on the remaining penod at the balance sheet date to the
contractual matunty date The Group does not manage hiquidity nsk on the basis of contractual maturity Instead, the Group manages
liquichty nisk Dased on expected cash flows The Group's approach to liquidity nsk management s cutlined in the Risk Management section

on pages 27 to 43

Group

Ay at 31 March 2008

Upto3 312 156 Over 5 ‘Equity
Demand months months years years Shares Total

Matunties of financial assets and liabilties €m €m €m €m £m €m tm

Assets

Cash and balances at centraf banks 484 484

Central government and other eligible bills 10 10

Trading securities 16 94 9 118

Dervative financial mstruments 1,083 819 555 1,078 1,023 4,568

Other financlal assets at faw value through

profit or loss 402 289 719 1,147 8,352 10,909

Loans and advances to banks 4,861 4,432 37 34 45 9,409

Avaitable for sale financial assets 5,061 3,808 16,025 4,370 43 29,307

Loans and advances to customers 3,963 7,880 11,653 40,981 71,957 136,334

Total 10,411 18,594 16,258 58,931 78,551 8,395 191,140

Liabiiles

Deposits by banks 1,738 10,594 796 815 87 14,130

Customer accounts 51,055 28,589 3,382 2,686 512 86,234

Derwvative financial Instruments 1,058 B30 310 1,034 1,090 4,322

Debt securities n issue 232 22,213 13,086 12,068 13,233 60,842

Subordinated debt 767 7,041 7,808

Total 54,083 62,236 17,584 17,470 21,863 173,336
i Bankoflreland ¢ Report & Accounts




44  Ligquidity nisk {continued)

Notes to the consoldated financial statements

Group
As at 31 March 2007
Upto3 312 15 Cver 5 Equrty

Demand manths months years years Shares Tota}
Maturities of financlal assets and liabilities £m £m €m €m €m €m €m
Assots
Cash and balances at central banks 362 362
Central government and other ehigible bidis " 11
Trading securities 20 10 37 342 111 520
Derivative financial instruments 826 214 215 1,183 411 2,849
Other financiat assets at far value through
profit or loss 1,017 116 477 1,314 9783 12,707
Loans and advances to banks 2,465 4,204 438 54 49 7,210
Avaitable for sale financial assets 106 2,965 5,855 17,334 7,340 49 33,449
Loans and advances to customars 2,18 86,612 10,249 38,273 67,424 125476
Total 6,708 15,022 16,710 57,663 76,649 9,832 182,584
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 2,785 13,669 3,389 488 74 20,405
Customet accounts 43,844 20,901 3,058 2,997 1,477 72,277
Dervative financial instruments 759 263 21% 736 958 2,935
Debt secunties in Issue 270 15,975 8,168 18,919 16,191 59,523
Subordinated debt 775 7,033 7.808
Total 47,658 50,808 14 834 23,915 25,733 162,948
Bank
As at 31 March 2008

Upto3 3-12 15 Over 5 Equity
Demand maonths months years years Shares Yotal

Matunties of financial assets and Habilities €m €m €m £m €m £€m £m
Assots
Cash and balances at central banks 462 462
Trading securities 16 94 9 19
Dervative finansial instruments 1,098 819 555 1,103 1,078 4,653
Qther financlal assets at fair value through profit
of loss 1 48 59
Loans and advances to banks 24,176 5,378 615 1,277 806 32,052
Available for sale financial assets 3 5,124 3,693 14,867 3,364 2 27,053
Loans and advances ta customers 5,641 18,107 11,881 33,811 45,897 115,337
Total 31,380 29,428 16,760 51,163 51,002 2 179,735
Liabilities
Deposits by banks 3,558 16,161 1,613 4,556 4,872 30,860
GCustomer accounts 51,603 23,393 4,272 5,309 5443 90,110
Dervative financtal instniments 1,157 B30 330 1,067 938 4,322
Debt securities in Issus 232 22,209 13,086 9,704 537 45,778
Subordinated debt 767 4,613 5,380
Total 56,550 62,593 14 311 21,493 16,503 178,450
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Notes to the consclidated financial staternents

44  Liquidity nisk (contimued)

Bank

As at 31 March 2007

Upto3 312 15 Qver 5 Equity

Demand months months years years Shares Total
Maturities of financial assets and liabiities £m €m €m €m €m €m €m
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 347 347
Trading securities 20 10 37 342 111 520
Dervative financial mstruments 873 214 215 1,323 93z 3,557
Loans and advances to banks 2,489 29,825 8171 17,631 3,654 £9,770
Available for sale financial assets 9 2,898 5,533 15,462 5,785 13 29,700
1oans and advances to customers 4,263 15,443 9,338 24,281 18,472 71,778
Total 8,001 48,390 21,295 59,019 28,054 13 165,672
Liatnlities
Deposits by banks 2,857 21,358 12,331 4,115 6,018 48,679
Customer accounts 41,044 16,432 2,333 2,368 4,190 66,367
Dertvative financial instruments 765 264 268 1,087 1,013 3,397
Debt secunties in issue 260 15,967 8,147 16,787 636 41,797
Subordinated debt 775 4,159 4,934
Total 44,926 54,021 23,078 25,132 16,016 163,174
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

44  Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below summanses the matunty profile of the Group's financial nstrument latilities, excluding those ansing from nsurance and
participating nvestrnent contracts at 31 March 2008 and 31 March 2007 based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations Urut
Iinked invesiment habilities and unit linked insurance fabities with a carrying value of €£5,662 madion and €7,140 mithon respectively (31
March 2007 €6,736 mithon and €7,190 rmillion respectively) are excluded from this analysis as thewr repayment 1s inked directly to the
financial assets backing these contracts The Group does not manage liquidity nisk on the basis of contractual maturty Instead the Group
manages kquidity nisk based on expected cash flows The balances will not agree directly to the balances in the consolidated balance sheet
as the table ncorporates all cash flows, on an undiscounted basis, related 10 both principal and interest payments

Group
¥ March 2008
Upto 3 312 15 Qver §
Demand months months years years Total
£m €m £m £m €m €m
Deposits by banks 1,740 10,673 836 951 142 14,342
Customer accounts 51,112 28,868 3,579 3,044 708 87,311
Debt securities in 1ssue 234 22,856 14,140 15,420 21,172 73,822
Subordinated llabilities and other capital
Instruments 2 87 281 1572 7,416 9,358
Contingent habilties 2,015 2,915
Commitments 26,649 10,232 15 881
Total 82,652 62,484 18,838 3218 28,438 224529
Upto 3 3-12 15 Over §
Demand montha months years years Total
Derivative financlal instruments £m €m £m €m £m €m
Gross settled denvative
liabiities outflows (398,124} [7,140) (13,677) (8,351} (68,292)
Gross gettied derivative
habdities inflows 37,680 5,389 12,008 6,503 62,740
Gross sattled dervative
llabllitles net flows (1,464) (751} {1,579) (1,758) {5 552)
Neot settied dervative labilities (360) (312) {1,091} {402 {2,165)
Total {1.824) (1,063) {2,670} (2,160) 771170
Group
31 March 2007
Upto3d 312 15 Over §
Oemand menths months years years Tetal
£€m €m £m £m €m €m
Deposits by banks 2,767 13,724 3,515 534 o7 20837
Customer accounts 43,840 21,039 3,235 3,279 1,762 73,155
Debt secunties In Issue 260 16,144 8,959 23,689 28,177 77,229
Subordinated liabilties and other capital
Instruments a0 281 1,506 8,824 10,701
Contingent habilities 2,503 2,503
Commntments 25,166 10,847 36,013
Totel 74,536 50,997 15,980 39,855 38,860 220,238
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Notes to the consciidated financial statements
=
@
g 44  Liquidity nisk (continued)
w
% Grouy
z 4]
4 31 March 2007
o
Uptad 3 t2 15 Over b
Demand months maonths years years Total
Dervatlve financlal instruments £€m €m €m €m €m €m
Gross settied derivative
liabdtres outflows (13,975 (7,406) {11,627) {14,590) {47,508)
Gross settled denvative
labilities Inflows 13,726 6,988 10,380 12,754 43,847
Gross settled derivative
labiitles  net flows (250) (418} {1,247) (1,836) (3,751)
Net settled dervative llabilties (79} {116) (535) (603} (1,333)
Total (a29) (534) {1,782) (2,439) (5,084)
qQ
o
5]
o The tables below summanses the matunty profile of the Bank's financial instrurnent habiities at 31 March 2008 and 31 March 2007 based
EN an contractual undiscounted repayment okligations
o
@
Bank
31 March 2008
Upto3 312 15 Over S
Demand months months years years Total
€m €m €m £m €m £m
Deposits by banks 3,560 16,240 1,662 4,590 5,027 31,069
Customer accounts 51,657 23615 4,466 5,739 5,991 91,468
Debt securlties n issue 234 22,677 13,638 10,250 689 47,498
Subordinated liabilities and other capital
Instruments 2 45 205 1,572 5477 7,301
4]
';c: Contingent liabilties 2,757 2,757
& Commitments 24,949 5,670 30,619
QO
o Total 83,159 62,577 19,961 27,821 17,194 210,712
<
)
g
@ Upto 3 312 15 Over 5
i.% Demand months months years years Total
Denvative financlal instruments £m €m €m €m €m €m
Gross settled derlvative
fiablities  outfiows (38,873) 6,534) (11,693} {1,768) (58,866)
Gross settled denvative
habilities inflows 37460 5,901 10,534 1,353 65,248
Gross settled denvatve
liabilities net flows {1,413) (633) (1,159) 413) (3,618)
Net settled derivative llabilites (360} (312) {1,091} (402} {2,185)
Total (1,773) (945) {2,250 (815 (5,783

General information
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
o8]
£
w
44  Liquidity risk {continued) 2
&
Bank g
=
31 March 2007 g
Upto3 312 15 Qver 5
Demand months months years years Total
€m €m €m €m €m €m
Deposits by banks 2,858 19,607 5,242 9,502 8,718 46,927
Customer accounts 41,040 15,818 2,720 2,326 4,965 66,869
Debt securities in issue 260 16,029 8,333 18,851 1,350 44,823
Suberdinated liabihas and other capial
instruments 19 178 1,458 5,053 6,708
Contingent Fabilities 2,289 2,289
Commitments 17,088 8,376 24,364
Total 64,435 51,413 16473 38,488 21,086 191,980
)
2
B
=
Upto3d 31z 15 Over 5 o
Demand months months years years Totat >
Derivative financial instruments €m £m €m €m €m £m 2
Gross settled dervative
llabilities cutflows (13,778) (6,519) (8,514) (4,589 {33,380}
Gross settled derivative
liabilities inflows 13,580 6,287 7,861 4,124 31,852
Gross settled denvatlves
liabiities net flows (198} ©232) (653) (445) (1,528)
Net settled denvatives liabilities (79} (116) [535) {603} {1,333)
Total @ (348) (1.188) {1,048) (2,861}
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Notes to the consoldated financial statements

45  Fair values of financial assets and habilities

The carrying amount and the farr value of the Group's trading and non frading financial assets and habiities as at 31 March 2008 and 31
March 2007 are set out in the table on the following page

Business Review

The Group's accounting policy on valuation i set out on page 83 and page 94 gves detalls on the cntical accounting estmates and
Judgrmients made by management m relabion to the farr value of financal nstruments

Where possible, the Group calculates far value using observable market pnces Where market prices are not avalable or unreliable, far
valuss are determmed using valuation techmiques which may include discounted cash flow models or comparnsans to instruments with
characteristics edher identcal or similar to those of the mstruments held by the Group

These techruiques are subjective in nature and involve assumptions which are based upon management's view of market conditions at year
end which may not necessarly be indicative of any subsequent farr value Furthermore, rrinor changes in the assumptions used could have
a sgnificant mpact on the resulling estimated far values, and, as a result, readers of these financial staternents are adwised 1o use caution
when using this data to evaluate the Group's financial position

The concept of far value assurmes realisation of financial instruments by way of a sale However, n many cases, particularly in respect of
jending to customers, the Group Intends to realise assets through collection over time As such the far values calculated do not represent
the value of the Group as a going concern at 31 March 2008 or 31 March 2007

Governance

Set out below (s a summary of the methods and assumptions used n eshmating the far values of financial instruments, which are disclosed
in the following table

Financlal assets held for trading and other tinancial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss

These nstruments are valued using observable market pnces where avatable Where the market prices are unavariable, far value 15
calculated using discounted cash flow models based on observable market inputs

Denvative financial instruments

Dervatve financial instruments are valued usng discounted cash flow models, based pnmarily on observable market mputs, which take
account of current market nteres! rates and changes n credit spreads

Loans and advances to banks
The far value of floating rate placements and overnight placings is ther camying amount The estmated far vaiue of fixed interest beanng

placements Is based on discounted cash flows using prevating money market writerest rates for assets with similar credit sk and remaining
matunty

s
choad
c
@
3
=
i
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=
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=
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Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances are net of provisions for mparmert The fair value of fixed rate loans and advances s calcutated using a valuation
technique which uses current market rates to discount the estimated future cash flows expected to be receved  The fair value of floating
rate loans 1s normally assumed to be equal to carrying value

Avallable for sale financlal instruments

Avalable for sale financal nstruments are valued using quoted market prices where available Where the market prices are unavatlable, far
value 18 calculated using discounted cash flow models based on observable market nputs

Deposlts by banks and Customer accounts

The estimated far value of depostis with no stated matunty, which includes non interest beanng deposts, is the amount repayable on demand

General Information

The estimated far value of fixed interest beanng deposits and other borrowings without quoted market prices 18 based on discounted cash
flows using interest rates for new debts with simular remaining maturty
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Notes o the consclidated financial statements
&
0
45  Fair values of financiaf assets and liabilities {continued) a
923
W
Debt securities in Issue and subordinated liabilities 3
3
The aggregate farr values of these instruments are calculated based on quoted market pnces where avallable For those notes where quoted 3
market prices are not avalable, a discounted cash flow model is used based on a current vield curve appropnate to the Group for the
remaining term to maturity
Liabilihes to customers under investment contracts
The fair value of labihittes to customers under investment contracts 1s contractually inked to the fair value of the financial assets within
the policyholders’ unit inked funds  The value of the unit finked financial kabiities 15 determined using current unit prices multiphed by the
number of unts atinbuted to the contract holders at the balance sheet date Therr value s never less than the amount payable on surrender,
discounted for the required notice penod where apphcable
2008 2007 g)
]
Carrying Falr Carrying Falr g
amount values amount values =
Group €m €m €m £m 8
Financial instruments held for trading
Debt securities M 119 119 520 520
Derivative financial Instruments  trading
Foreign exchange contracts 114 114 {(103) {103
Interest rate contracts & (394) (394) (294) (294}
Equity and commedity contracts 187 187 61 61
Mon trading financiel instruments
Asgets
Cash and balances at centraf banks 484 434 362 382 2
items in course of collection from other banks 683 683 811 a1 §
Central government bills and other eligible bills ™ 10 10 1" 11 g
Loans and advances to banks 9,409 9 409 7.210 7,219 CZJ
Loans and advances to customers 135,738 134,902 125,048 125,124 %
Avallable for sale financial assets i 29,307 29,307 33,449 33,449 659
Other financiaf assets at fair value through profit or loss ™ 10,909 10,909 12,707 12,707 c;rf
Liabliities
Deposits by banks 14,130 14,118 20,405 20,482
Customer accounts 86,234 86,259 72277 72,491
Items in course of transmission 10 other banks @ 254 254 243 243
Debt securlties in 1ssue 60,842 60,030 59,523 59,562
Liabilities to customers under investment contracts @ 5,662 5,662 6,736 6,736
Insurance contract llabiities 7,140 7,140 7,190, 7,190
Suberdinated lablities 7.808 6,655 7,808 7,951
Derivative financial Instruments hedging cG)?
Interest rate contracts 339 339 250 250 3
o
{1) The fair value of thesa financial Instruments 15 aqual 1o the carmsng value These mstruments are efther camed at market value or have minimal credit ioeses and are ether short tarm In E_é‘
nature or repnced frequently g
S
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
z
@
Ga:: 46 Measurement basis of financial assets and habtlities
7
@ The table below analyses the carying amounts of the financial assets and habiities by accounting treatment and by balance sheet heading
@
@ At talr value At tair value
through profit or loss through equity
Derivatives Loans and
designated receivables
as fair value Designated Cash flow / Held at
hedging Held for upon mitial Available for hedge amortised Insurance
Group instruments trading recognition sale derivatves cost contracts Total
———rree—— a1 March 2008 £m £m €m £m €m £m €m €m
Financial assets
Cash and batances at central banks 484 484
1tams In the course of callection
fram other banks 683 683
Central government and other
8 eligible bills 10 10
% Trading securities 119 119
[ Denvative financial instruments 378 3,385 805 4,568
[40]
(_3') Other financial assets at far value
O] through profit or loss 10,909 10,909
Loans and advances 1 banks 9,400 9,408
Available for sale financial assets 28,307 29,307
Loans and advances to customers 135,738 135,738
Total financial assets 378 2,504 10,908 20,317 805 146,314 191,227
Financial liabilitles
Deposlits by banks 282 13,848 14,130
Customer accounts 2524 83,710 80,234
Itemns in course of transmission to banks 254 254
Derivative financial instruments 190 3,478 854 4,322
2]
= Liabilities to customers under investment
% contracts 5,662 5,662
a Debt secuniles in issue 971 59,871 60,842
133
o Insurance contract habilities 7,140 7,140
Tg Subordinated liablities 242 7,566 7,808
‘g Total financial fiabilities 190 3,478 9,681 854 165,249 7,140 186,392
&
o
Q
w©
£
£
£
&
i
@©
[
[13]
(O]
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Motes to the consohdated financial statements

46  Measurement basis of financial assets and hiabihties {continued)

At fair value At falr value
ihwough profit or loss through equity
Derpatives Loans and
deslgnated receivables /
as falr value Designated Cash flow Hetd at
hedging Held for  uponinitial Avallable for hedge  amortised insurance

Group instruments trading  recogmition sale denvatves cost contracts Total
31 March 2007 €m £m €m €m €m £€m £€m €m
Financial assets
Cash and balances at central banks 362 362
Rems in the course ot collectron
from other banks 811 a1
Central government and other eligible
bills 11 12!
Trading secunties 52¢ 520
Derivative financlal nstruments 200 1,914 735 2,849
Other financial assets at fair value
theaugh profit or foss 12,707 12,707
Loans and atvances to banks 7,210 7.210
Avallable for sale financial assets 33,449 33,449
Loans and advances to customers 125,048 125,048
Total financial assets 200 2434 12,707 33,460 735 133,431 182,967
Financtal flabilsthes
Deposits by banks 20,405 20,405
Customer accounts 2,574 69,702 72,277
Hems In course of transmission to banks 243 243
Derivative financial Instruments 236 2,250 449 2,935
Liahiities ta custamers under investment
contracts 6,736 6,736
Debt securities in issue 1,264 58,258 59,623
Insurance contract llabulities 7,190 7,190
Subordinaled haities 258 7,553 7,808
Total financlal liabilities 238 2,250 10,828 449 156,163 7,190 177,117

The far value and contractual amount due on maturity of fmancial labidities designated at far value upon indeal recognition are shown in the

table below
31 March 2008 31 March 2007

Conftractual Contractual
Fair amount due on Farr amount
values maturity values due on matunty
€m €m €m €m
DCeposits by banks 2g2 282 269 269
Customer accounts 2,524 2,682 2,574 3,491
Liabrities to customars urder investment contracts 5,662 5,662 6,736 6,736
Debt securities in 1ssue 971 979 1,264 1,274
Subordinated liabilties 242 246 255 260

Financial llabilties designated at fair value through
profit or loss 9,681 4,851 11,098 12,030

See note 6 for mformation on how changes n the fair value of financral habilities affected the Income staterment
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
2
@
&; 47  Dmvdend per unit of ordinary stock
[
w
@
@ 2008 2007 2008 2007
m cent per unit cent per unit £m €m
Fual dividend for previous year paid during the
current year 394 343 an 318
Interim dividend for the current year 242 210 240 206
636 553 G 524
The final proposed dvdend of 39 4 cent per unit of ordinary stock, amounting to €386 million (before adjustment for treasury stock), 1s not
accounted for untl ratified at the Annual General Court on 8 July 2008 The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2008 do not
reflect this resolution, which will be accounted for n stockholders' equity as an appropnation of retained profits in the year ending 31 March
2009
o The total divdend in respect of e year ended 31 March 2008 15 63 6 cent per unit of ordinary stock (31 March 2007 60 4 cent per unit of
2 ordinary stock} amounting fo & fotal of €626 million (31 March 2007 €577 milion)
@
&
g
t% 48  Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of tha cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents compnses the following balances
Group Bank
2008 2007 2008 2007
€m €m €m €m
Cash and batances with central anks 484 362 462 347
Loans and advances to banks {with an ong:nal
maturity of less than 3 months) 7,153 3,924 6,811 3,607
Gentral government and cther eligible bills 10 11
Cash and cash equivatents 7.847 4,297 7.273 3,954
49  General

{a) The Bank has gven a letter of comfort to the regulatory authonty of the isie of Man 1n respect of its bankng subsiciary Bank of ireland (OM}
Limited for the protection of the depositors of that subsidiary

Y
2
[y
(]
fa
=
3
5o}
i
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[&]
o
[0]
k=
(A

{t) The Bank has prowded a guarantee under Section 17 of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 1986 for the following companies

Premier Direct Management Limited, Prermier Direct Insurance Services Limited, Tustin Limited, Hill Wilson Secretarial Linited, Bank of
Ireland Insurance Services Limited, Bank of Ireland Asset Management (US) bimited, Bank of lreland Asset Management bimited, Bank
of Irefand Car Loans Limited, Bark of treland Commercial Finance Limited, Bank of Ireland International Finance Limited, Bank of Ireland
Outsourcing Services Limited, Bank of lreland Unit Trust Managers Limited, Bushfield Leasing Limied, Clonvern Limited, Edendork
Leasing Limited, First Rate Enterpnises Limited, Florenvilie Limited, 181 Corporate Finance Limited, Nerling Limred, Nestland Limited

{c} Bank income statement
In accordance with Section 148(8) of the Gompanies Act, 1963 and Section 7(1A} of the Companies (Amendment} Act, 1986, the Bank
18 availing of the exemption of presenting its iNdnacual incame statemeant ta the Annual General Court and from fiing ¢ with the Registrar
of Companies The Bank's profit for the financial year determined in accordance with IFRS 1s €1,385 milfion (31 March 2007 €1,558
rmillion)

General Information
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

50 Related party transactions

The parent company of the Group 1s the Governor and Company of the Bank of Ireland, which 1s a corporation estabkshed in Ireland in 1783
under Royal Charter with pnmary istings on both the Insh and London Stock Exchanges A number of banking transactions are entered

nto between the Gavernor and Company and its subsicianes in the normal course of business  These include toans, deposits and foreign
currency transactions, the volumes cutstanding at the year end are set out in nctes 18, 20, 30 and 31

{a) Associated undertakings and jomt ventures

The Group provides and recerves from its associated undertalangs and jomnt ventures certan banking and financial serices on similar terms
to thwrd party transactons and are not matenal to the Group These nclude loans, deposits and foreign currency fransachions, the volumes
outstanding at the year end are set out in notes 18, 20, 30 and 31

{b) Pension funds

The Group provides a number of normal banking and financial services 1o vanous pension funds operated by the Group for the benefit of
its employees (pnncipally for the Bank Staff Pension Fund), which are conducted on similar terms to third party transactions and are nat
matenal to the Group Further details on retrement benefit obhigations are set out in note 37

The Group occupies a number of premises owned by the Group's various pension schemes, the total value of these properties 1s €46
millicn

{c} Transactions with key management personnel

For the purposes of IAS 24 Related Party Disciosures, “key managament personnel” compnses the Directors of the Court, the members of
the Graup Executve Committee (GEC)", the Group Secretary and the Group Legal Advisor

Drrectors’ emoluments are set out i the Remuneration Report on pages 50 10 58 and detalls of compensation patd to kay management
personnal are provided below

Key management personnel hotd products with Group companies in the ordinary course of business All loans to Non Executive Directors
are made n the ordinary course of business on normal commercial terms  Loans to key management personnel other than Non Executive

Directors are made on terms similar to those available to staff generally and / or in the ordinary course of business on normal commercial
terms

The aggregate ameunts outstanding and the number of persons concerned, in respect of all loans, quasi loans and credit transactions

between the Bank to its key management personnel, as defined above, including members of therr close families and entities controlied by
thern are shown below

Key management persofinel Aggregate amount sutstanding Number of persons
31 March 2008 31 March 2007 31 March 31 March
€000 €'000 2008 2007
Directors
Loans 9,861 73,9589 12 13
Executive officers
Loans 1,473 4,368 4 5
Total 11,134 78,357 18 18

Included in the above figures, are loans 10 key management personnel, (cther than Non Executive Directors), on terms similar to those
available to staff generally, amounting to €839,717 {31 March 2007 €250,725)

In addition to the loans detaled above, the aggregate amounis of deposits and credit balances outstanding for key management personnel
in office at 31 March 2008 amounted to €12 milion (31 March 2007 €12 3 milkon)

0 addion 1o the Exetuive Diveciors the GEC compnses the Group Chef Rek Ctficer e Head o Group HA and the Drector Group Manuiactunng
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Notes to the consoidated financial statemants

50 Related party transactions (continued)

2008 2007
{d) Compensation of key management personnel €'000 €'000
Remuneration
Salanies and other short term benefits @ 14,787 22,179
Post employment benefits © 634 690
Termination benefits 1,428 750
Equrty compensation benefits @ 3,139 3,761
Total remuneration 19,986 27,380

{1} Compnses salary, fees, bonus, cashn lieu of pension, car allwance, profit share schemes and other short tern benefits paid n the

year
(2} Employer coninbutions to pension funds

{3) Value of awards made under the Group’s executive share option scheme, Save As You Earn schemes, LTIP, Staff Stock lssue n Ireland

and Stock Incentve Plan in UK which are descnibed in note 39

51 Acquisitions

Year ended 31 March 2008
There were no acquisitions In the year ended 31 March 2608

Year ended 31 March 2007

in the year ended 31 March 2007, the Bank entered into a joint venture partnership with Paui Capttal Partners, a leading US private equity

specialist, establishing Paul Capial investments LLC providing private equity funds products an

nvestors worldwide The consideration at the tme of acquisibon was US$25 mitkon  The acquist

joint venture using the equity method of accounting See note 23

52 Principal subsidianes

The principal Group undertakings at 31 March 2008 were

d adwisory services to insttutional and other
on s currently being accounted for as a

Country of Statutory
Name Principal activity incorporation year end
Bank of lreland Asset Management Limited Asset management treland 31 March
Bank of ireland International Finance Limited® International asset financing Ireland 31 March
Bank of lretand JOM) Limited Retail banking Isle of Man 31 March
Bank of Ireland Life Holdings pic* Ufe assurance and pensions ireland 31 December
Bank of Ireland Mortgage Bank” Mortgage lending and
mortgage covered securities Ireland 31 March
Bnstol & West ple! Mortgages, savings and
Invesiments England 31 March
First Rate Enterprises {UK) Limited” Foreign exchange England 3t March
ICS Buliding Society* Building society Ireland 31 Decernber

Direct subsidiary of The Gavernor and Company of the Bank of irefand

'On 1 Octaber 2007, the business of Bristol & West pic transferred to the UK Branch of the Govemor and Company of the Bank of Ireland, pursuant ta a baridng business

transfer scheme under Part Vi of the Financral Services and Markels Act 2000
This i3 a jont venture with tha UK Post Office, with each party owning 50% of the equity of the business

i Bankoflreland ¢
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statemeants

52  Principal subsidianies {continued)

All the Group undertakings are included i the consohdated accounts The Group owns 100% of the equity of the principal group
undertakings and 100% of the voting shares of all these undertakings and in the case of ICS Butding Scciety, 100% of the investment
shares

The addresses of the above underiakings are given en pages 183 to 186

in presenting details of the principal subsidiary undertakings, the exemption permitted by Regulaton 10 of the Eurepean Communities
{Credtt Institutions  Accounts) Regulations, 1992 has been avalled of and Bank of Ireland will annex to its annual return to the Companies
Cffice a tull hsting of group undertakings

Bank of Ireland Mortgage Bank (BoIMB)

BoivB's prncipal actvities are the ssuance of Insh residential morigages and morigage covered secunties in accordance with the Asset

Covered Secunties Act 200110 2007 Such loans may be made directly by the Bank or may be purchased from Bank of lreland and cther
mernbers af the Group or third parties

As at 31 March 2008, the total amounts outstanding in respect of mortgage covered secunties issued was €6 9 billion {31 March 2007 €6 4
billon) As at 31 March 2008, the total amounts of principal outstanding in the morigage covered pool including mortgage assets and cash
was €8 7 bilion (31 March 2007 €7 2 tillion)

From time to time, BolMB 1ssues other debt secunties comprising the BoiMB's cbligation to the Central Bank and Financial Services
Authonty of Iretand {CBFSAI) under the terms of the Mortgage Backed Promussory Note (IMBPN} prograrnme At 31 March 2008 there were
no such debt securities i 1ssue {31 March 2007 ml) These obligations had been secured by way of a first floating charge to the CBFSA|
over all is nght, title, nterest and benefit, N a relevant amount of loans and advances to customers The bank had pledged under the temms
of the floating charge to maintain the assets so charged free from any encumbrance and otherwise than in the ordinary course of business
not to sell, transfer, lend or otherwise dispose of any part of the charged assets without pnor written consent of the CBFSAL The deed

of flpating charge was executed by BoiMB and dated 5 July 2004 in favour of the Central Bank and Insh Financial Services Regulatory

Authonty The rmortgages in the MBPN programme were secured by a floating charge over Insh Residential Mortgage Credit Assets, which
weng not i the covered assets poal

53 Other subsidiarnies

The Group has a number of subsidianas where it does not own more than half of the voting power in the compary but which are
consolidated Details of these subsidianes are listed below

a) Partholon

The Group has sold a pool of leveraged acquisition finance loan assets to Partholon CDO 1 plc (Partholon), which 1s incorporated under the
Insh Gompanies Acts, 1963 to 2006 and 1s registered and operates m the Republic of Iretand  Partholon has 1ssued a senes of oan notes to
finance thus purchase The Group holds 25% of the subordinated ioan notes but does nat own, drectly or indwectly, any of the share captal
of Parthalon, which 1s owned by a chamabte trust The Group atso holds €30 milhon of AAA rated loan notes i Parthelon, which it intends
to hold untd matunty This investrnent is eliminated on consoldation

Under the tems of separate agreements the Group manages the assets of Partholon, including identfication ¢f addronal assets for
acquisition, for which it receves fees

b} Kildare Securities

Kildare Secunties Limited (Kildare} 1s a special purpose company which was established for the purpose of acguinng mortgage loans or
other financial assets and 1ssuing asset backed secunties Aggregate balances of the mortgages at 1ssue were €3 bifiion, equal to the
amount of asset backed secunties issued dunng March 2007 No new secunties were 1ssued by Kildare durng the year to 31 March 2008
At 31 March 2008 the aggregate balance of morigages backing securities 1ssued by Kildare was €2 4 billion

These mortgages, which are included on the consciidated balance sheet at 31 March 2008, are collateral for the obligations of Kildare
The credtors of Kildare have no recourse to the general credtt of the Group
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Notes o the consohdated financial staternerts

53  Other subsidiaries {continued)

¢) Liberator

Liberator Securiies No 1 ple {Lberator] 1s a special purpose company which was established for the purpose of acquirng mortgage loans
or other financial assets and 1ssuing morigage backed securbes Aggregate balances of the mortgages at issue were €500 miflion, equal to
the amount of asset backed secunties issued dunng June 2000 At 31 March 2008 the aggregate balance of mertgages backing securties
Issuad by Liberator was €126 million (31 March 2007 €150 million) The notes 1ssued by Liberator are due to be redeermed in July 2008

Busngss Review

These mortgages, which are included on the consokdated balance sheet at 31 March 2008, are collateral for the obhgations of Liberator
The credtors of Liberator have no recourse ta the general credr of the Group

d)} Brunel

Brunel Residential Mortgage Secuntisation No 1 plg (Brunef} 1s a special purpose company which was established for the purpose of
acquiring mortgage foans or other financial assets and 1ssuing assel backed securties Aggregate balances of the morigages at 1ssus were
Stge'5 5 trllon (€8 bilkon), equal to the value of assat hacked securties, and at 31 March 2008 the aggregate balances of the merigages at
\ssue were Stgt4 bilion (€5 bilkon)

These mortgages, which are included on the consclidated balance sheet at 31 March 2008, are collaterat for the obligations of Brunel  The
creditors of Brunel have no recourse to the general credit of the Group

Governance

@) Colston

Colston No 1 ple (Colston) s a special purpose company which was established for the purpose of acqumng mortgage loans o other
financial assets and for Issung mortgage backed secunties Aggregate balance of the mortgages at issue on 17 Decermber 2007 were
Staes 1 bilkon (€7 1 bilion), m excess of the value of asset backed secunties issued (Stg€4 6 billon (€6 4 bilklon)} At 31 March 2008, the
aggregate balance of the mortgages backing securites issued by Colston was Stgf4 9 bullion (€6 2 billon)

These martgages, which are included on the consolidated balance sheet at 31 March 2008, are coliateral for the obligations of Colston The
creditors of Colston have no recourse to the general credit of the Group

f} Avondale

Avondale Secunties S A (Avondale} 1s a special purpose vehicle, which was principally estabhshed for the 1ssuance of financlal mstruments,
the acquisition of financial assets and the entenng into of other legally binding instruments The aggregate balance of notes issued and
outstanding by Avondale an 31 March 2008 consists of €400 million of Emergence Offset Notes (EONS), which referenced the embedded
value n certan insurance policies enginated by Bol Life The snvestors in the EONs have no recourse to Bol Life or the rest of the Group «f

surplus does not emerge from the embedded value
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

54 Life assurance busmess

2008 2007
Valug of In force Life Assurance Business €m €m
1 April 580 513
Income statement movement value of in force (32) 67
31 March (see note 28) 548 580

The Group recognises as an asset the value of in force assurance business in respect of Insurance contracts The value of In force asset,
which 1s presented gross of attributable tax, represents the present value of future profits expected to anse from these contracts it s
determined by projecting future surpluses and other cashflows ansing from insurance contracts wntten by the balance sheet date The
useful ife of the asset 13 based on the length of the underlying indmidual polictes upon which the asset 18 cafculated This useful ie 18
expected to be 6 76 years (31 March 2007 6 96 years)

The key econormc assumptions used in the calculation of the value of in force business are set out below

2008 2007
Risk discount rate 80% 75%
Unit growth rate 625% 55%
Shareholder tax rate 125% 12 5%

The process used n determining the key economic and expenence assumptlions 1s set out below

Risk discount rate

Unit growth rate

Shareholder tax rate

Mortality and rmorbudity

Peraistency

Maintenance expenses

Report & Accounts

The nsk discount rate 1s the rate used to discount the surpluses that will anse on insurance business n the long
term fund The rate reflects the vield available on government bonds of appropriate duration plus a nsk margin

The unit growth rate 1s the assumed rate of return on the Company's urit inked assets before taxation and
management fees in fulure years The growth rate reflects the mix of assets held

The current rate of corporation tax 1s assumed to be mantained over the tem of the business Deferred tax
15 allowed for on the release of retained surpius in the Iife business

Mortality and meorbidity assumiptions, which mnclide aflowances for improvements in longewvity for annutants,
are set by reference to the Group's actual expenence and/or relevant industry data

Persistency rates refer to the rate of policy termination for msurance policies These rates are based on historical
expenence and management's views on future experience

Allowance 18 made for future policy costs by reference to current and expected future costs Explict allowance
15 made for future expense inflation
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Notes 1o the consolidatad financial statemants

54  Life assurance busmess (continued)

Sensitivities
The table beiow indicates the stand alone impact of changes n the key assumptions on profit after tax and shareholder equity

Business Review

1% Increase in nsk discount rate (€25 miillon)
1% decrease In risk discount rate €27 million
10% impravement in mortality £14 milhon
10% deterlaration In persistency {€22 miltion)
5% impravement m renewal expenses €6 milllon

1% increase in equity markets €2 mittion

While the fable above shows the impact of an indridual assumption change, a change in one assumption could impact on cther
assumptions due 1o the refatronship between assumptions

Insurance contract liabilities

The movemant In gross Iife insurance contract iabilites can be analysed as folows

Governance

March 2008 March 2007
€m €m

Opening balance FAL 5,192
MNew business 1389 1,823
Changes Int business {1,439) 175
Closing Balance 7.140 7,190

Bank of [refand Life (Bol Life) wries the followng ife assurance contracts that contain Insurance sk

Non linked ife assurance contracts
These contracts provide the policyholder with Insurance in the evenit of death, cribcal Hiness or permanent disabilty (prncipally mortality

and morbidity nsk)

Mon linked annuity contracts
These contracts provide the policyholder with an income until death {prmcipally longevity and market nsk)
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Linked nsurance contracts
These contracts include both polices pnmary providing hfe assurance protection and policies providing investment put with a level
of insurance risk deemed to be significant (principally mortality and market nsk)

Insurance contract liabilties, which consist of both unit Iinked and non Iinked labilies, are calculated n accordance with the Insurance
Regulations Unit linked habiities reflect the value of the underlying funds in which the policyhalder 13 mvested Non unit nked habilihes
are calculated using either a gross premium or net prermium method of valuation The assumptions are also set n accordance with the
guidehnes within the Insurance Regulations and contain & margin for adverse development The key assumphons used in the valuation
of insurance contract habikties are

General Information
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654  Life assurance business [continued)

Interest rata The interest rates are denved in accordance with the guidelines in the Insurance Regulations Margins for nsk are
allowed for In the denved interest rates

Mertality and morbicity The mortality and morbidity assumptions, which include an allowance for impravements in longewity for
annurtants, are set with regard to the Group’s actual expenence and/or relevant industry data

Mantenance expenses Allowance 15 made for future policy costs and expense inflation explicitly

Options and guarantees

Bot Life has a very imited range of options and guarantess In 1s business portiolic as the bulk of the business 1s unit inked without
investment guarantees Where investment guarantees do exist they are edher hedged with an outside party or matched through appropriate
investment assets

Uncertainties assoclated with insurance contract cash flows and risk management activities

For Iife assurance contracts where death 1s the Insured nsk, the most significant factors that could adversely afiact the frequency and
seventy of claims are the incidence of disease and general changes i Ifestyls Where the insured nsk 1s fongevity, advances in medical care
are the key factor that increases longevity The Group manages its exposures to insurance nsks through a combination of apphyng stnct
underwnting critena, asset and liabildy matching, transfernng nsk to reinsurers and the estabfishment of prudent insurance contract kabihes

Credit risk

Remnsurance programmes are in place to restrict the amount of cover on any single ife The Group uses a panel of hughly rated reinsurance
companies to diversify credit nsk

Capital Management and Available Resources

The Group holds technical reserves to meet its labiities to policyholders based on prudent actuanal assumptions In addition, the Financial
Regulator requires the Group’s e assurance operation to hold sharehokder equrty that exceeds a statutory margin, the required minimum
regulatory solvency margin The table below sets out the sharehalder equity held by the Group's lfe assurance operation compared to the
required minmum regulatory margin as at 31 December 2007 which is the life subsidiary’s statutory year end

31 December 2007 31 Becember 2006

€m €m

Minimum regulator solvency margin 174 161
Shareholder equrty held for life business 438 422

55  Approval of financal statements

The Court of Directors approved the financial statements on 20 May 2008
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Average balance sheet and interest rates
3
[;c?f The following tables show the average balances and inferest rates of interest earning assets and interest bearng labiities for ach of the
@ years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007 The calgulations of average balances are based on daly, weekly or monthly averages, depending
g on the reporting unit The average balances used are considered to be representative of the operations of the Group
2
o Year ended 31 March 2008 Year ended 31 March 2007
Average Average
Balance Interost Rate Balance Interest Rate
£m €m Y% £m £m %
ASSETS
ORI Loans and advances to banks
Domestic offices 5,836 230 39 7,625 259 34
Foreign offices 1,360 93 68 726 33 45
Laans and advances to cusl:omersm
Domestic offices 75,090 4,668 62 62,574 3,354 54
Foreign offices 59,179 3,786 64 53,133 3,140 59
8 Central government and other eligible bills
§ Dornestic offices 10 39 10 34
a; Foreign offices
8 Available for sale financial assets
Domestic offices 32,932 1,57¢ 48 30,368 1,283 42
Forelgn offices 424 25 50 1,414 58 42
Gther financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Domestic offices 24 29
Forgign offices 228 276
Qther -] g
Total Interest aarning assets 175,183 10,397 59 156,155 8,137 52
" Bomestic offices 113,992 6,477 57 100,606 4,896 49
-‘ﬂa) Fareign offices 61,191 3,914 64 55,549 3,232 58
EJ Other 5 o
E‘% 175,183 10,397 59 156,155 8,137 52
= Allowance for impairment losses (498) (391)
Q Non Intorest samung assets’ 24,726 22,148
L% Total assets 199,411 10,397 52 177,810 8,137 46
Percontage of assets applicable to foreign
nctivities 30 6% 31 2%
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Average balance sheet and interest rates
m
[
Average balance sheet and interest rates (contimued) 2
o
[45]
Year ended 31 March 2008 ‘Year ended 31 March 2007 cjg
Average Average I
Balance Interest Rate Batance Interest Rate =
€m €m % £m £€m %
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposits by banks @
Domestic offices 7,995 263 33 12,526 294 23
Foreign offices 10,761 577 54 15,318 772 50
Customer accounts
Domestic offices 33,804 1,229 37 31,389 830 23
Foreign offices 30,287 1,579 52 25,331 1,129 45
Debt securities in issue
Domestic offices 49,627 2,351 47 36,214 1,669 44
Foreign offices 11,586 697 60 6,914 326 47 g
Subordinated liabilities @
Dormestic offices 4,472 226 51 3,722 167 45 §
Foreign offices 3,515 229 65 3,357 214 64 2
Other ) )
Total interest bearing liabilities 151,844 7,134 £7 134,771 5,380 40
Domestic offices 95 695 4,069 43 83,851 2,950 as
Foreign offices 56,149 3,082 55 50,920 2,441 48
Other {19 (11
Non interest bearing liabdities 151,844 7,134 47 134,771 5,380 40
Current accounts 12,533 11,958
Gther non interest beanng labilities™ 28,084 25,068 %L‘
Stockholders equity 6,950 6,112 %
Total liabilthes and stockholders® equity 199,411 7,134 36 177,910 5,380 30 %
]
Percentage of labilities and stockholders equity gﬁ
applicable to forelgn activides WB2% 28 6% g
%
(1) Loans to customers include non accrual leans and leans classified as mparred loans The Croup applies hedge accounting on a macro
cash flow basis to the total balance sheet The outcome of this actwity has been allocated between domestic and foreign loans and
advances to customers as appropnate

{(2) The deposit by banks domestic and foreign balance and interest lines above have been adjusied to correct for inter junsdictional funding
ttemns that anse through normal business activities, to gve a more meaningful picture of the Group's domestic and foreign actmties

(3) The balance sheets of the life assurance companies have been conscldated and are reflected under “Non interest earning assets”
and “Cther non interest bearing habilities”
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 March 2008

{EURQ, US$ & STGY) £m US$m{1) Stgfm(1)
Interest income 10,397 18,439 8,274
interest expense (7,134 {11,280} {8,677
Net Interest income 3,263 5,159 2,597
Net insurance premium meome 1,940 3,068 1,544
Fees and commissions income 816 1,290 649
Fees and commissions expensa {t50) {237) ()]
Net trading expense (246) {389) (196)
Life assurance investment income and (losses) / gains (826) (1,308} 657}
Other operating income 238 376 189
Yotal operating income 5,035 7,961 4,007
Insurance contract iiabities and clams paid (798) {1,261) (635)
‘fotal operating income, net of insurance claims 4,237 6,700 3,372
Total operating expenses 2,157) {3,411) (1.747)
Operating profit before iImparment losses 2,080 3,289 1,655
impaiment losses (232} {367) (184)
Operating profit 1,848 2,922 1,474
Share of profit of associated undertakings and joint ventures (after tax) 46 73 36
Profit on disposal of property 39 61 N
Profit before taxation T 1,933 T 3,066 1 53;
Taxatlon (229) (362) (182)
Profit for the period 1,704 2694 1,356
Attributabile to minority interests 5 8 4
Attributable to stockholders 1,699 2,686 1,352
Profit for the perlod 1,704 2,694 1,356

(1) Converted at closing exchange rates

i Bankof iretand (&
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Consolidated balance sheet

as at 31 March 2008 -
G
]

{EURQ, US$ & STGD) €m us$m) StgEmi(1) {(%

ASSETS g

Cash and balances at centraf banks 484 765 385 =

Hems in the course of collection from other banks 683 1,080 543 =

Central government and other eligible bills 10 16 8

Trading securties 119 188 95

Dervative Tinancial instruments 4,568 7,223 3,635

Cther financial assets at falr value through profit of loss 10,909 17,248 8,681

Loans and advances to banks 9,409 14,878 7,488

Avallable for sale financial assets 29,307 46,340 23,323

Loans and advances to customers 135,738 214,629 108,020

Interest n associated undertakings 28 44 22

Interest In joint ventures T0 111 56

Intangible assets goodwill 293 463 233 0

Intangiole assets  other 570 901 454 2

Investment property 1,544 2,389 1,202 S

Property, plant & equipment 563 938 472 %

Deferred tax asset 145 220 115 8

Other assats 2,754 4,355 2,182

Retwrement benefit assot 1h] 17 2]

Assets classified as held Tor sale 232 367 185

Total assets 197,434 312,182 157,118

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Deposits by banks 14,130 22,342 11,245

Customer accounts 86,234 136,353 68,625

Items in the course of transmission to other banks 254 402 202

Derwative financial instruments 4,322 6,834 3,440 %“'

Liabilities to cusiomers under invesiment contracts 5,662 8,953 4,506 %

Debt securities i issue 60,842 96,203 48,418 %

Insurance contract iabiities 7,140 11,290 5,682 )

Qther liabilties 3,535 5,690 2,813 %

Provisions 47 74 37 (%

Peferred tax Habllities 131 207 104 a"

Retirernent benefit obligations 807 1,276 642

Subordinated iahlities 7.808 12,346 6,214

Total liabilties 180,912 301,870 151,928

Equity

Caprtal stock 664 1,050 528

Stock premum account 775 1,225 Bt7

Retaned earnings 5,670 8,965 4,512

Other reserves (400} {632) (318)

Own shares held for the benefit of Iife assurance policyholders {225) (356) (179) Gm)

Stackhalders' equity 6,484 10,252 5,160 2

Minority interests a8 60 30 :mﬁ...

Total equity 8,522 10,312 5190 g

Total equity and labilities 197 434 312,182 157,118 g

{1) Corwverted at closing exchange rates §
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Other disclosures

TARGET 2

Dunng the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group migrated to the TARGET 2 system that enables net interbank settlement at European
level

Business Review

Please see below for disclosures in relation to the charges ansing as a result of the Group's migration o TARGET 2

1 On 15 Fabruary 2008 a first floatng charge was placed in favour of the Central Bank and Financial Services Authonty of Irefand {CBFSAl
over all Bank of Ireland's nght, tille, mterest and benefit, present and future, m and 1o the balances now or at any time standing to the credit
of Bank of Ireland's account held as a TARGET?2 participant with the CBFSAI (the Charged Property) where TARGETZ 15 a real time gross
settlement system for payments in euro with settlement in central hank money

This floating charge Contains a provision whereby dunng the subsistence of the securtty, otherwise than with the prior wrtter: consent of the
CBFSAl Bank of Ireland shall

{a) not create or attempt to create or permit to anse or subsist any encumbrance on or over the charged property or any part
thereof, or

{b} not, ctherwise than in the ordmary course of busness, sell, transter, lend or otherwise dispose of the charged property or any
part therecf or attempt or agree to do so whether by means of one ora number of transactions related or not and whether at one
tme or over a penod of tme

2 On 15 Fabruary 2008 a first floating charge was placed in favour of the CBFSA! over all Bank of Ireland's hght, title, nterest and benefit,
present and future, In and to certan segregated securties (the Charged Property) isted in an Ehigible Securties Schedule kept by Bank

of Ireland for purposes of partcipating in TARGET2 where TARGET2 1s a real time gross settlernent system for payments in euro with
settlement in central bank money

Governance

Tris fleating charge contains a pravision whereby during the subsistence of the security, otherwise than with the prior written consent of the
CBFSAI, Bank of Ireland shall

(&) not create or attempt to create or permit 1o anse or subsist any encumbrance on or over the Charged Property or any part
thereof, or

(b) not, otherwise than In the ordinary course of business, sell, transfer, lend or otherwise dispose of the Charged Property or any
part thereof or attempt or agrea to do so whether by means of one ora number of transactions related or not and whether at one
time or over a penod of time
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Stockholder information

Holders of ordinary stock

31 March 2008 31 March 2007

Stockholder profile % by value % by value

Ireland 14 16

UK 12 15

us 19 18

Eurcpe / QOther 22 22

Retail 33 29

100 100

Analysis of stockhoidings

Stockholding range Number of % of tatal Stock held % of total
units of stock stockholdings holders units (milfion) stock
Up to 500 27,888 3503 54 085
501 to 1,000 13,160 1653 1001 102
1,001 to 5,000 26,677 33 51 6226 635
5,001 to 10,000 8,209 780 4380 4 47
10,001 to 50,000 4,797 603 24 59 965
50,001 to 100,000 405 051 2820 288
100,001 1o 506,000 318 040 65 37 6 66
COver 500,000* 150 019 67083 68 42
79,602 100 380 47 100

* Excludes stockholdings heid oy Bol Lifa companies

Feport & Accounts
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Cﬂ% Results Year ended 31 March 2008
g announced 27 May 2008
% Half year to 30 September 2008
5’ o be announced 13 November 2008
Annual General Court of Proprietors Tuesday, B July 2008
Dividends ardinary stock 2007 / 2008 final dividend
to be declared 8 July 2008
payable 23 July 2008
] 2008 / 2009 Interim dividend
to be announced 13 November 2008
payable 13 January 2009 . E
Dividends preference stocks Payable in equal semi annual instalments net
20 August 2008 '
20 February 2009
Listings
o i}
=
= The Governor and Company of the Bank of Ireland s a corporation establshed n Irefand in 1783 under Royal Charter Its ardinary stock,
% of nominal value €0 84 per unt, has a pnmary listing on both the Insh and London Stock Exchanges In the US the Bank’s ordinary stock
& (symbol IRE) is traded on the New York Stock Exchange in the form of Amencan Depository Shares (ADSs), each ADS representing the right
to receve four units of ordinary stock and evidenced by Amencan Depostiory Receipts (ADRs)
Registrar
The Bank's Registrar 13
Computershare Investor Services (lreland) Limited,
PO Box 954
Sandyford,
Dublin 18
Telephone + 353 1 247 5414,
ffF_B Facsimile + 353 1 2163151
@ or
E Email to web quenes@computershare ie
|5}
E{% Stockholders with access to the imernet may check ther accounts on the Bank’s stock register by accessing the Banlk's website at
":d www bankefireland com, chcking on *Investor Relations™ and then clicking on “Check your Stock™ This faciity allows stockholders to
g chack therr stockholdings and recent divdend payment details, and to download standard forms required to mitiate changes m detals
L held by the Registrar
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Firancial calendar

Dividend payment dates 2007 7 2008

Art intenm dnidend of 24 2 cent was paid in respect of each urit of
ordinary stock on 15 January 2008

A final dwvidend of 38 4 cent is proposed in respect of each unit of
ordinary stock payable on or after 23 July 2008

Dwidends in respect of the Bank of Ireland non cumulative euro
and Sterling preference stocks are paid half yearly on 20 February
and 20 August Dmclends in respect of Bnstol & West plc non
cumulative preference shares are paid half yearly on 15 May and 15
Navember

Payment of dividends directly to your account

Stockholders who wish to have their dmdends paid directly to a
bank or buttding society account by electronic funds transfer, should
contact the Bank's Registrar to obtan the appropnate mandate
form Corfimation that such payment has been made will be sent
to the stockholder's regrstered address under this arrangement

Payment of dividends In Sterting

In order to reduce costs to stockholders, arrangements can be
made for steckhotders resident in the UK 1o recenve payment of ther
drdends n the equvalent amounts of Sterling if they so choose
Please contact the Bank's Registrar if you wish to avail of this
service

Stock Alternative Schame

Stockholders who have already completed a Stock Alternative Offer
form requesting receipt of ther entitemnent to all future dvidends

in units of ordinary stock will autornatically recerve units of ordinary
stock in respect of the final dnadend of 39 4 cent per unit for the
vear ended 31 March 2008

Stockholders who have not already completed the Stock Alternatve
Offer form, and who wish to participate in the Stock Alternatve Offer
in respect of the final dvadend, are required to complete and return a
Stack Alternative Offer form to the Bank's Registrar

Amalgamating your stockholdings

If you have receved more than one copy of this Report &
Agccounts, 4 may be pecause the Bank has more than one record
of stockhoidings in your name To ensure that you do not receve
duplicate maiing in future, please have all your stockholdings
amalgamated into one account by contacting the Bank's Registrar

Stockholder enquiries

All enguines concerning stockholdings should be addressed to the
Bank's Registrar

Report & Accounts

Electronic communication

In the interests of protecting the environment and promoting
efficiency in our company, stockholders are encouraged to elect for
recert of documentahon online as socn as 4 1s published on our
wehsite through our registrar (www computershare com/register/ie)
As well as being speedier and tess bulky, you can access some or
all of the information at your convenience

Internet address

Further mformation about the Bank of Ireland Group can be
obtained from the internet at www bankofireland com

Divldend withholding tax (DWT)

The following information does not constitute defintive tax advice
Stockhelders are advised o consuit professionat adwvisers of n any
doubst about ther own individual positron

Further nformation on DWT may be obtained from

DWT Section,

Office of the Revenue Commissioners,
St Conlon's Road,

Nenagh, Co Tipperary,

Ireland

Telephone +353 67 33533

Facsimile +353 67 33822

Emal infodwt@revenue e

The Bank's Regstrar

Computershare Investor Senaces (freland) Limited,
PO Box 954,

Sandyford,

Dublin 18

Telephone +353 1 247 5414,

Facsimile +353 1 216 3151

Dradends pad by Insh resident companies ara, with certan
exceptions, subject to DWT at the standard rate of ncome tax
(currently 20%) Where it apples, DWT 1s deducted by the Bank
from aft dwidends paidt

In general, Insh resident ndmidual stockholders are liable to TWT

However, certain other classes of stockholders are not llable to DWT
provided they

. fall nta any of the exempt categeones® and
*  complete and return the Insh Revenue Approved Universal
Declaration Form

*Examples of exempt categones inciude Insh resident comparves,
pension schemes, PRSA admiristrators, unit trusts, chanties,
certain non resident ndviduals and comparves — a full st of exempt
entilies and full details of exemptions are contamned in the Universal
Declaration Form which 1s avarlable from the Insh Revenue or
Computershare, the Bank's Regstrar, at the addresses above

Bank of Irefland &) |
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If you believe that you are entitied to an exemgtion fram OWT you
must

+  complete the relevant part of the Urversal Declaration Form,
cbtaining any relevant addticnal certication required, and

e return the completed Universal Declaraton Form to the Bank's
Registrar (or to your qualfysng intermediary or authonsed
withholding agent} no later than one week pnor to the next
ensuing Dmdend Payment Record Date

Failure 1o take action will mean that DWT at the standard rate of
Income tax, currently 20%, wil be apphed to dvidends payable by
the Bank to you

DWT on scrip dividends

Where a stockholder elects to take addional stock instead of a
cash dvidend, the number of units will reflect the cash amount
payable, net of DWT

Form 20F

The Form 20F for year ended 31 March 2008 will ba fled with the
US Secunties and Exchange Commisston, Washington DG Copies
wilt be avalable to download from the Bank's website {see below) or
in hard copy, free of charge, an applcation to the Group Secrsiary,
or on the webstits of the US Securities and Exchange Commission

Holders of American Deposttary Shares

Arnenican Depositary Receipts (ADRs) are negohable secuntes that
are used 10 represent, among other things, a non US company's
publicly traded crdinary share capital ADRs are traded and
dmdends are distriouted n US dollars just ke any US securty,
alleviating certain obstacles associated with investing directly In the
home markets of non US companies The Bank of New York s the
Depositary Bank for the Bank of Ireland’s ADR Program

Please drect enquines to
The Bank of New York,
Investor Services,

PO Box 11258,

Church Street Station,
New York,
NY 10286
USA

1258,
Telephone Toll Free Number (US Residents) 1 888 269 2377
International +1 212 815 3700

E mail inquines shareowners@bankofny com
Website www stockbny com

| Bankoffreland &)

Financial calendar

Taxation impHcations of Dividend Withholdmg Tax for
holders of ADRS

A holder of an ADR whose address on the regster of deposdary
receipts, held by Bank of New York or other qualfyng ntermediary,
or by any intervernng specified intermediary, 1s located n the USs, will
be exempt from DWT There s no reguirement for such holder to
rmake a declaration in order fo obtain that exemption

Repaort & Accounts



FPrincipal Business Units & Addresses

REPUBLIC OF iIRELAND
Group Head Office

Lower Baggot Street, Dublin 2
Tel + 3531 6615933

Fax + 353 1661 5671

Website www bankofireland com

Group Executive

Group Chief Executive

Chief Executive, Retail Financial Services Ireland
Chief Executive, Capital Markets

Chief Executive, UK Financial Services

Diwrector, Group Manufacturing

Group Chief Financial Cfficer

Group Chef Risk Officer

Head of Group HR

Group Secretary

Head of Group Investor Relations

Head of Group Corporate Communications
Group Legal Adwviser

RETAIL FINANCIAL SERVICES IRELAND

Branch Network
Network Offices

1st Floor, Arena, Whitestown Way, Tallaght, Dutlin 24

Tel +353 1460 6503
Webside www bankefireland e
Drrector Branch Network Tim O'Nedl

Bank of ireland Business Banking
40 Mespll Road, Dubiin 4

Tel + 3531 665 3400, Fax + 353 1 665 3480
Website www bankofireland e

Birector Cathal Muckian

Group Custormer Cperations

1 Grand Canal Quay, Dublin 1

Tef + 353 1 4882546, Fax +353 1 4882106
Website www bankofireland e

Head of Group Customer Operations Joe Larkin

Bank of Ireland Martgages and Persenal Lending

ICS Building Socisty

New Century House, IFSC, Mayor Street Lower, Dublin 1

Tel + 3531611 3000, Fax +353 1 611 3100
Emal ics@mortgagelink ie

Webste www themorigagestore e

Managing Director Brendan Newin

Report & Accounts

Brian J Goggin
Richie Boucher
Penis Donovan
Des Crowley
Tony Wyatt

Jehn O'Donovan
Ronan Murphy
Chnistine Brennan

John Chiford
Geraldine Deighan
Dan Loughrey
Finbarr Murphy

Life Assurance
Bank of Ireland Life Holdings plc

(including New Irefand Assurance Company plc)
Grattan House, Bank of Ireland Head Office

Lower Baggot Strest, Dubln 2

Tel +3531 703 9500, Fax + 353 1 662 0811

Emall info@bankofirelandlfe e

Wehsite www bankofirelandife

Managing Oirector Brian Forrester

New Ireland Assurance Company plc
11/12 Dawson Street, Dublin 2

Tel + 3531617 2000, Fax + 353 1 617 2800
Emal info@newireland 1e

Website www newreland re

Managing Director Bnan Forraster

General Insurance

Bank of Ireland Insurance Services Lid

Banlung Operations Centre, Cabinteely, Dublin 18
Tel 1890 604 604, Fax +353 1 2361740

Email nfo@bonnsurance 1e

Managing Director Eamon Slewin

Bank of lretand (=) |
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Bank of lreland Finance

Coirn House, 91 Pembroke Road, Balsbridge, Dublin 4
Tel +353 16140300, Fax + 353 1614 0301

Emal info@bif 18

Website www bif ie

Managing Director Pat Creed

Bank of Ireland Private Banking Lid
40 Mespll Road Dublin 4

Tel +353 1 637 8600, Fax + 353 1 637 8700
Emal pb nio@pb bolie

Website www privatebanking 1o

Managing Director Mark Cunningham

Retail Foreign Exchange

Foreign Currency Exchange Corp

7352 Greenbnar Parkway, Orando, Flonda, USA 32819
Tel + 1407 992 2790 and + 1 800 999 0689

Fax + 1407 992 2780

Website www FCECC com

President & CEO Brendan Kelly

UK FINANCIAL SERVICES

Bank of Ireland UK Financial Services
PO Box 27, One Temple Quay, Bristal BS99 7AX
Tel +44 11 7909 0900, Fax + 44 11 7929 3787
Website www boiukis eo uk
Chief Executive Des Crowlay

Bank of lrefand Personal Lending (LK)

PO Box 27, One Temple Quay, Brstol BS39 7AX

Tel + 44 117 979 2222 and + 44 117 909 0900

Fax + 44 117 929 3787

Webste www bnstol wast co uk,

www bim online com and www bristolandwestdbrokers co uk
Managing Director Richard Brown

NHB

32 Central Avenue, Bangor

Count Down BT20 3AD

Tol +44 2891 460 415 Fax +44 2891 461 434
Managing Director Michael Andrews

Bank of lreland Mortgages

Plaza West, Bridge Street

Reading RG1 2LZ

Tel +44 118839 3393 Fax +44 118958 7040
Managing Director Mike Joyce

Post Office Financial Services

4th Floor, 10 Fleet Place,

London EC4M 7RG

Tel +44 845 641 8831, Fax +44 207 332 0198
Chuef Executve Officer Patnck Waldron

| Bank ofreland (&

DPrincioal Busingess Unils & Adrirgscas

Cards Business

33/35 Nassau Street, Dublin 2
Tel 1850 251 251

Fax + 353 1 6795351

Emait boics@boimal com
Website www bor ie/cards
Managing Director Kevin Murphy

Retail Foreign Exchange

First Rate Enterprises 1.td

3 4 South Fredenck Street, Bublin 2

Toh + 353 1 863 8500, Fax + 353 1 863 8581
Emal maggie heaslip@bomail com
Managing Director Joe Redmond

Business Banking UK

36 Queen Street, London, EC4R 1HJ

Tel + 44 20 7236 2000, Fax + 44 207634 3110
Website www bank-of reland co uk

Managing Director David McGowan

Business Barking UK

1 Donegall Square South, Betfast, BT1 5LA

Tel + 44 28 9043 3000, Fax + 44 28 9043 3010
Websits www bankefireland co uk

Managing Director David McGowan

First Rate Exchange Services

Falcon House, 115 123 Staines Road, Hounslow, TW3 3LL
Tel + 44 208 577 9363, Fax + 44 208 814 6685

Webste www firstrate co uk

Managing Director Gordon Gourlay

Bank of Ireland First Currency Services

Wholesale Banknote

4th Floor, 10 Feet Place

London EC4M 7RG

Tal + 44 20 8814 8800 Fax. + 44 20 7796 2873
E mal infe@boifcs com

Managmng Director Kerth Watts

Bank of iretand (OM) Ltd

PO Box 248, Chnstian Road, Douglas, [sle of Man M99 1XF
Tel + 44 1624 644200, Fax + 44 1624 644298

Website www Donom com

Managing Director Michael McKay

Report & Accounts



Frrcieal Businses- Units & Addresses

CAPITAL MARKETS
CORPORATE BANKING

Bank of reland Corparate Banking
Lower Baggot Street, DBublin 2

Tel +353 1604 4000, Fax + 353 1 604 4005
Email corporate banking@boimail com

Webste www bankofireland ie/corporatebanking
Chief Executive  Tom Hayes

London

Bank of Ireland Corporate Banking
Eastcheap Court

11 Philpot Lane, London EC3M 8BA

Tel + 44 207 560 8400

Fax + 44 207 626 2405

France

Bank of lreland Corporate Banking

20 Avenue Franklin Rocsevelt, 75008 Pans, France
Tel + 33156880588, Fax +33156887959
Head of Acquisition Finance France Phippe Bassouls

Germany

Bank of lreland Corporate Banking
Taunusaniage 17

60325 Frankfurt am Main, Frankfurt

Tel + 49 69 7167 33810/20

Head of Acquisition Finance Germany Ralph Betz

United States

Bank of Ireland Capital Markets U S Branch
300 First Stamford Place

Stamford CTO6902

Tel +1 203 3915555

Website www bankofireland e

Country Manager John T Connors

Uriuted States

Bank of lreland California Representative Office
2029 Century Park East, Suite 21 17

Los Angeles, CAS0067 2901

Tet + 1 310 843 9380, Fax + 1 310 843 9381

Website wwwhbankofireland 1@

Senor Vice President Anthony Beaudoin

Burdale Capital Finance
300 First Stamford Place,
Stamford CT 06902

Tel +1 203 391 5964

Managing Director David Grende

Report & Accounts

Burdale Financial Limsted

53 Queen Anne Street

London WIG 9HF, England

Tel + 44 207 935 1115, Fax + 44 207 486 3513
Website www burdale co uk

Managing Director Dennis Levine

Australia

BOI Capital Australia Pty Ltd

FL40D, MLC Centre

19 29 Martin Place, Sydney, NSW 2000

Tel +612 9270 8700, Fax +512 9270 8799
Website www hankaofireland e

Head of Project Finance Asta Pacific Alasdarr Caush

TREASURY

Bank of Irefand Global Markets
Colvili House, Talbot Street, Dubhn 1

Tet +853 1 799 3000, Fax + 353 1 799 3035
Emaill info@boigm com

Webside www DOt I/Capitalmarkets

Chief Executive Austin Jenrungs

Landon

Bank of lreland Global Markets
Eastcheap Court

11 Philpot Lane, London EC3M 8BA

Tel + 44 207 560 8600, Fax + 44 207 560 8680
Website www bol ie/capitalmarkets

Managing Director Peter Goshawk

Brnstol

Bank of lreland Global Markets

OCne Termnple Quay

Bnstol BS 99 7AX

Tel +44 117 923 1504, Fax +44 117 921 1607
Website www bol Ie/capitalmarkets

Chief Dealer Barry Lettlefield

Belfast

Bank of Ireland Global Markets

1 Donegall Square South

Belfast BT1 5LR

Tel +44800776 616, Fax + 44 28 9023 7444
Website www boi ie/captaimarkets

Head of Global Markets Belfast Michael Burns

Bank of freland (&) |
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CORPORATE FINANGCE

181 Corporate Finance | td

40 Mespll Road, Dublin 4

Tel +353 1 637 7800, Fax + 353 1 637 7801
Website www bicf e

Chief Executtve Roisin Brennan

ASSET MANAGEMENT SERVICES

Bank of lreland Asset Management Ltd
40 Mespil Road, Dublin 4

Tel +353 1 637 8000, Fax + 353 1 637 8100
Website www biam e

Chiet Executve Mick Sweeney

Bank of lreland Securities Services Ltd
New Century House, Mayor Street Lower

IFSC, Dubhn 1

Tel + 35316700300, Fax +353 1823 0144
Email info@boiss bol 1e

Waebsite www boiss 1e

Managing Director Liam Manahan

Alternative Investments & International Distnbution
40 Mespl Road, Dubln 4

Tel +353 1 637 BOOO, Fax + 353 1 637 §100

Website www blam

Chief Executive Michasl Grealy

Australia

BIAM Austraha Pty Lid

(ABN 565 071 705 630}

Level 12, 492 St Kikda Road, Melbourne VIC 3004
Tei + 613 9832 9400, Fax + 61 3 9832 9401
Webste www biam e

Regional Director Australasia Pat Lardner

Canada
Montreal

Bank of Ireland Asset Management (U S) Ltd
1000 de 1a Gauchetiére Ouest, Sute 2400

Montreal, Quebec, H3B 4W5, Canada

Tel +1514 448 7538, Fax + 1514 849 8118

Website www biam e

Vice President Vincent Marcoux

Japan

Bank of treland Asset Management (Japan) Ltd
Level 5, Akasaka Tokyu Buiding, 2 14 3 Nagatacho
Chiyoda Ku, Tokyo 100 0014, Japan

Tel +81 335393180, Fax + 81 33539 3182

Website www bam e

President Kikuo Kuromwa

| Bank ofiretand )

Crngpal Busress Lnits & Adrresses

Bank of lreland Corporate Finance Limited
Donegall House

1 Donegall Square South

Helfast BT1 5LR

Tal +44 2890 433 000, Fax +44 2890 237 921
Website www ibiclie

Chvef Executive Roisin Brennan

United Kingdom

Bank of treland Asset Management (U K) Lid
36 Queen Street, London ECAR 1HJ

Tel + 44 207 489 8673, Fax + 44 207 489 9676

Websie www biam g

Managing Drector Carl McAndrew

United States

Connechicut

Bank of Ireland Asset Management (U S} Lid
300 First Stamford Place, Stamford, CT 06902

Tel +1203 328 1820, Fax +1 203 324 4408

Website www biam 12

Head of International Distribution & President BIAM N A
Brendan Donohoe

Indian Asset Management LLC

276 Post Road West, Westport, CT 06880

Tel + 1203 341 7800, Fax + 1 203 341 7802

Emal indan@indian com

Chief Executve Officer Harold Levy

Co Chief investment Officers Harold Levy and David Cohen

Cabfornia

Paul Capital Investments, LLC

50 Caitormia Street, Sutte 3000, San Francisco, CA 84111
Tel + 1415283 4300, Fax + 1415 283 4301

Webste www paulcap com

CEC & Managing Drrector David York

MNew York

Guggenheim Adwisors, LLC

135 East 57th Streat, New York, NY 10022
Tol +1 212 884 6225, Fax + 1 212 644 2947
Website www guggenheimadvisors com
Charman & CEO Loren Katzavitz

President Patrick Hughes

Report & Accounts
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Audit Commetee and Auditors

Amencan depository receipts

American depository shares
Appointments to the Court

Asset qualty

Attendance at scheduled meetings
Auditors

Average balance sheet and interest rates

Bank balance sheet

Bank of keland Global Markets

Bank of Ireland Lifa

Basei Il

Board balance and independence
Branches outside the State

Business review

Business nsk

Business segments income staternent

Capital adequacy data

Capntal adequacy requirements

Capital management

Capital markets

Capital resources

Capttal stock and subordinated liabilties
Cash flow staternent

Changes i the directorate
Concentration nsk

Consolidated balance sheet
Censolidated balance sheet (euro, USS, Stgf)
Consoldated income statement

Gonseldated income statemenit jeuro, LSS, Stgr)

Contents

Corporate governance

Corporate governance statement

Corporate responsibility

Court of Directors

Court sub committees

Credit risk

CREST

Cntical accounting estimates and judgerrents

Deferred taxation
Derwvatives

Directors

Directors’ interests
Dwectors’ interests in stock
Directors’ pension entitlements
Directors' profiles
Drectors' remuneration
Dnadends

Drvidend withholding tax
Dmvisional performance
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Earnings per share

Economic capital

Election / Re election of Directors
Environment

Executve stock options

Financiat assets avalable for sale
Financial calendar

Financial statements

Form 20 F

Funding

General information

Going concern and books of account
Governance

Group Chief Exacutves review
Governor's statement

Group accounting policies

Group activities

Group Audit Committee

Group centre

Independent auditor's report

Internal controls

Internet address

Information and professional development

Life nsurance nsk

Lirnits

Liquidity nsk

Listngs

Long term incentve plan

Macro nsk identification

Management of principal nsk

Management of regulatory and opsrational nsk
Market nsk

New York Stock Exchange {NYSE)
Corporate governance requirements
Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Operating and financial review
Cperational nsk
Qutlook

Pension nsk
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Glossary of terms

ABS
ACS
ADR
ADS
AFS
ALCO
APE
BIGPF
BIS
Bol Life
BolGM
bps
BSPF
CBFSAl
Chs
CDOS
cGU
cMas
cP
CRD
CSAs
bwWT
EAD
Ecap
EPS
Eu
EUETS
Euribor
EWMA
FRES
FRN
GAAP
GAC
GCC
GCRO
GEC
GlA
GROR
GRORGC
GRPC
HSE
ICAAP
lAS
1ASB
IBNR
IFRIC
IFRS
IRBA

Asset Backed Securiies

Asset Covered Securities

Amencan Deposttory Recepts

American Depository Shares

Available for safe

Group Asset and Liabifity Commtiee

Annual Preenuum Eqnalent

Bank of lrefand Group Pensian Fund

Bank for Intemational Setflements

Bank of Irefand Life

Bank of Irefand Global Markets

Basis points

Bank of Ireland Staff Pension Fund

Central Bank and Financial Services Authonty of trefand
Certficates of deposit

Collateralised debt obligation

Cash generating units

Commercial Mortgage Backed Securies
Commercial Paper

Capital Requirements Dwecive (European Union)
Collateral Support Agreements

Dradend withholding tax

Exposure at default

Economic caprtal

Eamnings per share

European Union

European Union Ermissions Trading Schame
Euro Inter Bank Offered Rate

Exponentally Weighted Moving Average

First Rate Exchange Services

Foating Rate Note

Gengrally Accepted Accounting Practice
Group Audit Cornmitteg

Group Creait Comerittee

Group Chief Risk Officer

Group Executve Committes

Group Internal Audit

Group Regulatory and QOperational Risk

Group Reguiatory and Operational Risk Committee
Group Rigk Policy Commuttee

Health Service Execuive

Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process
International Accounting Standards
International Accounting Standards Board
Incurred but not Reported

International Financal Reparting Interpretations Commttee
International Financial Reporting Standards
Interrial Ratings Approach

Report & Accounts

LGD
Libor
LTiP
LTPSP
MBPN
NI
NYSE
PBT
PD
POFS
PRC
RAROC
repas
RMBS
RMC
ROE
Rot
RWA
SAYE
Sivs
SME
SORIE
S0x
SPE
SSf
STP
TS8R
UKFS
VaR
VIF

Loss gven defautt

London Inter Bank Cffered Rate
Long Temm Incentve Plan

Long Term Performance Stock Plan
Mortgage backed promissory note
Northern Jreland

New York Stock Exchange

Profit before tax

Probability of default

Post Office Financial Services
Portfolio Review Committes

Risk adusted return on economic caprtal
repurchase agresments

Restdual Mortgage Backed Secunties
Risk Measurement Committee
Return on Equity

Repubtic: of Ireland

Risk weighted assets

Save as you eam

Structured investment vehicles

Small Medium Enferpnses

Statement of recogrised mcome and expense
Sarbanes COxley Act of 2002

Special Purpose Entrty

Stock Share Issue

Strategic Transformation Programme
Total sharshaolder retum

UK Financial Services

Value at Risk

Value in force
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